FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC

PN TE A Florida Limited Liability Company
y 2221 North East 164th Street, Suite 252

North Miami Beach, Florida 33160
P: (778) 340-2000
info@30minutehit.com
www.30minutehit.com

The franchise offered is for the operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym using our Marks, Copyrights and our
System featuring a high-intensity circuit training fitness program known as “30 MINUTE HIT” as well as other
products and services we designate or approve.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym unit franchise ranges from
$134145,350 to $332342,950. This includes $76,000 to $79,000 that must be paid to the franchisor or its
affiliates.

We offer qualified individuals the right to own and eperatingoperate between two (2) and three (3) Gyms in a
designated development area by entering into an Area Development Agreement (“ADA). The total investment
necessary to begin operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® under an Area Development Agreement is $174185,350
(for the development of two (2) Gyms) to $407417,950 (for the development of three (3) Gyms). This includes
initial fees ranging from $85,000 (for the development of two (2) gyms) to $120,000 (for the development of
three (3) gyms) that must be paid to us or our affiliate.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive
this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any
payments to the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however that
no government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Documents in another format that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different format, contact the Franchise Administration Department at
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC, 2221 North East 164th Street, Suite 252, North Miami Beach, Florida 33160, (778)
340-2000.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract in this disclosure
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. Information in this Disclosure Document can help you make up
your mind. More information on franchising such as “A Consumer's Guide To Buying a Franchise” which can
help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document is available from the Federal Trade Commission.
You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC home page at www.ftc.gov. For additional information,
call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may be other laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

ISSUANCE DATE: April 18,202428, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs, profits or
losses. Youshouldalso try to obtain this information from others, like
current and former franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibit J and K.

How much will | need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor or at the
franchisor’sdirection. Item 7 lists the initial investment to open. Item
8 describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide support
to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial statements. Review these
statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of company-
owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only 30
Minute Hit® business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise agreement
describe whether the franchisor and other franchisees can compete
with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled
legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its management have
been involved in material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a 30
Minute Hit® franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit J and K list current and former franchisees.
You can contact them to ask about their experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you should look for. Review
all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure document to better
understand this franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are losing
money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals and
business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments in you
franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of suppliers
the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy on your
own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business during
the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your
location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may
have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a
new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business
after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering
or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the franchise or has
verified the information in this document. To find out of your state has a registration requirement, or to contact
your state, use the agency information in Exhibit L.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise

agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location
of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve disputes
with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in Florida. Out-of-state
mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for
disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Florida
than in your own state.

Mandatory Minimum Payments.  You must make minimum royalty and other payments,
regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make payments may result in termination of
your franchise and loss of your investment.

Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its financial

statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial ability to provide services
and support to you.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for all

financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your spouse has no ownership
interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both your and your spouse’s marital and
personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if your franchise fails.

Unopened Franchises. The Franchisor has signed a significant number of Franchise

Agreements with franchisees who have not yet opened their outlets. If other franchisee are
experiencing delays in opening their outlets, you may also experience delays in opening your
own outlet.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if
any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

1. Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
relating to a franchise:

@ A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not
preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

2. A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a
reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

3. A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without
fairly compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized
materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings
not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This subsection
applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the
franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area
subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice
of franchisor's intent not to renew the franchise.

4, A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

5. A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall
not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration
at a location outside this state.

6. A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first
refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

@ The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(b) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.

(© The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all
lawful obligations.

(d) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.
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7. A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right
of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor
the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee
has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner
provided in subdivision (c).

8. A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor's most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other
funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate, improvements,
equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of
the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Franchise
670 G. Mennen Williams Building
Lansing, Michigan 48933
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (Unit) 20242025 FDD



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ITEM PAGE

ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENT PREDECESSORS AND

AFFILIATES ettt be b nne s 1
ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE ..ottt 4
ITEM 3 LITIGATION ..ottt b e )
ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY oottt 5)
ITEM S INITIAL FEES ..o )
ITEM 6 OTHER FEES ...t bbb 7
ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT ..oooiiiii e 12
ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES...........ccccvvenne. 15
ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS . ...t 20
ITEM 10 FINANCING ..ottt b et nn e 22
ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS

AND TRAINING ...ttt nb e 22
ITEM 12 TERRITORY ..ottt 29
ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS . ..ottt 32
ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION .......cccooveiiinnene 34
ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE

FRANCHISE BUSINESS ... ..o 35
ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL......c.ccccooiiiiiiinnn. 36
ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION .......... 36
ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES ...ttt 40
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS ..o 40
ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION .....oooiiiiiiiiiiiiec e 41
ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ... 45
ITEM 22 CONTRACTS ..o 45
ITEM 23 RECEIPTS . ...ttt et nne s 45

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (Unit) 20242025 FDD



EXHIBITS

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Exhibit H
Exhibit |

Exhibit J

Exhibit K
Exhibit L
Exhibit M
Exhibit N
Exhibit O
Exhibit P

Financial Statements

Form of Franchise Agreement and Related Materials

Form of Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings
Form of Conditional Assignment and Assumption of Lease
Form of Agreement to Lease

Form of Area Development Agreement

General Release — Renewal & Assignment

Form of Principal Owner's Statement

Form of Principal Owner's Guaranty

List of Franchisees, Sponsored Franchise Associations and Non-
Sponsored Franchise Associations

List of Franchisees Who Have Left the System

List of State Agencies/Agents for Service of Process
Pre-Closing Questionnaire

State Specific Addenda and Disclosure

Table of Contents to Operation Manual

Receipts

APPLICABLE STATE LAW MAY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES RELATED TO THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, AND MIGHT REQUIRE A RIDER
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THESE ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES, IF ANY, APPEAR IN AN
ADDENDUM OR RIDER IN EXHIBIT N.
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR. AND ANY PARENT PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

The Franchisor is 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC, referred to as “we,” “us,” or “our.” We also do
business under the name “30 Minute Hit.” “You” means a person who acquires a franchise from us. If
you are a corporation, partnership or other entity, provisions of our Franchise Agreement also will apply to
your owners and your owners must sign our "Principal Owners Guaranty", which means that all of the terms
of the Franchise Agreement which you sign apply to your owners (Exhibit “B”).

We are a Florida limited liability company formed on March 16, 2010. Our principal business
address is 101 Bowser Avenue, North Vancouver, British Columbia V7P 3H1 and our principal address in
the U.S. is 2221 North East 164th Street, Suite 252, North Miami Beach, Florida 33160. Our phone number
is (778) 340-2000, and our website is www.30minutehit.com. Our agent in this state for service of process
is, if applicable, disclosed in Exhibit “L.” We conduct business under our corporate name and under the
trade or service marks “30minutehit.com” and “30 Minute Hit®” (Word and Design).

Our Parent Predecessors and Affiliates.

Our Parent, Predecessor and affiliate is 30 Minute Hit, LTD, a Canadian company (British
Columbia) (“30 Minute Hit Canada”). We are owned by 30 Minute Hit Canada. Like us, 30 Minute Hit
Canada does business through the website www.30minutehit.com. 30 Minute Hit Canada is a federally
incorporated Canadian company, formed on June 2, 2006, with its principal address at P.O. Box 75528
RPO Edgemont Village, North Vancouver, British Columbia V7R 4X1, extra provincially registered in
British Columbia on June 30, 2006. Its phone number is 1-778-340-2000. 30 Minute Hit Canada operates
as the franchisor of the 30 MINUTE HIT® franchise system in Canada. It may serve as a designated or
approved supplier to our 30 MINUTE HIT® franchises for inventory, equipment and supplies. We received
the majority of our initial assets from 30 Minute Hit Canada, and it has assigned to us, and in some instances
licensed to us, the intellectual property we utilize in offering our franchises.

Except as described above, we have no other parent, predecessors or affiliates.
Our Business.

Our Parent commenced our formal offering of franchises for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in Canada as
of July 2, 2006. As of December 31, 20242023, there were 5148 franchised 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in
Canada.

We began informal (pre-incorporation) offering of franchises in the United States as of January 1,
2010, and formal offering of them in the US as of our inception, March 16, 2010. We do not engage in
other business activities and have not offered franchises in other lines of business. We have not operated
any franchised 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, but our co-founders, Jackson Loychuk and Deanna Loychuk
created the concept that became the prototype for a 30 Minute Hit® Gym in British Columbia, Canada in
September 2004 (“Original 30 Minute Hit”). The Original 30 Minute Hit’s address is 101 Bowser Avenue,
North Vancouver, British Columbia. It was sold on September 1, 2011 to a franchisee.

None of our predecessors or affiliates has offered franchises in this or any other lines of business.

Our Unit Franchise Program.

We and our predecessors and affiliates have expended considerable time and effort developing
businesses which use our System, Copyrights and Marks in the operation of businesses (“30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym(s)”) which offer the high intensity circuit training program known as the “30 Minute Hit” program
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which includes high intensity circuit training workouts comprised of boxing, kickboxing, and core
strengthening exercises, as well as other products and services we designate or approve, which we may
change and designate from time to time (“Approved Products and Services”).

Each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operates from a location (its “Site”), is granted a territory in which to
operate (the “Designated Area”) and is allowed to provide only those Approved Products and Services we
designate or approve, in the manner we designate or approve from the Site, or as we may approve, within
the Designated Area. Your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym may, or may not be required to or be provided the
opportunity to operate off-Site services we designate or approve from time to time from your 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym or at locations other than your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (in home personal training, or fitness
demonstrations or services as alternative locations such as businesses, community centers or the like)
(“Other Services”). If we designate Other Services, they will be governed by your Franchise Agreement
with us, and you must comply with our System Standards for them.

We grant to persons who meet our qualifications, and who are willing to undertake the investment
and effort, the right to operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Unit Franchise Program”). We offer
franchises under the Unit Franchise Program for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms only under the terms of our then
current form of Franchise Agreement, a copy of which is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit
“B” (the “Franchise Agreement”). If you sign a Franchise Agreement, the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym you
will operate may be referred to in this Disclosure Document as the, or your, “Gym” or its or your “30
MINUTE HIT® Gym.”

We also require franchisees signing our form of Franchise Agreement to sign our form of
Conditional Assignment and Assumption of Lease Agreement (“CAAL”), our Conditional Assignment of
Telephone Numbers and Listings (“CATNL”), and we require the owners of the franchise to sign our
Principal Owners’ Guaranty (“POG”) and our Principal Owners’ Statement (“POS”). On our approval of
any successor franchise, we also require the franchisee to sign our form of Release — Successor Franchisee
(“RS”) and may also, upon approval of a transfer of a franchise, require the transferee to sign our form of
Release — Transfer (“RT”). If you are going to own the property on which your Gym is located, we may
require you to sign our form of Lease Agreement (“LA”). Each are attached as exhibits to this disclosure
document or your Franchise Agreement.

In addition to our single-unit offering, we grant qualified individuals the right to own and operate
multiple Gyms through an Area Development Agreement (the “ADA”). If you sign an ADA, you are
required to develop a certain number of Franchised Businesses in the area designated in the ADA as the
“Development Area” in accordance with the development schedule attached to the ADA (the
“Development Schedule”), which will be between two (2) and three (3) total Gyms, as we determine using
our then-current criteria. We reserve the right to grant you the right to open more than three (3) Gyms in our
sole discretion. A copy of the ADA is attached as Exhibit F. For the first Gym you develop under the ADA,
you must sign the form of Franchise Agreement attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit B. For your
second and each subsequent Gym, you must sign our then-current form of Franchise Agreement before you
open each subsequent Gym. The then-current Franchise Agreement may contain materially different terms
as compared to the form of Franchise Agreement attached to this FDD as Exhibit B. We also have the right
to require you to sign a general release as a condition to our granting you the right to enter into your second
and each subsequent Franchise Agreement. A current copy of our form of sample general release is attached
to this FDD as Exhibit G.

Our System, Copyrights and Marks.

We use, promote and license in the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms certain trademarks, service
marks and other commercial symbols, including the trade and service marks “30 Minute Hit®” and other
assorted associated logos, designs, URLs (like 30minutehit.com), slogans, trademarks, service marks and
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trade dress which have gained and continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and may create, use and
license additional trademarks, service marks, e-names and commercial symbols in conjunction with the
operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms (collectively, the “Marks”).

We also use, promote and license in the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms certain information
capable of being rendered into tangible form that we claim as our Copyrights, including our advertising,
websites, training programs, spreadsheets, pro forma documents, forms, pricing lists, vendor lists,
modifications to software, and any other written materials, marketing materials, advertisements, television
advertisements, radio commercials, songs, jingles, slogans or performance (including the look, compilation,
feel and content of them) (collectively, the “Copyrights”).

30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms offer and sell Approved Products and Services in a distinctive and
innovative environment. 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms operate using the Marks and Copyrights and according
to our distinctive workout and fitness programs, business formats, uniforms, color schemes, entertainment
methods, hiring practices, operational methods, Business Management System, procedures, designs,
layouts, signs, equipment, training and workout techniques, trade dress, appearance standards, System
Standards, uniforms and other standards and specifications, all of which we may change from time to time
(the “System”).

To facilitate the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, we may, to the extent we designate, and in
conjunction with our existing predecessors or affiliates, or future affiliates, act as a clearing house of leads
and information concerning sales of Approved Products and Services, assist with managing information,
collect and provide and manage information relating to customers and vendors, and operate and designate
database management platforms, Information Technology Systems and other information systems we
designate as pertinent to the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. This interrelated business management system, our
30 MINUTE HIT® Gym business management system (the “Business Management System”) is or may be
an integral part of the System. The Business Management System may operate in conjunction with, and
may include the computer system hardware and software we designate or approve for 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gyms (the “Information Technology System”), which may include management and other information
and point of sale systems (the “POS System”), and any accounting systems we designate or approve (the
“Accounting System”). Through or in connection with the Business Management System, we may assist
30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in providing the level of marketing, advertising, information management and
training and support described in the Franchise Agreement, as well as offering additional marketing and
support services at our then current prices. Currently, we do not have a designated supplier of the
Information Technology System, POS System and Accounting System, but are investigating providers for
them.

We are an “owner operation” focused franchise. At least one of your owners with at least 50%
ownership in the franchise must be designated as your “general manager”, who will be responsible for
overseeing operation of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Also, because we believe that the initial and ongoing
education regarding sound business management, operations, and other matters we designate, is integral to
the success of our System, we and our affiliates and third parties we designate from time to time, may provide
initial and ongoing training and education to 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and their staff. Part of this training, as
described in Item 11, is mandatory and part of it is optional. Both mandatory and optional training may
require you to pay our or our third parties’ then current fees for such training.

Competition.

You will be competing with in-home and fixed location gyms, personal trainers, fitness locations,
fitness programs and other opportunities for exercise of all types, as well as traditional boxing or kickboxing
gyms. These fitness providers may be associated with national or regional chains or may be local
independent businesses. Your products and services will be offered to the general public, to individual
consumers, primarily for on-site consumption/use. The market for fitness opportunities of the type offered
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by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms is developed in some areas and developing in other areas, depending on the
number of this type fitness facility in the area.

Requlations.

You will be required to comply with all local, state and federal, health and sanitation laws that apply
to gym or fitness center operations. Some States have laws that govern the contractual terms for gym
memberships or installment contracts. Other states require licensure or certification for personal trainers.
Some states and municipalities also may require separate training in sanitation and safety laws before
permitting the Gym to open. You should check your state and local laws. You must comply with laws
regulating sexual harassment and discrimination, as well as, federal, state and local regulations concerning
any nutritional, drink or food products you may offer (like shakes, meal replacement bars or nutritional
supplement), labeling, preparation, handling, storage and sale. These include state laws requiring postings
concerning steroids and other drug use, governing the terms of membership agreements, gym membership
sales and financing terms, health and safety, child care requirements, requiring medicines and equipment in
clubs or gyms, bond requirements, pool and wet area safety requirements, pre-sale bonds and escrows, and
the like. You must also comply with all local, state and federal laws, including various environmental
laws such as those that regulate massage, tanning, personal training and other regulated services. You must
comply with federal and state truth in labeling, commercial texting and advertising laws and regulations.
Additionally, every state has enacted laws, rules, regulations and ordinances which may apply to the
operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, including those which: (a) establish general standards,
specifications and requirements for the construction, design and maintenance of the premises, including
Americans With Disabilities Act requirements; (b) regulate matters affecting the health, safety and welfare
of your customers, such as general health and sanitation requirements, restrictions on smoking, and
availability of and requirements for public accommodations, including restrooms; (c) set standards
pertaining to employee health and safety; and (d) set standards and requirements for fire safety and general
emergency preparedness. You must comply with laws regulating sexual harassment and discrimination, as
well as, federal, state and local regulations concerning retail business practices. You will also be required to
comply with immigration and social security laws regarding the personnel you hire. Certain states and local
governments have laws relating specifically to health clubs or gyms, including laws requiring postings
concerning steroids and other drug use, requiring certain medical equipment in the club or gym, limiting the
supplements that health clubs or gyms can sell, requiring bonds if a health club or gym sells memberships
valid for more than a specified period of time, requiring club or gym owners to deposit into escrow certain
amounts collected from members before the club or gym opens (so-called “presale” memberships), and
imposing other restrictions on memberships that health clubs or gyms sell. You should investigate your local
laws. Note that the ongoing development of the COVID-19 virus crisis is having and will have an impact
on laws rules and regulations relating to gyms, including orders or recommendations that they close for
unknown periods of time.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Co-President and Director: Jackson Loychuk

Jackson has served as our Co-President and our Director in North Vancouver, BC since our inception
in March 2010. He has served since June 2006 as the Director, Secretary and an owner of 30 Minute
Hit, Ltd, in Vancouver, BC and has also served from September 2004 to September 2011 as the owner,
trainer and manager for the Original 30 Minute Hit in British Columbia, Canada.

Co-President and Director: Deanna Loychuk

Deanna has served as our Co-President and our Director in North Vancouver, BC since our

12
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (Unit) 20242025 FDD



inception in March 2010. She has served since June 2006 as the President, Director and an owner of 30
Minute Hit, Ltd, in Vancouver, BC, and has also served from September 2004 to September 2011 as the
owner, trainer and manager for the Original 30 Minute Hit, in British Columbia, Canada.

ITEM3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Disclosure Document.

ITEM5
INITIAL FEES

Unit Franchise Program.

Your “initial franchise fees” are those monies you are required to pay to us, to our parent or to our
affiliates prior the commencement of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym’s operations. Your initial franchise fees
under the Unit Franchise Program is $70,000. Your initial franchise fees include your Franchise Fee,
Training Fee and Initial Equipment Fee.

Included with the initial franchise fee is the grant of the franchise, our Initial Training Program, and
our Initial Equipment. Any additional training fees due and optional supplies you purchase (those not
included in our Initial Equipment) are due after the commencement of your operations. The components of
your initial franchise fees are described in this Item 5, below.

Franchise Fee:

When you sign the Franchise Agreement, you are required to pay a lump sum non-refundable
franchise fee (the “Franchise Fee”) in the amount of $45,000. The Franchise Fees are uniform among
franchisees.

Except as described in this Item 5, there are no other fees to be paid to or purchases required to be
made from us or our affiliates, prior to your beginning operations.

Training Fee:

When you sign the Franchise Agreement you must pay to us a lump sum nonrefundable “Training
Fee” in the amount of $10,000. The Training Fee compensates us for initial training in Item 11. The
Training Fee is uniform among franchisees.

Initial Equipment Fee; Additional Equipment, Inventory and Supplies Purchase:

In addition to the Franchise Fee is our non-refundable fee (the “Initial Equipment Fee”) for payment
for our, or our affiliate purchasing and selling to you certain equipment inventory and promotional supplies,
items we require you to use in the development or operation of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Initial
Equipment”). It is non-refundable and due in lump sum when you sign your Franchise Agreement. The Initial
Equipment Fee is $15,000, and its makeup varies. You are responsible for shipment costs, which you pay to
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third party shippers. These shipment costs to third parties range from $1,000 to $3,000. See Item 7. A
typical Initial Equipment package includes the following items: training materials, copies of operations
manuals, miscellaneous flyers and other printed materials bearing our Marks and/or Copyrights, our point of
sale start up kit, and various logo shirts. The actual items and equipment, and quantities of those items and
equipment included in your Initial Equipment will be designated in an Exhibit to your Franchise Agreement,
and may vary from the general description provided above.

You are also required to purchase from us or our affiliate additional equipment items, and your initial
inventory of certain supplies such as merchandise, uniforms, supplies, apparel, boxing gloves, wraps, and other
materials and supplies necessary for the opening of the Gym in compliance with our prescribed standards and
specifications. The range of costs associated with this purchase is $6,000 to $9,000. The difference between
the low and high range is attributable to the actual size of the Gym and the amount and variety of the items
purchased.

Each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym is operated under a separate Franchise Agreement. The Franchise
Fee, Training Fee and Initial Equipment Fee are due in lump sum upon signing the Franchise Agreement
and are fully earned and non-refundable upon payment. The fee for the additional equipment and inventory
is due before opening, at the time you receive the invoice for your order.

Area Development Agreement.

If you acquire rights under an ADA, you must pay an Area Development Fee to us when you sign
the ADA (the “Development Fee”). The Development Fee is calculated as follows: The ADA will identify
the Development Area within which you are required to develop Gyms, as well as the total number of Gyms
to be developed in the Development Area (the “DA Gyms” or “Development Area Gyms”), which will be
between two (2) and three (3) total Gyms as we determine using our then-current criteria. We reserve the
right to grant you the right to open more than three (3) Gyms in our sole discretion. The Development Fee
you must pay under the ADA will be equal to: (a) $85,000 (for the development of two (2) Gyms, or (b)
$120,000 (for the development of three (3) Gyms). The Development Fee under ADAs signed under this
Disclosure Document is calculated uniformly and is non-refundable upon payment.

If you sign an ADA, in addition to the Development Fee, you must pay the Initial Fees required
under each Franchise Agreement you sign under the ADA for each Gyms you are required to open.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]
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ITEM 6

OTHER FEES
A Unit Franchise Program.
Name of Amount Due Date Remarks®
Royalty Varies: The Royalty is the greater of On the We may require you to pay the
(a) 4% of your monthly Gross Sales or Payment Date Royalties by electronic transfer.
(b) the following amounts per month of each The current Payment Date is the
based on your Gross Sales “Tier”: Accounting 15 of each month. Royalty is
Tier 1: under $100,000 = Period increased to double (2x) its
$500/month; Tier 2: $100,001 to (currently normal rate during any month
$200,000 = $600/month; Tier 3: monthly) you purchase or sell unapproved
$200,001 to $300,000 = products or services.
$700/month; Tier 4: $300,001 to
$400,000 = $800/month; and Tier 5:
$400,001+ = $900/month.
Currently, until we provide notice,
we are only charging Royalties at the
rate indicated in (b) above. We may
implement the Royalty rate in (a) above
at any time upon notice.
System Varies: Currently $0 per month, but can | On the We may defer or reduce upon 30
Development be up to 3% of your Gross Sales. Payment Date days' prior written notice to you.
Fund Fees of each We may also charge you our
Accounting then current production,
Period shipping, handling and storage
(currently costs for media items produced
monthly) by the System Development
Fund. We will not increase the
System Development Fund Fee
during the 15t year of your
term.
Website Our then-current fee. As of the issuance | On the Includes maintaining the
Marketing date of this Disclosure Document, the Payment Date webpage.
Fee (“WMF”) WMF is $300 per month and is subject to| of each
increase upon notice to you. Accounting
Period
(currently
monthly). We
do not bill you
until after your
Opening Date.
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Name of

Amount

Due Date

Remarks®

Power Leads Fee

Our then-current “Power Leads Fee”.
You must pay to our designated supplier
a Power Leads management fee equal to
twenty percent (20%) of your proposed
Power Leads budget per month unless we
designate otherwise. As of the issuance
date of this Disclosure Document, you
must determine your proposed monthly
budget for Power Leads and you must
pay to our designee (which may include
us, an affiliate or third party supplier) the
Power Leads Fee according to the
schedule we designate, with the first
payment due before the Opening Date.
As of the issuance date of this Disclosure
Document, you must expend not less than
(i) $3,000 per month for the first twelve
months following the opening of your
Franchised Business, and (ii) $2,000 per
month thereafter.

As designated
by the
applicable
supplier.

As of the issuance date of this
Disclosure Document, we
require you to pay our then-
current Power Leads Fee plus
the management fee in an
amount equal to twenty percent
(20%) of your proposed budget
for Power Leads, to our
designated supplier for Power
Leads Ads management and
services. We reserve the right
to require you to pay the Power
Leads Fee to us, or affiliate or a
different third party supplier at
any time, effective on notice to
you.

SMS System Fee

Our then-current SMS System Fee; As of
the issuance date of this Disclosure
Document, the SMS System Fee is $100
per month

On the
Payment Date
of each
Accounting
Period
(currently
monthly)

You must pay to us, or, if we
designate otherwise, to our
designated supplier (which may
include an affiliate), a
continuing SMS System Fee.
As of the issuance date of this
Disclosure Document, the SMS
System Fee is due and payable
to us on a monthly basis.

Ongoing Training
Development Fee

Our then-current fee. As of the issuance
date of this Disclosure Document, the
Ongoing Training Development Fee is
$100 per month and is subject to increase
upon notice to you.

On the
Payment Date
of each
Accounting
Period
(currently
monthly). We
do not bill you
until after your
Opening Date.

Compensates us for ongoing
training program development.

Sales Staff
Training
Evaluation

Our then-current fee. As of the issuance
date of this Disclosure Document, the
Sales Staff Training Evaluation is $75
per individual evaluation and is subject
to increase on notice to you.

Due monthly.
We do not bill
you until
after your
Opening
Date.

We conduct an evaluation of
your staff to determine if you
have trained them on our
System Standards.
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks®

Local Advertising| Varies: Currently, 0% of Gross Sales. | As established | Only applies if a local

Cooperative Fee/ | Can be up to 2% of weekly Gross Sales. | by the advertising cooperative or Local
Local Advertising cooperative Advertising Association
Avrea fee (“LAA”) is established. If so,

you must pay up to 2% of your
Gym's weekly Gross Sales to the
cooperative. The local
advertising cooperative
determines or LAA its covered
area and participants, subject to
our approval. We can require
that an LAA is created. We do
not have established criteria for
the covered areas of local
advertising cooperatives. If one
of our affiliate 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms participates in the
Cooperative or LAA, it will
have 1 vote. We have the right
to approve the rules of the local
advertising cooperative.

Local Advertising| Varies. Currently $300 per month is paid | As incurred. For internet marketing. We may
Requirement to us by you for our online marketing | Paid to us by permit local advertising
program services provided by our you on the 18t cooperative expenditures or
designee. Can be up to 2% of your | ofthe month LAA fees to count towards this
annual Gross Sales. via electronic amount.
funds transfer.
System Standard | $1,000 per first month a violation occurs, | As incurred. If you fail to comply with our
Violation Fee and doubles from the prior month for System Standards, then in
each subsequent month the violation addition to any other right we
occurs. have under this Agreement, you

will also pay to us the System
Standard Violation Fee: each
subsequent month, consecutive
or otherwise, in which System
Standards are violated or not
met by you, you will pay to us
a System Standard Violation
Fee in an amount equal to
double the prior System
Standard Violation Fee due.
We are not required to provide
notice or opportunity to cure
prior to imposing the fee.
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you until after
your Opening
Date.

Name of Amount Due Date Remarks®
Operating Up to $1,000 per day plus expenses. Due upon We do not provide you any
Assistance demand: free days of operating
Fee Generally assistance per year. At our

when you option, days of operating
request assistance may be provided if
additional you pay to us a fee of up to
assistance $1,000 per day, plus all travel,
food, living, lodging and
other expenses incurred by us
in providing the operating
assistance to you. For
example, this fee applies if you
request and we provide
operating assistance at your
Gym around the time of your
opening or afterwards.
Additional Varies, but will not exceed $1,200 per | Within 5 days We only charge additional
Training trainer per day, plus expenses. after billing. training if we require or you
We do not bill request additional training. Our

then current training fees will be
posted in our Manuals from time
to time. You must also pay all
travel, food, living, lodging and
other expenses incurred by the
trainer. Also applies to any
training outside of or in addition
to the Initial Training, or for
attending any mandatory
meetings we designate.

Transfer Fee (x) 50% of the sum of our then current | As Incurred —You also must pay
Franchise Fee, Initial Equipment Fee and $1,000500 for each transferee
Training Fee, plus (y) any franchise evaluated by us.
broker fees.
Renewal 25% of our then current Franchise Fee, | Upon Signing However, you must bring your
(successor plus any franchise broker fees. the Successor Gym in compliance with our
franchise) Franchise System Standards and doing so
Agreement. may require you to incur
Additional Training Fees and
make purchases, including
purchases from us or our
affiliates.
Audit Cost of inspection or audit plus travel. 15 days after Payable only if you fail to
billing furnish reports, supporting
records or other required
information or you under
report Gross Sales by 2% or
greater.
Interest Lesser of 18% per year or highest | Within 15 days | Payable on all overdue
contract rate of interest allowed by law. after billing amounts.
Late Payment 5% of the late amount. Due on Payable on all late payments
Penalties payment of including interest.
late amount
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks®
Costs and Will vary under circumstances. As Incurred Payable upon your failure to
Attorneys' Fees comply with the Franchise
Agreement.
Indemnification | Will vary under circumstances. As Incurred You have to reimburse us if we

are held liable for claims
arising from your Gym's
operations.

Testing

Cost of Testing plus travel expenses:
Currently at least $500 per day of testing.

Within 15 days
after billing

This covers the costs of testing
new products or inspecting
new suppliers you propose.
You must also pay any travel
expenses incurred.

Site Relocation
Fee

$1,000

Within 15 days
after billing

You are required to pay this fee
if we consent to your Gym’s
Site relocation after opening.
You are also responsible for all
costs and expenses relating to
the relocation.

Software,
webpages and e-
mails

Varies: Our then current software
licensing, support and maintenance fees.
Currently, $375 for the POS Set up and
$65 per month until year 4, after which
it drops to $25 per month. May change
due to 3d party supplier fees. We also
require you to purchase Quickbooks®
online ($400 per year).

Within 15 days
of billing

Currently we only require
software licensing and
maintenance for the POS
System. But we may require
other licensing, support or
maintenance fees be paid to us.
We may develop or authorize
a computer system, POS
System and accounting system
that requires you to do so. See
Item 11. We supply one web
page and e-mail Our then
current additional fees apply
for additional web page
development, local URLS, and
e-mails.

Copies of E- Up to $15 per copy. Within 15 days | If you request a printed copy of

Commerce of billing our internet Terms of Use,

Agreement privacy policy or similar online
agreements.

Required 2 x the cost or fee for the required | Within 15 days | We charge you if you miss or

Training/ Meeting
Non- Attendance
Fee

meeting or training. This fee doubles
each missed required meeting or training
after.

of billing

fail to attend any required
meetings or training events. (6)

Re-sales of / Mark
Ups on items,
supplies and
equipment.

Varies: Our or our affiliates’ then
current fees/markup. May be +/-5% to
100%-+.

Within 15 days
of billing

We or our affiliates may be
approved or designated
supplier to you, and we or our
affiliates may earn profits from
those sales.
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Name of Amount Due Date Remarks®

Management Fee | 20% of Gross Sales per month plus As incurred Applies if we exercise our right
any out-of-pocket expenses incurred to take over operation of the
in connection with the Gym’s franchise because you are in
management. breach of the Franchise

Agreement by not meeting our
System Standards/ Customer
Standards. We will not be
liable to you for any debts,
losses or obligations that the
Gym incurs, or to any creditors
for any supplies or other
products or services purchased
for the Gym, in connection with
such management.

Notes:

1) Unless otherwise indicated, all fees in this table are imposed by and payable to us or our affiliates.
In general, we expect to impose all fees described in this chart uniformly among all franchisees. But we
reserve the right to vary these fees if, in our sole discretion, we choose to do so. All fees in this table are
non-refundable, except as provided in Item 5.

2 “Gross Sales” are defined in the Franchise Agreement as all revenue you derive from operating the
Gym, including, but not limited to, all amounts you receive at or away from the Site from any activities or
services whatsoever including any that are in any way associated with the Marks, Copyrights or System, and
whether from cash, check, barter, credit or debit card or credit transactions; but excluding (1) all federal,
state or municipal sales, use or service taxes collected from customers and paid to the appropriate taxing
authority; (2) customer refunds, adjustments, credits and allowances authorized by us that are actually made
by the Gym; (3) sums collected and actually paid by you for any sales or other excise tax imposed by any
duly constituted governmental authority on gym membership sales in a state that prohibits the payment of
Royalties on such sales; and (4) the bulk sales of the business itself, if the same have been included in Gross
Sales.

3) We may require you to pay all payments of the Royalties and other amounts due to us by electronic
funds transfer and in the manner we may designate. If we do so, we will designate the day of the week (the
“Payment Day”) for the payment. You agree to comply with the procedures we specify in our Manuals and
perform such acts and sign and deliver such documents as may be necessary to accomplish payment by this
method. On the Payment Day, you will report to us by telephone or electronic means or on written form, as
we direct, the Gym’s true and correct Gross Sales for the immediately preceding week. You must report to
us membership/billing reconciliation reports prior to the end of each month along with monthly Gross
Sales reports. You will give us authorization, in a form that we designate or approve, to initiate debit entries
or credit correction entries to the Gym’s bank operating account (the “Account”) for payments of Royalties
and other amounts due under the Franchise Agreement, including any applicable interest charges. We do
not have a standard form of electronic delivery transfer document for you to sign to make electronic funds
transfers from your bank operating account. It may vary based on your or our banking institution. You will
make the funds available in the Account for withdrawal by electronic transfer no later than the Payment
Day. The amount actually transferred from the Account to pay Royalties will be based on the Gym’s Gross
Sales reported to us. If you have not reported the Gym’s Gross Sales to us for any reporting period, we will
transfer from the Account an amount calculated in accordance with our reasonable estimate of the Gym’s
Gross Sales during any such reporting period. If we determine at any time that you have under-reported
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Gross Sales or underpaid Royalties or other amounts due to us, we will be authorized to immediately initiate
atransfer from the Account in the appropriate amount in accordance with the foregoing procedures, including
applicable interest and late charges. Any overpayment will be credited to the Account through a credit,
effective as of the first reporting date after you and we determine that such credit is due.

4) We can require that you join a local advertising cooperative and or Local Advertising Area and
contribute to it up to 2% of your Gross Sales. If the majority of its members vote to increase the fees above
2% you must agree to do so. Each franchisee has one vote (per Gym) and if there is a tie, we get to cast the
deciding vote. Each cooperative or Local Advertising Area will adopt its own governing documents that we
may require that we approve.

5) We may establish a committee of franchisees selected by us to determine on a case-by-case
basis if we will grant variances (waivers) of this fee, or increase it for repeated violations.

ITEM7
ESTIMATED INITIAL
INVESTMENT
A Unit Franchise Program.
Type of Expenditure Amount Method Of When Due To Whom
Payment Payment is To
Franchise Fee? $45,000 Lump Sum Signing Us
Franchise
Agreement
Initial Equipment Fee! $15,000 Lump Sum Signing  Franchise | Us
Agreement
Initial Equipment $1,000 to $3,000 Lump Sum As incurred Us or Third Party
Shipping*
Website Marketing Fee! $900 to $1,200 Lump Sum As Incurred Us
Training Fee! $10,000 Lump Sum Signing Franchise Us
Agreement
Training Development Fee? $200 to $500 Lump Sum As Incurred Us
Additional Training Fees $1,100 to $2,750 Lump Sum As Incurred Us
and Expenses?
Rent (2-3 Months)? $45,500 to $18,000 | As Agreed By agreement Lessors,
with provider Contractors,
Leasehold Improvements, $15,000 to $150,000 | Lump Sum As Agreed Third parties
including Landscaping?
Architectural/Engineering $0 to $2,000 As Agreed By agreement Suppliers
Services® with provider
Signage/Local $2,000 to $8,000 Lump Sum As Incurred Suppliers
Advertising*
Information  Technology $4,000 to $5,000 As Incurred As Incurred Suppliers
System/POS System/
Computer System®
Power Leads Fees (2-3 $6,000 to $9,000 Lump Sum As Incurred Us
Months)
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Type of Expenditure Amount Method Of When Due To Whom
Payment Payment is To

Lease, Utility and $3,500 to $15,000 Lump Sum As Incurred Third Parties
Security®
Additional Equipment, $6,000 to $9,000 Lump Sum Signing of Us.
Inventory and Supplies’ Franchise
Grand $6,000 As Incurred Within 60 days | Third Parties
Opening Advertising® of opening Gym
Insurance® $3,000 to $5,000 Lump Sum As Incurred Third Parties
Professional Fees'® $1,000 to $2,500 As Incurred As Incurred Third Parties
Business Licenses and™ $150 to $1,000 As Incurred As Incurred Third Parties
Permits
Additional Funds - 3 $1020,000 to As Incurred As Incurred Third Parties
M onths'? $2535,000
TOTAL ESTIMATED $134145,350 to
INITIAL $332342,950
INVESTMENT
UNDER THE UNIT
FRANCHISE

PROGRAM (FOR
YOUR FIRST UNIT
FRANCHISE
EXCLUDING
PURCHASE OF REAL
ESTATE

AND/OR BUILDING
PURCHASE COSTS)®

Explanatory Notes:

1.

See Items 5 and 6. The Franchise Fee is $45,000 and Initial Equipment Fee is $15,000, and
Training Fee is $10,000. The Franchise Fee is uniform among franchisees. We do not
finance any fees. The Franchise Fee, the Training Fee and the Initial Equipment Fee are due
in lump sum when you sign the Franchise Agreement for each Gym and is not refundable
under any circumstances. The Website Marketing Fee, Power Leads Fee, SMS System Fee,
Training Development Fee and Additional Training Fees and expenses are not due until after
you open for operations. You are responsible for the cost of shipping the Initial Package,
which is paid to third parties, not to us or our affiliates. See Item 5. This item does not include
Royalty payments during the initial investment stage. See Item 6. We do not offer financing
directly or indirectly for any part of the initial investment. The availability and terms of
financing will depend on factors such as the availability of financing generally, your
creditworthiness, collateral you may have and lending policies of financial institutions from
which you may request a loan.

A 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym's Site will typically be “Free Standing”, “Strip Mall”. The size of a
Free Standing Site 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym is estimated to be 1,400 to 2,500 square feet of air-
conditioned space. We estimate monthly rental costs to be approximately $15 to $45 per
square foot, inclusive of CAM, and include the franchisee negotiating to receive $15,000 to
$75,000 in tenant improvement allowance (“T1”) included in the rent rate. (If you do not
receive the TI, your estimated initial investment may be $15,000 to $75,000 higher than the
estimated initial investment in this Item 7.) We do not estimate any percentage rent, and rental
costs may vary by area and state of the economy. Your actual rental costs could be much
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higher. Costs of leasehold improvements, which include exterior landscaping, floor covering,
wall treatment, counters, tables, ceilings, painting, window coverings, plumbing, electrical,
carpentry, related work and contractor's fees, development/paving costs, will vary significantly
depending on the condition, location and size of the Site, the demand for the Site among
prospective lessees and any construction or other allowances granted by the landlord after
negotiations. Our estimates for Fee Standing and Strip Mall assumes that you will lease an
existing building on improved land, and that you will essentially renovate the land and building
as needed. Build out expenses may be incorporated into rental rates. We do not anticipate that
you will purchase your real estate. It is possible that you might choose to buy, rather than
rent, real estate on which a building suitable for a 30 Minute Hit® Gym already is constructed
or could be constructed. Real estate costs depend on location, size, visibility, economic
conditions, accessibility, competitive market conditions and type of ownership you are buying.
Both the high and low range assume you are able to negotiate approximately $15,000 to
$75,000 in tenant improvement allowance or landlord’s work into the lease rate. Because
of the numerous variables that affect the value of a particular piece of real estate, this estimated
initial investment table does not reflect the costs of or purchasing land and erecting a building,
and the high end of the rental costs may vary due to your credit worthiness, collateral, costs
included in rent, and CAM, if any.

3. Each Site generally requires conversion of an existing building to house the Gym.
Although we provide you with prototype design plans, specifications, decor and layouts you
will have to develop, with the assistance of an architect and engineer, complete architectural
plans and drawings and engineering plans, at your expense.

4. This estimate is based on the System Development Fund Fees and our estimate of
additional signage, street cards, white page advertising and grand opening expenditures
needed. Local Advertising Cooperative Contributions may count towards this requirement
(See Items 6 and 11).

5. This estimate includes your point-of-sale computer/cash register and a personal computer
for back office operations. We currently do not have a designated source for the POS
System (See Items 1 and 11).

6. The amount of the security deposits needed for various equipment leases or services will
depend on what items you choose to rent and/or your credit history.

7. The difference between the low and high ranges is attributable to the actual size of the
Gym and the amount and variety of the merchandise, uniforms, supplies, apparel, boxing
gloves, wraps, and other materials and supplies necessary for the opening of the Gym in
compliance with our prescribed standards and specifications. Your initial inventory will
also vary based on your storage space, and anticipated sales during your initial opening
period.

8. The Pre-Sale and Grand Opening Advertising must be spent within the first 60 days prior
and 30 days after the Gym’s opening date.

9. Insurance must be obtained to meet the minimum requirements established by the System
Standards. This estimate includes your first quarter or semi-annual premium payment. (See
Item 8). Insurance costs vary based on policy limited, types of policies, nature of physical
assets, gross revenue, number of employees, square footage, location, business, contacts and
other factors.
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10.  You will most likely need to hire an attorney to represent you in connection with forming an
entity, and advising you of your legal risks and obligations.

11. You will need to obtain business licenses and permits, and pay the applicable fees to the
governmental agencies that require you to file for them.

12. We relied on the experience of the 30 Minute Hit® Gym operated by our affiliate, and by
30 Minute Canada’s franchisees to compile these estimates (See Item 1). This item estimates
your initial startup expenses for the period from signing the Franchise Agreement through
your first 3 months of operations. This includes any other fees in Item 6 not specifically
mentioned in the table in this Item. These expenses include payroll costs. These figures are
estimates, and we cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting the
business.

b. YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT UNDER THE AREA DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT!?

Type of | Amount Method of | When Due To Whom
Expenditure Payment Payment is to Be
Made
Development $85,000 (for the Lump sum, non- When you sign Company
Fee? development of refundable the Area
two Gyms) to Development
$120,000 (for the Agreement
development of
three Gyms).
Initial Investment | $89100,350 — See Chart 7(A & B) above. The low range is equal to the low
for the First $28+297,950 range of the total from Chart 7(A) less the Initial Franchise
Gym® Fee, and the high range is equal to the high range of the total
from Chart 7(B) less the Initial Franchise Fee. See Note 3.
Total Initial $174185,350 - In addition to the Development Fee, you will incur initial
Investment $4067417,950 investment expenses for the development and opening of each

Gym you are obligated to open under the development
Dependent on the | schedule. The current estimated initial investment range for
number of Gyms | the development of a Gym is disclosed in the above tables and
you commit to is subject to adjustment and increase in the future.

open under the
development
schedule

Note 1. All fees and payments are non-refundable, unless otherwise stated or permitted by the payee.

Note 2. The range in the above tables reflects the amount of the Development Fee for the development of two
(2) to three (3) Gyms. You must pay a Development Fee equal to $85,000 for the development of two (2)
Gyms and $120,000 for the development of three (3) Gyms. We reserve the right to enter into Development
Agreements for the development of more than three (3) Gyms.

Note 3. This estimated initial investment for each Gym you are obligated to develop under the ADA is subject
to change for future Gyms, based on our then current offer at the time of sale, and costs associated with the
types of expenditures listed in Charts 7(A) and 7(B) above. As stated in the table above, the estimate included
only applies to the first Gym you open under the ADA. You will incur initial investment expenses for each
Gym you are obligated to open under the ADA, and that initial investment estimate may increase in the future.

24
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (Unit) 20242025 FDD



Note 4. If you sign multiple Franchise Agreements, the estimated initial investments for each individual 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym will apply to each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operated under each Franchise Agreement.
Your estimated initial investment could be lower for subsequent 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms if we certify you
to provide the Initial Training to your second and subsequent 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms opened. (See Item 5).
This estimate has not been offset by any allowance for your operating revenues during this three-month period.
Your working capital requirements may increase or decrease depending upon your geographic area, operating
revenues and other economic factors.

ITEMS8
RESTRICTIONS ON RCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICE

Purchase Restrictions.

You must operate the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym according to our System Standards. Our System
Standards may regulate nearly all of the purchases or expenditures made by your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym.
Our System Standards may regulate, among other things, the types, models and brands of required
suggested, authorized, unauthorized and prohibited fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, software,
materials, and supplies to be used in establishing and operating the Gym, required or authorized product
categories, equipment, supplies, operating assets and the like and designated or approved suppliers of any
or all of them (which may be limited to or include us or our affiliates). Currently, none of our officers own
an interest in any supplier of required products or services (other than ownership interest in us, the franchisor
entity, which is the designated supplier of certain equipment, inventory and supplies, as disclosed in more
detail below).

Purchases from Us.

You must purchase “Initial Equipment,” which includes the initial equipment inventory and
promotional supplies and items, facial and body wipes, uniforms, branded hats, duffel bags, and apparel, as
well as wraps and boxing gloves, from us. We and/or our affiliates are currently the only Approved Suppliers
of all branded retail items you sell at your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, and online marketing and promotional
materials and supplies. You must purchase these materials and items from us on an ongoing basis, unless
we designate otherwise in writing. For example, at our option, we may require you to purchase from us
and/or our affiliates self- defense training equipment, pre-recorded video tapes, physical fitness instructional
materials, kicking shields, hard targets, bag gloves, training gloves, protective wear, head gear, rubber guns,
rubber sticks, tactical pants, wrist wraps, hand wraps, pre-recorded CDs, DVDs, downloads/streaming and
the like, video games, books, clothing, casual wear, hats, t-shirts, health and nutritional supplies and the like,
as well as any other products, materials, supplies which bear the Marks (or our Copyrights), and/or other
items, materials, services or supplies we choose (or designate for our affiliates) to supply the 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms. We may purchase equipment and supplies from our affiliates and resell them to you, including
at a mark-up. As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, the mark-up on the Initial Equipment
you must purchase from us is approximately 23%. As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document,
other than as disclosed above, we do not currently require you to purchase any other goods or services from
us or our affiliates in connection with the ongoing operation of your Gym. We and our affiliates reserve the
right to become a supplier (including the exclusive supplier) of any item, good and/or service, and to require
you to purchase any or all such items, goods and/or services from us and/or our affiliate(s) at any time in
the future without restriction.

System Standards/Approved Suppliers.

In order to maintain the quality of the goods and services sold by the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and
the reputation of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchise network, you must purchase certain branded and
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non-branded products, materials, food items, beverages, and any other services and equipment we designate
in the Manuals which meet our minimum standards and specifications (“System Standards™). For instance,
we may require you to purchase or lease fixtures, equipment and supplies, furnishings, self-defense training
equipment, pre-recorded video tapes, physical fitness instructional materials, kicking shields, hard targets,
bag gloves, training gloves, protective wear, head gear, rubber guns, rubber sticks, tactical pants, wrist
wraps, hand wraps, pre-recorded CDs, DVDs and the like, video games, books, clothing, casual wear, hats,
t-shirts, health and nutritional supplies and related items, the Information Technology System, security
systems, office supplies, marketing, advertising, paint and building plans, office equipment, as well as any
other inventory, equipment, products, supplies or services used in the establishment or operation of the Gym,
that meet our System Standards. Our System Standards may impose, among other criteria, minimum
requirements for quality, cost, delivery, performance, design and appearance, delivery capabilities,
financing terms, and ability of the supplier to service our franchise system as a whole.

Our System Standards may require that you purchase any or all services from suppliers we designate
or approve, which may include us or our Predecessors, Parent and/or affiliates, including our Affiliate, 30
Minute Hit Canada. We will notify you in our Manual or other communications of our standards and
specifications and designated or approved suppliers.

We reserve the right to require you to purchase any or all services and/or items from designated or
approved suppliers (“Approved Suppliers”), which may include us and/or our affiliates. In addition to the
items and services you are required to purchase from us or our affiliate (as disclosed above), as of the
issuance date of this Disclosure Document, you must purchase the following services from Approved
Suppliers: accounting, website/social media, public relations, site selection, real estate, and other services.
Examples of approved suppliers other than us or our affiliates include POS/Computer System, insurance
and other self-defense or marketing supplies or services, as well as Paychex® for payroll services. The
majority of inventory, supplies and services you purchase for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym must be
purchased from suppliers we designate or approve and/or in accordance with our System Standards.

We and/or our affiliates may negotiate contracts with suppliers of any items and/or services, and
we may require you to purchase items and/or services from these suppliers, including on an exclusive basis.

We do not currently derive any revenue from your purchases from approved suppliers other than
us; but we and our affiliates may derive revenue and other material consideration in the future. Percentages
referenced under this Item 8 are subject to change.

Percentage of Purchases.

Collectively, the purchase and leases described above are about 70% to 80% of your overall
purchases and leases in establishing a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and 30% to 50% of your overall purchase and
leases to operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym.

Changes of Suppliers.

If you want to use any item that does not comply with System Standards or is to be purchased from
a supplier that has not yet been approved, you must first submit sufficient information, specifications and
samples for our determination whether the item complies with System Standards or the supplier meets
approved supplier criteria. We have the right to charge you our then current fee (currently at least $500 per
day of testing) to cover the costs incurred in making this determination and will, within 30 days of your
request, notify you of our decision. We will, from time to time, establish procedures for submitting requests
for approval of items and suppliers and may impose limits on the number of approved items and suppliers.
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Approval of a supplier may be conditioned on requirements relating to product quality, frequency of
delivery, standards of service and concentration of purchases with one or more suppliers in order to obtain
better prices and service and may be temporary, pending our further evaluation of the supplier.

Rebates.

We and our affiliates may negotiate with suppliers and manufacturers to receive rebates on certain
items and/or services you must purchase or lease. Our rebate programs may vary depending on the supplier
and the nature of the product or service. Certain suppliers and manufacturers may pay us a rebate based on
the amount of products ordered that may vary.

In our fiscal year ended December 31, 20242023, we did not receive any rebates from U.S. 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms. As disclosed above, we do re-sell certain items and services to you and receive a
mark-up and profit on these sales. As of the date of this Disclosure Document we have not instituted a formal
rebate program or "Preferred Vendor" agreements with Approved Suppliers to U.S. franchised 30 MINUTE

HIT® Gyms, but we reserve the right to do so in the future.. Buring-the-last fiscalyearwe-and-our-affiliates
derived-norevenue-from-the-sale-ofproductstoDuring the last fiscal year, we derived $263,876 (in Canadian

dollars) in revenue on account of required purchases of goods made by franchised 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms,
which comprised 21.06% of our total revenue of $1,253,135. During the last fiscal year, our affiliate, 30
Minute Hit Canada, derived revenue of $486,089 (in U.S. dollars), on account of required purchases of
services made by franchised 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms.

We may require you to enter into agreements with approved or designated suppliers or distributors.
While we may, from time to time, choose to use rebate monies or other remuneration from such programs
for the System Development Fund, they do not reduce or offset your System Contributions, or other fees
due us. We reserve the right to use such rebate monies or remuneration in any way we choose. While we
may seek to establish supply relationships based on lowest, or lower price, other considerations, such as
strategic marketing, strength of supplier, competitive pressures, and the like may influence our decisions to
use and negotiations with those suppliers. For example, a distributor of energy drinks or waters that we may
permit you to sell may pay to us a commission in an amount of the gross sales of purchases by 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms.

Purchasing or Distribution Cooperatives.

There are currently no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We may negotiate purchase
arrangements with suppliers (including price items), for the benefit of the franchise systems. We do not
provide material benefits to you (for example renewing or granting additional franchises) based on your
purchase of particular products or services or use of particular suppliers.

Gym Development.

We require each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to be constructed or remodeled in accordance with our
specifications and standards. The Franchise Agreement also requires that you purchase or lease and use only
such equipment and supplies as we may specify or approve. We also will furnish you with mandatory and
suggested specifications and layouts for a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, including requirements for dimensions,
design, image, interior layout, decor, fixtures, equipment, signs, furnishings and color scheme.

Site

We must approve the Site for the location of your Gym. If you have not located a Site that is
approved by us prior to your signing the Franchise Agreement, you must locate and obtain our approval of
the Site to be located in the “Site Selection Area” that may be the same as or within the “Designated Area”
we will designate in your Franchise Agreement within 30 days after the date the Franchise Agreement is
signed. You must locate a Site, obtain our approval of it, and open your Gym: (a) within nine (9) months of
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the Site Selection Date; or (b) within 12 months of signing the Franchise Agreement, whichever is first to
occur (the “Opening Date”). We will notify you if we approve or disapprove of the Site within 30 days of
our receiving all materials we require to evaluate it.

If, despite using your best efforts, you are unable to meet the opening deadline due to delays entirely
outside of your control (and provided that you have fully and properly completed and submitted all required
permit applications), we may grant up to three (3) thirty (30) day extensions for you to open the Gym. The
Site must be suitable for the Site type we authorize and must meet our criteria for demographic
characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from and proximity to other
businesses and other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, the nature of other businesses in proximity to the Site and
other commercial characteristics and the size, appearance and other physical characteristics of the
proposed Site. For example, some of our current guidelines for Sites include: traffic patterns of consistent
volume throughout different times of day; a minimum of levels of parking spaces capable of handling a
Gym of the size contemplated; proximity to commercial corridors, office buildings, apartments, shopping
Gyms, hospitals, movie theaters and industrial parks; convenient access with easy left or right-hand ingress
or egress; high visibility with capacity to accommodate large signs; sufficient population within proximity
to the Gym to support its operations; and lack of competitors in close proximity.

You must provide us the letter of intent to lease the Site before signing it, and you must provide a
copy of the proposed lease to us for our review and approval at least 30 days before you anticipate signing
the lease for the Site. Our approval of the lease indicates only that we believe that its terms are acceptable
to us and our interests. We may require you to incorporate certain provisions that are designed to protect our
rights. You and your lessor, and, if applicable, any lender for the Site may also have to sign our then current
form of Conditional Assignment and Assumption of Lease (the “Lease Assignment” or “CAAL”) which is
attached to this Disclosure Document as an Exhibit. If you purchase the Site, you may also have to sign
our then current form of Agreement to Lease (the “Lease Agreement” or “LA”) which is attached to the
Disclosure Document as an Exhibit. The Lease Assignment and Lease Agreement generally protect our
rights under the Franchise Agreement, our ability to possess the Site if you violate any of your obligations
to us, and your right to occupy the Site, and operate the Gym without interference by lenders and mortgage
holders. Any person who is related to or affiliated with you or one of your owners, directors, officers or
other principals, and who plans to lease the Site to you or own or obtain financing for the Site, must agree
to be bound by these provisions.

Under the Lease Assignment or Lease Agreement, we can take possession of the Gym's Site if you
violate the lease or any obligation to us. You will still be responsible for all lease obligations covering the
time before we take over. If you and the landlord for the Site are or become related in ownership or control,
and we eventually take over the Site, any lease will be amended to be the same length as the Franchise
Agreement, to be consistent with commercially reasonable “triple-net” leases being signed in your
metropolitan area and to reflect the Site's fair market rental value in your metropolitan area.

You are advised to have the proposed lease reviewed by an experienced attorney who will advise
you in connection with the negotiation and execution of the lease on your behalf. You must deliver a fully
executed copy of the lease for the Site within 15 days after you sign the lease.

You are responsible for developing your Gym. You will complete the construction, build out or
renovations of the Gym in accordance with our System Standards. You must complete construction/build
out or renovations, as necessary following our System Standards and open your Gym on or before the
Opening Date. In our sole discretion, if you have made full and complete applications for all building
permits, licenses, and all other permits required to open a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, within 30 days of the
date we approve the Site and your lease for it, if any, we may grant to you up to three 30-day extensions to
obtain all necessary permits, provided that the delay was due to causes beyond your reasonable control.
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Computer Hardware and Software.

Currently, we do not require you to purchase the Information Technology System and POS System
from us or our affiliates. But, we may designate approved suppliers and System Standards for your cash
registers and point of sale terminals for your Information Technology System and POS System. We may
require you to install and utilize computer hardware and software that we may designate and from suppliers
we designate (including us), and pay to us our then current fees for software licensing, maintenance and
support. Currently, the Information Technology System is comprised of a personal computer, iPad or tablet,
iPhone or smartphone, credit card reader, printer, modem, internet based video monitoring system. The POS
system is obtained from ELEVON, and the web cams are included in the Initial Equipment Package. Other
components can be obtained from third party suppliers we designate or approve.

You must use this Information Technology System for online reporting of such sales and other
information from your computer to us as required under the Franchise Agreement or Manual. For any time
period during which the Information Technology System is not functioning properly, you agree to report
such sales and other information by telephone to us no less frequently than weekly.

Insurance.

In addition to the purchases or leases described above, you must obtain and maintain, at your own
expense, such insurance coverage that we require from time to time and meet the other insurance-related
obligations in the Franchise Agreement. Currently, our minimum insurance criteria are set forth in the
following table:

Type of Insurance Amount

General Liability $1,000,000 (with coverage for sexual misconduct)
Vehicles $100,000/$300,000

Business Property $50,000

Business Interruption $100,000

Umbrella $1,000,000

Health Care As required by new legislation.

Other As required by law or your landlord.

Cyber Security As specified

The cost of this coverage will vary depending on the insurance carrier's charges, terms of payment
and your history. We require a minimum of an “A-rating”. You must send us copies of all insurance
policies and each of them must name us and 30 Minute Hit, LTD as an additional insured party. Our System
Standards may require you to use our designated insurance company or broker. If the Site is destroyed,
you must rebuild it or move to another Site in accordance with your obligations under the Franchise
Agreement. The Franchise Agreement does not terminate by virtue of casualty to the Site.

Miscellaneous.

Except as described above, neither we nor our affiliates currently derive revenue or other material
consideration as a result of required purchases or leases. There currently are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives. We do not have any purchase arrangements with suppliers for the benefit of franchisees.
However, we have the right at some point in the future to negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers
for the benefit of franchisees, and/or to derive revenue or other material consideration as a result of required
purchases or leases; but we intend to derive revenue only for proprietary items.
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ITEMO
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

These tables list your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and other
Agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these
Agreements and in other Items of this Disclosure Document.

Unit Franchise Program.

Item in Disclosure

Obligation Section in Agreement Document

(a) Site Selection and acquisition/lease Franchise Agreement (“FA”: Sections| ltems 7, 11 and 12
2, 4; Conditional Assignment and
Assumption of Lease (“CAAL”)
Lease Agreement (“LA”)

(b) Pre_opening purchases/leases FA: Sections 4, 52, 53, 54, 55, 61, Items 5, 6, 7, 8, 11
8.10,11.7,19.1and 19.2; CAAL; LA | and 16

(C) Site development and other pre_ FA: Sections 25, 26, 4, 5, 7, 82, 86, Items 6, 7 and 11

Opening requirements 111, 112, 117, 1110, 1111, 1112,

13.1,19.1,19.2 and 19.3

(e) Opening FA: Sections 4, 5, 7, and 11 and Item 11
Section 1.2 of ADA

(f) Fees FA: Sections 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 4.1, 4.2, | Items 5,6 and 7

5.3,54,6,7.2,11.1,11.3,11.7, 11.8,
12.1, 12.2, 15.3, 18.3, 18.4, 19, and
20.11; CAAL; CATNL and Section

2.1 of ADA

(g) Compliance with standards and FA: Sections 34, 5, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, | Item 11
policies/Operating Manual 13, 14 and 19; POG

(h) Trademarks and proprietary FA: Sections 8, 9, 11.1-11.3, 11.6- | Items 13 and 14
information 11.7,11.10, 12.2 and 12.5; POG

(i) Restrictions on products/ services FA: Sections 5.3, 5.4, 5.5,5.7,11.1, | Items 11 and 16
offered 11.2,11.10,11.11 and 12.5

(j) Warranty and customer service FA: Sections 1.3, 2.6, 4.3, and 5.6 None

requirements

quotas and 5.1 and Section 1.2 of ADA

(I) On-going product/service FA: Sections 5.3,5.4,5.5,11and 12 | Item 8
purchases

(m) Maintenance, appearance and FA: Sections 3.1, 3.2, 5, 11.2, 11.4 | Items 11 and 17
remodeling requirements and 14.1

(n) Insurance FA: Sections 11.2 and 19 Items 7 and 8

(0) Advertising EZA Sections 5.3, 5.6, 5.9, 8.2, and | Items 6, 7 and 11
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Obligation Section in Agreement Item in Disclosure
Document
(p) Indemnification FA: Sections 89, 176, 194, 206, Item 6
and 18.4; LA: Section 3; CAAL;
CATNL; POG and Section 9.4 of
ADA
(q) Owner's par“c'pat'on/ FA: Sections 14(9), 24, 55, 71, 10 Items 11 and 15
management/staffing and 11.2,11.12 and 11.13; POG
(r) Records and reports FA: Sections 11 and 13 Item 11
(S) |nspect|0ns and auditS FA: Section 14 Items 6 and 11
(t) Transfer FA: Section 15; RT and Section 6 of | Items 6 and 17
ADA
(u) Renewal FA: Section 3; RS. Items 6 and 17
(v) Post-termination obligations FA: Section 17; POG and Section 7.1 | Item 17
of ADA
(W) Non_competition covenants FA: Sections 9.3,10 and 17.5; POG Item 17
(X) Dispute resolution FA: Sections 20, LA Section 11, Item 17
CAAL; CATNL,; POG; RS; RT and
Section 8 of ADA
ITEM 10
EINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your notes, leases or obligations.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE,  ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Unit Franchise Program.

Pre-Opening Obligations: Before you open the Gym, we will:

1. Ifyou and we have not already agreed upon a location for your Gym before signing the Franchise
Agreement, we will provide you with our site selection criteria for the Gym. You must find a suitable Site
within 90 days of signing the Franchise Agreement, subject to our approval. The Site must meet our criteria
for demographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from and
proximity to other businesses and other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, the nature of other businesses in proximity
to the Site and other commercial characteristics, and the size, appearance and other physical characteristics
of the proposed Site. We will approve or disapprove a location you propose for the Gym within 30 days after
we receive the complete site report and other materials we request. We include one Site evaluation by us in
the Franchise Fee (which is conducted via e-mail or phone based on the information you provide to us).
(Franchise Agreement - Section 4).

2. Furnish you with prototype design plans, specifications, decor and/or layout (which include (a)
ground floor plan; (b) main floor plan; (c) building elevations; and/or (d) front of the house plans) for a 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym, including requirements for design, color scheme, image, interior layout and Operating
Assets which include fixtures, equipment, signs and furnishing. (Franchise Agreement - Section 5.1).

31
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (Unit) 20242025 FDD



3. Assist you, at your request, in developing the Gym by recommending architects and otherwise
furnishing information to assist you in developing the Gym in accordance with our specifications. At your
cost, you will have complete and detailed construction drawings prepared and approved by an authorized
architect, secure all financing, obtain permits and licenses for the Gym, construct improvements and
decorate the Gym according to our System Standards, purchase or lease and install all Operating Assets, and
purchase an opening inventory of products and supplies. (Franchise Agreement - Section 5.1).

4. As discussed in Item 8, identify the fixtures, furnishings, equipment (including point-of-sale
registers, facsimile machines and computer hardware and software), materials and supplies and signs,
emblems, lettering, logos and display materials necessary for the Gym to begin operations, the minimum
standards and specifications that must be satisfied and the suppliers from whom these items may be
purchased or leased (including us and/or our affiliates). (Franchise Agreement - Section 5.4, 5.8).

5. Allow you access to our Manual online via Internet, Intranet or electronic media). (Franchise
Agreement - Section 11.1). While we provide general guidance and standards, we do not assist with the
hiring or firing of your personnel.

6. Assist you in implementing the grand opening advertising and promotional program for the
Gym. (Franchise Agreement - Section 5.9).

7. Provide to you the Initial Training Program (Franchise Agreement - Section 7.1). This training
is described in detail later in this Item.

8. Sell to you the Initial Equipment as described in Item 5 (Franchise Agreement — Section 5.2).

9. We will sell to you those products for which we are the only Approved Supplier or other products
for which we are among Approved Suppliers (Franchise Agreement — Section 5.4).

10. Conduct our Staff Training evaluations via Skype® or other electronic media (Franchise
Agreement — Section 7.1).

11. Provide the Hitting it Hard Training sessions (Franchise Agreement — Section 6.5).
Time To Opening.

The typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement and the opening of a Gym
is approximately three (3) to twelve (12) months. Factors that may affect this time period include the location
and condition of the Site, the construction schedule for the Gym, the extent to which an existing location
must be upgraded or remodeled, the delivery schedule for equipment and supplies, delays in securing
financing arrangements and completing training and your compliance with local laws and regulations. We
may grant up to three (3) extensions of 30 days each if the delay is beyond your reasonable control. You may
not open the Gym for business until: (1) we approve the Gym as developed according to our specifications
and standards; (2) pre-opening training of you and your personnel has been completed to our satisfaction;
(3) the Franchise Fee and all other amounts then due to us have been paid; (4) we have approved the manager
of your Gym and you have demonstrated that the conditions of Section 1.4(e) of the Franchise Agreement
have been met; (5) we have been furnished with copies of all required insurance policies, or such other
evidence of insurance coverage and payment of premiums as we request; and (6) we have received signed
counterparts of all required documents pertaining to your acquisition or lease of the Site. You cannot open
the Gym until we are satisfied that you have completed all necessary steps to open. (Franchise Agreement -
Sections 6 and 7). However, you must commence operations at the Site upon the earlier of 12 months of
executing the Franchise Agreement or 9 months from the date we approve your Site (unless we grant an
extension).
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Post-Opening Obligations: During your operation of the Gym, we will:

1. Advise you from time to time regarding the operation of the Gym based on reports you
submit or inspections we make. In addition, we will provide guidance to you on standards, specifications
and operating procedures and methods utilized by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms; purchasing required fixtures,
furnishings, equipment, signs, products, materials and supplies; use of suppliers, approved products, volume
buying; advertising and marketing programs; employee training; and administrative, bookkeeping and
accounting procedures. This guidance will, at our discretion, be furnished in our Manual, bulletins or other
written materials and/or during telephone consultations and/or consultations at our office or the Gym.
(Franchise Agreement - Section 7.3).

2. We do not provide you with any free days of operating assistance each year. At our option,
days of operating assistance will be provided to you if you request such additional days or if we deem it
advisable, provided, however, you agree to pay our Additional Operating Assistance Fee and expenses for
any additional days of operating assistance. See Item 6. (Franchise Agreement Section 6.5, 6.7 and 7.2).

3. Furnish you, at your request or if we deem advisable, additional guidance, assistance and
training.  In such instances, you will be responsible for paying Additional Training Fees. (Franchise
Agreement - Sections 6.5, 6.7, 7.2, and 7.3). We do not assist with your hiring of employees or mediate any
employment disputes. We are not obligated to mediate or resolve disputes among franchisees, but may do
S0 at our option, and only to the extent we choose. (See Item 6 above).

4. Make our Manual available online or via other electronic format, consisting of such materials,
which may include audiotapes, videotapes, magnetic media, computer software and written materials, that
we generally furnish to franchisees for use in operating 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. The Manual contains
mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules (“System Standards”)
that we prescribe from time to time for operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and information relating to
your other obligations under the Franchise Agreement and related agreements. The Manual may be
modified, updated and revised periodically to reflect changes in System Standards. You are responsible for
routinely monitoring any online version (or electronic format) of the Manual for changes to it. If we make
the Manual accessible to you online (or electronic format), we will not send to you printed copies of any
changes to it. (Franchise Agreement - Section 11.1).

5. Issue, modify and supplement System Standards for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. We may
periodically modify System Standards, which may accommodate regional or local variations as we
determine, and these modifications may obligate you to invest additional capital in the Gym and/or incur
higher operating costs. However, these modifications will not alter your fundamental status and rights
under the Agreement. (Franchise Agreement -Sections 11.2 and 11.3).

6. In our discretion, approve the form of any agreements (and all modifications to them) for any
vending or food and beverage service we may permit you to use, if any (like bottled water, shakes,
smoothies, energy drinks, etc.). We may require you to obtain such approval from us. (Franchise
Agreement - Section 11.2, 11.10).

7. Inspect and observe, photograph and videotape the operations of the Gym, remove samples of
any products, materials or supplies for testing and analysis, interview the Gym's customers and personnel,
and inspect and copy any books, records and documents relating to the operation of the Gym from time to
time to assist you in complying with the Franchise Agreement and all System Standards. (Franchise
Agreement - Section 14).

8. Establish, maintain and administer a system-wide fund (the “System Development Fund”).
You are obligated to contribute to the System Development Fund such amounts that we prescribe from time
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to time (See Item 6 and below). 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms owned and operated by us and our affiliates will
contribute to the System Development Fund on the same basis as franchise owners. (Franchise Agreement
- Section 12).

9. We will sell to you those products for which we are the only Approved Supplier or other products
for which we are among Approved Suppliers (Franchise Agreement — Section 5.6).

10. Conduct our Staff Training evaluations via Skype® or other electronic media (Franchise
Agreement — Section 7.1).

11. Provide the Hitting it Hard Training sessions (Franchise Agreement — Section 6.5).

12. To the extent we choose, and in our sole discretion, operate and administer our “Power
Leads” program.

13. We are not contractually obligated to assist you with establishing prices and we are not obligated
to assist you in setting minimum and/or maximum prices at which you must sell products and services. We
reserve the right to set minimum and/or maximum prices at which you must sell products and services, to the
fullest extent permissible under applicable law.

System Development Fund.

You are required to pay to the System Development Fund the System Fund Fees in amounts that
we prescribe from time to time in an amount that we designate up to the greater of 3% of your Gross Sales
or $200 per month (but, currently $0 per month). (See Item 6). We will direct all programs financed by the
System Development Fund, with sole discretion over the creative concepts, materials and endorsements
used and the geographic, market and media placement and allocation of the programs. The System Fund
Fees may be used to pay the costs of preparing and producing video, audio and written advertising materials;
administering regional and multi-regional advertising programs, including, without limitation, purchasing
direct mail and other media advertising and employing advertising, promotion and marketing agencies; and
supporting public relations, market research and other advertising, promotion and marketing activities. The
System Development Fund will periodically furnish you with samples of advertising, marketing and
promotional formats and materials at its cost. Multiple copies of such materials may be furnished to you at
our direct cost of producing them, plus any related shipping, handling and storage charges. (Franchise
Agreement - Section 12.1, 12.2).

The System Development Fund will be accounted for separately from our other funds and will not
be used to defray any of our general operating expenses, except for such reasonable salaries, administrative
costs, travel expenses and overhead as we may incur in activities related to the administration of the System
Development Fund and its programs, including, without limitation, conducting market research, preparing
advertising, promotion and marketing materials and collecting and accounting for contributions to the
System Development Fund. We may spend, on behalf of the System Development Fund, in any fiscal year
an amount greater or less than the aggregate contribution of all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms to the System
Development Fund in that year, and the System Development Fund may borrow from us or others to cover
deficits or invest any surplus for future use. All interest earned on monies contributed to the System
Development Fund will be used to pay advertising costs before other assets of the System Development
Fund are expended. We will prepare an annual statement of monies collected and costs incurred by the
System Development Fund and furnish the statement to you upon written request. The System
Development Fund is not required to be audited. We will not use (and in our past fiscal year did not
use) any monies from the System Development Fund for the preparation materials intended to be used
solely for franchise sales solicitations. We have the right to cause the System Development Fund to be
incorporated or operated through a separate entity at such time as it deems appropriate, and the successor
entity will have all of the rights and duties described in the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement
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Section 12.1, 12.2 and 12.3).

The System Development Fund is intended to maximize recognition of the Marks and patronage
of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. Although we will endeavor to utilize the System Development Fund to develop
advertising and marketing materials and programs and to place advertising that will benefit all 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms, we undertake no obligation to ensure that expenditures by the System Development Fund in
or affecting any geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the contributions to the System
Development Fund by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms operating in that geographic area or that any 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym will benefit directly or in proportion to its contribution to the System Development Fund from
the development of advertising and marketing materials or the placement of advertising. We assume no
other direct or indirect liability or obligation to you with respect to collecting amounts due to, or maintaining,
directing or administering, the System Development Fund. (Franchise Agreement — Sections 12.1and 12.4).

System Fund Fees will generally be on a uniform basis, but we reserve the right to defer or reduce
contributions of a franchisee and, upon 30 days' prior written notice to you, to reduce or suspend
contributions to and operations of the System Development Fund for one or more periods of any length and
to terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the System Development Fund. If the System Development
Fund is terminated, all unspent monies on the date of termination will be distributed to franchisees in
proportion to their respective contributions to the System Development Fund during the preceding 12-
month period. We and our affiliates will contribute to the System Development Fund (pay System Fund
Fees) on the same basis as franchise owners for any 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms they own and operate.
(Franchise Agreement - Sections 12.1 and 12.4).

During the 20242023 fiscal year, we did not collect any System Development Fund Fees.
Your Local Advertising.

In addition to your required contributions to the System Development Fund and the required grand
opening advertising expenditures, you are obligated to spend annually for local advertising and promotion of
the Gym not less than 2% of your annual Gross Sales, and after your third year of your operations we may
increase that requirement to up to 5% of your Gross Sales. You must obtain telephone directory listings in
the “white pages” in the size and manner we specify, displaying the Marks (currently phone number and
name only). You must purchase sufficient numbers of required “street cards” for regular distribution in
keeping with our System Standards. We will require you to sign our then current form of Conditional
Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings in the form attached as Exhibit “C.” If other franchise
owners operate in the Designated Area serviced by the directories, then you must participate in and pay your
pro rata share of the cost of such listings and advertising. We may review your books and records relating
to your expenditures for such advertising and promotion. If we determine that you have not spent the
requisite amounts, we may require you to pay the unexpended amounts into the System Development Fund.
(Franchise Agreement - Sections 12.6 and 12.7).

All advertising, promotion and marketing must be completely clear and factual and not misleading
and conform to the highest standards of ethical marketing and the promotion policies which we prescribe
from time to time. Samples of all advertising, promotional and marketing materials that we have not
prepared or previously approved must be submitted for approval before you use them. If you do not receive
written disapproval within 30 days after we receive the materials, we will be deemed to have given the
required approval. You may not use any advertising or promotional materials that we have disapproved.
(Franchise Agreement - Section 12.5) (See Items 6, 8 and 9).

Local Advertising Cooperative.

If a local advertising cooperative is established, you will be required to contribute to it an amount
determined by that local advertising cooperative not more than 2% of your monthly Gross Sales. There
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currently are no franchisee advertising councils or advertising cooperatives that advise us on advertising
policies. In our discretion, we reserve the right to establish an advisory council of franchisees that does
advise us on advertising policies and other matters. (Franchise Agreement - Section 12.6).

Advertising Councils.

We do not have any Advertising Councils consisting of franchisees who advise us on advertising
policies.

Information Technology System

We require you to buy the Information Technology System, which includes and uses the POS
System. We may designate approved suppliers for the Information Technology System and POS System,
and System Standards for it and its suppliers, or we may require that you purchase it from us or our affiliates.
We may also require you to purchase or lease a complete, i.e., “turn key” system, containing the Information
Technology System and POS System. We may purchase much of the POS System and Information
Technology System from a third party and re-sell or lease it to 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. Currently, we have
no plans to lease equipment to you. Currently, the POS System/Information Technology System includes a
personal computer/CPU, cash drawer, receipt printer, iPad/tablet device, smart phone/iPhone, keyboard,
mouse, and our proprietary member management software we supply (license to you) called “30 Minute Hit
Member Manager Software.” We require you to have Elevon point of sale software, Quickbooks Online
accounting software, and for you to use our proprietary web-based programs. We may require that you
purchase up to 2 computer stations but currently require you to have one. We also require you to purchase
and use video monitoring equipment and have that equipment linked to our computer systems for
uninterrupted real time monitoring. We estimate the costs of purchasing hardware for, and licensing software
for the POS System/Information Technology System to be approximately $3,000 to $5,000.

You must use whatever Information Technology System we specify during the term of the Franchise
Agreement. Other than our limits on capital modifications described in Item 16, there is no limitation
on the frequency or cost of this obligation.

You must maintain your Information Technology System and keep it in good repair. There is no
contractual limit on our ability to require you to upgrade the Information Technology System, add
components to the Information Technology Systems and replace components of the Information Technology
System. We do not know the cost of maintaining, updating or upgrading your POS System, Information
Technology System or its components because it will depend on repair history, costs of computer
maintenance services in your area and technological advances which we cannot predict at this time. We
anticipate that the yearly recurring cost of software and maintenance fees will range from $500 to $1,000
per year, but could be greater.

Our System Standards mandate that you provide all systems we require to bring your Information
Technology System online with our headquarters' computer at the earliest possible time and to maintain this
connection as we require. We may retrieve all information from your POS System, Information Technology
System and Information Technology System that we consider necessary, desirable, or appropriate. There
are no contractual limitations on our right to access information contained and/or utilized via your
Information Technology System or Information Technology System. We have access to the information
and data compiled on the Information Technology System/POS System. Generally, we may access these
systems to obtain gross and net sales information, product mix, labor reports and customer counts. There are
no limitations on our right to do so. (Franchise Agreement - Sections 11 and 13).
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Training.

After you sign a Franchise Agreement, we provide general guidance and training on Site Selection
issues, and selection of real estate brokers and agents. This Training is provided on an informal basis via
phone or via conference. Then, before the Gym's opening, we will provide Gym operations training to up
to 2 persons each of whom must be one of your owners (“Owner Training”). Up to 2 persons must complete
the Owner Training. Up to approximately 10 days of Owner Training (with 7 days of training at our
Headquarters and 3 days of on-site training at your Site or another 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym) will be
furnished at our designated training facility and/or at an operating 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Successful
completion of the Owner Training to our satisfaction is required. The persons who attend and complete the
Owner Training must train at least 2 of your staff members prior to your Opening Date. Your Owner Training
trainees must also train your gym manager and general manager. You also must participate in all other
activities required to operate the Gym. Although there are no additional fees for this Owner Training, you
are responsible for all travel, living and compensation expenses which you and your employees incur in
connection with training. Sales and other training is also provided on-line to all of your staff.

We offer training when needed and we plan to schedule it approximately 2 to 4 times per year, but we
may offer it more frequently if needed. We are constantly in the process of evaluating and improving our
training programs so they may change at any time. We, at our option, provide you with the number of
individuals we designate for the number of days we designate, and at such times as we designate, to assist
you with your opening and initial staff training at your Gym. At our option, you must provide an alternative
training facility if we feel that construction or other distractions prevent us from satisfactorily performing the
training at your Gym. You must provide meals, drinks and miscellaneous items to our personnel. If you
request or we provide these additional personnel, we may charge you an operating assistance fee (currently
$1,000 per person per day). (See Item 6). We are not required to provide on-site training to you if you are a
transferee of an existing 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. You must pay to us any Training Expenses we incur on your
behalf and you are responsible for any Training Expenses you incur. See Item 5. (Franchise Agreement -
Section 7.1)

We expect that Owner Training will be conducted for you after the Franchise Agreement has been signed
and while the Gym is being developed. We plan to be flexible in scheduling training to accommodate our
personnel, you and your personnel. There currently are no fixed (i.e., monthly or bi- monthly) training
schedules.

Training
Program
Hours of Hours of
Classroom On the
Subject Training Job Location
Building/Location 24 10 46 0 Our headquarters or via online training
Getting Your Location Set Up 24 to 46 0 Our headquarters or via online training
& Ready to Open
Sales 101 47 to 59 0 On Site or via online training
Marketing, Advertising, and 42t054 0 On Site or via online training
Grand Opening
Circuit Instruction 1530 to 2444 0 Our headquarters or via online training
The 30 Minute Hit System 59to 611 0 Our headquarters or via online training
CommunHITy Training 5 2to 0 Our headquarters or via online training
General Operations 34to 75 0 On Site or via online training
TOTAL 4062 to 6088 0
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1. Training is generally 45 to 6 hours per day over approximately 2014 days. At our option, we may
provide the Training Program via online, video, webinar or other media-based training format. It is
the nature of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Business that all aspects of training are integrated, that is, there
are no definitive starting and stopping times; although the Circuit Instruction, 30 Minute Hit System,
and CommunHITy Training is conducted over a consecutive period of approximately 7 days and On
Site Training is conducted over 3 consecutive days.

2. The training program is conducted and/or supervised by-whese-background-is-deseribed-in-ttemas
foIIows Phy5|cal Tralnlng is conducted by—Qa)éhannah—Naeheﬁ,—MaeJaas—l%year&eﬁe*penene&m

Krlstl Bleber (a current franchlsee) who has 910 years of experlence in the 30 Mlnute H|t® brand
boxing, kickboxing self-defense, and physical fitness training. Admin Training is conducted by: (a)
DeWayne Lyman, who has 78 years of experience in 30 Minute Hit® admin operations and is a
current System franchisee, and-(b) Alayna Stewart, who has 910 years of experience in 30 Minute
Hit® admin operations and is a current franchisee, and (c¢) Laura Cindric, who has 4617 years of

experience in 30 Minute Hit® admin operations-ane-is-a-currentfranchiseeand-{d)TFonFongwho
hes o enrs e oo enseathetndus i

You, your staff, including your Gym Manager and General Manager must attend any periodic
refresher training courses that we provide from time to time and pay the applicable fees (see Item 6). We
may charge you our then current Additional Training Fees. See Item 6. You also will have to pay us for
training new managers hired after the Gym's opening. All of your trainers must complete those portions of
our training program designated for trainers, including classroom and on-the-job training (Franchise
Agreement — Sections 6.8, 7.3). Ongoing aspects of our Training Program for your employees must be
conducted by trainers that we have approved who have also satisfactorily completed our Owner Training or
other training we designate. You are required to train your staff. We conduct Staff Training including Gym
Manager and General Manager evaluations to verify if you have done so. Staff Training evaluations are
conducted online or via Skype® or similar electronic media and charge you a $50 per evaluation fee. See
Item 6. We also provide periodic “Hitting it Hard Training” on workout techniques: It is currently
provided to you online or via electronic media. We may require your personnel to attend it in person or for
you to host it at your Site. When training is onsite, you must provide an alternative training facility if we
feel that construction or other distractions prevent us from satisfactorily performing the training on premises.
We also provide optional on-line manager support training and communications for $50 per month per
manager, which is provided on an opt in basis.

Table of Contents of Operation Manual

The Table of Contents of our 340approximately 345-page Manual is attached to this Disclosure
Document as Exhibit “O”. We currently provide our Manual in an online format.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

The Franchise Agreement will specify a “Site Selection Area” within which you will focus your
Site development efforts. You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition for
customers from other franchisees, from outlets that we own outside your geographic territory or from other
channels of distribution or from competitive brands that we control.

The franchise is granted for a specific location that first must be approved by us (the “Site”). If you
have not chosen and we have approved the Site at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, it must be
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located within the Site Selection Area. Once the Site has been located by you and approved by us, we will
designate a geographic area (the “Designated Area”). You do not receive a Site Selection Area or
Designated Area until you and we sign the Franchise Agreement for that 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Generally,
the Designated Area will be geographic areas that we designate by mutual agreement, or a standard
Designated Area which is the area within an approximate 10-minute drive time. We do not have an
established formula for defining the shape or size of the Designated Areas or Site Selection Areas. While
we may use demographic and market analysis services to assist us, we base it on our sole judgment.
Currently we will not usually approve the Site and Designated Area unless 30,000 people live or reside
within the Designated Area or the metropolitan area in which it is located. For this purpose, the population
includes residents, business invitees and employees, seasonal or temporary residents, transients and tourists.
We may use different third-party sources to determine population, including Census Bureau data, as well as
US Census Bureau estimates and any future updates, and/or other third party data sources. If you have not
chosen your Site at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, we will provide you the Designated Area
once you select your Site. If you wish to establish rights to a Designated Area or Site Selection Area, you
may request to and we may allow you to in our sole discretion, sign the Franchise Agreement prior to our
approving the Site.

Factors that influence our grant of a Designated Area and a Site Selection Area include its suitability
for the Site type we authorize, the proximity of the Site to the malls, shopping Gyms, business Gyms,
industrial parks, airports, traffic count, speed of traffic, access to the Site, and competition in the Designated
Area, etc. We have no obligation whatsoever to provide you a Designated Area or Site Selection Area with
a certain minimum number of people. However, other than your right to operate the Gym at its address
within the protected Designated Area, we do not grant you any territorial rights whatsoever. We may
establish other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms (franchised or owned by us) anywhere outside of the Designated
Area (even within the remainder of the Designated Area) that may or may not compete with your location.
We may utilize any type of Internet, Intranet, e-mail, site or website or other means of electronic
communication to offer or sell anywhere (even within your Designated Area), products and services bearing
the Marks or Copyrights without any compensation to you.

As long as you are in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, with the exception of Non-Public
Access Venues (as disclosed below), we will not grant a franchise for, nor ourselves operate, a 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym from a fixed location within your Designated Area. Under the Franchise Agreement, we do not
grant you the right to acquire additional franchises or territories. We may establish other 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gyms (franchised or owned by us) anywhere outside your Designated Area that may compete with your
location. We retain the right (in our sole discretion) to sell products identified by the Marks and Copyrights
through distribution channels other than 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms (including special purpose venues, grocery
stores, internet, intranet, websites, e-mail or other forms of e-commerce). Your maintenance of your rights
to your Designated Area is not contingent on your obtaining specific sales quotas or opening additional
outlets, but we may modify your Designated Area if you are not in compliance with your Franchise
Agreement.

Other Services

We may permit or require you to provide “Other Services.” Other services are services not offered
by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms at the time your franchise is granted to you, and also include off-Site services
and delivery of any kind. If we do so, we will designate the areas in which you can provide the Other
Services. For example, if we permit you to provide Other Services like off-Site personal training classes at
other business’ locations, we may designate a specific “Other Service Area”. If so, you must not perform
off-site services outside your Other Service Area, if any, or any Other Services outside of the areas we
designate for them. We do not grant you any exclusive territorial rights to any areas for providing Other
Services. Your offering Other Services will be governed by your Franchise Agreement and you comply
with our System Standards for offering any Other Services.
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Area Development Agreement (“ADA”)

Under the terms of the ADA we grant you the right to establish, according to a schedule, three or more Gyms
within a geographical territory (“Development Area”). A Development Area is usually defined by zip codes
or other boundaries such as streets, city, county, or state limits or by other reasonable boundaries. The
number of Gyms to be developed may be adjusted depending on demographics and other characteristics of
a Development Area, including population density, income and other characteristics of the surrounding area,
natural boundaries, extent of competition and whether the proposed Development Area is urban, suburban
or rural in nature. You have no option, right of first refusal or similar contractual right to acquire additional
30 Minute Hit franchised businesses within your Development Area or in contiguous areas.

Each additional 30 Minute Hit franchised business must be open according to the Development Schedule
described in the ADA, which will specify the number of Franchised Businesses to be open and the time
frames within which they must be open. In the event that you fail to meet the mandatory Development
Schedule and the ADA is terminated, you will retain your rights to any individual Businesses, including the
territorial rights described in the Franchise Agreement for such Businesses, provided that the ADA was not
terminated as a result of your failure to comply with the terms of your existing Franchise Agreement(s).
Your rights to any Businesses for which there is no Franchise Agreement and your protection in the
Development Area will terminate immediately. Thereafter, we will have the right to develop the
Development Area on our own or through third parties.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from Gyms
that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Alternative Channels of Distribution

Although we currently do not do so, we and our affiliates may sell products under the System, Marks
and Copyrights both inside and outside of your Designated Area and Designated Area through any
alternative channels of distribution other than the dedicated 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, including sales
through channels of distribution such as special purpose sites, sites on military bases, government
installations, the internet, mobile phone/PDA, or social networking sales, catalogue sales, internet
marketing, retail department or other stores or other direct marketing sales (“Alternative Channels of
Distribution™). Our reservation of rights, described under “Rights we Retain,” below, also allows us and
our affiliates to use Alternative Channels of Distribution to make sales both inside or outside of your
Designated Area and Designated Area of products and services under trademarks different from the Marks
that you will use under the Franchise Agreement. In any event, you will not receive any compensation
from our or our affiliates’ sales through Alternative Channels of Distribution unless we later establish a
compensation program for doing so under our System Standards.

Neither us nor our affiliates have any current plans to operate or franchise a business under a
different trademark that will sell goods or services similar to those that 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms will offer.

Rights We Retain.
Under the Franchise Agreement, we (and our affiliates) retain the right in our sole discretion to:

1. Establish and grant to our franchises the right to establish 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms anywhere
outside the Designated Area, on such terms and conditions as we deem appropriate (even immediately
outside the border of the Designated Area);
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2. Operate, and grant franchises to others to operate businesses, whether inside or outside the
Designated Area(s), specializing in the sale of products or provision of services, other than a Competitive
Business or a fitness facility, gym or martial arts facility, using certain of the Marks or Copyrights and
pursuant to such terms and conditions as we deem appropriate;

3. Operate, and grant franchises to others to operate businesses, or a fitness facility, gym or martial
arts facility, or other services, whether inside or outside the Designated Area, that do not use the of Marks
or Copyrights;

4. Market and sell, inside and outside of the Designated Area, through Alternative Channels of
Distribution other than or a fitness facility, gym or martial arts facility, goods and services competitive with
goods and serviced offered by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, under the Marks or Copyrights or under trade
names, service marks, or trademarks other than Marks, without any compensation to you and in such
amounts in such manner as we determine in our sole discretion; and

5. Engage in any act or exercise any right not expressly and exclusively provided to you under
your agreement with us.

We are not required to pay you if we exercise any of the rights described above inside of your
Designated Area, or if we otherwise solicit or accept orders from consumers in your Designated Area. We
do not restrict you from soliciting or accepting orders from persons outside of your Designated Area for on-
premises sales (on Site) at your Gym; however, our System Standards confine your marketing activities for
Other Services to the areas we my designate for them. You do not have the right to use Alternative
Channels of Distribution. We may prohibit you from using the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing or other
direct marketing, to solicit customers outside of your Designated Area or where the products or services
would be provided at any location other than the Site.

You may not relocate the Gym without our previous written approval. We will grant approval in
most instances if you are full compliance with your franchise agreement, have paid all money owed to us
and our affiliates, and the proposed location meets our site selection criteria and you comply with the lease
requirements in the Franchise Agreement. We may, if we wish, inspect your proposed new location and
you must pay our costs due to your relocation and site evaluation fees.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

Primary Trademark.

We grant you the right to use certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols in
operating the Gym. The primary trademark we use is the “30 Minute Hit” mark and other names, logos,
symbols, and associated designs and trade dress (the “Mark(s)”).

Trademark Registration.

You may use and we require you to use the Marks in operating your Gym. The principal Mark is
the 30 Minute Hit (word mark) listed in the table below. Our principal Mark is owned by 30 Minute Hit
Canada and a registration for it has been filed on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (the “PTO”):
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Principal or
Supplemental
Registration/Application Description of Register of the Registration/Application
Number Mark United States Patent Date
and Trademark
Office
Reg. No. 3830863 30 Minute Hit U.S.P.T.O./Principal | August 10, 2010
(word mark) Register
TMA 723066 30 Minute Hit (Canadian PTO) September 5, 2008
Change in Register, June 10,
2009
TMA 862987 30 Minute Hit (Canadian PTO) October 21, 2013
(design mark)

There are no currently effective material determinations of the United States Patent & Trademark
Office, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state or any court, nor
are there any pending infringement, cancellation or opposition proceedings or material litigation, involving
the Marks. All required affidavits have been filed.

30 Minute Hit Canada licenses to us the use of the Mark 30 Minute Hit® and other slogans and
service marks. The license agreement allows for our successor’s or our franchisee’s continued use of the
Marks throughout the term of any franchise agreements granted by us or our successor. There are no
currently effective agreements that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the Marks listed
in this section in manner material to the franchise. We/30 Minute Hit Canada intend to renew the
registrations and to file all appropriate affidavits at the appropriate times required by law. Currently, no
renewal applications nor affidavits are due.

You must follow our rules when you use the Marks. You cannot use any Marks as part of your
corporate or legal business name or with modifying words, designs or symbols (except for those we license
to you). You cannot use any Mark in connection with the performance or sale of any unauthorized services
or products or in any other manner we have not expressly authorized in writing.

Infringements

You must notify us immediately of any apparent infringement or challenge to your use of any Mark,
or of any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark, and you may not communicate with any person
other than us, our attorneys and your attorneys in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim.
We have the right to control any administrative proceedings or litigation involving a trademark licensed
by us to you. We have sole discretion to take any action (including no action) as we deem appropriate and
have the exclusive right to control exclusively any litigation, PTO proceeding or any other administrative
proceeding arising from such infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any Mark. You must
sign any instruments and documents, provide such assistance and take any action that, in the opinion of our
attorneys, may be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in any litigation or PTO or
other proceeding or otherwise to protect and maintain our interests in the Marks. The Franchise Agreement
does not require us to defend the Marks or to participate in your defense and/or indemnify you for
expenses or damages if you are a party to an administrative or judicial proceeding involving a trademark
licensed to you by us or if the proceeding is resolved unfavorably to you.

Indemnification
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We will indemnify and defend you against and reimburse you for all damages for which you are
held liable to third parties in any proceeding arising out of your authorized use of any Mark or Copyright
we develop, pursuant to and in compliance with the Franchise Agreement, resulting from claims by third
parties that your use of the Marks or Copyrights we develop infringes their trademark rights or Copyrights,
and for all costs you reasonably incur in the defense of any such claim in which you are named as a party,
so long as you have timely notified us of the claim and have otherwise complied with the terms of the
Franchise Agreement. We will not indemnify you against the consequences of your use of the Marks, or
any Copyrights: (a) for any Marks or other Copyrights which you develop or submit to us (regardless if they
become, or have become our property); or (b) unless your use of such Marks or Copyrights we provide was
and is accordance with the requirements of the Franchise Agreement. You must provide written notice to us
of any such claim within ten (10) days of your receipt of such notice and you must tender the defense of the
claim to us. We will have the right to defend any such claim and, if we do so, we will have no obligation
to indemnify or reimburse you for any fees or disbursements of any attorney(s) retained by you. If we elect
to defend the claim, we will have the right to manage the defense of the claim including the right to
compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal a final determination
of the claim. We are not responsible to you for any other claims of any nature arising out of or related to the
Copyrights, regardless of whether the loss associated is by you, any of your customers or third parties.

Changes to the Mark

If we determine that it becomes advisable at any time in our sole discretion for us and/or you to
modify or discontinue the use of any Mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute trade or service
marks, you must comply with our directions within a reasonable time after receiving notice. We will
reimburse you for your reasonable direct expenses of changing the Gym's signs. However, we will not be
obligated to reimburse you for any loss of revenue attributable to any modified or discontinued Mark or for
any expenditures you make to promote a modified or substitute trademark or service mark.

Other than as described above, we do not actually know of either superior prior rights or infringing
uses that could materially affect your use of our principal trademarks in any state.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

As of the date of this Disclosure Document we are not aware of any patents that are material to the
franchise. However, due to recent developments in the issuance of patents for business methods, we cannot
rule out that others may be able to obtain a business method patent that would restrict or prevent our or your
utilization of the System altogether or part of it, or require licensing fees to do so. We may investigate whether
to seek patent protection for certain business methods utilized by the System, or which we may develop.

We claim copyrights in the Manual, the building design, the interior decor and product and service
offerings/marketing materials “menu boards,” Art, advertising materials and related items used in operating
the franchise. These copyrights have not been registered with the United States Registrar of Copyrights.

The Manual, which is described in Item 11, and other materials we possess contain our confidential
information. This information includes site selection criteria; methods, formats, specifications, standards,
systems, procedures and sales and marketing techniques used, and knowledge of and experience, in
developing and operating 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms; marketing and advertising programs for 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms; knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain fixtures, furnishings, equipment,
products, materials and supplies; and knowledge of the operating results and financial performance of 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms other than your Gym.

All ideas, concepts, techniques or materials relating to a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (including work-
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out programs, architectural layouts, designs, plans and decor), whether or not constituting protectable
intellectual property, and whether created by or on behalf of you or your owners, must be promptly disclosed
to us, will be considered our property and part of our franchise system and will be considered to be works
made-for-hire for us. You and your owners must sign whatever documents we request to evidence our
ownership or to assist us in securing intellectual property rights in such ideas, concepts, techniques or
materials.

You may not use our confidential information in an unauthorized manner and must take reasonable
steps to prevent its disclosure to others. We may require your employees, independent contractors or agents
to sign a form of nondisclosure and non-competition agreement. We may regulate the form of agreement
that you use and may require that we be made a third party beneficiary of that agreement with independent
enforcement rights.

There currently are no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress) or
any court regarding any of the copyrighted materials. Nor are there any agreements currently in effect
which significantly limit our right to use or authorize franchisees to use the copyrighted materials.
Furthermore, there are no infringing uses actually known to us which could materially affect a franchisee's
use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We are not required by any agreement to protect or defend
copyrights or confidential information, although we intend to do so when this action is in the best interests
of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym system. We need not participate in your defense and/or indemnify you for
damages or expenses in proceedings involving a copyright or patent.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform your obligations under the
Franchise Agreement, continuously exert your best efforts to promote and enhance the Gym and not engage
in any other business or activity that conflicts with your obligations to operate the Gym in compliance with
the Franchise Agreement. Either you, or 1 of your principal owners (with ownership of at least 50% of
your voting securities if you are a business organization (like a corporation, limited liability company or
limited partnership) (a “Business Entity”) must meet our qualifications for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
managers and participate personally in the direct oversight of the operation of the Gym (the “General
Manager”). Your General Manager must be authorized to speak on your behalf and enter into agreements
with us on your behalf.

At all times, the Gym must be managed by a full time General Manager. Either the Gym Manager
or another employee who meets our System Standards and who has completed your “Gym Training” (as
disclosed in more detail below), must be on Site at the Gym when it is open for customers, unless you are
approved by us for not having full time on Site supervision. The General Manager must complete our
Training Program. You and/or your General Manager are responsible for training the Gym Manager and
any replacement General Manager according to our System Standards. Your Gym Managers should: (i) have
a sufficient amount of experience managing and operating physical fitness, self-defense training, or similar
businesses (in terms of duration, operational responsibilities, previous training, etc.) as a general manager or
assistant or in a similar supervisory position, (ii) be trained by you sufficient to meet our System Standards
and to be responsible for the operation of the Gym when the General Manager is not on Site.

Our System Standards require that you include in your agreements with your General Manager (and
we may require the same of a Gym Manager) confidential information, non-competition, copyright,
trademark and service mark protections that protect our rights to our System. If the Gym is operating at or
exceeding our System Standards, the General Manager or Gym Manager does not need to be on Site at all
times.
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If you are a Business Entity, your owners must not only personally guarantee your obligations under
the Franchise Agreement but also agree to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach
of, every provision of the Franchise Agreement, both monetary obligations and obligations to take or refrain
from taking specific actions or to engage or refrain from engaging in specific activities. The form of
“Principal Owner's Guaranty” (POG) is attached as Exhibit “I”. We may require the spouses of Principal
Owners to sign the Principal Owner’s Guaranty. We require you to complete a “Principal Owner's
Statement” (POS) in the form attached as Exhibit “H”. The Principal Owner's Statement describes all of
your owners and their interests in you.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale all products, and perform all services, that we require from time to time for 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You may not offer for sale any products or perform any services that we have not
authorized. Our System Standards may regulate required or authorized products, product categories and
supplies. (See Items 8 and 9). We have the right to change the types of required and/or authorized goods and
services from time to time. There are no limits on our right to do so. Except as explained in Item 12, we do
not impose restrictions or limitations on your access to customers.

We will give you 90 days to comply with capital modifications we require, but, if (other than
your initial build-out) the capital modification requires an expenditure of more than $50,000, we will
give you 120 days from the date such request is made to comply with such capital modification. You
are obligated to comply with all modifications to System Standards, other than capital modifications,
within the time period we specify. There are no limits on the cost of these modifications. These limits
on Capital Modifications do not include any expenditures you must, or choose to make, in order to
comply with applicable laws, or governmental rules or regulations or the initial establishment of your
Gym.

ITEM 17

RENEWAL. TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE
RESOLUTION

These tables list certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Unit Franchise Program

. Section in Franchise
Provisions Summary
Agreement and

Other Forms

(@) Length of the Franchise 10 years.
Franchise Term Agreement (“FA”):
Section 2.3
45
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Provisions

Section in Franchise
Agreement and
Other Forms

Summary

(b) Renewal or extension
of the term

FA: Section 3; RS

If you are in good standing, you can acquire 4 successor
franchises for additional 5-year terms on our then
current terms and conditions. You may be asked to sign
a contract with material different terms and conditions
than your original contract -- Unit Franchise Agreement.
The boundaries of the area granted may or may not
remain the same and the amount of fees under the Unit
Franchise Agreement may be different as well. Fees we
may impose under a successor Unit Franchise
Agreement may be different than we are imposing on
similarly situated renewing Unit Franchises due to the
saturation of franchises in the area at the time, potential
for growth in such area, and our interest in having
additional area developers at that time.

(c) Requirements for you
to renew or extend

FA: Section 3; RS

You must: Maintain Site or secure substitute Site; bring
Gym into compliance with our then current
specifications and standards; sign new Franchise
Agreement and ancillary agreements, which may
contain materially different terms and conditions than
the original Franchise Agreement; satisfactorily
complete training and refresher programs; pay fee; and
sign a general release in the format attached as Exhibit
"G" to this Disclosure Document. The boundaries of the
Designated Area will remain the same, and the royalty
upon renewal will not be greater than royalty that we
then impose on similarly situated renewing franchisees.

(d) Termination by you

None

None. (subject to state law)

(e) Termination by us
without cause (1)

None

None

(f) Termination by us
with cause

FA: Section 16.2

We can terminate only if you commit one of several
violations.

(h) “Cause” defined -
defaults which can be
cured

FA: Section 16.2

You do not correct non-compliance with any health,
safety or sanitation law within 5 days of notice; you fail
to make payments of any amounts due to us and do not
correct such failure within 10 days of notice of your
failure; you fail to make payments due approved
supplier and do not correct such failure within 10 days
of notice.
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(i) Your obligations on
termination/ non-
renewal

FA: Section 17; LA
CAAL; CATNL

Obligations include payment of outstanding amounts,
complete de-identification and return of confidential
information (also see (r) below).  The Conditional
Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings (the
“Conditional Assignment”) is attached as Exhibit “C”.
The Conditional Assignment requires you to transfer the
phone number and listings for your Gym to us if the
Franchise Agreement terminates or expires. If any
termination or expiration of the term of the franchise
would violate applicable law, we may reinstate or
extend the term for the purpose of complying with that
law.

(i) Assignment of
contract by us

FA: Section
CAAL

15.1;

No restriction on our right to assign.

(K) “Transfer” by you-
definition

FA: Section 15.2; RT

Voluntary or involuntary, direct or indirect assignment,
sale, gift or other disposition of any interest in the
Franchise Agreement (or DDA), you or the Gym.

(I) Our approval of
transfer by you

FA: Section 15.2 and
15.4; RT

We have the right to approve all transfers, even to a
Business Entity controlled by you.

(m) Conditions for our
approval of transfer

FA: Section 15.3; RT

New franchisee qualifies, you pay us all amounts due,
transferee and its managerial employees agree to
complete training, transferee agrees to be bound by
terms and conditions of Franchise Agreement, transfer
fee paid, we approve material terms, you subordinate
amounts due to you, and you sign other documents we
require - including general releases in the form provided
in Exhibit “G” (also see (r) below).

(n) Our right of first
refusal to acquire
your business

FA: Section 15.8

We can match any offer for an ownership interest in you,
your Franchise Agreement or your Gym provided that
we may substitute cash for any form of payment at a
discounted amount if an interest rate will be charged on
any deferred payments, our credit will be deemed equal
to that of any proposed purchaser, we will have no less
than 60 days to prepare for closing and we receive all
customary representations and warranties, as we specify.

(o) Our option to
purchase your
business

FA: Section 17.5

We have the option to buy the Gym, including leasehold
rights to the Site, at fair market value after our
termination, or your termination without cause, of the
agreement (but not expiration).

(p) Your death or
disability

FA: Sections 15.5
and 15.6

Franchise or an ownership interest in you must be
assigned to an approved buyer within 6 months and must
be run by a trained manager during the period prior to
the assignment. Assignment is subject to our right of
first refusal.
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(g) Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

FA: Sections 10

No interest in a Competitive Business, no controlling
ownership interest in, or performance of services for, a
competitive business anywhere, no recruiting or hiring
of any person who is our employee or an employee of
any 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. A “Competitive Business”
is any business or facility owning, operating or
managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others
to do so, any physical fitness, self-defense, kickboxing,
mixed martial arts, martial arts products or services, or
any similar products or services to those then offered by
a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (other than a 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym operated under a Franchise Agreement with us).
(Subject to state law)

() Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is
terminated or expires

FA: Section 17.4

No interest in Competitive Business for 2 years (a) at, or
within 25 miles of, the Site, (b) at the site of any other
30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in operation or under
construction on the later of the effective date of the
termination or expiration of this Agreement, or (c)
within 25 miles of any other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in
operation or under construction (same restrictions apply
after assignment). (Subject to state law)

(s) Modification of the
agreement

FA: Section 20.13

No modifications except by written agreement, but
Manual and System Standards are subject to change.

(t) Integration/merger
clause

FA: Section 21.19

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement (including
the Manual, System Standards, addenda and exhibits)
are binding (subject to state law). Any other statements
or promises not in the Franchise Agreement, the
agreements which are exhibits to this Disclosure
Document, or in this Disclosure Document should not
be relied upon and may not be enforceable.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in the franchise
agreement or in any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations made in the Franchise
Disclosure Document.

(u) Dispute resolution by
arbitration or
mediation

FA: Not applicable

Except for certain claims, all disputes must be mediated
and arbitrated in Dade County, Florida (subject to state
law) We reserve the right to require virtual mediation
and/or arbitration as we determine in our sole discretion.

(v) Choice of forum FA: Section 20.8;| Mediation/Litigation/Arbitration in Dade County,
CAAL,; CATNL; | Florida. (We reserve the right to require virtual
POG; RS; RT mediation and/or arbitration as we determine in our sole
discretion) (Subject to state law).
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(w) Choice of law FA: Section 20.7;
CAAL,; CATNL;
POG; RS; RT

Florida law applies (Subject to state law).

A

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This table lists important provisions of the Area Development Agreement. You
should read these provisions in the Area Development Agreement attached to this FDD.

Provision Section in Development Summary
Agreement

a. Term of the franchise Section 5.1 Commences on the date of the ADA is
signed and ends on the last
Development  Deadline  of  the
Mandatory Development Schedule.

b. Renewal or Section 5.1 The ADA is not subject to renewal.

extension of the term

¢. Requirements for you to renew | None N/A

or extend

d. Termination by you None N/A (subject to state law)

e. Termination by us without | None N/A

cause

f. Termination by us Section 5.2 We can terminate you for cause.

with cause

g. “Cause” defined — defaults Section 5.2 If you commit a default under the ADA

which can be cured (other than the type of default disclosed
in (h) below, which defaults are non-
curable), you have 15 days after you
receive notice from us to cure the
default identified in the notice.

h. “Cause” defined — non- Section 5.2 We have the right to terminate the ADA

curable defaults

effective immediately on notice to you
if you commit a Material Default,
including: (i) you fail to meet your
Minimum Development Obligations;
(i) you commit any conduct that
impairs the goodwill associated with the
marks or otherwise causes harm to us or
the reputation of the brand or the
System; (iii) the termination of any
Franchise Agreement entered into by
you or any of your affiliates and us and
any of our affiliates; (iv) uncured
default under any such Franchise
Agreement; (v) violation of the
confidentiality and/or non-competition
covenants; and (vi) failure to cure any
other default within 15 days after notice.

i. Your obligations on
termination/nonrenewal

Section 5.3, Section 7.1.2, 7.3

Comply with covenants and all post-
term obligations of the Development
Agreement.

j. Assignment of

Section 6.1

No restriction on our right to assign.
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Provision Section in Development Summary
Agreement
contract by us
k. “Transfer” by you — definition | Section 6.2 Includes transfer of the ADA or your
ownership change.
I. Our approval of transfer by Section 6.2 You are not permitted to assign or

you

transfer the ADA.

m. Conditions for our approval
of transfer

Not applicable

You have no right to transfer or assign
the ADA.

n. Our right of first refusal to
acquire your
business

None

N/A

0. Our option to purchase your
business
upon termination or non-
renewal

None

N/A

p. Your death or
disability

None

N/A

g. Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

Section 7.1.1

You may not (a) own, maintain, engage
in, be employed by, lend money to,
extend credit to or have any interest in
any Competing Business (as defined in
the franchise agreement), other than any
other 30 Minute Hit Gym; or (b) divert
or attempt to divert any business or
customer or prospect of the Gym to any
competitor, by direct or indirect
inducement or otherwise, or do or
perform, directly or indirectly, any other
act injurious or prejudicial to the
goodwill associated with the Marks or
the System. (subject to state law)
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Provision

Section in Development
Agreement

Summary

or expires

r. Non-competition covenants
after the franchise is terminated

Section 7.1.2

During the two (2) year period after
expiration or termination of this
Agreement, you and your oOwners,
officers and agents will not directly or
indirectly participate as an owner,
director, partner, officer, franchisee,
employee, consultant, advisor,
salesperson, distributor, or agent or
serve in any other capacity in any
Competitive Business that is located: (a)
anywhere in the Development Area; (b)
within a twenty-five (25) mile radius of
the Development Area; or (c) within a
25 mile radius of any Gym in operation,
under lease, or under construction as of
the date of termination or expiration, as
applicable. During the two (2) year
period after expiration or termination of
this Agreement, you and your owners,
officers and agents will not directly or
indirectly participate as an owner,
director, partner, officer, franchisee,
employee, consultant, advisor,
salesperson, distributor, or agent or
serve in any other capacity in any
franchise system that is offering or
selling the right to develop, open or
operate Competitive Businesses
anywhere in the United States. The
covenants not to compete are in addition
to and not in lieu of your express
agreements set forth above to not use
any trade secrets, confidential
information or personal contacts except
as authorized by us. (subject to state
law)

s. Modification of the agreement

Section 9.10

No modification except by written
agreement signed by both parties.

t. Integration/merger clause

Section 9.10

Only the terms of the ADA are binding
(subject to state law). Any
representations made outside of the
disclosure document and ADA may not
be enforceable. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing in the franchise
agreement or in any related agreement is
intended to disclaim the representations
made in the Franchise Disclosure
Document.

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration or mediation

Article 8

Except for certain claims, all disputes
must be mediated and if not resolved
through mediation, arbitrated (subject to
state law).
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Provision Section in Development Summary
Agreement

v. Choice of forum Section 8.1 Mediation and arbitration must be held
in Dade County, Florida (subject to state
law). (or, if our corporate headquarters
is no longer in Dade County, Florida,
the county in which our corporate
headquarters is then-located)

w. Choice of law Section 8.3 Florida law applies (subject to state
law).

In addition to the provisions noted in the Chart above, the Franchise Agreement contains a
number of provisions that may affect your legal rights, including waiver of jury trial, waiver of
punitive or exemplary damages, and limitations on when claims may be raised. We recommend you
carefully review all of these provisions, and each of the agreements attached to this Disclosure
Document in their entirety. We also recommend you consult with a lawyer regarding your legal rights
and obligations.

See Exhibit “N” for any state-specific riders or addenda attached to this Circular.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCEREPRESENTAHONSPERFORMANCE
REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document.
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1)
a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a
franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the
past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you
are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet.
If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you
should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Deanna Loychuk, 2221 North East
164th Street, Suite 252, North Miami Beach, Florida 33160, (778) 340-2000 or via e-mail at
deanna@30minutehit.com, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory
agencies.
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ITEM 20

OQUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary

For Years 20212022 to
20242023

Column 1
Outlet Type

Column 2
Year

Column 3
Outlets at the
Start of the Year

Column 4

Column 5

Outlets at the Net Change

End of the

Year

Franchised

20222021

1416

1619

+23

20222023

1619

1926

+37

20232024

1926

2628

+72

Company-Owned

20222021

0

0

0

20232622

0

0

0

20232024

0

0

0

Total Outlets

20222021

1416

1619

+23

20232022

1619

1926

+37

20232024

1926

2628

+42

Table No. 2

Transfers of Outlets From Franchisees to New Owners (Other than the Franchisor)

For Years 20212022 to 20242823

Column 1
State

Column 2
Year

Number of Transfers

Column 3

Texas
California

2021

2022

2023

2024

Colorado

20222021

2023

2024

Florida

2022

2023

2024

Georgia

2022

2023

2024

[Texas

FOTAL

2022

2023

20212024

TOTAL

2022

2023

2024

[WIN [P (O|R|IO(FR OO |O|Hk O || | |O|O
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Table No. 3

Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 20212022 to

20242023

Column 1
State

Column 3
Outlets at
Start of
Year

Column
4
Outlets
Opened

Column 5
Termina-
tions

Column 6
Non-
Renewals

Column 7
Reacquire
d by
Franchisor

Column 8
Ceased
Operations

Other
Reasons

Column 9

QOutlets at

End of the
Year

Arizona

California

Colorado

Connecticut

Georgia

Indiana

2024

New York

2022202
1

2022

2023

2024

Ohio

2021202

2023

2024
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Table No. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets
For Years 20212022 to
20242023
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6 Column 7 Column 8
State Year Outlets at Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets Outlets at
Start of Opened Reacquired Closed Sold to End of the
Year From Franchisee Year
Franchisee
TOTAL 20242022 | 0 0 0 0 0 0
20232022 | 0 0 0 0 0 0
20232024 | 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table No. 5

ITEM 20
Projected Openings as of December 31,
20232024
Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4
State Agreements Signed But Projected New Outlets in Projected New Company-
Outlet Not Opened the Next Fiscal Year Owned Outlets in the Next
Fiscal Year
California 1 2 0
Florida 1 3 0
Indiana 1 3 0
Nevada 1 0 0
New York 0 2 0
OregenOhio 0 1 0
Tennessee 0 1 0
Texas 0 3 0
Virginia 0 2 0
Washington 3 2 0
New Jersey 21 32 0
Michigan 10 21 0
Missouri 10 21 0
Total 115 2615 0

Exhibit “J” lists the names of all current unit franchises and the addresses and telephone numbers
of their outlets as of December 31, 20232024. Exhibit “J” also lists the franchisees who have signed multiple
Franchise Agreements with us but who have not opened their franchises for business as of December 31,
20232024. Our Company Owned Outlets are also listed in Exhibit “J.” The 30 Minute Hit® Gym
franchisees in Canada also listed on Exhibit “J.”

Exhibit “K” lists the city and state, and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the
last known home telephone number) of every unit franchisee who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not
renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement
during our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of
the issuance date of this Disclosure Document.

During the last three fiscal years, we have not signed confidentiality clauses with current or former
franchisees. But, confidentiality agreements may be entered into as a part of a settlement of a dispute
between us and current or former franchisees. In some instances, current and former franchisees sign or
will be asked to sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees but be aware that not
all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

To the extent known, the following are names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail address and
Web address of each trademark-specified franchisee organization associated with the franchise system being
offered which we have created, sponsored or endorsed.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave
the franchise system.

No Independent franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this Disclosure Document.
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ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our audited financial statements as of December 31, 20232024, December 31, 20232022, and

December 31,
2021 and-our-unaudited-financial-statementsas-of June 27-2024.2022 are attached as Exhibit “A.” -Our
parent and affiliates do not guaranty our performance. Our fiscal year end is December 31.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Copies of all proposed agreements regarding the franchise offering are included as exhibits to this
Disclosure Document. These include:

Exhibit B Form of Franchise Agreement and Related Materials
Exhibit C Form of Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings
Exhibit D Form of Conditional Assignment and Assumption of Lease
Exhibit E Form of Agreement to Lease
Exhibit F General Release - Renewal
Exhibit G General Release - Assignment
Exhibit H Form of Principal Owner's Statement
Exhibit | Form of Principal Owner's Guaranty
Exhibit M Pre-Closing Questionnaire
Exhibit N State Specific Addenda and Disclosure
Exhibit P Receipts
ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

You will find copies of a detachable receipt in Exhibit “P” at the very end of this Disclosure
Document.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Member
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (the Company), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, and the related statements of operations and
changes in member’s deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

WHATCOM OFFICE SKAGIT OFFICE CANADA
%, 360.734.8715 @ 360.738.1176 %, 360.707.4290 @ 360.707.4331 BC: 604.531.6638
2200 Rimland Drive, Suite 205 | Bellingham, WA 98226 200 E. George Hopper Road | Burlington, WA 98233 AB: 587.293.9595
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

\/SH PLLC

Bellingham, Washington
April 28, 2025
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

ASSETS
2024 2023 2022
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,235 $ 54,444 $ 85,506
Accounts receivable, net 47,261 130,009 119,508
Amounts due from member 102,553 134,006 -
Prepaid training and equipment expenses 25,000 115,000 215,000
Prepaid income taxes 3,280 - -
Current portion of prepaid commissions 77,613 71,330 51,262
Total current assets 274,942 504,789 471,276
Prepaid Commissions, net of current portion 396,831 473,395 514,944
Deferred Tax Asset, net 98,328 93,744 67,766
Total Assets $ 770,101 $ 1,071,928 $ 1,053,986
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S DEFICIT
Current Liabilities
Amounts due to member $ - $ - $ 20,820
Income taxes payable 857 33,504 11,110
Current portion of deferred revenue 202,539 300,514 296,100
Total current liabilities 203,396 334,018 328,030
Deferred Revenue, net of current portion 785,468 938,227 913,484
Total Liabilities 988,864 1,272,245 1,241,514
Member's Deficit (218,763) (200,317) (187,528)
Total Liabilities and Member's Deficit $ 770,101 $ 1,071,928 $ 1,053,986

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022
Revenue
Power leads $ 486,050 $ 430,250 $ 253,879
Initial franchise fees 325,735 111,842 57,308
Royalties and marketing fees 240,000 207,200 162,950
Initial equipment fees 75,000 70,000 60,000
Initial training fees 70,000 120,000 40,000
Training fees 30,000 25,900 19,900
Technology fees 26,350 19,425 12,675
Total revenue 1,253,135 984,617 606,712
Operating Expenses
Marketing 455,580 400,566 267,205
Management fee 180,000 25,000 25,000
Commissions 175,281 110,981 34,175
Intellectual property and technology fees 230,000 40,000 40,000
Equipment for franchisees 60,000 120,000 45,000
Training provided to franchisees 50,000 100,000 40,000
Accounting 43,756 31,983 25,371
Legal 25,201 24,561 24,067
Franchise acquisition costs 23,064 67,582 36,725
Insurance 11,900 8,125 3,397
Travel and meals 7,306 21,416 8,492
Licensing 6,413 10,069 9,216
Bank charges 5,649 3,844 3,215
Conferences and seminars 4,130 11,100 10,874
Dues and subscriptions 646 - -
Consulting - 1,500 -
Bad debt - - 606
Miscellaneous 224 4,635 4,362
Total operating expenses 1,279,150 981,362 577,705
Operating Income (26,015) 3,255 29,007
Other Expense
Foreign exchange loss 5,106 18,671 10,392
Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes (31,121) (15,416) 18,615
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit 12,675 2,627 (3,909)
Net Income (Loss) (18,446) (12,789) 14,706
Member's Deficit, beginning of year (200,317) (187,528) (202,234)
Member's Deficit, end of year $ (218,763) _$ (200,317) _$ (187,528)

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022
Cash Flows From Operations
Net income (loss) $ (18,446) $ (12,789) $ 14,706
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to
net cash flows from operating activities:
Deferred tax provision (4,584) (25,978) (7,201)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 82,748 (10,501) 99,106
Prepaid training and equipment expenses 90,000 100,000 (140,000)
Prepaid income taxes (3,280) - -
Prepaid commissions 70,281 21,481 (265,075)
Amounts due from member 31,453 (134,006) -
Accounts payable - - (25,000)
Amounts due to member - (20,820) (120,247)
Income taxes payable (32,647) 22,394 8,730
Deferred revenue (250,734) 29,157 395,192
Net cash from operating activities (35,209) (31,062) (39,789)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (35,209) (31,062) (39,789)
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Year 54,444 85,506 125,295
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
End of Year $ 19,235 $ 54,444 $ 85,506
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for income taxes $ 27,836 _$ 5246  _$ 2,380

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (the Company) was formed in Florida in 2010 as a limited liability company and
has elected to be taxed as a C corporation. The Company is in the business of offering franchise
opportunities for gyms designed for women which offer high intensity circuit training programs known as
the “30 Minute Hit” program. The 30 Minute Hit program is comprised of boxing, kickboxing, and core
strengthening exercises. These gyms also offer other health related products and services. The Company
is a wholly owned subsidiary of 30 Minute Hit Ltd. (the Member) is the sole member of the Company and
the franchisor of 30 Minute Hit gyms in Canada.

The Company had 28, 26, and 19 operating franchised gyms at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,
respectively across the United States.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of the major accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist the reader in
evaluating the Company’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations
of the Company's management, who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Foreign transactions — Transactions outside the United States include payments and reimbursements
to the Member in Canada. Foreign transactions are subject to risks inherent in transacting under different
legal systems and various political and economic environments. Among the risks are changes in existing
tax laws, possible limitations on foreign investment and income repatriation, government price or foreign
exchange controls, and restrictions on currency exchange. The functional currency of all of the
Company's foreign transactions is US dollars.

Cash and cash equivalents — For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all
highly-liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The
Company maintains its cash in bank accounts, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accounts receivable — Accounts receivable from franchisees are generally unsecured. Late fees and
interest charges on past due balances are enforced at management’s discretion. The Company
established an allowance for doubtful accounts as a reserve for uncollectible receivables based on
management’s evaluation of collectability based on knowledge regarding specific customers and general
risks of collection. The Company has considered the Current Expected Credit Losses (CECL)
methodology for estimating allowances for credit losses on financial assets. However, the Company has
determined that the impact of applying CECL is not material to the financial statements. Where a
receivable related to initial franchise fees is identified as warranting a collection reserve, the related
deferred revenue is also reduced. Management determined an allowance for doubtful accounts was
$55,000, $55,000, and $0 as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Bad debt expense
totaled $0, $0, and $606 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Revenue recognition — The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the provisions of FASB
ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Franchise fee revenue includes an initial
franchise fee, which is generally non-refundable and recognized by the Company as revenue using the
straight-line method over the length of the franchise agreement, which is 10 years. If a franchised location
permanently closes, any previously unearned revenue is recognized. If a franchised location is
transferred, it is accounted for as a permanent closure and the transfer fee is amortized over the length
of the franchise agreement.

The Company recognizes equipment fee revenue upon delivery and recognizes training fee revenue
upon the franchise opening for business. The Company recognizes royalty, marketing, technology, and
ongoing training fee revenues from operating franchised gyms each month. Power leads revenue is
recognized when franchisees are invoiced each month based on the number of leads generated for the
individual franchise.

The Company records deferred revenue when it has not yet fulfilled its performance obligation for training
services and equipment delivery and for initial franchise fees collected which are recognized over the
term of the agreement.

Advertising — The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense
totaled $455,580, $400,566, and $267,205 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,
respectively.

Federal income taxes — In 2011, the Company elected to be taxed as a C corporation. The accounting
for federal income taxes requires an asset and liability approach. Deferred federal income tax assets and
liabilities are provided to recognize the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial statement and federal income tax purposes.
Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred federal income tax assets to
the amount expected to be realized. Management has evaluated the amount of state income tax expense
and related potential impact on deferred taxes and determined the amount to be immaterial. Therefore,
no provision for deferred state income taxes has been made in these financial statements.

Management evaluates its federal income tax positions on a regular basis and believes it has taken no
significant uncertain tax positions that could result in additional federal income taxes to the Company.
The Company has not recognized any interest or penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

With certain exceptions, the federal income tax returns of the Company are subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service for three years after the return is filed.

Use of estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Going concern — Management has assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the period of one year from the report date on these financial statements and does not believe any
existing conditions or events raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The owner of the Member of the Company has stated that the Member and the owner of the
Member have the ability and the intent to provide financing to meet temporary liquidity needs of the
Company should they arise.

Subsequent events — Management has reviewed subsequent events through April 28, 2025, the date
which the report was available to be issued.

NOTE 3. FRANCHISING

The Company executes franchise agreements that set the terms of its arrangements with each
franchisee. The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee, which
is generally $45,000, plus required training and equipment fees of $25,000. Certain discounts from initial
franchise fees are available to qualifying franchisees. The franchise agreements also require the
franchisee to pay monthly royalty fees based on revenue levels. The franchisee pays online marketing
fees monthly to cover advertising, market research, and search engine optimization. The franchisee also
pays monthly technology and training fees. Subject to the Company’s approval and payment of a renewal
fee, a franchisee may generally renew its agreement upon expiration.

When an individual franchise is sold, the Company agrees to license the 30 Minute Hit name to the
franchisee, provide site selection criteria and prototype design plans for the gym, assist in developing the
gym and implementing the grand opening advertising, and provide the initial training program, among
others. The Company considers all the previously mentioned services and licensing part of a single
performance obligation for which the initial franchise fee is charged.

The Company recognizes initial franchise fees as deferred revenue when the franchise agreement is
executed. The initial franchise fees are recognized as revenue over the 10-year term of the franchise
agreement. The Company recognizes initial training and equipment fees when substantially all initial
services required by the franchisor are performed, which generally occurs when a franchised unit opens
for business. The Company recognizes renewal fees as revenue when a renewal agreement becomes
effective. Deferred revenue also includes training and equipment fees which have been received and are
recognized when the training is provided and the equipment is delivered, respectively.

The Company pays commissions related to the sale of a franchise. The Company capitalizes the
commissions as a prepaid expense and amortizes the fee over the 10-year term of the franchise
agreement. In the event a franchisee terminates, the net remaining unearned initial franchise fees
unexpended prepaid commissions are recognized during the termination. Transfers of franchises are
accounted for as a termination of the franchise and a new franchise arrangement.

The Company recognized acceleration of initial franchise fees related to terminations and transfers
totaling $179,980, $30,333, and $0 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,
respectively. The Company recognized acceleration of commissions expense related to terminations and
transfers totaling $111,608, $17,670, and $0 during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022, respectively.

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 3. FRANCHISING, (continued)

The following summarizes the changes in deferred revenue during the years ended December 31:

2024 2023 2022
Deferred initial franchise fees:

Beginning of year $ 1,083,741 $ 964,584 $ 664,392
Franchise fees collected 175,001 230,999 357,500
Revenue recognized (325,735) (111,842) (57,308)

End of year 933,007 1,083,741 964,584

Deferred training and equipment fees 55,000 155,000 245,000
Total deferred revenue $ 988,007 $ 1,238,741 $ 1,209,584

The following summarizes the changes in prepaid commissions during the years ended December 31:

2024 2023 2022
Prepaid commissions:

Beginning of year $ 544,725 $ 566,206 $ 301,131
Commissions paid during the year 105,000 67,000 299,250
Expense recognized (175,281) (88,481) (34,175)

End of year $ 474,444 $ 544,725 $ 566,206

Deferred revenue and commission expense are expected to be recognized as follows for the future years
ending December 31:

Deferred Commission
Revenue Expense Net
2025 $ 202,539 $ (77,613) $ 124,926
2026 115,114 (60,472) 54,642
2027 115,114 (60,472) 54,642
2028 115,114 (60,472) 54,642
2029 108,239 (55,812) 52,427
Thereafter 331,887 (159,603) 172,284
Totals $ 988,007 $ (474,444) $ 513,563

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Member of the Company is the franchisor of 30 Minute Hit gyms in Canada. The Member supports
the Company financially, as needed, and provides operational support to the Company. The Member
pays for a variety of transactions and receives reimbursements from the Company. The balance due from
(to) the Member totaled $102,553, $134,006, and ($20,820) at December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,
respectively. Amounts due from (to) Member are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Commissions are paid to the Member to be disbursed to employees of the Member.

The Member has a management contract with the Company to provide all management and operation
services as there are no employees of the Company. The Member has a contract with the Company for
utilization of the Member’s trademarks and proprietary systems and practices, as well as providing
technology services. Effective January 1, 2024, the Member modified its agreements with the Company
for these services.

The Member provides franchisees with all training and equipment. The balance in prepaid training and
equipment represents amounts paid to the Member related to studios which have not been provided to
the franchisees.

The Company recognized the following transactions with Member for the years ended December 31.:

2024 2023 2022

Marketing and other reimbursable expenses $ 489,129 $ 463420 $ 282,686

Intellectual property and technology fees 230,000 40,000 40,000
Management fee 180,000 25,000 25,000
Reimbursement for initial equipment provided 60,000 60,000 135,000
Reimbursement for initial training provided 50,000 60,000 80,000
Commissions 45,000 67,000 106,000

NOTE 5. CONCENTRATIONS

The Company has geographical concentrations of franchisees in the states of California, Texas, and
Washington. The Company had a total of 13, 13, and 12 franchises as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022, respectively, in those three states.

The Company had three franchisees that accounted for 83%, 79%, and 95% of the total accounts
receivable balances as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. Of those receivable
concentrations, the Company had specifically reserved amounts as uncollectible of 54%, 30%, and 0%
of total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended December 31:

2024 2023 2022

Current provision for federal taxes
before net operating loss carryforward $ (8,891) $ 22551 % 21,482
Benefit of net operating loss carryforward - - (10,372)
Current provision for federal income taxes (8,891) 22,551 11,110
Current provision for state taxes 800 800 -
Current provision for income taxes (8,091) 23,351 11,110
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (4,584) (25,978) (7,201)

Provision (benefit) for federal income

taxes $ (12,675 _$ (2,627) % 3,909

The net deferred tax asset is calculated utilizing a 21% tax rate and is comprised of the following at
December 31:

2024 2023 2022

Deferred tax assets:
Difference in timing of revenue recognition $ 195931 $ 207,531 $ 185,762

Federal net operating loss carryforward 1,727 - -
Difference in net book value
of intangible assets 303 605 907
Total deferred tax assets 197,961 208,136 186,669
Deferred tax liabilities:
Difference in timing of expense recognition (99,633) (114,392) (118,903)
Net deferred tax asset $ 98,328 $ 93,744 $ 67,766

The following reconciles the Company’s expected income tax, based on the Company’s pre-tax income
to the provision for income tax for the years ended December 31:

2021 2023 2022
Federal income tax at statutory rates $ (6,703) $ (2,638) $ 3,909
State income taxes 800 800 800
Net tax effect of nondeductible/includible
Expenses and other adjustments (6,772) (789) (800)
Total income tax provision $ (12,675) $ (2,627) $ 3,909

The Company utilized net operating loss carryforwards of $0, $0, and $49,389 during the years ended
2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had a net operating loss
carryforward of $8,224.

See independent auditors’ report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Member
30 Minute Hit USA, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the finangial statements of 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (the Company), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, and the related statements of operations and
changes in member’s deficit\and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as\of December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the yeaks then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the, Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are\to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detegt a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from\fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentionalN omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered Raterial if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance witk_generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test hasis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro| relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s iRternal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies ysed and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions onevents, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to‘continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and cexain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

\/gﬁl PLLC

Bellingham, Washington
April 18, 2024
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

ASSETS
2023 2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,444 $ 85,506 $ 125,295

Accounts receivable, net 130,009 119,508 218,614

Amounts due from member 134,006 - -

Prepaid training and equipment expenses 115,000 215,000 75,000

Current portion of prepaid commissions 71,330 51,262 34,175

Total current asse 504,789 471,276 453,084

PREPAID COMMISSIONS,

portion 473,395 514,944 266,956
DEFERRED TAX ASSET, net 93,744 67,766 60,565
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,071,928 $ 1,053,986 $ 780,605

LIABILITIESAND MEMBER'S DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable - 0% - $ 25,000

Amounts due to member - 20,820 141,067

Federal income tax payable 33,504 11,110 2,380

Current portion of deferred revenue 300,514 296,100 200,100

Total current liabilities ‘ﬁ:w 328,030 368,547

DEFERRED REVENUE, net of current portion 938,227 913,484 614,292
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,272,24 1,241,514 982,839
MEMBER'S DEFICIT (200,317) (187,528) (202,234)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S

DEFICIT $ 1,071,928 $ 1,053,986 $ 780,605

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN MEMBER'S DEFICIT
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

2023 2022 2021
REVEN

Power leads $ 430,250 $ 253,879 $ 143,063
Royalties and marketing fees 207,200 162,950 129,300
Initial training fees 120,000 40,000 30,000
Initial franchise fees 111,842 57,308 136,433
Initial equipmentfees 70,000 60,000 45,000
Training fees 25,900 19,900 16,100
Technology fees 19,425 12,675 6,000

Total revenue 984,617 606,712 505,896

OPERATING EXPENSES

Marketing 400,566 267,205 151,512
Equipment for franchisees 120,000 45,000 30,000
Commissions 110,981 34,175 92,233
Training provided to franchisees 100,000 40,000 20,000
Franchise acquisition costs 67,582 36,725 28,290
Intellectual property license fee 40,000 40,000 40,000
Accounting 31,983 25,371 24,864
Management fee 25,000 25,000 25,000
Legal 24,561 24,067 29,704
Travel and meals 21,416 8,492 2,916
Conference 11,100 10,874 -
Licensing 10,069 9,216 6,689
Insurance 8,125 3,397 945
Bank charges 3,844 3,215 3,865
Consulting 1,500 - -
Miscellaneous ,635 4,362 607
Bad debt - 606

- 20,608

Other equipment
Dues and subscriptions - - 10,000
Total operating expenses 981,362 577,705 487,233
OPERATING INCOME 3,255 29,007 18,663
OTHER EXPENSE
Foreign exchange loss 18,671 10,392 6,853
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES (15,416) 18,&& 11,810
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) BENEFIT 2,627 (3,909)\ (2,479)
NET INCOME (LOSS) (12,789) 14,706 9,331
MEMBER'S DEFICIT, beginning of year (187,528) (202,234) (24.1,565)
MEMBER'S DEFICIT, end of year $  (200,317) $ (187,528) $ (205\34)

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements


Daniel Nussbaum
Line


30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

2023 2022 2021

S FROM OPERATIONS
Net income (loss) $ (12,789) $ 14,706 $ 9,331
Adjustments.to reconcile net income (loss) to

net cash flows\provided by (used for) operating

activities
Deferred tax provision (25,978) (7,201) 99
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivab (10,501) 99,106 102,534
Prepaid training and equipment expenses 100,000 (140,000) (75,000)
Prepaid commissions 21,481 (265,075) (27,767)
Due from member (134,006) - -
Accounts payable - (25,000) 24,322
Amounts due to member (20,820) (120,247) 66,610
Federal income taxes payable 22,394 8,730 2,380
Deferred revenue 29,157 395,192 (20,933)
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities (31,062) (39,789) 81,576
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (31,062) (39,789) 81,576
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR 85,506 125,295 43,719
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, X\q
END OF YEAR $ 444 $ 85,506 $ 125,295

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATI

Cash paid for income taxes $ 5,246 2,380 $ -

See independent auditors’ report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE X NATURE OF BUSINESS

30 Minute
has elected

it USA, LLC (the Company) was formed in Florida in 2010 as a limited liability company and
be taxed as a C corporation. The Company is in the business of offering franchise
opportunities fox gyms designed for women which offer high intensity circuit training programs known as
the “30 Minute Hit” program. The 30 Minute Hit program is comprised of boxing, kickboxing, and core
strengthening exersises. These gyms also offer other health related products and services. The Company
is a wholly owned subsidiary of 30 Minute Hit Ltd., the sole (Member) of the Company and the franchisor
of 30 Minute Hit gyms ik Canada.

The Company had 26, 19,\and 16 operating franchised gyms at December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021,
respectively across the United States.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of the major accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist the reader in
evaluating the Company’s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations
of the Company's management, who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of\the financial statements.

Foreign transactions — Transactions outside the United States include payments and reimbursements
to the Member in Canada. Foreign transactions are swbject to risks inherent in transacting under different
legal systems and various political and economic enviraqnments. Among the risks are changes in existing
tax laws, possible limitations on foreign investment and Income repatriation, government price or foreign
exchange controls, and restrictions on currency exchange. The functional currency of all of the
Company's foreign transactions is US dollars.

Cash and cash equivalents — For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all
highly-liquid investments with original maturities of three months\or less to be cash equivalents. The
Company maintains its cash in bank accounts, which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accounts receivable — Accounts receivable from franchisees are generally unsecured. Late fees and
interest charges on past due balances are enforced at management’s\discretion. The Company
established an allowance for doubtful accounts as a reserve for uncollectible receivables based on
management’s evaluation of collectability based on knowledge regarding specific.customers and general
risks of collection. Where a receivable related to initial franchise fees is identified as warranting a
collection reserve, the related deferred revenue is also reduced. Management determined an allowance
for doubtful accounts was $55,000, $105,000, and $0 as of December 31, 2023, 2022and 2021,
respectively. Bad debt expense totaled $0, $606, and $0 for the years ended December\31, 2023, 2022,
and 2021, respectively.

Revenue recognition — The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the provisions_of FASB
ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Franchise fee revenue includes an initial
franchise fee, which is generally non-refundable and recognized by the Company as revenue using the
straight-line method over the length of the franchise agreement, which is 10 years. If a franchised locati
permanently closes, any previously unearned revenue is recognized.

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The Company recognizes equipment fee revenue upon delivery and recognizes training fee revenue
upon the franchise opening for business. The Company recognizes royalty, marketing, technology and

ongoing training fee revenues from operating franchised gyms monthly. Power leads revenue is
recognized when\franchisees are invoiced each month based on the number of leads generated for the
individual franchis

The Company records deferred revenue when it has not yet fulfilled its performance obligation for training
services and equipment delivery and for initial franchise fees collected which are recognized over the
term of the agreement.

Advertising — The Company ‘expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense
totaled $400,566, $267,205, anchn$151,512 for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021,
respectively.

Federal income taxes — In 2011, the Gompany elected to be taxed as a C corporation. The accounting
for federal income taxes requires an asset and liability approach. Deferred federal income tax assets and
liabilities are provided to recognize the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the bases of assets and liabilities\or financial statement and federal income tax purposes.
Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred federal income tax assets to
the amount expected to be realized. Managementhas evaluated the amount of state income tax expense
and related potential impact on deferred taxes and\determined the amount to be immaterial. Therefore,
no provision for deferred state income taxes has been made in these financial statements.

Management evaluates its federal income tax positions ®n a regular basis and believes it has taken no
significant uncertain tax positions that could result in additjonal federal income taxes to the Company.
The Company has not recognized any interest or penalties associated with uncertain tax positions.

Use of estimates — The preparation of financial statements i
generally accepted in the United States of America requires
assumptions. Such estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the finapcial statements, and affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period\Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

conformity with accounting principles
nagement to make estimates and

Going concern — The Company adheres to the provisions of the Financial Acsounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification 205, subtopic 40, which extends the responsibility for performing the
going concern evaluation to management based on relevant conditions and events that are known and
reasonably knowable at the time the financial statements are available to be issued, Management has
assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the period of one year from April 18,
2024, and does not believe any existing conditions or events raise substantial doubt aboutthe Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The representative of the owner of the Company has stated that it
has the ability and the intent to provide financing to meet temporary liquidity needs of the Company
should they arise.

Subsequent events — Management has reviewed subsequent events through April 18, 2024, the_date
which the report was available to be issued.

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 3, FRANCHISING

The Company executes franchise agreements that set the terms of its arrangements with each
franchisee. The franchise agreements require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee, which
is generally $70,000, including required training and equipment fees. Certain discounts from initial
franchise fees axe available to qualifying franchisees. The franchise agreements also require the
franchisee to pay monthly royalty fees based on revenue levels. The franchisee pays online marketing
fees monthly to coveradvertising, market research, and search engine optimization. The franchisee also
pays monthly technology and training fees. Subject to the Company’s approval and payment of a renewal
fee, a franchisee may generally renew its agreement upon expiration.

When an individual franchise_is sold, the Company agrees to license the 30 Minute Hit name to the
franchisee, provide site selection criteria and prototype design plans for the gym, assist in developing the
gym and implementing the grand opening advertising, and provide the initial training program, among
others. The Company considers all the previously mentioned services and licensing part of a single
performance obligation for which the\initial franchise fee is charged.

The Company recognizes initial franchise fees as deferred revenue when the franchise agreement is
executed. The initial franchise fees are regognized as revenue over the 10 year term of the franchise
agreement. The Company recognizes initiaktraining and equipment fees when substantially all initial
services required by the franchisor are performed, which is generally occurs when a franchised unit opens
for business. The Company recognizes renewalNfees as revenue when a renewal agreement becomes
effective. Deferred revenue also includes training and equipment fees which have been received and are
recognized when the training is provided and the equipment is delivered, respectively.

The Company pays commissions related to the sale“of a franchise. The Company capitalizes the
commission as a prepaid expense and amortizes the fee over the 10 year term of the franchise
agreement. In the event a franchisee terminates, the net\remaining unearned initial franchise fees
unexpended prepaid commissions are recognized the period of the termination.

The following summarizes the changes in deferred revenue during\the years ended December 31:

2023 2022 2021
Deferred initial franchise fees:

Beginning of year $ 964,584 $\ 664,392 $ 660,325
Franchise fees collected 230,999 357,500 140,500
Revenue recognized (111,842) 7,308) (136,433)

End of year 1,083,741 96??: 664,392

Deferred training and equipment fees 155,000 245,0 150,000
Total deferred revenue $ 1,238,741 $ 1,209,584 $ 814,392

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 3, FRANCHISING, (continued)

The following summarizes the changes in prepaid commissions during the years ended December 31.:

2023 2022 2021
Prepaid commissions:

Beginning of \year $ 566,206 $ 301,131 $ 273,364
Commissions paid during the year 67,000 299,250 120,000
Expense recognized (88,481) (34,175) (92,233)

End of year $ 544,725 $ 566,206 $ 301,131

Deferred revenue and commission expense are expected to be recognized as follows for the years
ending December 31.:

Deferred Commission

Revenue Expense Net
2024 $ 300,514 $ (71,330) % 61,323
2025 135,764 (64,278) 45,158
2026 122,764 (64,953) 45,158
2027 122,764 (64,953) 45,158
2028 122,764 (64,953) 45,158
Thereafter 434,171 (214,258) 201,742
Totals $ 1\2@8,741 $ (544,725) $ 443,697

NOTE 4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

30 Minute Hit Ltd., sole (Member) of the Company and the franchisor of 30 Minute Hit gyms in Canada,
supports the Company financially, as needed. In addition, the Member pays for a variety of transactions
and receives reimbursements from the Company. The balance due from (ta) Member totaled $134,0086,
($20,820), and ($141,067) at December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. The balance due from
the Member as of December 31, 2023 includes advances paid to the Member totaling $135,000. Amounts
due from (to) Member are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, and without fixed terms of repayment.

Commissions are paid to the Member to be disbursed to employees of the Member.

The Member has a management contract with the Company to provide all managementand operation
services as there are no employees of the Company. The Member has a contract with the \Company for
utilization of the Member’s trademarks and proprietary systems and practices. The Member provides
franchisees all training and equipment. The balance in prepaid training and equipment represents
amounts paid to the member related to studios which have not been provided to the franchisees:

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 4, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company recognized the following transactions with Member for the years ended December 31.:

2023 2022 2021
Marketing and other reimbursable expenses $ 463,420 $ 282,686 $ 174,892
Commissions 67,000 106,000 55,000
Reimbursement forNnitial equipment provided 60,000 135,000 45,000
Reimbursement for initjial training provided 60,000 80,000 30,000
Intellectual property licexnse fee 40,000 40,000 40,000
Management fee 25,000 25,000 25,000

NOTE 5. CONCENTRATIONS OFRISK

The Company recognizes concentrations of revenue that result from 26, 19, and 16 franchised gyms for
the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. Revenue concentrations are most
impacted during the year a franchised gyra_is opened due to large initial training and equipment fee
recognition.

The Company had three franchisees that accounted for 86%, 95%, and 94% of the accounts receivable
balances at December 31, 2023, 2022 , and 2021} respectively. These balances consist of franchise
agreements that are signed, but the initial franchise fee was not collected or fully collected before year-
end.

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended December 31:

2023 2022 2021

Current provision for federal taxes
before net operating loss carryforward $ 22,551 21,482 $ 11,900
Benefit of net operating loss carryforward - (10,372) (9,520)
Current provision for federal income taxes 22,551 \lillo 2,380
Current provision for state taxes 800 - -
Current provision for income taxes 23,351 11,1\% 2,380
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (25,978) (7,20 99

Provision (benefit) for federal income

taxes $ (2,627) % 3,909 $ 2,479

See independent auditors’ report
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30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021

NOTE 6, FEDERAL INCOME TAXES (continued)

The net deferred tax asset is calculated utilizing a 21% tax rate and is comprised of the following at
December 31\

2023 2022 2021

Deferred tax assets:
Difference in tinging of revenue recognition $ 207,531 $ 185,762 $ 112,222

Federal net operating loss carryforward - - 10,372
Difference in net book value
of intangible asse 605 907 1,209
Total deferred tax assets 208,136 186,669 123,803
Deferred tax liabilities:
Difference in timing of experse recognition (114,392) (118,903) (63,238)
Net deferred tax asset $ 93,744 $ 67,766 $ 60,565

The following reconciles the Company’s expected income tax, based on the Company’s pre-tax income
to the provision for income tax for the years\ended December 31:

2023 2022 2021
Federal income tax at statutory rates $ (2,638) $ 3,909 $ 2,480
State income taxes 800 - -
Net tax effect of nondeductible/includible
Expenses and other adjustments (789) - 1)
Total income tax provision $ 2,627) $ 3,909 $ 2,479

The Company utilized net operating loss carryforwards of $0, $49,389, and $45,331 during the years
ended 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively. No additional net operating loss carryforwards exist as of
December 31, 2023.

See independent auditors’ report
11
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EXHIBIT B TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT




PIINGDTLE

30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT DATE

FRANCHISEE

GYM NUMBER

ADDRESS OF GYM



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCGTION. ...ttt ettt st s e b e et e st et e s e s e eb e st et et e neeneebeneeneens 1
11 The 30 MINUTE HIT® SYSEEM ....eiiieieieseceeies et st nns 1
GRANT AND TERM. ..ottt sttt sttt neatente st e e neenenne e 2
2.1 SIte/DESIGNAEA AT ....c.vviivieeiie e eee st e et e e s rre st e e e e e e seesreesreesreeeneeaneeaneesneeaneeas 2
2.2 L€ 2T | P T T T ST PPV R PP URRVRPTPPTRPPN 2
2.3 LI L PO PTP R UROTUP PR 2
24 PEITOIMANCE ...ttt ettt ettt sttt et e stesbe e st e eeseeereenteseeseeeneas 2
2.5 (01915 =T AV o= SRS PR TSUSPRRN 2
2.6 RIGNTS WE RESEIVE. ....eciiieii ettt e ettt et e et e s s e an b e ne e ene e e e e sneesneenneas 3
SU ZCESSOR TERMS. ..ottt bbbttt enes 3
3.1 Your Right to Acquire a SUCCESSOr FraNCISE ......cccvevveiiiiiiiee e 3
3.2 Grant 0f @ SUCCESSOr FraNCRISE.........ccuoiieiiieiiieiee e 3
3.3 AGreEMENTS/REIBASES ......veveeeieiie ittt ettt te et e s beere e besbeareereneas 4
3.4 Training and RefreSher ProOgrams.........ccocciviiiieie it 5
3.5 Successor Franchise FEes and EXPENSES........covcviiiiiaierieiese e ste e sre e siesre e 5
3.6 Subsequent SUCCESSOr FraNChISES ........ccviiiiiiecese s st 5
SITE SELECTION AND DEVELOPMENT. ..ottt 5
4.1 SIEE SEIBCTION. ..ttt bbb et 5
4.2 REIOCAtION OF the SITE.....c.eciiiiiiiiic e 6
4.3 LOI and Lease APPrOVAL..........cooiiiiiiiiieie ittt st re e ene 6
4.4 OWnNership and FINANCING .......ccoiviiieiiie et e e s beereenaenre s 7
GY /N DEVELOPMENT, DECOR AND OPERATING ASSETS. ....cocciiiiiieirene e 8
51 GYM DEVEIOPMENT ...ttt sttt te e sbe s re s e besbesneesrearas 8
5.2 INItIAl EQUIPIMENT ..ottt ettt e e ne e e e 10
5.3 Operating Assets and GYm MaterialS .........ccccceveiiiiiiiiii e 10
5.4 Changes to APProved SUPPIEIS. .......cv i ittt st sre s 10
55 Compliance with Laws and Good Business PractiCes. .........cccccvvevievievesieeiese e, 12
5.6 Music and Other Audio and Visual Entertainment. ...........cccevvvvreneiinienienenieesese s 12
5.7 Busingss Management SYSTEM........cccciiiiiiiiiie ettt st sr b sreans 12
5.8 GYM OPENING. .ttt bbbttt b bbbt et b ettt sb b abe b e 12
59 Pre-Sale/Grand Opening Program ..........ccouoiieriieieinesiesieesese s 13
L PSR 13
6.1 Franchise Fee and TraiNing FEE........ccoi it 13
6.2 ROVAILY ...t bbbttt 13
6.3 Operating ASSISTANCE FEE.......ccui et e e sneesneas 14
6.4 Software/Computer, Website Marketing Fee and Power Leads Fees..........cccccvvvvvevennene. 14
6.5 Additional TrainiNg FEES. .....cviieiiiieee et es 14
6.6 SYSIEM FUNG FEES. ...ttt et st et aesreateenaesrenreanees 15
6.7 Training Non ComplianCe FEE.........ciiiiiiiiece e et 15
6.8 Local Advertising REQUITEMENT FEES........cviieiiiiiieeiee ettt 15
6.9 EleCtronic FUNAS TranSTer. ..ot 15
6.10  Definition OF GrOSS SAIES........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiie e 15
6.11  INtereSt 0N Late PaYMENTS.......cciiiiiiiiiiiie it nne s 16
6.12  Late Payment PENAITIES .........ccciiiiiieiiiieee e 16



I

¥

10.

11.

12.

6.13  ApPlIication OF PAYMENTS.......cccvciiie ittt nneas 16

TN Y (T 1O i =] £ PSR 16
6.15  DISCONTINUANCE OF SEIVICE ..oociviieeitiiie sttt ettt et e e st e e e s st e e e s sbb e e e s s st ba e e s sbbaeessabaneeens 16
ST O ) ¢ [=T g =T 16
T A Tl B 1Y =T o - FR TR 16

e e e e e e —————— L
71 SOwper—rpinterrerr———e 18
7.2 Addidepelttaptninnnirnrrerrrrrrrrrr 17
7.3 Seper-Guidapetrnirrrerrrrrrrrrrrereeeeee e 17
M ARKS

8.1 Ownership and GoodWill OF MArKS...........ccooiiiiiiiiiee e 18
8.2 Limitations on Your Use OF IMArkS .........ccccuoieieiiiiiere e 18
8.3 Notification of Infringements and ClaimS ............ccoiriiiiiiii e 18
8.4 Discontinuance 0f USe OF IMrKS..........coooviiiiiiiiie et 18
8.5 Notification of Infringements and Claims. ..........cccoov i 19
8.6 (000]0) 0| 11 ST TS U PSSP TP PPPSPURPRPO 19
8.7 Copyright INFrINGEMENES. .....eoiieiec e s st re e nes 19
8.8 [ Tod0] o (T QU= o O 20
8.9

co

91

9.2

93

94

EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP. ..ottt sttt 22
OPERATION AND SYSTEM STANDARDS. ......oiiiieie e 23
11,1 Operations ManUAIS ........c.ccveiiiiiiec et e e e reeneeenns 23
11.2  Compliance with System Standards............ccccvvivieiiiiiiiiieeie e 23
11.3  Modification of SYStem Standards..........cccouiiieiriiiiereee e 25
11.4  Interior and EXIErIOr UPKEEP ...c.ciioiiiiiiiiiecie sttt sttt sttt st taenaene s 25
115 HOUIS OF OPEIALION .....vocviiiiiie ettt sttt re et s reere s e renre e 25
11.6  Accounting and RECOIAS.........ccveiviiiiiiiiite ettt sttt st sa et este e st e srestaenaesbesre s 25
11.7  Information TechnOlOgY SYSIEIM........c.ciiiiiiiiieieiet et 25
11.8  Trade ACCOUNES AN TAXES....ccuiiueeeriaiiriiieieesie st sttt sttt sttt e esesne e 26
11,9 RELAI PrICES. c.uiiiiiiiciee sttt ettt e e st e s beete e s e sbesne e e e bentaaneeneas 26
11.10  APPrOVEI PrOGUCTS. .......eiteieiieiiitesie ettt bttt 26
I R |V == Vo =T 04T o PSPPSR 26
L1112 PEISONNEL ...ttt bbb bbbttt b ettt e 26
11.13 Core Business Operations and Ancillary Business Operations ............cccucveereereeeriennenans 26
11.14 Membership Agreements and Member Information.............ccccvevveveie i, 27
LLL5  INOTICES. ettt b b bbbttt h bbbttt bt e e e et nnas 28
MARKETING AND PROMOTION .....iiiiiiiiiiieiet ettt 28
12.1  Establishment of System Development FUNd. ...........cccoooiiiiiiiiiienceee e 28
12,2 USE OF the FUNCS. ...oviieieic ettt sttt nee e 28

12.3  Accounting fOr the FUNG .........ccoo i 29



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

12.4  System Development FUNd LIimMitations.........cccccveiiviiiiiieiieeie e see e s sre e 29
125  Advertising and PromMOtiON ........c.cciiiieiie i sae e 29
12.6  Local AdvertiSing COOPEIALIVES .......ccveiiieriieie et eie ettt et sie st e e snee e seesreeneeneeseeas 30
12,7  Local AdvertiSing EXPENTITUIES ......c.eeiieieiiieeieciee st steese e sre e st sre et e e sneesneesreeneeas 31
12,8 WWBDSIES ...t 31
K BT T | - To - TSRS SRRSO 33
12.10 Identification OF FranChiSe ...........coviiiiiiiici s 34
RECORDS, REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ..ot 34
131 ACCOUNTING SYSTEIML .iiiiiiiticiecic sttt st st et e te e saesresteenaesresreeneas 34
R 0 (< oo ] £ TS 34
13.3  ACCESS t0 INFOIMALION ...t 35
13.4  COPIES OF REPOITS. ...ccuiiiiiietiiiete ettt bbbt 35
INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS ..ottt 35
141 Our Right to INSPECt the GYM . ..c.viiiiiiiicce e ere s 35
142 OUIr RIGNE O AUGIT ....ooieiiiicie bbb 35
TRANSFER ...ttt bbbt 36
15.1  BY LS. i 36
152 BY YOU ootttk t bbb bbb R Rt n bt bt e nreere e 36
15.3  Conditions for Approval Of TranSTer ..........ccceiiiiiiiieee e 36
15.4  Transfer t0 @ BUSINESS ENLILY .......coiuiiiiiiiiiie e 38
15.5  Transfer Upon Death or DiSability ..........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecs e 38
15.6  Operation Upon Death or DiSability ...........ccoeiiiiiiiiniiiieesee e 38
15.7  Effect of CONSENt 10 TranSTer........coii v i 38
15.8  Our Right of FirSt REFUSAL..........coveiiiiiiiicee e 39
TER AINATION OF AGREEMENT ..ottt 40
L16.1  BY YOU ootttk et bt btk et Rt bt b R Rt r bt bt nee b b 40
16.2  BY US. it bbb bbbt bt renne s 40
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION .....cccciiiiiiiiieisistnie e 42
17.1  Payment of AMOUNtS OWEH TO US ......cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 42
A |V - <SOSR 42
17.3  Confidential INfOrmMation ...........ccoiiiiiiiiece e 43
17.4  COMPELITIVE RESIIICTIONS. ... cueiiiitiitiieieiist ettt 44
17.5  OUr RIGNTT0 PUICRASE. ..o 44
176 ContinUing OBIIGAtIONS .......cviiiiiiiieiee e 45
17.7  Additional Competitive RESIIICLIONS. ........cceiviiiirieicise e 46
17.8  Assumption of GYm’s ManagemMENT ..........cueieiieieriiiree e 46
17.9  IMEIMDEISNIPS . ...ttt ettt 46
RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.......ccccitiiiiienineiseeneesee e 46
18.1  INdependent CONLIACTONS ... ..ccueiiriieieteieetee e se st etee e see e e teseesee e e e e saesneeeeseeseeeneeseeneeas 46
18.2  No Liability for Acts 0f Other Party .........cccoiiiiiiieiiirescses e 47
S G T -V (PR R TP OP PR 47
18.4  INAEMNITICALION ..ot 47
INSURANCE ...ttt b bbbt b et b bbbt b ettt ettt ne 47
S TR IV o To 3 T U =T OSSPSR 47



19.2  CoVverage REQUITEIMENTS .......ciiiieiieeceeseesieese e s e s e s e st e st et e s e e s e e s e e sseesneesneesneeannesneenneas 48

SR T o] o =1 ¢ 41 48
19.4  EVIAENCE OF COVEIA0E ... .ciuiiieiieeie et ete s te e e e e e te et te e be et e steete e beeteeneenreenns 49
20. ENFORCEMENT. ..ottt ettt ettt e e s e se et et et e s teebeste e eneenesbenneneens 49
20.1  Severability; Substitution of Valid ProvisSions...........c.cccccciieiieniviieie e 49
20.2  WAIVELS. 1ottt sttt ettt ettt et et e s be s be et e et e s beebeese et e beer e et e nteereereeneenrens 49
20.3  Limitation of Liability........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiei e 49
20.4  APProval and CONSENLS .......ccueiiiiiiriiieieise sttt 49
21. DISPUTES SUBJECT TO MEDIATION / ARBITRATION.....ccooiiieieiiteerieeee e 50
21.1  Agreement to Mediate
21.2  AQreement t0 ArDITIAIE .......ccooiiiiiiiiici e 50
21.3  NOLICE OF DISPULE ...ttt 50
21.4  Demand for ArDItratioN....... ..o oo 50
215 Venue and JUFISAICTION. ........cciiieiiiesi ettt sttt st st reeneenee e 50
21.6  POWEIS OF AIDITIAIOrS....co.eiiiiiiee et enes 50
21.7  Disputes Not Subject to ArDItration..........cccceiieiieiiiiic e 51
21.8  No Collateral Estoppel or Class ACLIONS .........ccccveveiiiieeicieie e 51
B I O0 0| 10 (=T 0 (-1 ) Y AR 51
21.10 Federal ArDItration ACE.........ccoiiiieiiieiiiieee ettt 51
21.11  Waiver Of PUNITIVE DAMAGES .......oiviiiiiiieiisiisie ettt 51
21.12  Limitations OF ClAIMS .......coiiiiiieieie e 52
i T €101V g T o T I 1SS 52
220 N U 4 o T [ o PSSRSO 52
21.15  WaVEr Of JUNY THal......ocecee et sre s 52
21.16  CUMUIALIVE REMEAIES ....cveeveiiieieieicee sttt ettt 53
21.17  CoOStS and ALtOINEYS’ FEES. ....iiuiiiiitiieieiiite ettt et 53
21.18  BiINGING EFFECT.....c.eiiiiiiiice et 53
2119  ENTIrE AQIEEMENT .....oiviitiieiieiieti sttt bbbttt bbbttt 53
21.20 No Liability to Others; No Other Beneficiaries..........cccvoveviiiiiii i 53
0 A R 0 43 1 (U [od o o PSSRSO 53
21.22  Certain DefiNItiONS. ......cvcveiiiiie et nrenre s 53
21.23  TIMING iS OF the ESSEINCE ......cueiviiiieiiitiiteieiee sttt 54
21.24 Exercise of our BUSINESS JUAGMENT ........cviiiiiiiieieieereeie e 54
21.25 EIECtrONIC Mail........ooiiiieiee et et nae 54
22. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS ..ottt ettt snesneeenas 54
23. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. ...ttt 55
23. 1 ACKNOWIEAGMENTS.....c.viiiiieiie et e e e s e s s re e sneesneesreenneas 55
23.2  REPIESENTATIONS. ....evieieeieieet ettt bbbttt 56
23.3  NO WAITANTIES .eveeviesie ettt sttt et et e te e e aesteete e bebeste e e e nbesteeneeneenneanen 56
234 BUSINESS OrgaNIZAtION ......c.eiiiiiieiiierie ettt st seesee e e seeseesreeneeneenneas 56
EXHIBITS:

A Site, Designated Area, Franchise Fee and System Fund Fee
B. Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition Agreement
C. SBA Addendum to Franchise Agreement



30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of
20 (the “Agreement Date”). The parties to this Agreement are 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC, an
Florida limited liability company, with its principal business address at 2221 North East 164™ Street, North
Miami Beach, Florida 33160 (referred to in this Agreement as “we,” “us” or “our”), and
,  whose principal business address is

(referred to in this Agreement as “you,” “your” or

“Franchisee”).

1. INTRODUCTION.

11 The 30 MINUTE HIT® System.

We and our predecessors and affiliates have expended considerable time and effort developing
businesses which use our System, Copyrights and Marks in the operation of businesses (“30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym(s)”) which offer the high intensity circuit training program known as the “30 Minute Hit” program,
which includes high intensity circuit training workouts comprised of boxing, kickboxing, and core
strengthening exercises, as well as other products and services we designate or approve, which we may
change and designate from time to time (“Approved Products and Services”).

Each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operates from a location (its “Site™), is granted limited territorial
protections in a defined area (the “Designated Area”) and is allowed to provide only those Approved
Products and Services we designate or approve, in the manner we designate or approve from the Site, or as
we may approve, within the Designated Area.

We grant to persons who meet our qualifications, and who are willing to undertake the investment
and effort, the right to operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Unit Franchise Program”). We offer
franchises under the Unit Franchise Program for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms only under the terms of our
Agreement. The 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym you will operate under this Agreement may be referred to in this
Agreement as the, or your, “Gym” or its or your “30 MINUTE HIT® Gym.”

We use, promote and license in the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms certain trademarks, service
marks and other commercial symbols, including the trade and service marks “30-Minute Hit®” and other
assorted associated logos, designs, URLSs (like www.30minutehit.com), slogans, trademarks, service marks
and trade dress which have gained and continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and may create,
use and license additional trademarks, service marks, e-names and commercial symbols in conjunction with
the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms (collectively, the “Marks”).

We also use, promote and license in the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms certain information
capable of being rendered into tangible form that we claim as our Copyrights, including our advertising,
websites, training programs, spreadsheets, pro forma documents, forms, pricing lists, vendor lists,
modifications to software, and any other written materials, marketing materials, advertisements, television
advertisements, radio commercials, songs, jingles, slogans or performance (including the look, compilation,
feel and content of them) (collectively, the “Copyrights”).

We may also grant Area Representative Rights, as may be described in a separate Franchise
Disclosure Document to Area Representatives. Those rights are granted under a separate form of Area
Representative Agreement and under a separate Franchise Disclosure Document. At our option, we may
delegate any of our obligations in whole or in part to Area Representatives. Under this Agreement, you have
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applied to be a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisee. This Agreement in itself does not grant you Area
Representative Rights.

30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms offer and sell Approved Products and Services in a distinctive and
innovative environment. 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms operate using the Marks and Copyrights and according
to our distinctive workout and fitness programs, business formats, uniforms, color schemes, entertainment
methods, hiring practices, operational methods, Business Management System, procedures, designs, layouts,
signs, equipment, training and workout techniques, trade dress, appearance standards, System Standards,
uniforms and other standards and specifications, all of which we may change from time to time (the
“System”).

2. GRANT AND TERM.

2.1 Site/Designated Area. You have applied for a franchise to own and operate a 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym only at a location we have approved (the “Site”), which must be located in the area designated
by us in Exhibit “A” as the “Site Selection Area.” We will also designate another geographic area called
the “Designated Area” in Exhibit “A” in which we will provide limited territorial protections as described
in this Agreement. If the Site Selection Area and Designated Area have been approved at the time you sign
this Agreement, each will be listed on Exhibit “A.” If any are to be approved at a later date, it will be added
to Exhibit “A” at that time. If your Site has not been approved as of the Agreement Date, it must be located
within the Site Selection Area designed in Exhibit “A.” We have no obligation to agree to a Designated
Area that differs from our standard 2 mile radius surrounding the Site.

2.2 Grant. Subject to the terms of, and upon the conditions contained in this Agreement, we
grant you a franchise (the “Franchise”) to: (a) operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym at the Site, and at no other
location (temporary or permanent), under our System Standards; (b) use the Marks, Copyrights and System
solely in connection with operating the Gym; and (c) offer only the Products and Services we approve at the
Gym. During the term of this Agreement, provided you remain in compliance with this Agreement, with the
exception of Non-Public Access Venues, we will not ourselves operate or grant another to operate a 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym having its Site in your Designated Area. You acknowledge, however, that we may
grant a franchise to anyone to operate another 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in any geographic area within your
Designated Area upon your failure to comply with all aspects of this Agreement. We may also, if you fail
to comply with all aspects of this Agreement, reconfigure or eliminate your limited exclusive rights in and
to the Designated Area, or terminate this Agreement.

2.3 Term. The Term of the Franchise and this Agreement begins on the Agreement Date and
expires ten (10) years from such date (the “Term”). This Agreement may be terminated before it expires
in accordance with Section 16.

24 Performance.

(@  You agree that you will at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform your obligations,
continuously exert your best efforts to promote and enhance the Gym, and not engage in any other business or
activity that conflicts with your obligations to operate the Gym in compliance with this Agreement. You may not
operate the Gym from any location other than the Site without our prior written consent.

2.5 Other Services. We may allow you to operate or offer and sell off-Site services we
designate or approve from time to time from your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or at locations other than your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym (in home personal training, or fitness demonstrations or services at alternative locations
such as businesses, community centers or the like) (“Other Services”). If we designate Other Services,
they will be governed by your Franchise Agreement with us, and you must comply with our System
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Standards for them. If you fail to comply with any of your obligations in connection with providing Other
Services, then, in addition to any other rights or any remedies that we may have (including the right to
terminate this Agreement), we may temporarily suspend or permanently terminate your rights to provide
any particular or all Other Services or restrict the geographic area in which you may provide any or all Other
Services.

2.6 Rights We Reserve. We do not grant you any exclusive rights whatsoever to the portion
of the Designated Area that is not also comprised of the Designated Area. There are no restrictions on our
right to engage in any activities outside of your Designated Area. We (and our affiliates) retain the right in
our sole discretion to:

@ establish, and grant to other franchisees the right to establish, 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gyms anywhere outside the Designated Area, on such terms and conditions as we deem appropriate
(even immediately outside the border of the Designated Area);

(b) operate, and grant franchises to others to operate businesses, whether inside or
outside the Designated Area, specializing in the sale of products or provision of services, other than
a Competitive Business or a fitness facility, gym or martial arts facility, using certain of the Marks
or Copyrights and pursuant to such terms and conditions as we deem appropriate;

(c) operate, and grant franchises to others to operate businesses, or a fitness facility,
gym or martial arts facility, or other services, whether inside or outside the Designated Area that do
not use the of Marks or Copyrights;

(d) market and sell, inside and outside of the Designated Area through Alternative
Channels of Distribution other than or a fitness facility, gym or martial arts facility, goods and
services competitive with goods and services offered by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, under the Marks
or Copyrights or under trade names, service marks, or trademarks other than Marks, without any
compensation to you and in such amounts in such manner as we determine in our sole discretion;
and

(e) engage in any other acts and exercise any rights not expressly and exclusively
granted to you under this Agreement.

2.7 Non-Public Access Venues. We also have the right to develop, open and operate, and to
license others the right to develop, open and operate, Gyms located in Non-Public Access Venues, including
within the Designated Area. For purposes of this Agreement, the term Non-Public Access Venues shall mean
private businesses, military bases, government institutions, private clubs, and other Gyms that are not
accessible to the general public.

3. SUCCESSOR TERMS.

3.1 Your Right to Acquire a Successor Franchise. Upon the expiration of this Agreement,

if you (and each of your owners) have substantially complied with this Agreement during its Term, and
provided that (a) you maintain possession of and agree to remodel and/or expand the Gym, add or replace
improvements, equipment and signs and otherwise modify the Gym as we require to bring it into compliance
with specifications and standards then applicable for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, or (b) if you are unable to
maintain possession of the Site, or if in our judgment the Gym should be relocated, you secure substitute
premises we approve, develop such premises in compliance with specifications and standards then
applicable for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and continue to operate the Gym at the Site until operations are
transferred to the substitute premises, then, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 3,
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you will have the right to acquire four (4) successor Franchises to operate the Gym as a 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym, for additional five (5) year periods on the terms and conditions of the franchise agreement we are then
using in granting successor Franchises for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms.

3.2 Grant of a Successor Franchise. You agree to give us written notice of your election to
acquire a successor Franchise during the first ninety (90) days of: (i) the ninth (9") year of the term of this

Agreement, or (i) the fourth (4™) year of the term of any successor Franchise. We agree to give you written
notice (“Response Notice™), not more than ninety (90) days after we receive your notice, of our decision:

@ to grant you a successor Franchise;

(b) to grant you a successor Franchise on the condition that deficiencies of the Gym,
or in your operation of the Gym, are corrected; or

(© not to grant you a successor Franchise based on our determination that you and
your owners have not substantially complied with this Agreement during its term.

If applicable, our Response Notice will:

(1) describe the remodeling and/or expansion of the Gym and other
improvements or modifications required to bring the Gym into compliance with then
applicable specifications and standards for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms; and

(i) state the actions you have to take to correct operating deficiencies and the
time period in which such deficiencies must be corrected.

If we elect not to grant a successor Franchise, the Response Notice will describe the reasons for our decision.
Your right to acquire a successor Franchise is subject to your continued compliance with all of the terms
and conditions of this Agreement through the date of its expiration, in addition to your compliance with the
obligations described in the Response Notice.

If our Response Notice states that you must cure certain deficiencies of the Gym or its operation as
a condition to the grant of a successor Franchise, we will give you written notice of a decision not to grant
a successor Franchise unless you cure such deficiencies, not less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration
of this Agreement. However, we will not be required to give you such notice if we decide not to grant you
a successor Franchise due to your breach of this Agreement during the ninety (90) day period prior to its
expiration. If we fail to give you:

Q) notice of deficiencies in the Gym, or in your operation of the Gym, within
ninety (90) days after we receive your timely election to acquire a successor Franchise; or

(i) notice of our decision not to grant a successor Franchise at least ninety
(90) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement, if such notice is required;

we may extend the term of this Agreement for such period of time as is necessary in order to provide you
with either reasonable time to correct deficiencies or ninety (90) days notice of our refusal to grant a
successor Franchise.

3.3 Aareements/Releases. If you satisfy all of the other conditions to the grant of a successor
Franchise, you and your owners agree to execute the form of franchise agreement and any ancillary
agreements we are then customarily using in connection with the grant of successor Franchises for 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You and your owners further agree to execute general releases, in form satisfactory
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to us, of any and all claims against us and our shareholders, officers, directors, employees, agents,
successors and assigns. Failure by you or your owners to sign such agreements and releases and deliver
them to us for acceptance and execution within sixty (60) days after their delivery to you will be deemed an
election not to acquire a successor franchise.

3.4 Training and Refresher Programs. Our grant of a successor Franchise is
also conditioned on the satisfactory completion by you (or a Manager (defined in Section 7.1) of yours
approved by us) of any new training and refresher programs as we may require. You are responsible for
travel, living and compensation costs of attendees.

3.5 Successor Franchise Fees and Expenses. At the time you sign the Successor Franchise
Agreement, you must pay to us a Successor Franchise Fee in the amount of 25% of our then current
Franchise Fee. As a condition of our granting the Successor Franchise, you must pay to bring your Gym
into compliance with our System Standards and doing so may require you to incur Additional Training Fees
and to make purchases from us or our affiliates.

3.6 Subsequent Successor Franchises. If you are granted a successor Franchise, the

procedure, fees and conditions for acquiring any subsequent successor Franchise are the same as described
in Sections 3.1 through 3.5 above.

4, SITE SELECTION AND DEVEL OPMENT.

4.1 Site Selection. We recommend that you retain (a) an experienced commercial real estate
broker or salesperson who has at least seven years experience in locating business sites to advise and counsel
you with regard to the price, economics, viability, location, and acquisition or lease of the site for the 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym and (b) an experienced attorney to provide advice and counsel on the you business
and the terms, conditions and economics of the legal and other documents required to lease or purchase the
site. If you have not done so prior to signing this Agreement, you (with or without our assistance) must,
within twelve (12) months of signing this Agreement, locate a Site for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym that
we have approved and open it according to our System Standards. You must open and begin operations
of the Gym within nine (9) months of the Site Selection Date. The Site must meet our criteria for
demographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, character of neighborhood, competition from and
proximity to other stores and other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, the nature of other stores in proximity to the site
and the size, appearance and other physical and commercial characteristics of the proposed site. You must
use the Site solely for the operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and must not directly or indirectly operate or
engage in any other business or activity from the Site. You must not participate in any dual branding
program, or in any other program, promotion or business pursuant to which another trademark, service mark,
trade name, or commercial symbol is used in connection with the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. We will approve
or disapprove a Site you propose for a Gym within thirty (30) days after we receive from you all of the
materials we request concerning the proposed site. You acknowledge and agree that:

@ our recommendation or approval of the Site, does not imply, guaranty, assure,
warrant or predict profitability or success, express or implied;

(b) our recommendation or approval of the Site indicates only that we believe that the
Site falls within the acceptable demographic and other criteria for Sites and premises that we have
established as of the time of our recommendation or approval of the Site;

(c) application of criteria that have appeared effective with respect to other Sites and
premises may not accurately reflect the potential for all sites and premises, and, after our approval
of a Site, demographic and/or other factors included in or excluded from our criteria could change
to alter the potential of a Site and premises; and
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(d) the uncertainty and instability of such criteria are beyond our control, and we will
not be responsible for the failure of a site and premises we have recommended or approved to meet
expectations as to potential revenue or operational criteria.

4.2 Relocation of the Site. You may not operate the Gym from any location other than the
Site without our prior written consent. If the lease expires or terminates without expiration or termination
being your fault, if the Site is destroyed, condemned or otherwise rendered unusable as an 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym in accordance with this Agreement, or if, in our sole judgment, there is a change in character of the
location of the Site sufficiently detrimental to its business potential to warrant your Gym’s relocation, we
will permit you to relocate the Gym to another location within the Designated Area provided that you comply
with all of our System Standards for a Site relocation and such relocation Site meets our then current Site
criteria for relocation Sites. Any relocation of the Site will be at your sole expense. Further, if we
consent to the Gym’s relocation, you must pay us a fee in the amount of $1,000 at the time of the relocation,
which is to cover, among other things, our analysis of the proposed replacement site and other expenses we
may incur in connection with the replacement site approval process and relocation. If you seek to obtain
our approval of the replacement site and lease in accordance with our then current site approval process,
you must reopen the Gym at the replacement site as soon as practicable, but in no event more than ninety
(90) days after the closing of the original Site.

4.3 LOI and Lease Approval. You must present to us for our review and approval, each
Letter of Intent (“LOI”), lease, sublease, or purchase agreement (and any renewals and amendments thereof)
that will govern your acquisition, occupancy and/or lawful possession of the Site at least 30 days before you
intend to sign it. The LOI, lease or sublease must include the approval by the landlord for you to have a
kiosk or table placed outside the Gym for a period of 15 weeks prior to opening (or other period as may be
prescribed by us in the Manuals) for pre-sales activities, including gift card sales, or, in the alternative, the
ability to rent space adjacent to the Site for the purpose of conducting such activities during the 15-week
period prior to opening the Gym. If the landlord does not agree to these terms, we may reject the proposed
Site or allow you to submit to us for review and approval a pre-sales marketing plan which outlines in detail
the process you will follow for pre-sales of memberships and sales of gift cards during such 15-week period.
In addition, the lease or sublease must either (i) include the lease addendum in a form acceptable to us and
made part of this Agreement, or (ii) provide in the body of the lease or sublease, as applicable, the terms and
conditions found in the lease addendum. If you will purchase and own the premises for your Gym, you
agree to sign an Agreement to Lease, in form acceptable to us, which requires you, at our option, to lease
the Site to us upon any expiration, termination or transfer of this Agreement. You may not sign any LOI,
lease, sublease or purchase agreement (or any renewal or amendment thereof) unless it contains the terms
that we require in accordance with this Section and we have approved it in writing. We may (but have no
obligation to) provide you guidance or assistance relating to the LOI, lease, sublease or purchase agreement,
as applicable, and its negotiation. If we have not approved the LOI, lease, sublease or purchase agreement
in writing within 10 business days after we receive a complete copy of the LOI, lease, sublease or purchase
agreement, then it will be deemed disapproved. You agree to obtain our approval of the lease of the Site
before you sign it, or any renewal of it. You agree to deliver a copy of the signed lease to us within fifteen
(15) days after its execution along with the Lease Assignment. You agree not to sign any lease or renewal
of a lease unless you have also obtained the Lease Assignment signed by the lessor.

€)] Sublease From Us: We may, but are not obligated to, lease or sublease the Site
to you. If we do so, you agree to sign our then-current form of lease or sublease. If we sublease
the Site to you, we may charge a rent that exceeds the cost of rent we pay under our master lease
agreement for the Site.

(b) Other Lease of Site: If you want to lease the Site from someone other than us, you
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agree to deliver copies of the proposed lease agreement and related documents to us prior to signing
them. You agree not to sign any lease agreement or related documents unless we have previously
approved them.

(c) Mandatory Lease Terms: We may require that the lease or any renewal contain
certain provisions, including the following:

(i) a provision which expressly permits the lessor of the Site to provide us
with all revenue and other information it may have related to the operation of your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym as we may request;

(i) a provision which requires the lessor to contemporaneously provide us
with copies of any written notice of default under the lease sent to you and which grants to
us, at our option, the right (but not the obligation) to cure any default under the lease (should
you fail to do so) within fifteen (15) days after the expiration of the period in which you may
cure the default;

(iii) aprovision which evidences your right to display the Marks
and Copyrights in accordance with the specifications required by the Manuals, subject only
to the provisions of applicable law;

(iv) a provision which prohibits any lender or other person from disturbing
your possession of the Site so long as the lease term continues and you are not in default
(along with such documents as are necessary to ensure that such lenders and other persons
are bound);

(v) a provision which expressly states that any default under the lease which
is not cured within any applicable cure period also constitutes grounds for termination of
this Agreement;

(vi) a lease term which is at least equal to the initial term of this Agreement,
either through an initial term of that length or rights, at your option, to renew the lease for
the full Term of this Agreement; and

(vii)  the premises must be operated as a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym;
(viii) the lease cannot be modified or cancelled without our prior written approval;
(ix) the lease must contain the approved use clause we provide; and

) the lease cannot contain any language (e.g., a radius restriction) that would
potentially restrict the location of other franchised or corporate 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms.

(d) No Warranty: You acknowledge that our approval of the lease for the Site does
not constitute a guarantee or warranty, express or implied, of the successful operation or profitability
of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operated at the Site. Such approval indicates only that we believe that
the Site and the terms of the lease fall within the acceptable criteria we have established as of the time
of our approval. YOU FURTHER ACKNOWL EDGE THAT WE HAVE ADVISED YOU TO

HAVE AN ATTORNEY REVIEW AND EVALUATE THE LEASE,

4.4 Ownership and Financing. Instead of leasing a Site, you may propose to purchase,
construct, own and operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym on real property to be owned or which is already owned

by you or through affiliates. We refer to the date you sign your lease or purchase the Site as the “Site
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Selection Date.” You will meet certain conditions if you or your affiliates own a Site or at any time prior
to acquisition, or subsequently, you or your affiliates propose to obtain any financing with respect to the
Site or for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or for any Operating Assets (defined in Section 5.3) in which any
of such items are pledged as collateral securing your performance. The form of any purchase contract with
the seller of a Site and any related documents, and the form of any loan agreement with or mortgage in favor
of any lender and any related documents, must be approved by us before you sign them. Our consent to them
may be conditioned upon the inclusion of various terms and conditions, including the some or all of the
following:

@ a provision which requires any lender or mortgagee concurrently to provide us with
a copy of any written notice of deficiency or default under the terms of the loan or mortgage sent to
you or your affiliates or the purchaser;

(b) a provision granting us, at our option, the right (but not the obligation) to cure any
deficiency or default under the loan or mortgage (should you fail to do so) within fifteen (15) days
after the expiration of a period in which you may cure such default or deficiency;

(© a provision which expressly states that any default under the loan or mortgage, if
not cured within the applicable time period, constitutes grounds for termination of this Agreement
and any default under this Agreement, if not cured within the applicable time period, also constitutes
a default under the loan or mortgage; and

() your delivery to us of our standard form of “Agreement to Lease” which requires
you, at our option, to lease the Site to us if the Franchise Agreement is terminated, assigned, or
transferred pursuant to our standard form of Lease Agreement, a form of which is attached to the
Franchise Disclosure Document.

5. GYM DEVELOPMENT, DECOR AND OPERATING ASSETS.

5.1 Gym Development. You are responsible for developing the Gym. You will complete the
construction/remodeling of the Gym in accordance with our System Standards. You must obtain our
approval for, develop, complete construction and open the Gym for business upon the earlier of nine (9)
months of our approval of the Site or within twelve (12) months of the Agreement Date (the “Opening
Date”). In our sole discretion, if you have made full and complete applications for all building permits, and
licenses, and all other permits required to open a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, within thirty (30) days of the date
we approve the Site and your lease for it, if any, we may grant to you up to three (3) thirty (30) day extensions
to obtain all necessary permits, provided that the delay was due to causes beyond your reasonable control. You
must submit documentation of the status of all applications necessary to operate the Gym at least ten (10)
days prior to the date of each thirty (30) day extension you request. We will furnish you with prototype
design plans, specifications, decor and/or layout for a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, including requirements for
design, color scheme, image, interior layout, and Operating Assets which include fixtures, equipment, signs,
and furnishings (“Designs™). At our option, the Designs may not include architectural plans. These sample
designs are merely to provide guidance on the design and layout of other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. We make
no representation or warranty concerning the suitability of the sample Designs for your Site. Unless your
30 MINUTE HIT® Gym is operating a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym at the Site being purchased by you from
another franchise owner, we will also furnish to you our System Standards with respect to trade dress and other
matters of development of the Site which, you agree are an integral part of the System and you agree that you
will design and construct the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in accordance with them. If required by applicable
law, you are obligated, at your own expense, to have an architect prepare preliminary layout for the 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym and all required construction plans, space plans, and specifications to suit the shape and
dimensions of the Site (“Construction Plans”) and to ensure that such Construction Plans and specifications
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comply with applicable ordinances, building codes and permit requirements and with lease requirements and
restrictions, and the mandatory specifications and layout provided by us. You must make changes to the
Construction Plans that we specify from time to time during the development of the Gym and must not begin
construction, remodeling or other development of the Gym until we have approved the Construction Plans.
You must make no changes to the approved Construction Plans unless such changes are presented to and
approved by us in writing. Despite our providing the sample Designs (and Construction Plans, if any), any
changes and approvals that we might provide for them, and your purchase of the Gym and its assets from an
affiliate of ours or our franchise owner, where we have approved such transfer (if applicable), as between you
and us, and our affiliates or other franchise owners, you are solely responsible for complying with all laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations relating directly or indirectly to the construction and development of the 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym, including the Americans With Disabilities Act and any other laws, rules or regulations
regarding public accommodations for persons with disabilities. You are solely responsible, as between us
(and our affiliates or other franchise owners) and you, for any and all claims, liabilities, costs and images
relating to non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any such laws, rules, ordinances or regulations,
and you must remedy, at your expense, any such non-compliance or alleged non- compliance. You agree to,
at our option, assign to us, or require your architect to assign to us, the plans, drawings or Designs, used by
you in connection with the Gym, or at our option, obtain the architect’s agreement to license to us such plans,
drawings or Designs for use in connection with the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You are not permitted to hire,
engage or use any construction firm, contractor or architect that we disapprove.

Without limiting your foregoing obligations, you agree, at your own expense, to do the following with respect
to developing the Gym at the Site:

€)) sign a lease or otherwise obtain the right to occupy the Site;

(b) secure and provide us proof of your securing all financing, if any, required to
develop and operate the Gym;

©) obtain all building, utility, sign, health, sanitation, business and other permits and
licenses required to construct and operate the Gym;

(d)  constructall required improvements to the Site and decorate the Gym in compliance
with Construction Plans and specifications we have approved (the “Construction”);

(e give us notice of commencement of the Construction within ten (10) days of the
date it began, with progress reports including digital photographs of the construction supporting the
findings at least every two (2) weeks thereafter. We will, at your expense, require that additional
digital photographs be provided to us;

0] purchase or lease and install all Operating Assets and Gym Materials required for
the Gym;
(9) purchase an opening inventory of authorized and Approved Products and Services,

materials and supplies;

(h) complete the foregoing steps so that the Gym is opened for business upon the
earlier of twelve (12) months of the date of execution of this Agreement or nine (9) months from
the date we approved the Site (or prior to the end of an extension in Section 5.1, if granted); and

Q) you agree that all décor of your Gym must be previously approved by us and must
comply with our standards as described in the Manuals or other communications, which may be
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periodically revised. We own all Copyrights in and to all forms of art or other visual media
displayed in the Gym including murals, paintings, pictures, drawings, sculptures, and photographs
that we direct you to display (including any artwork commissioned for the Gym) (the “Art”), as
well as all intellectual property rights in and to the Art. You will not, without our prior written
permission, allow any of the Art to become a fixture to the Gym and you will not display or use the
Art in any Competitive Business or Gym of any kind. Your failure to maintain the Gym’s décor in
compliance with our System and the standards described in the Manuals or otherwise constitutes a
material breach of this Agreement.

5.2 Initial Equipment. You must purchase from us, our affiliates or designees, certain
products, supplies, equipment and services for use in developing and operating your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
(the “Initial Equipment”). The contents of your Initial Equipment are listed in Exhibit “A” and made a
part hereof by reference. You are responsible for third parties delivery and handling charges for delivery of
the Initial Equipment. Initial Equipment Fee does not include shipping. We do not provide any warranty or
service guaranty of the installation services we, our affiliates or designees provide. You must pay a fee for
the Initial Equipment (the “Initial Equipment Fee”) to our affiliate(s) in the amount of $15,000 within
15 days of the date you sign the lease or purchase agreement for your Site. The Initial Equipment Fee is
due and payable when you sign this Agreement and is not refundable under any circumstances.

5.3 Operating Assets and Gym Materials. We will identify the fixtures, furnishings,
equipment and services we designate or approve for use in developing and operating the Gym (including
the Information Technology System) (collectively, the “Operating Assets”), and self-defense training
equipment, pre-recorded video tapes, physical fitness instructional materials, kicking shields, hard targets,
bag gloves, training gloves, protective wear, head gear, rubber guns, rubber sticks, tactical pants, wrist
wraps, hand wraps, pre-recorded CDs, DVDs and the like, video games, books, clothing, casual wear, hats,
t-shirts, health and nutritional supplies and the like, as well as any other products, materials, supplies which
bear the Marks (or our Copyrights), or other items, materials, services or supplies we choose (or designate
for our affiliates) necessary for the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to begin or sustain operations, and other
advertising, marketing and promotional, insurance, bookkeeping, billing products or services we designate
or approve (collectively, the “Gym Materials”), the minimum standards and specifications that must be
satisfied and the suppliers from whom these items may be purchased or leased (including us and/or our
affiliates). You agree to acquire all Gym Materials and Operating Assets from us or suppliers we have
previously approved, which may include us or our affiliates. If we choose not to designate or approve a
supplier of Gym Materials or Operating Assets, you must purchase them in accordance with any
specifications and standards we designate. We may designate quantities, models, brands and inventory
levels of Operating Assets and Gym Materials. We may require you to purchase only from us or designated
affiliated suppliers Operating Assets or Gym Materials which bear our Marks or Copyrights. You agree to
only place or display at the Site (interior and exterior) such signs, emblems, lettering, logos and display
materials that we periodically approve.

5.4 Changes to Approved Suppliers. You must comply with all of our System Standards for
approval and use of, or contracting with third parties and suppliers:

@) Designation and Approval of Suppliers: The reputation and goodwill of 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms are based upon, and can be maintained and enhanced only by the use of high
quality suppliers of services, material and equipment. We will provide you with a list, that we may
modify from time to time, of approved: manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors of Operating Assets
and Gym Materials. We may designate approved or designated suppliers, providers, distributors, or
manufacturers for any types, models or brands of business materials, Operating Assets, and other
equipment and business services that we approve for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms or which we designate
in the Manuals as relating to the establishment or operation of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, which
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may include us or our affiliates as one of, or the only approved or designated supplier for certain
Gym Materials or Operating Assets (the “Approved Suppliers”). You agree that you will not,
without our written approval, use or authorize any of your personnel or other employees to use any
services, materials, supplies or equipment and/or suppliers, distributors, manufacturers or service
providers not authorized by us for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. We may require that you and your
suppliers, manufacturers, distributors or service providers utilize an ordering system we designate
in the manner we designate. From time to time we may change or designate new quality standards
for Gym Materials and Operating Assets, and Approved Suppliers of them. We may be the only
Approved Supplier of retail items you sell via your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and may earn mark ups
on the sale of them to you.

(b) Review Procedures: Our approval of Operating Assets, Gym Materials, and
Approved Suppliers will be given in the form of specifications and standards designated in our
Manuals. In approving types, models, brands and suppliers, manufacturers, distributors or service
providers, we may take into consideration such factors as quality, warranty and prices. We may
approve one or a limited number of suppliers, manufacturers, distributors or service providers in
order to obtain lower prices or materials of a more uniform and/or higher quality. If you wish to
use any type, model, manufacturer or brand of materials, supplies or equipment, supplier,
manufacturer or distributor of equipment, supplies or material, any service provider or any other
brand, manufacturer, distributor or supplier of materials, supplies, services or equipment, which is
not currently approved by us, you must: (i) notify us in writing; (ii) submit to us sufficient
specifications, photographs, samples and/or other information requested by us concerning such type,
model, brand, service, service provider and/or supplier, manufacturer or distributor. We may charge
you our current fee of $500 per day of testing plus travel expenses (due within 15 days of billing),
to cover the costs incurred in making this determination and will, within 30 days of your request,
notify you whether such type, model or brand, supplier, distributor, service provider or manufacturer
complies with our specifications, and/or whether such supplier, manufacturer, distributor or service
provider meets our criteria for approval. We may from time to time prescribe procedures for the
submission of requests for approval of types, models, brands, manufacturers, distributors, service
providers or suppliers and obligations which approved manufacturers, distributors, service providers
or suppliers must assume. Approval of a supplier may be conditioned on requirements relating to
product quality, frequency of delivery, standards of service and concentration of purchases with one
or more suppliers in order to obtain better prices and services and may be temporary, pending our
further evaluation of the supplier.

(c) Preferred Vendor Programs: We may develop certain programs and terms under
which we, our affiliates or 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms receive certain negotiated benefits or terms
from Approved Suppliers (“Preferred Vendor Programs™). You must follow all of our policies
and procedures which we designate from time to time for participation in or termination of Preferred
Vendor Programs (“Program Rules”). We can refuse or terminate your participation in Preferred
Vendor Programs without terminating this Agreement. Our Program Rules may require that you
only place or display at the Site (interior and exterior) such signs, emblems, lettering, logos and
display materials that we periodically approve. We may designate one or more Approved
Suppliers (“Preferred Vendors”) as exclusive suppliers of types, models or brands of business
materials, supplies, Operating Assets, consumer goods, fixtures or materials and business services
that we approve for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. We may receive compensation from Approved
Suppliers, fees, rebates or other consideration for such purchases. Certain Preferred Vendors may
require that you enter into agreements with them (subject to our approval) in connection with our
designation or your use of them as Preferred Vendors or participation in their Preferred Vendor
Program (“Preferred Vendor Agreements”). You agree to enter any Preferred Vendor
Agreements. We may be a party to such Preferred Vendor Agreements. We may, but are not
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obligated to, contribute any such fees or rebates received by us from such agreements to the System
Development Fund (defined in Section 12.1). However, with respect to such contributions to the
System Development Fund, if any, we will not be obligated to offset or reduce your obligation to
pay to us System Fund Fees. If we permit you to receive any form of rebates, contributions or
remunerations from Preferred Vendors, we may require that you provide to us accountings of such
monies or other remuneration you receive, in the manner we designate in the Manuals. We may
charge you fees in the amount we may designate from time to time for participating in Preferred
Vendor Programs which we evaluate or for which we provide services. If we cancel your
participation in any Preferred Vendor Program, we will direct the Preferred Vendor to stop doing
business with you on the same terms as it does for other franchisees.

5.5 mpliance with L aws an Business Practices. You will secure and maintain in
force in your name all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to the operation of your 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym. You will operate your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in full compliance with all applicable laws,
ordinances and regulations, including, without limitation, all government regulations relating to
occupational hazards and health, construction warranties, worker's compensation insurance, immigration,
unemployment insurance, construction permitting, workplace safety, and withholding and payment of
federal and state income taxes, social security taxes and sales taxes. You will, in all dealings with customers,
suppliers, us and the public, adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical
conduct. You agree to refrain from any business or advertising practice which may be injurious to our
business and the goodwill associated with the 30 MINUTE HIT® System, the Marks and other 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms.

5.6 Music an her Audio and Visual Entertainment. You agree to play only the type(s)
of music and display only the types of visual entertainment, at the decibel levels and in the manners that we
may periodically prescribe or approve. You must acquire and install any audio or visual equipment that we
designate or require for use by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and you must subscribe to music and video services
as we may periodically specify, whether with an Approved Supplier or Preferred Vendor. You must, to
the extent and at the times and manners we designate, permit live performances of music and other
entertainment at your Gym and must obtain our prior written consent prior to your doing so, in accordance
with our System Standards.

5.7 Business Management System. You must use and follow all of the rules and regulations,
specifications and System Standards for and in connection with any purchase order system, scheduling, cost
control, e-commerce, record keeping, payroll, inventory control, and accounting system we designate from
time to time (collectively, the “Business Management System™). You must utilize the Information
Technology System, and adhere to any policies and procedures if any, which we may designate or approve,
in the manner we approve in your utilization of the Business Management System. You must use our
standard supplier or vendor agreements and other agreements related to the Business Management System
that we designate from time to time. The Business Management System will incorporate and consist of
such functions as we designate from time to time, which may include a mandatory purchase order system
and cash register systems and rules for participation and use of them, if any, which we may designate.
Through, and as part of, the Business Management System we may require that you establish an operating
account with a bank or other financial institution that we designate or approve (the “Operating Account”).
You must utilize the Operating Account in accordance with the System Standards as we designate (e.g.
Business Management System rules and electronic funds transfers). We may change, alter or amend the
functions, components, System Standards, Information Technology System and any other aspect of the
Business Management System from time to time.

5.8 Gym Opening. You agree not to open the Gym for business until:
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@) we approve the Gym as developed in accordance with our specifications and
standards;

(b) pre-opening training of you and your personnel has been completed to our
satisfaction;

(©) the Franchise Fee and all other amounts then due to us have been paid;

(d) we have been furnished with copies of all insurance policies required by this
Agreement, or such other evidence of insurance coverage and payment of premiums as we request
or accept; and

(e) we have received signed counterparts of all required documents pertaining to your
acquisition of the Site.

5.9 Pre-Sale/Grand Opening Program. You agree to conduct a pre-sale/grand opening

advertising and promotional program for the Gym and to spend a minimum of $6,000 for such purpose. The
pre-sale/grand opening program must be conducted during the period that is 60 days before the opening of
your Gym to the public and the 30 days following the opening of your Gym to the public (or such other
period as may be prescribed by us in the Manuals). Such advertising and promotion will utilize the
marketing and public relations programs and media and advertising materials we have developed or
approved, including, without limitation, a variety of meetings with potential members and participation in
local events to promote your Gym. Amounts that you spend for participating in the pre-sales coordinator
program are in addition to, and do not count toward, the amount that you must spend for the pre-sale/grand
opening program for your Gym.

6. EEES.

6.1 Franchise Fee and Training Fee. You agree to pay us a non-recurring and non-refundable
initial franchise fee in the amount of $45,000 (the “Franchise Fee”) and a training fee in the amount of
$10,000 (the “Training Fee”). The Franchise Fee and Training Fee are fully earned when paid. The
Franchise Fee and Training Fee are due in a lump sum payment on the Agreement Date.

6.2 Rovalty. You agree to pay us a royalty fee (“Royalty(ies)” or “Royalty Fee”) in the
amount designated in Exhibit “A”. The Royalty is the greater of (a) the monthly fee per Tier based on your
annual Gross Sales; or (b) 4% of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym’s monthly Gross Sales. The monthly Royalty
Fee per Tier is: Tier 1: under $100,000 = $500/month; Tier 2: $100,001 to $200,000 = $600/month; Tier
3:$200,001 to $300,000 = $700/month; Tier 4: $300,001 to $400,000 = $800/month; and Tier 5: $400,001+
= $900/month. Annual Gross Sales are based on a calendar year. As of the Agreement Date, at our sole
option, we are charging the Royalty rate as set forth in (a) above. We may, in our sole discretion, initiate
and charge the Royalty rate as indicated in (b) above at any time upon notice to you. However, if you
purchase unapproved products or services, the Royalty doubles (2x) for each month you are in breach. We
must receive the Royalties on the first Wednesday of each month for the immediately preceding month (the
“Payment Day”). However, we can alter or change the Payment Day upon written notice to you. If the
Payment Day of any week falls on a weekend or a national holiday, the payment is due on the first weekday
following the Payment Day. The first Royalty payment is not due until the Payment Day of the week
following the week you open the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. The Royalties are non-refundable and fully
earned when paid. At our option, we may collect Royalties daily. The Royalty Fee is due during the entire
term of this Agreement.

13



6.3 Operating Assistance Fee. We do not provide you any free days of operating assistance
per year. But, at our option, days of operating assistance may be provided if you pay to us a fee of up to
$1,000 per day, plus all travel, food, living, lodging and other expenses incurred by us in providing the
operating assistance to you. For example, this fee applies if you request and we provide operating assistance
at your Gym around the time of your opening or afterwards.

6.4 Software/Computer, Website Marketing Fee and Power Leads Fees.

@ Software and Setup Fees: We require you to pay to us or our designees our then
current software licensing, support and maintenance fees. Currently, these fees are $375 for the
POS Set up and $65 per month until year 4, after which it drops to $25 per month. These fees may
change upon notice to you due to 3" party supplier fees. We also require you to purchase/license
Quickbooks® ($400) from us or our designee. If you ask for copies of on-line contracts, we can
charge you a fee of $15 per printed copy.

(b) Website Marketing Fees: We require you to pay to us a monthly Website
Marketing Fee for the website marketing program (the “WMF”) in the amount we designate. As of
the Effective Date, the monthly WMF is $300 per month and is subject to increase upon notice to
you.

(© E-Mail Fees: We also charge you $100 per additional e-mail website we provide
(one is included with the Franchise Fee).

(d) Power Leads Fees: You must pay us or our designee, as we designate, our then-
current fee for lead generation services (the “Power Leads Fee”). As of the Agreement Date, the
“Power Leads Fee” consists of (i) a monthly management fee equal to twenty percent (20%) of your
proposed budget for Power Leads, payable to our designated supplier; plus (ii) our then-current
designated fee per lead for each qualified lead referred to you. The Power Leads Fee varies
frequently. Unless we designate otherwise in writing, you will determine your proposed monthly
budget for the Power Leads Fee and you will pay to our designee (which may include us, our affiliate
or our designee) according to the payment schedule we or our third party designee, as applicable,
designates, with the first payment due before the Opening Date. Currently, you must expend at least
(i) $3,000 per month for the first twelve (12) months following the opening of your Franchised
Business, and (ii) $2,000 per month thereafter, in addition to the management fee, for the Power
Leads Fee. The Power Leads Fee is subject to modification, including increase or decrease, effective
on notice to you. We reserve the right to require you to pay the Power Leads Fee directly to us, our
affiliate or a different third party designee at any time, effective on notice to you. The Power Leads
Fee is due upon billing according to ours, or our designee’s billing policies and procedures which
may include billing you in advance for the upcoming month, or which may establish other timing
and processes for billing the Power Leads Fee.

(e) SMS System Fee. You must pay to us, or if we designate otherwise, to our
designated supplier (which may include our affiliate), our then-current, continuing SMS System Fee. As of
the Agreement Date, the SMS System Fee is $75 and is subject to increase or decrease effective on notice to
you. You must comply with all such modifications.

6.5 Additional Training Fees. We require you to pay to us our then-current ongoing training
development fee (the “Ongoing Training Development Fee” or “OTF”) which compensates us for ongoing
training development efforts. As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the OTF is $100 per month and is
subject to increase, as we designate, effective on notice to you. The OTF also includes our bi-weekly
(approximately) maintenance training (“Hitting it Hard Training”) via Skype® or other electronic media
(we may require you to attend this Hitting it Hard Training at a location we designate). We can also require
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you to host this training at your location. If we require you, your managers, your personnel and/or any
previously trained and experienced employees to attend additional training days, undergo extended Owner
Training, Staff Training or Gym Manager Training, be re-trained, or if, at any time after the Gym opens,
you hire additional management personnel or replace one or more of your managers, if you request and we
provide additional persons or staff to conduct training, or for any other training outside of or in addition to
the Owner Training, Staff Training or Gym Manager Training) you must pay our then current "*Additional
Training Fees” which will not exceed $1,200.00 per trainer per day of training (plus all expenses incurred
by the trainer(s), you or use incurred in connection with any training or required meetings provided to you
or which you or your personnel are required to attend outside of the Owner Training, Gym Manager Training
or Staff Training). Additional Training Fees and costs are due within 5 days of our invoice to you. You must
pay to us, as reimbursement, all of the expenses we incur on your behalf if we arrange travel, living, meals
or other miscellaneous expenses for your personnel while they attend or to enable them to participate in
training as well as any costs associated with training meeting or other required meetings ("Training
Expenses”). If we incur any such Training Expenses, we will bill you for them and you are responsible for
payment to us within ten (10) days of the date of our invoice to you.

6.6 System Fund Fees. Each month, on the same day the Royalty is due, you must pay to us
a fee in the amount we designate up to 3% of the Gross Sales for the preceding month (but which is normally
$0 per month as of the Agreement date) (the "System Fund Fee") as contributions to the System
Development Fund. The System Fund Fees are fully earned and non-refundable when paid. We may
change the System Fund Fee, and you must begin paying the new System Fund Fee within 30 days of our
notice to you.

6.7 Training Non Compliance Fee. If you fail to or refuse to attend any required meetings
or training, you will pay to use a “Training Non Compliance Fee” in the amount of 2 times the cost of

such training program or meeting. If you fail to attend more than one such required meeting or required
training program (or more than 5 per calendar year of our bi-weekly Hitting it Hard Training), the “Training
Non-Compliance Fee” will double in amount each time you or your designee (subject to our approval) fail
to attend a required meeting or training meeting. Nothing in this section limits our right to terminate or
take other action against you for such breach of this Agreement.

6.8 Local Advertising Requirement Fees. You must spend on approved local advertising an
amount equal to up to 2% of your annual Gross Sales. As of the Agreement date, this requirement is currently
$300 per month. As part of this requirement, we require you to purchase from us or our designee website
marketing program services described in Section 6.4. As of the Agreement Date, the WMF for such website
marketing services is $300 per month and is paid to us by you on the 1* of the month via electronic funds
transfer or other method we designate. We have sole discretion over the type, content and quality of services
provided as part of the website marketing program.

6.9 Electronic Funds Transfer. We may require you to pay all payments of the Royalties
and other amounts due us by electronic funds transfer. If we do so, we will designate the day of the month
(the “Payment Day”) for the Royalty payment. You agree to comply with the procedures we specify in our
Manuals and perform such acts and sign and deliver such documents as may be necessary to accomplish
payment by this method. You will give us authorization, in a form that we designate or approve, to initiate
debit entries or credit correction entries to the Operating Account for payments of Royalties and other
amounts due under this Agreement, including any applicable interest charges. You will make the funds
available in the Operating Account for withdrawal by electronic transfer no later than the Payment Day. If
we determine at any time that you have underpaid Royalties or other amounts due to us, we will be authorized
to immediately initiate a transfer from the Operating Account in the appropriate amount in accordance
with the foregoing procedures, including applicable interest and late charges. Any overpayment will be
credited to the Operating Account through a credit, effective as of the first (1%) reporting date after you and
we determine that such credit is due.
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6.10 Definition of Gross Sales. As used in this Agreement, the term “Gross Sales” means all
revenue you derive from operating the Gym, including, but not limited to, all amounts you receive at or
away from the Site from any activities or services whatsoever including any that are in any way associated
with the Marks, Copyrights or System, and whether from cash, check, barter, credit or debit card or credit
transactions, including the redemption value of gift certificates redeemed by you regardless of whether such
gift certificates are issued by you or someone else; but excluding: (1) all federal, state or municipal sales,
use or service taxes collected from customers and paid to the appropriate taxing authority; and (2) customer
refunds, adjustments, credits and allowances actually made by the Gym; (3) sums collected and actually
paid by you for any sales, drink or other excise tax imposed by any duly constituted governmental authority
on sales in a state that prohibits the payment of Royalties on such sales; and (4) the bulk sale of the business
itself, if the same have been included in Gross Sales. Gross Sales also includes, for example, revenue you
receive from vending machines or other coin-operated machines or devices and revenue from delivery
service sales, retail, concessions, hotel room service, catering, special functions, etc. and sales of products

bearing or associated with the Marks. We may require that you report your Gross Sales to us on a monthly
basis in the manner that we designate, such as via electronic data, telephone or the like.

6.11 Interest on Late Payments. All amounts which you owe us will bear interest after their
due date at the annual rate of eighteen percent (18%) or the highest contract rate of interest permitted by
law, whichever is less. You acknowledge that we do not agree to accept any payments after they are due
nor commit to extend credit to, or otherwise finance your operation of, the Gym. Your failure to pay all
amounts when due constitutes grounds for termination of this Agreement, as provided in Section 15.8.

6.12 Late Payment Penalties. All Royalties, System Fund Fees, amounts due for purchases by
you from us, and any interest accrued thereon, and any other amounts which you owe us or our affiliates,
are subject to a “Late Payment Fee” of five percent (5%) of the amount due. The Late Payment Fee is due
immediately upon any delinquent payments and is in addition to any other fees due and payable to us. The
provision in this Agreement concerning Late Payment Fees does not mean that we accept or condone late
payments, nor does it indicate that we are willing to extend credit to, or otherwise finance the operation of,
your Gym.

6.13  Application of Payments. Notwithstanding any designation you might make, we have
sole discretion to apply any of your payments to any of your past due indebtedness to us.

6.14 Pavment Offsets. You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to set-off from any
amounts that we may owe you or your owners or any amount that you owe to us, or our affiliates, for any
reason whatsoever, including without limitation, Royalties, Advertising Contributions, late payment
penalties and late payment interest, amounts owed to us or our affiliates for purchases or services or for any
other reason. Thus, payments that we make to you may be reduced, in our discretion, by amounts that you
owe to us or our affiliates from time to time. In particular, we may retain (or direct to our affiliates) any
amounts that we have received for your account as a credit and payment against any amounts that you may
owe to us, or our affiliates, at any time. We will notify you monthly if we elect to do so.

6.15 Discontinuance of Service. If you do not timely pay amounts due us under this
Agreement, we may discontinue any services to you, without limiting any of our other rights in this
Agreement.

6.16 Other Fees. In addition to the fees and payments listed in this Section 6, we have listed
other fees, payments and amounts due for services and other items elsewhere within this Agreement, and
you agree to pay such fees, payments and amounts in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Sections in which they appear. Unless an earlier time is specified in this Agreement, all fees due us are due
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within fifteen (15) days of our invoice to you.

6.17 Eee Deferral. In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, the Franchisor will not require or
accept the payment of any initial franchise fees until the franchisee (a) has received all Owner Training that
it is entitled to under the franchise agreement or offering circular, and (b) is open for business.

7. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE.

7.1 Owner Training.

@ Owner Training. Before the Gym opens, we will furnish our Owner Training
program (“Owner Training”) on the operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to 2 of your owners
(or, if you are a Business Entity, up to 2 persons who must be owners of the entity). Owner Training
is included with the Franchise Fee. You and the other owner/employee must complete the Owner
Training to our satisfaction. The Owner Training currently takes up top 10 days (generally 4 to 6
hours a day) and will be furnished at our headquarters or at designated training facilities. At our
option, we may provide the Training Program via online, video, webinar or other media-based
training format. It is the nature of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Business that all aspects of training are
integrated, that is, there are no definitive starting and stopping times; although the Circuit
Instruction, 30 Minute Hit System, and CommunHITy Training is conducted over a consecutive
period of approximately 7 days and On Site Training is conducted over 3 consecutive days.
Successful completion of the Owner Training, and any additional or extended Owner Training we
require is a condition to the opening of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to the public.

(b) Sales Staff Training. You are responsible for training your staff (“Sales Staff
Training”). We require the persons who have attended Owner Training to train at least 2 of your
staff members by providing them our Staff Training. We require your personnel who attend Sales
Staff Training to complete our Sales Staff Training evaluation to our satisfaction prior to your
opening your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym: This occurs online and you pay to us a $75 fee per evaluation.
You are responsible for all costs of your Staff attending the Staff training program, including their
wages during the Sales Staff Training.

(©) Completion of Owner Training. Successful completion of Owner Training by at

least 1 person, Sales Staff Training for at least 2 persons and any additional or extended Owner
Training we require is a condition to the opening of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to the public.

7.2  Additional Training. We may require you or your managerial employee and/or previously
trained and experienced employees to attend periodic refresher training courses at such times and locations
that we designate. If we require you, your owners, managers and/or any previously trained and experience
employees to re-take or attend additional or extended Owner Training or Staff training as applicable, or if,
at any time after the Gym opens, you hire additional management personnel or replace one or more of your
owners, managers, the employees must satisfactorily complete any additional training program we require
at your expense (“Additional Training”). If so, you must also pay our then current Additional Training
Fees.

7.3 General Guidance. We will advise you from time to time regarding the operation of the
Gym based on reports you submit to us or inspections we make. In addition, we will furnish guidance to
you with respect to:
€)] standards, specifications and operating procedures and methods utilized by 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms;
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(b) purchasing required fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, products, materials
and supplies;

(© martial arts training methods, including the 30 Minute Hit® Program;
(d) use of suppliers, Approved Products and Services, volume buying;
(e) advertising and marketing programs;

()] employee/staff training; and

(9) administrative, bookkeeping and accounting procedures.

Such guidance will, at our discretion, be furnished in our Manuals, bulletins or other written materials or
correspondence and/or during telephone consultations and/or consultations at our office or the Gym.

At your request, we will furnish additional guidance and assistance. If your requests for additional or
special training and guidance are, in our sole opinion, excessive we may charge you a fee to cover expenses
that we incur in connection with such training or guidance, including per diem charges and travel and living
expenses for our personnel.

8. MARKS.

8.1 Ownership and Goodwill of Marks. Your right to use the Marks is derived solely from
this Agreement and limited to your operation of the Gym at the Site pursuant to, and in compliance with,
this Agreement and all System Standards we prescribe from time to time during its term. Your unauthorized
use of the Marks will be a breach of this Agreement and an infringement of our rights in and to the Marks.
You acknowledge and agree that your usage of the Marks and any goodwill established by such use will be
exclusively for our benefit and that this Agreement does not confer any goodwill or other interests in the
Marks upon you (other than the right to operate the Gym in compliance with this Agreement). All
provisions of this Agreement applicable to the Marks apply to any additional proprietary trade and service
marks and commercial symbols we authorize you to use.

8.2 Limitations on Your Use of Marks. You agree to use the Marks as the sole identification
of the Gym, except that you agree to identify yourself as the independent owner in the manner we prescribe
in the Manuals or otherwise. We will place a conspicuous notice at a place we designate in your Gym
identifying you as its independent owner and operator. You agree not to remove, destroy, cover or alter that
notice without our prior consent. If you do not comply, we may accomplish this task as we see fit and place
the notice or identification anywhere we see fit, and you agree to reimburse us for doing so. You may not use
any Mark as part of any corporate or legal business hame or with any prefix, suffix or other modifying
words, terms, designs or symbols (other than logos we license to you), or in any modified form, nor may you
use any Mark in connection with the performance or sale of any unauthorized services or products or in any
other manner we have not expressly authorized in writing. No Mark may be used in any advertising
concerning the transfer, sale or other disposition of the Gym or an ownership interest in you. You agree to
display the Marks prominently in the manner we prescribe at the Gym, on supplies or materials we designate,
and in connection with forms and advertising and marketing materials. You agree to give such notices of
trade and service mark registrations as we specify and to obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations
required under applicable law.

8.3 Notification of Infringements and Claims. You agree to notify us immediately of any
apparent infringement or challenge to your use of any Mark, or of any claim by any person of any rights in
any Mark, and you agree not to communicate with any person other than us, our attorneys and your attorneys
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in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim. We have sole discretion to take such action
as we deem appropriate and the right to control exclusively any litigation, U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
proceeding or any other administrative proceeding arising out of any such infringement, challenge or claim
or otherwise relating to any Mark. You agree to sign any and all instruments and documents, render such
assistance and do such acts and things as, in the opinion of our attorneys, may be necessary or advisable to
protect and maintain our interests in any litigation or Patent and Trademark Office or other proceeding or
otherwise to protect and maintain our interests in the Marks.

8.4 Discontinuance of Use of Marks. If we determine that it is advisable at any time in our
sole discretion for us and/or you to modify or discontinue the use of any Mark and/or use one or more
additional or substitute trade or service marks, you agree to comply with our directions within a reasonable
time after receiving notice. We will reimburse you for your reasonable direct expenses of changing the
Gym’s signs. However, we will not be obligated to reimburse you for any loss of revenue attributable to
any modified or discontinued Mark or for any expenditures you make to promote a modified or substitute
trademark or service mark.

8.5 Notification of Infringements and Claims. If we determine that it is advisable at any time

for us and/or you to modify or discontinue the use of any Marks, and/or for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to
use one or more additional or substitute trademarks or service marks, you agree to comply with our
directions, within a reasonable time after receiving notice, to notify or otherwise discontinue the use of such
Marks, or use one or more additional trademarks or service marks. We have no liability or obligation to
you for such modification or discontinuance.

8.6 Copyrights. You recognize that the various other materials we give you are subject to
copyrights we own or license from others. Your right to use any information capable of being rendered
into a tangible form that we claim as our copyrights, including martial arts and/or fitness training programs,
routines and the like, spreadsheets, pro forma documents, forms, marketing materials, manuals, pricing lists,
vendor lists, modifications to software, our website, and any marketing materials, advertisements, television
advertisements, radio commercials and the like (including the look, compilation, feel and content)
(collectively, the “Copyrights”) are derived solely from this Agreement and limited to your operation of
your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Your, your agents’, employees’ and affiliates’ unauthorized copying,
transmission, use or derivative of the Copyrights in any manner will be a breach of this Agreement and
constitute your and their infringement of our rights in and to the Copyrights. This Agreement does not
confer any rights to the Copyrights in you other than the right to use them in connection with the operation
of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. You must follow all of the policies and procedures we designate from time
to time for the protection of any Copyrights and any other materials which could be subject to Copyright
protection. All provisions of this Agreement applicable to your use of the Copyrights apply to any additional
Copyrights we authorize you to use during the Term of this Agreement. You must place Copyright notices
on all of the other materials that we designate, in the manner we require. You recognize that we will grant
other franchisees the right to use the Copyrights as well. You agree to sign and deliver to us such forms of
Copyright assignments or licenses we specify for any Copyrights you develop or modify for use in your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym and to cause all persons you engage to do so also. We may, and you must assist us with
our efforts to file in our name, and indicating our ownership in, Copyright registrations on all copyrightable
materials created or modified by you. We may, without notice to you, immediately suspend or terminate
your access to or use any services, Copyrights or other information or systems contemplated under this
Agreement if we determine that you, your agents, employees or affiliates have violated our Copyrights or
otherwise breached this Agreement with respect to protecting our Confidential Information (defined in
Section 9.1).

8.7 Copyright Infringements. You must notify us immediately, in writing, of any apparent
infringement of any of the Copyrights, or any challenge to your use of any of the Copyrights, or of any claim
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by any person of any rights in the Copyrights. You agree not to communicate with any person other than
us, our attorneys and your attorneys in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim. We have
sole discretion to take such action as we deem appropriate. We have the right to control exclusively any
dispute, litigation, U.S. Copyright Office proceeding or any other proceeding arising out of any such
infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to any of the Copyrights, including the right to direct
any settlement of such claim. You will sign any and all instruments and documents, or render such
assistance and do such acts and things as, in the opinion of our attorneys, may be necessary or advisable to
protect and maintain our interests in any dispute, litigation or administrative proceeding involving the
Copyrights or otherwise to protect and maintain our interests in the Copyrights. You may not at any time
during the Term of this Agreement or thereafter, contest the validity or ownership of any of the Copyrights,
or assist any person in contesting the validity of ownership of any of the Copyrights.

8.8 Discontinuance. You must immediately modify or discontinue the use of any Copyrights
as we direct from time to time. We will use commercially reasonable efforts to give you as much notice as
possible before requiring you to stop use of any of the Copyrights. However, we have no liability or
obligation to you for doing so.

8.9 Marks and Copyright Indemnification. We will indemnify and defend you against and

reimburse you for all damages for which you are held liable to third parties in any proceeding arising out of
your authorized use of any Mark or Copyright we develop, pursuant to and in compliance with this
Agreement, resulting from claims by third parties that your use of the Marks or Copyrights we develop
infringes their trademark rights or Copyrights, and for all costs you reasonably incur in the defense of any
such claim in which you are named as a party, so long as you have timely notified us of the claim and have
otherwise complied with the terms of this Agreement. We will not indemnify you against the consequences
of your use of the Marks, or any Copyrights: (a) for any Marks or other Copyrights which you develop or
submit to us (regardless if they become, or have become our property); or (b) unless your use of such Marks
or Copyrights we provide was and is accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. You must
provide written notice to us of any such claim within ten (10) days of your receipt of such notice and you
must tender the defense of the claim to us. We will have the right to defend any such claim and, if we do
so, we will have no obligation to indemnify or reimburse you for any fees or disbursements of any attorney(s)
retained by you. If we elect to defend the claim, we will have the right to manage the defense of the claim
including the right to compromise, settle or otherwise resolve the claim, and to determine whether to appeal
a final determination of the claim. We are not responsible to you for any other claims of any nature arising
out of or related to the Copyrights, regardless of whether the loss associated is by you, any of your customers
or third parties.

0. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

9.1 Tvpes of Confidential Information. We possess (and will continue to develop and

acquire) certain confidential information (the “Confidential Information”) relating to the development and
operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, which includes (without limitation):

@) the System and the know-how related to its use;

(b) plans, specifications, size and physical characteristics of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms;
(c) site selection criteria, land use and zoning techniques and criteria;

(d) methods in obtaining licensing and meeting regulatory requirements;

(e specifications for, sources of and design of Operating Assets and Gym Materials
and other equipment, furniture, forms, materials and supplies;
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()] marketing, advertising and promotional programs for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms;
(o) staffing and delivery methods and techniques for personal services;

(h) the selection, testing and training of managers and other staff/employees for 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms;

(1) the recruitment, qualification and investigation methods to secure employment for
employment candidates;

)] any computer Software we develop, make available or recommend for 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms;

(K) methods, techniques, formats, specifications, procedures, information and systems
related to and knowledge of and experience in the development, operation and franchising of 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms;

Q) knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain products, materials, supplies,
furniture, furnishings and equipment;

(m) knowledge of operating results and financial performance of 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gyms other than those operated by you (or your affiliates); and

(n) Membership Information, including existing, former or potential customer lists
and customer data.

9.2  Disclosure and Limitations on Use. We will disclose much of the Confidential Information
to you and personnel of the Gym by furnishing the Manuals to you and by providing training, guidance and
assistance to you. In addition, in the course of the operation of your Gym, you or your employees may
develop ideas, concepts, methods, techniques or improvements (“Improvements”) relating to your Gym,
which you agree to disclose to us. We will be deemed to own the Improvements and may use them and
authorize you and others to use them in the operation of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. Improvements will then
also constitute Confidential Information.

9.3 nfidentiali ligations. You agree that your relationship with us does not vest in
you any interest in the Confidential Information other than the right to use it in the development and
operation of your Gym, and that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in any other business
would constitute an unfair method of competition. You acknowledge and agree that the Confidential
Information is proprietary, includes trade secrets belonging to us and is disclosed to you or authorized for
your use solely on the condition that you agree, and you therefore do agree, that you:

€)] will not use the Confidential Information in any other business or capacity;

(b) will maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Confidential Information during
and after the term of this Agreement;

(©) will not make unauthorized copies of any portion of the Confidential Information
disclosed via electronic medium, in written form or in other tangible form, including, for example,
the Manuals; and

(d) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures we may prescribe from time
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to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information, including,
restrictions on disclosure to your employees and the use of non-disclosure and non-competition
agreements we may prescribe for employees or others who have access to the Confidential
Information.

9.4 Exception nfidentiality.  The restrictions on your disclosure and use of the

Confidential Information will not apply to the following:

10.

(@) disclosure or use of information, processes, or techniques which are generally
known and used in the Gym business (as long as the availability is not because of a disclosure by
you), provided that you have first given us written notice of your intended disclosure and/or use;
and

(b) disclosure of the Confidential Information in judicial or administrative
proceedings when and only to the extent you are legally compelled to disclose it, provided that you
have first given us the opportunity to obtain an appropriate protective order or other assurance
satisfactory to us that the information required to be disclosed will be treated confidentially.
EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP.

You acknowledge and agree that we would be unable to protect Confidential Information against

unauthorized use or disclosure or to encourage a free exchange of ideas and information among 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms if franchised owners of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms were permitted to hold interests in or perform
services for a Competitive Business. You also acknowledge that we have granted the Franchise to you in
consideration of and reliance upon your agreement to deal exclusively with us. You agree that, during the
term of this Agreement, neither you nor any of your owners (nor any of your or your owners’ SPouses or
children) will:

@) have any direct or indirect interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner in a
Competitive Business, other than the Gym;

(b) have any direct or indirect controlling interest as a disclosed or beneficial owner
in a Competitive Business, wherever located;

(c) perform services as a director, officer, Manager, employee, consultant, representative,
agent or otherwise for a Competitive Business, wherever located; or

(d) on behalf of yourself or any other person, or as an employee, proprietor, owner,
consultant, agent, contractor, employer, affiliate, partner, officer, director or associate, or
stockholder of any other person or entity, or in any other capacity, engage in or conduct any other
business if you have any significant operational or management responsibility or obligation
regarding such business, if such other business would interfere with your obligations under this
Agreement to develop and operate your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or otherwise (other than 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms operated under franchise agreements with us), unless your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym is
managed by a Chief Operating Officer, approved by us, that has satisfactorily completed our training
programs. This provision does not prohibit passive investments in other Gyms. However, an interest
in a business in which your capacity is either a director, officer or majority stockholder (or any
combination thereof) does not constitute a passive investment, and will be considered a breach of
these provisions of this Agreement.

The term “Competitive Business” as used in this Agreement means is any business or facility owning,
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operating or managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others to do so, any physical fitness, self-
defense, kickboxing, mixed martial arts, martial arts products or services, or any similar products or services
to those then offered by a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (other than a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operated under a
Franchise Agreement with us). A Competitive Business also includes any business acting as an area
representative, franchise broker, business broker, franchise seller or the like for any business franchising or
licensing Competitive Businesses other than us. If you violate the non-solicitation provision of this Section,
you must pay as partial liquidated damages 4 times that employee’s most recent annual compensation, and
agree that your doing so will not bar us from seeking or obtaining injunctive relief in addition to those
partial liquidated damages.

11. OPERATION AND SYSTEM STANDARDS.

11.1 QOperations Manuals. We will loan or make available online or via other electronic
format, during the term of this Agreement, our manuals (the “Manuals™), consisting of such materials
(including, as applicable, audiotapes, videotapes, magnetic media, computer Software and written materials)
that we generally furnish to franchisees from time to time for use in operating a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. The
Manuals contain mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules
(“System Standards”) that we prescribe from time to time for the operation of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
and information relating to your other obligations under this Agreement and related agreements. We, in our
sole discretion, may make the Manuals accessible to you online or via other forms of electronic format like,
using the Internet or on Intranet or CD-Rom. You agree to follow the standards, specifications and operating
procedures we establish periodically for the 30 MINUTE HIT® System that are described in the Manuals.
You also must comply with all updates and amendments to the 30 MINUTE HIT® System as described in
newsletters or notices we distribute, including via Information Technology System or other media we select).
The Manuals may be modified or updated and revised periodically to reflect changes in System Standards.
You are responsible for routinely monitoring any online version (or electronic format) of the Manuals for
changes to them. Since we make the Manuals accessible to you online (or electronic format), we are not
required to send to you printed copies of any changes to them. Any form of the Manuals accessible to you
online is our proprietary information and will be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of this
Agreement. You agree to maintain the Manuals as confidential and maintain the information in the Manuals
as secret and confidential. The most recent online Manuals will control any disputes between the online
version and printed copies of the Manuals. You may not at any time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise
reproduce any part of the Manuals.

11.2  Compliance with System Standards. You acknowledge and agree that your operation

and maintenance your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in accordance with System Standards are essential to preserve
the goodwill of the Marks and all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. Therefore, at all times during the term of this
Agreement, you agree to operate and maintain your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in accordance with each and
every System Standard, as we periodically modify and supplement them during the term of this Agreement.
If you fail to comply with our System Standards, then in addition to any other right we have under this
Agreement, you will also pay to us $1000 for the first month in which System Standards are violated or not
met (the “System Standard Violation Fee”): each subsequent month, consecutive or otherwise, in which
System Standards are violated or not met by you, you will pay to us a System Standard Violation Fee in an
amount equal to double the prior System Standard Violation Fee due. System Standards may regulate any
one or more of the following with respect to the Gym:

@ design, layout, décor, appearance and lighting; periodic maintenance, cleaning and
sanitation; periodic remodeling; replacement of obsolete or worn-out leasehold improvements,
fixtures, furnishings, equipment and signs; periodic painting; and use of interior and exterior signs,
emblems, lettering and logos, and illumination;
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(b) quantities, types, models and brands of Approved Products or Services, and other
required fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, Software, materials and supplies;

(c) required or authorized products and product categories including for all Approved
Products and Services;
(d) designated or approved suppliers of fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs,

Software, products, materials and supplies including for all Operating Assets and Gym Materials;

(e) terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of, and terms and methods of payment
for, products, materials, supplies and Approved Products and Services, including direct labor, that
you obtain from us, unaffiliated suppliers or others;

()] sales, marketing, advertising and promotional programs and materials and media
used in such programs;

(9) use and display of the Marks and Copyrights;
(h staffing levels, and qualifications, training, dress and appearance of employees;
Q) days and hours of operation and programs offered at the Gym;

M participation in market research and testing and product and service development
programs and customer satisfaction programs;

(K) acceptance of credit cards, gift certificates, coupons, frequent customer or
membership programs, and payment systems and check verification services;

Q) bookkeeping, accounting, data processing and record keeping systems, including
Software, and forms; methods, formats, content and frequency of reports to us of sales, revenue,
financial performance and condition; and furnishing tax returns and other operating and financial
information to us;

(m) types, amounts, terms and conditions of insurance coverage required to be carried
for the Gym and standards for underwriters of policies providing required insurance coverage; our
protection and rights under such policies as an additional named insured; required or impermissible
insurance contract provisions; assignment of policy rights to us; periodic verification of insurance
coverage that must be furnished to us; our right to obtain insurance coverage for the Gym at your
expense if you fail to obtain required coverage; our right to defend claims; and similar matters
relating to insured and uninsured claims;

(n complying with applicable laws; obtaining required licenses and permits; adhering
to good business practices; observing high standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical
business conduct in all dealings with customers, suppliers and us; and notifying us if any action,
suit or proceeding is commenced against you or the Gym;

(o)  billing, invoicing and payment policies, practices and procedures in connection with
any fees you owe to us, any of our affiliates or third party suppliers; and

(p) regulation of such other aspects of the operation and maintenance of the Gym that
we determine from time to time to be useful to preserve or enhance the efficient operation, image
or goodwill of the Marks and 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms.
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You agree that System Standards prescribed from time to time in the Manuals, or otherwise
communicated to you in writing or other tangible form, constitute provisions of this Agreement as if fully
set forth. All references to this Agreement include all System Standards as periodically modified.

11.3  Moadification of System Standards. We may periodically modify System Standards,

which may accommodate regional or local variations as we determine. Such modifications may obligate
you to invest additional capital in the Gym (“Capital Modifications”) and/or incur higher operating costs.
However, such modifications will not alter your fundamental status and rights under this Agreement. You
understand and acknowledge that our changes to the System Standards may include, among other things,
changes to the Marks, the Gym’s fagade, structure, interior specifications and equipment, and the Approved
Products and Services to be offered at the Gym. You are obligated to comply with all modifications to
System Standards, other than Capital Modifications, within the time period we specify. Other than your
initial build-out/development of the Site, we will give you 90 days to complete Capital Modifications if they
exceed $50,000 in costs.

11.4  |nterior and Exterior Upkeep. You agree, at all times, to maintain the Gym’s interior
and exterior and the surrounding area in the highest degree of cleanliness, orderliness and sanitation and to

comply with the requirements regarding the upkeep of the Gym established in the Manuals and by federal,
state and local laws.

11.5 Hours of Operation. You agree to operate the Gym during the hours and on the days
prescribed by us in the Manuals or otherwise approved in advance in writing by us.

11.6  Accounting and Records. It is your responsibility to obtain accounting services and any
required hardware or software related to them as we may require from time to time (See Section 13). You
will at all times maintain the records reasonably specified in the Manuals, including, without limitation,
sales, inventory and expense information.

11.7  lnformation Technology Svystem. You must acquire, license and use in developing and

operating your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym an “Information Technology System” we designate or approve
consisting of the computer services, handheld devices, telecommunications equipment, components,
equipment, computer hardware, telecommunications equipment or services, the Software used in connection
with the Business Management System or other operating or communications software we designate or
approve for use by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. The software that comprises any part of the Information
Technology System is referred to as the “Software”, and any hardware or other electronic devices that we
periodically specify or approve are referred to as the “Hardware.” You must acquire the Information
Technology System in accordance with our System Standards. As part of the Information Technology
System, may require you to obtain specified computer, phone and communications Hardware or Software
and services (like DSL, Frac, T-1, Cable Modem, ISP or other technologies) and may modify specifications
for and components of the Information Technology System from time to time. We may require you to
acquire the highest speed communications capabilities (like DSL, Frac, T-1, Cable Modem, ISP, or other
technologies) available in your area. Our modifications and specifications for components, equipment,
services and operating or communications of the Information Technology System may require you to incur
cost to purchase, lease or license new or modified Software or computer or communications hardware,
equipment, components or Software and to obtain service and support for the Information Technology
System during the Term of this Agreement. You agree to incur such costs in connection with obtaining the
Hardware, Software and services comprising the Information Technology System (or additions or
modifications) operating it in accordance with our System Standards and ensuring that it is compatible with,
and capable of participation in and performing the functions we designate for the Business Management
System and engaging in any form of e-commerce we designate or approve. We also have the right to charge
you a reasonable systems fee for any proprietary Software that we license to you and other maintenance and
support services that we or our affiliates furnish to you related to the Information Technology System. From
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time to time, upon our notice to you, you must enter into the then current form of such Information
Technology System related agreements as we may designate. You must not use the Information Technology
System for any purposes not authorized by us. A copy of our Website/Computer Policy is attached to this
Agreement. Your signing this Agreement or use of our Information Technology System or website binds
you and any user (for example, your employees) to that Website/IT Policy. If you are in breach of this
Agreement, we may, without terminating this Agreement, suspend or cease your access to use the Information
Technology System.

11.8 Trade Accounts and Taxes. You agree to maintain your trade accounts in a current status
and seek to resolve any disputes with trade suppliers promptly. You agree to timely pay all taxes incurred
in connection with your Gym’s operations. If you fail to maintain your trade accounts in a current status,
timely pay such taxes or any other amounts owing to any third parties or perform any non-monetary
obligations to third parties, we may, but are not required to, pay any and all such amounts and perform such
obligations on your behalf. If we elect to do so, then you agree to reimburse us for such amounts. You
agree to repay us immediately upon receipt of our invoice. We may also set-off the amount of any such
reimbursement obligations against all amounts which we may owe you. If any “franchise” or other tax
which is based upon the Revenues, receipts, sales, business activities or operation of your 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym is imposed upon us by any taxing authority, then you will reimburse us for all such taxes paid by us.

11.9 Retail Prices. Subject only to limitations imposed by applicable law, we may designate
maximum or minimum retail prices for the Approved Products or Services you offer and sell.

11.10 Approved Products. You agree to only sell the only products or other services or items
at the Gym that we have previously approved for sale (i.e., the Approved Products and Services) -- and no
others

11.11 Management. At least one of your managers must be one of your owners (and each of
your other managerial employees) must sign and deliver our then-current form of Confidentiality
Agreement, or other form satisfactory to us (See Exhibit “B™). Either you, or 1 of your principal owners
(with ownership of at least 50% of your voting securities if you are a business organization (like a
corporation, limited liability company or limited partnership) (a “Business Entity”’) must meet our
qualifications for 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym managers and participate personally as one of your managers in
and be responsible for management of the Gym (the “General Manager”). The General Manager must
have authority to communicate with us, and to bind you to agreements with us. Also, at all times, the Gym’s
operations must be managed and supervised by a person who has satisfactorily completed our training for
Gym Managers (a “Gym Manager”), which we may require persons who have completed Owner Training
to provide to the Gym Manager. One of your owners may serve as the Gym Manager. Our current
gualifications for Gym Managers are: (i) have a sufficient amount of experience managing and operating
physical fitness, self-defense training, or similar businesses (in terms of duration, operational
responsibilities, previous training, etc.) as a general or assistant manager or in a similar supervisory position
or be treated by you sufficient to be responsible for the Gym when the Gym Manager is not on Site and (ii)
be satisfactorily trained by your owners as a Gym Manager. If the Gym is operating at or exceeding our
System Standards, the General Manager or Gym Manager need not be on Site at all times.

11.12 Personnel. You agree to hire, train and supervise Gym employees in accordance with the
specifications set forth in the Manuals. All personnel must meet every requirement imposed by applicable
federal, state and local law as a condition to their employment.

11.13 Core Business Operations and Ancillary Business Operations. In this Agreement,
“Ancillary Business Operations” means business activities that we periodically specify as being ancillary
and optional to the main business of the Gym, those which we must approve, and those which traditionally
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may be undertaken by independent contractors (rather than a Gym employee), such as tanning services,
massage services, chiropractic services and physical therapy services. We may specify in the Manuals and
periodically modify those business activities that will be Ancillary Business Operations. “Core Business
Operations” means all business activities of or associated with the Gym which are not Ancillary Business
Operations, including, without limitation, the Gym’s front desk and membership operations, all cardio and
weight training functions, personal training services, group exercise, towel/locker and other services we
designate from time to time. Your Gym must offer or perform (as applicable) all Core Business Operations,
as we periodically modify them.

You and your employees must perform all Core Business Operations at the Gym, and you may not
contract with or allow any third party, including any licensee, lessee, consultant or other independent
contractor (a “Contractor”) to perform any Core Business Operations. You must periodically at our request
provide us information concerning your Gym’s Core Business Operations, Ancillary Business Operations,
and relationships with Contractors.

At your option, but subject to our prior written approval and your compliance with all terms and
conditions of this Agreement, you may (i) allow one or more Contractors to perform any or all of the
Ancillary Business Operations, provided that they may not use the Marks when doing so and that you enter
into an arm’s-length commercial relationship with each Contractor; or (ii) perform any or all Ancillary
Business Operations yourself (through your employees), either under the Marks or under any trademark,
service mark or trade name other than the Marks (an “Other Mark”) that you own or license from a third
party (an “Ancillary Trademark Licensor”). You acknowledge that, as a condition to obtaining our
approval:

€)) you must first submit to us all agreements and other documents evidencing the
relationship between you and each Contractor of Ancillary Trademark Licensor with respect to any
Ancillary Business Operations and promptly notify us of any changes in the terms of your
relationship with any Contractor or Ancillary Trademark Licensor;

(b) you and each Contractor or Ancillary Trademark Licensor must sign the
agreements and documents that we periodically specify to protect our rights in the Systems,
Confidential Information and Marks;

(©) if a Contractor performs the Ancillary Business Operations, you and the Contractor
must have an arm’s-length commercial relationship with economic and other terms that are standard
in the industry for similar relationships involving unrelated parties; and

(d) if a Contractor performs the Ancillary Business Operations or you perform the
Ancillary Business Operations under Other Marks, such Ancillary Business Operations must not
use or display the Marks in any manner, must be clearly distinguishable from the remainder of the
Gym in the manner we periodically specify, and must be clearly identified in the manner we
periodically specify as an independently owned and operated business separate from the Gym.

11.14 Membership Agreements and Member Information.

@) You must ensure that every membership agreement you use complies with all
System Standards and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations of any governmental authority with
jurisdiction over the Gym. You must send us (a) copies of all membership agreements you intend
to use at least 30 days before you begin offering memberships; and (b) copies of any revised
membership agreements within 10 days after you make any revisions.

(b) We and you acknowledge that we and our Affiliates may, through the Computer
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System or otherwise, have access to lists of the Gym’s members and/or prospects, including names,
addresses and other related information (“Member Information”). Membership Information is
our Confidential Information and you obtain no right, title or ownership interest in and to
Membership Information. We and our Affiliates may use Member Information in our and their
business activities, but during the Term we and our Affiliates will not use the Member Information
that we or they learn from you or from accessing the Computer System to compete directly with the
Gym. Upon termination of this Agreement, we and our Affiliates reserve the right to make any and
all disclosures and use the Member Information in any manner that we or they deem necessary or
appropriate. Your Membership Agreements must include provisions satisfactory to us protecting our
rights to use, assign or sell the Membership Information.

11.15 Notices.

(@) Notices to Public. You will prominently display in the Gym all statements that we
prescribe from time to time identifying you as the independent owner of the Gym and our authorized
franchisee. All membership agreements, checks, invoices, stationery and advertising materials
which you use in operating your Gym will also have a statement in the form we periodically
prescribe identifying you as the independent owner of the Gym and indicating that you are our
authorized franchisee.

(b) Notices to Employees. You must prominently post signs at the Gym (including in
the area in which all official employment-related notices are posted) and at your offices informing
your employees and independent contractors that their relationship is solely with you and that they
are not an employee of us or any of our Affiliates. You are solely liable for any employment-
related issues. Similar language must be included in all of your employment contracts, offer letters
and employee handbooks. We may promulgate and periodically modify the language and
specifications for such required postings and notices.

12. MARKETING AND PROMOTION.

12.1  Establishment of System Development Fund. Recognizing the value of advertising and
marketing to the goodwill and public image of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, we have the right to establish a
system-wide development, marketing and promotional fund (the “System Development Fund”) for such
advertising, marketing, public relations and system-wide benefit programs and materials we deem necessary
or appropriate. The System Development Fund is intended to maximize recognition of the Marks and
patronage of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and enhance the operations of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You must pay
to us, or our designee, the System Fund Fees. We reserve the right to defer or reduce System Fund Fees of
a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisee and, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to you, to reduce or
suspend contributions to, and operations of, the System Development Fund for any period of any length and
to terminate (and, if terminated, to reinstate) the System Development Fund. If the System Development
Fund is terminated, all unspent monies on the date of termination will be distributed to our franchisees in
proportion to their respective contributions to the System Development Fund during the preceding twelve
(12) month period, or in a manner we determine. We and our affiliates are not obligated to contribute to the
System Development Fund on the same basis as Franchise owners for any 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym we or
they own and operate.

12.2  Use of the Funds. We or our designee will direct all programs financed by the System
Development Fund, including the creative concepts, materials and endorsements, and the geographic,
market and media placement and allocation. You agree that the System Development Fund may be used
to pay the costs of, but not be limited to, preparing and producing video, developing, implementing and
modifying the Franchise Systems’ e-commerce and related strategies, audio and written advertising
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materials; developing and servicing corporate accounts; research and development of, administering
regional and multi-regional advertising programs, including, without limitation, purchasing e-commerce
rights, products or services, direct mail and other media advertising and employing advertising, promotion
and marketing agencies; maintaining or paying third parties to maintain a system-wide call center, toll free
numbers and online ordering and fulfillment systems, the Business Management System and the like, and
supporting public relations, market research, establishing, developing, maintaining, servicing or hosting
Websites or other e-commerce programs, and other advertising, promotion and marketing activities, if any,
performed by the System Development Fund. The System Development Fund periodically may furnish
you with samples of advertising, marketing and promotional formats and materials at no cost. Multiple
copies of such materials may be furnished to you at our direct cost of producing them, plus any related
shipping, handling and storage charges.

12.3  Accounting for the Fund. The System Development Fund may be accounted for
separately from our other funds and will not be used to defray any of our general operating expenses, except
for such reasonable salaries, administrative costs, travel expenses and overhead as we may incur in activities
related to the administration of the System Development Fund and its programs, including, without
limitation, conducting market surveys, preparing advertising, promotion and marketing materials and
collecting and accounting for contributions to the System Development Fund. We may spend, on behalf of
the System Development Fund, in any fiscal year an amount greater or less than the aggregate contribution
of all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms to the System Development Fund in that year, and the System Development
Fund may borrow from us or others to cover deficits or invest any surplus for future use. In addition to
other System Development Fund fees, we may assess you, and you must pay to the System Development
Fund such System Development Fund fees as we or the Fund deems necessary to address any deficits or
special needs of the System Development Fund. All interest earned on monies contributed to the System
Development Fund will be used to pay System Development costs before other assets of the System
Development Fund are expended. We may prepare a periodic statement of monies collected and costs
incurred by the System Development Fund and furnish the statement to you upon written request. We have
the right to cause the System Development Fund to be incorporated or operated through a separate entity at
such time as we deem appropriate, and such successor entity will have all of the rights and duties specified
in this Agreement.

12.4 System Development Fund Limitations. You acknowledge that, if established, the
System Development Fund will be intended to maximize recognition of the Marks and patronage of 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms. Although we may endeavor to utilize the System Development Fund to develop
advertising and marketing materials and programs and to place advertising that will benefit all 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms, we undertake no obligation to ensure that expenditures by the System Development Fund in
or affecting any geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the contributions to the System
Development Fund by 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms operating in that geographic area or that any 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gym will benefit directly or in proportion to its contribution to the System Development Fund from
the development of advertising and marketing materials or the placement of advertising. Except as
expressly provided in this section, we assume no direct or indirect liability or obligation to you with respect
to collecting amounts due to the System Development Fund. We will not use System fund monies to
prepare materials intended solely for franchise sales solicitations.

12.5 Advertising and Promotion. You agree that any advertising, promotion and marketing
you conduct will be completely clear and factual and not misleading and conform to the highest standards
of ethical marketing and the promotion policies which we prescribe from time to time. Samples of all
advertising, promotional and marketing materials which we have not prepared or previously approved must
be submitted to us for approval before you use them. If you do not receive written disapproval within thirty
(30) days after our receipt of such materials, they will be deemed to have been given the required approval.
You may not use any advertising or promotional materials that we have disapproved.
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12.6  Local Advertising Cooperatives. You will be required to, if a local advertising
cooperative or LAA (defined below) is established for an area including your Designated Area, contribute
to it an amount determined by the local or regional advertising cooperative (but not to exceed two percent
(2%) of your Gross Sales unless 50% or more of the members of that cooperative agree to an amount greater
than 2% of each member’s Gross Sales). If a cooperative or LAA is formed, each MINUTE HIT® Gym in
the area governed by it must make its required contributions and participate in its activities and be subject
to its governing documents. We may require that such a local advertising cooperative or LLA is established
for your local area or region, and may require that advertising cooperative rules, governing documents and
expenditures be subject to our approval. When two or more 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, including your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym, are opened in your Designated Area (or other Designated Area designated by us), you
will become a “Member” of and participate in a local advertising group (the “Local Advertising
Association” or the “LAA”) which will conduct and administer media advertising, promotion, marketing
and public relations (“Advertising and Marketing”) for the benefit of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms located
in the Designated Area, subject to the following terms and conditions:

@) The LAA will consist of all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in the Designated Area,
including the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms owned by us or an affiliated company in the Designated
Area.

(b) Each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in the Designated Area, including the 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms owned by us or an affiliated company, will be a Member of the LAA. Each Member
will have one vote for each franchised or company-owned 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym owned by it in
the Designated Area on all matters to be voted upon at duly convened meetings.

(©) Each Member will be given five days written notice of any proposed meeting. A
guorum consisting of a majority of all Members of the LAA will be required to convene any meeting
of the LAA. A majority vote by the Members present at a duly convened meeting will be required
to pass any proposed resolutions or motions. All meetings will be conducted according to Robert’s
Rules of Order.

(d) The purpose of the LAA will be to conduct Advertising and Marketing for the
benefit of all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms located in the Designated Area.

(e) The LAA will not conduct any Advertising and Marketing program or campaign
for the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in the Designated Area unless and until we have given the LAA
prior written approval for all concepts, materials or media proposed for any such Advertising and
Marketing program or campaign.

()] On or before the 10th day of each month, each Member of the LAA will contribute
up to 2% of the monthly Gross Revenues generated during the previous month by the Member’s
30 MINUTE HIT® Gym to the LAA (the “Local Advertising Cooperative Fee”). The Local
Advertising Cooperative Fee may be increased to greater than 2% of Gross Sales if 50% or more of
its members vote in favor of doing so. The Local Advertising Cooperative Fee contributed by the
Members will be used by the LAA for Advertising and Marketing programs and campaigns for the
benefit of all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in the Designated Area. The cost of all Advertising and
Marketing in the Designated Area must be approved by a majority vote of all Members present at
a duly convened meeting. If the cost of the Advertising and Marketing approved by the Members
exceeds the amount of funds available to the LAA, then the Local Advertising Cooperative Fee
payable by you and all other Members to the LAA pursuant to this provision may be increased by
vote of a majority of the Members present at a duly convened meeting. You will contribute the
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amount of the Local Advertising Fee agreed to by the Members to the LAA in accordance with this
provision.

(9) The LAA will, within 20 days after the end of each calendar quarter, furnish to us
and its Members in the form prescribed by us, a written summary of the Members’ contributions to
the LAA and an accurate accounting of the LAA’s expenditures for approved Advertising and
Marketing.

The Local Advertising Cooperative Fee paid by you to the LAA may be applied to the 5% local advertising
requirement in this Agreement. Otherwise, contributions to the LAA by you pursuant to this provision will
be in addition to the payment of the System Development Fees and the other advertising obligations of you
set forth in this Agreement. There are currently no franchisee advertising councils or local advertising
cooperatives that advise us on advertising policies. We reserve the right to establish an advisory council of
franchisees that will advise us on advertising policies and other matters.

12.7  Local Advertising Expenditures. In addition to your required System Fund Fees and the
required Grand Opening Advertising Fees, you are obligated to spend up to 2% of your annual Gross Sales
for advertising and promotion of the Gym (but which, as of the Agreement Date, is currently $300 per
month). As of the Agreement Date, as part of this requirement, we may require you to purchase online
marketing/ website marketing program services from us or our designee. You must obtain telephone
directory listings in the “white and yellow pages” in the size and manner we specify, displaying the Marks.
If other Franchise owners operate Gyms in the market area serviced by the directories, then you must
participate in and pay your pro rata share of the cost of such listings and advertising. We may review your
books and records relating to your expenditures for such advertising and promotion. We may permit your
local advertising cooperative contributions to count toward this local advertising expenditure requirement.
If we determine that you have not spent the requisite amounts, we may require you to pay the unexpended
amounts into the System Development Fund.

12.8  Websites.

€)) We have the right to control all use of URL’s, domain names, websites, addresses,
metatags, links, e-mail addresses and any other means of electronic identification or origin (“e-
names”). We also have the right to designate, approve, control or limit all aspects of your use of
the Internet, Intranet, World Wide Web, wireless technology, digital cable, use of e-names, e-mail,
websites, home pages, bulletin boards, chat rooms, e-mail, linking, framing, online purchasing
cooperatives, marketplaces, barter exchanges, and related technologies, methods, techniques,
registrations, networking, and any electronic communication, commerce, computations, or any
means of interactive electronic documents contained in a network of computers or similar devices
linked by communications software (collectively, “e-commerce”). We have the right to monitor
your and your employees’ e-commerce activities and any other use of the Information Technology
System. You must follow all of our policies and procedures for the use and regulation of e-
commerce. We may require you to coordinate your e-commerce activities with the Information
Technology System. We provide one site specific and one corporate e-mail address/account for
your Gym. We may charge a set-up fee of $100.00 per each additional e-mail address you request.
You recognize and agree that between you and us, we own all rights to all interest in and to any data
collected via e-commerce and any other aspect of the Information Technology System related to the
System or the Marks or Copyrights, including any customer data, click-stream data, cookies, user
data, hits and the like: such information is deemed by us to be and constitutes our Confidential
Information.

(b) At our option, we or one or more of our designees may maintain one or more
websites to advertise, market and promote 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms, the products and services that
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they offer and sell, and the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchise opportunity (each a “System
Website). If we establish one or more System Websites, we will provide you with a webpage
that references the Gym on one or more of the System Websites that we designate. You must
give us the information and materials that we request from time to time to develop, update and
modify such webpage. By providing the information and materials to us, you will be
representing to us that they are accurate and not misleading and do not infringe upon any third
party’s rights. However, we will own all intellectual property and other rights in the System
Website, your webpage, and all information they contain (including the domain name or URL
for such webpage, the log of “hits” by visitors, and any personal or business data that visitors

supply).

(© We will maintain the System Website, including your webpage, and may use
the System Development Fund’s assets to develop, maintain and update the System Website.
We periodically may update and modify the System Website (including your webpage). You
must notify us whenever any information on your webpage changes or is not accurate. We
will update or add information that we approve to your webpage at reasonable intervals. You
acknowledge that we have final approval rights over all information on the System Website
(including your webpage). We may implement and periodically modify System Standards
relating to the System Website.

(d) We will maintain your webpage on the System Website only while you are in
full compliance with this Agreement and all System Standards (including those relating to the
System Website). If you are in default of any obligation under this Agreement or the System
Standards, then we may, in addition to our other remedies, temporarily remove your webpage
from the System Website until you fully cure the default. We will permanently remove your
webpage from the System Website upon this Agreement’s expiration or termination. We also
may, at our option, discontinue any or all System Websites at any time.

(e) You acknowledge and understand that the registration for the System Website
domain name is and shall be maintained exclusively in our name or the name of our designee.
You acknowledge our or our designee’s exclusive right, title and interest in and to the domain
name for the System Website. You further acknowledge that nothing herein will give you any
right, title or interest in such domain name. You will not, at any time, challenge our or our
designee’s ownership of the System Website domain name, challenge the validity of the
system Website domain name, or impair any right, title or interest of us or our designee in the
System Website domain name.

0] You further acknowledge and agree that we may, at any time in our sole
discretion, cease to make the Subpage available to you or the public. You agree that we will
have no liability for filing to make the Subpage available to you or the public.
ADDITIONALLY, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTEND PERMITTED BY LAW, WE HEREBY
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES (WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR
STATUTORY) RELATED TO THE AVAILABILITY AND PERFORMANCE OF THE
WEBSITE AND THE SUBPAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITED
BY LAW, WE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT DAMAGES
(INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE OR
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES OR DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS OR LOSS OF BUSINESS)
RELATED TO THE USE, OEPRATION, AVAILABILITY OR FAILURE OF THE
WEBSITE OR SUBPAGE. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any
reason or your default under this Agreement for any reason, all of your right to upload content
onto, or otherwise use, the Subpage will immediately cease and we may cease to make the
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Subpage available to you.

9) We also may maintain one or more social media sites (e.g., www.twitter.com,
www.facebook.com, www.instagram.com, www.pinterest.com or such other social media sites).
You may not establish any social media sites utilizing any user names, or otherwise associating with
the Marks, without our advance written consent. We may designate from time to time regional or
Designated Area/Designated Area specific user names/handles that you must maintain. You will
adhere to any social media policies that we establish from time to time and will require all of your
employees to do so as well. You must ensure that none of your owners, managers or employees use
our Marks on the Internet or World Wide Web, except in strict compliance with these social media
policies. Use of social media, including any pictures that may be posted on, using or through one or
more social media sites, must be in compliance with the Manuals and System Standards, including
our then-current take-down policy.

(h) All advertising, marketing and promotional materials that you develop for your
Gym must contain notices of the System Website’s domain name in the manner we designate. You
and your employees may not develop, maintain or authorize any other website, other online presence
or other electronic medium that mentions or describes you or the Gym or displays any of the Marks.
You may not conduct commerce or directly or indirectly offer or sell any products or services using
any website, another electronic means or medium, or otherwise over the Internet.

(i) Nothing in this Section will limit our right to maintain websites other than the
System Website or to offer and sell merchandise bearing the Marks from the System Website,
another website or otherwise over the Internet without payment or obligation of any kind to you.

() You may not create a website for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and you may not
advertise or sell Products or Services using e-commerce, unless previously approved by us. We
require that you provide information to us via e-commerce and order Products and Supplies via e-
commerce. We may require you to coordinate your e-commerce activities with the Business
Management System. You recognize and agree that between you and us, we own all rights to all
interest in and to any data collected via e-commerce related to the System or the Marks, including
any customer data, click-stream data, cookies, user data, hits and the like: such information is
deemed by us to be and constitutes our Confidential Information. You must not use any Mark as
part of any domain name, Internet or “E-mail” address, or any other identification of you in any
electronic medium or with any prefix, suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols,
or in any modified form, without our written consent. If you breach the terms of the Franchise
Agreement, as a method to encourage cure, we can suspend your e-mail, website, leads and social
media services.

12.9 Signage. All exterior and interior signs at the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Signs™)
must comply with the standard sign plans and specifications established by us and provided to you.
You will, at its expense, prepare or cause the preparation of complete and detailed plans and
specifications for the Signs and will submit them to us for written approval. We will have the absolute
right to inspect, examine, videotape and photograph the Signs at the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym during the
term of this Agreement. You will be responsible for any and all installation costs, sign costs,
architectural fees, engineering costs, construction costs, permits, licenses, repairs, maintenance,
utilities, insurance, taxes, assessments and levies in connection with the construction, erection,
maintenance or use of the Signs including, if applicable, all electrical work, construction
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of the base and foundation, relocation of power lines and all required soil preparation work. You will
comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations, building codes and ordinances relating to the
construction, erection, maintenance and use of the Signs. You may not alter, remove, change, modify,
or redesign the Signs unless approved by us in writing. We will have the right to redesign the
specifications for the Signs without the approval or consent of you. Within 90 days after receipt of
written notice from us, you will, at your expense, either modify or replace the Signs so that the Signs
displayed at the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym will comply with the new specifications. You will not be
required to modify or replace the Signs more than once every five years. At no time during or after
the expiration of the Term may you “drape”, obscure, paint over, remove or modify approved signage
bearing our Marks without our express prior written consent and without complying with our
instructions on how to do so.

12.10 ldentification of Franchise. You will not use the names “30 Minute Hit®” or
any derivative thereof in the name of your entity that owns or operates your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
or in any name of your affiliated or controlled entity in any incorporation, organization or other legal
formation documents filed with any state government or agency. You will hold yourself out to the
public as an independent contractor operating your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym pursuant to a Franchise
from us. You will file for a certificate of assumed name in the manner required by applicable state
law to notify the public that you are operating your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym as an independent
contractor.

13. RECORDS, REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

13.1 Accounting System. You agree to establish and maintain at your own expense a
bookkeeping, accounting and recordkeeping system conforming to the requirements and formats we
prescribe. You must use the chart of accounts, income statement and balance sheet formats we prescribe
in our Manuals. You will maintain all of your books and records in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. You must report Gross Sales and other business information to us using the format,
reporting system and accounting system that we require from time to time. We may require you to use
approved computer hardware and software in order to maintain certain sales data and other information we
require you to keep. You agree that we may have access to such sales data and other information through
the Information Technology System at all times and that you must deliver to us the financial and operating
reports in the form, manner and content we specify.

13.2 Reports. You agree to furnish to us on such forms that we prescribe from time to time:

@ at our request, within five (5) days after their filing: (i) copies of all sales tax
returns for the Gym; and (ii) copies of the canceled checks for the required sales taxes and surtaxes;

(b) on Friday of each calendar week: a report on the Gym’s Gross Sales during the
immediately preceding calendar week (Monday through Sunday) with the Royalty payment;

(© within ten (10) days after the end of each calendar month: (i) a profit and loss
statement for the Gym for the immediately preceding calendar month and for the year-to-date; and
(i) a balance sheet as of the end of the immediately preceding calendar month;

(d) within thirty (30) days after the end of the calendar year: (i) annual profit and loss
and source and use of funds statements; and (ii) a balance sheet for the Gym as of the end of such
calendar year;

(e) within ten (10) days after our request: (i) exact copies of federal and state income
and other tax returns; and (ii) such other forms, records, books and other information we may
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periodically require; and

()] such other reconciliation reports or membership reports as we may designate on a
monthly basis.

13.3  Access to Information. You agree to verify and sign each report and financial statement
in the manner we prescribe. We have the right to disclose data derived from such reports without identifying
you or the location of the Gym. We also have the right to require you to have reviewed or audited financial
statements prepared on an annual basis if we reasonably believe that the reports are incorrect. Moreover,
we have the right, as often as we deem appropriate (including on a daily basis), to access all computer
registers and other Information Technology Systems that you are required to maintain in connection with
the operation of the Gym and to retrieve all information relating to the Gym’s operations.

13.4  Copies of Reports. You agree to furnish us with a copy of all sales, income and other tax
returns relating to your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, at our request. You will also send us copies of any sales or
other reports sent to any landlord or governmental agency, at our request.

14, INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS.

14.1 Qur Right to Inspect the Gym. To determine whether you and the Gym are complying
with this Agreement and all System Standards, we and our designated agents have the right at any time
during your regular business hours, and with five (5) days prior notice to you (but without prior notice if we
have reason to believe the Gym is not operating in compliance), to:

@ inspect the Gym;

(b) observe, photograph and videotape and/or view the operations of the Gym for such
consecutive or intermittent periods as we deem necessary;

©) remove samples of any products, materials or supplies for testing and analysis;
(d) interview personnel and customers of the Gym; and
(e) inspect and copy any books, records, websites (or other forms of e-commerce) and

documents relating to your operation of the Gym.

You agree to cooperate with us fully in connection with any such inspections, observations, photographing,
videotaping, product removal and interviews. You agree to present to your customers such evaluation
forms that we periodically prescribe and to participate and/or request your customers to participate in any
surveys performed by us or on our behalf. You agree to correct or repair any unsatisfactory conditions we
specify within five (5) days.

14.2  Qur Right to Audit. We have the right at any time during your business hours, and with
three (3) days prior notice to you, to inspect and audit, or cause to be inspected and audited, your (if you are
a Business Entity) and the Gym’s business, bookkeeping and accounting records, sales and income tax
records and returns and other records.  You agree to cooperate fully with our representatives and
independent accountants we hire to conduct any such inspection or audit. If our inspection or audit is made
necessary by your failure to furnish reports, supporting records or other information we require, or to furnish
such items on a timely basis, or if the information is not accurate (i.e., your Gross Sales are understated by
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two percent (2%) or more), you agree to reimburse us for the cost of such inspection or audit, including,
without limitation, the charges of attorneys and independent accountants and the travel expenses, room and
board and compensation of our employees. You also must pay us any shortfall in the amounts you owe us,
including late fees and interest, within ten (10) days of our notice. The foregoing remedies are in addition
to our other remedies and rights under this Agreement and applicable law.

15. TRANSFER.

15.1 By Us. This Agreement is fully transferable by us, and inures to the benefit of any
transferee or other legal successor to our interests, as long as such transferee or successor agrees to be bound
by, and assumes all of our continuing obligations under, this Agreement.

15.2 By You. You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties created by this
Agreement are personal to you (or, if you are a Business Entity, to your owners) and that we have granted
the Franchise to you in reliance upon our perceptions of your (or your owners’) individual or collective
character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity.  Accordingly, neither this
Agreement (or any interest in it) nor any ownership or other interest that would reduce your voting or equity
interest to less than fifty-one percent (51%) in you or the Gym may be transferred without our prior written
approval. Any transfer without such approval constitutes a breach of this Agreement and is void and of no
effect. As used in this Agreement, the term “transfer” includes your (or your owners’) voluntary,
involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, sale, gift or other disposition of any interest in: (a) this Agreement;
(b) you; or (c) the Gym.

An assignment, sale, gift or other disposition includes the following events:
€)) transfer of ownership of capital stock or a partnership interest;

(b) merger or consolidation or issuance of additional securities or interests
representing an ownership interest in you;

(c) any issuance or sale of your stock or any security convertible to your stock;

() transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or the Gym in a divorce, insolvency
or corporate or partnership dissolution proceeding or otherwise by operation of law;

(e) transfer of an interest in you, this Agreement or the Gym, in the event of your death
or the death of one of your owners, by will, declaration of or transfer in trust or under the laws of
intestate succession; or

0] pledge of this Agreement (to someone other than us) or of an ownership interest in
you as security, foreclosure upon the Gym or your transfer, surrender or loss of possession, control
or management of the Gym.

15.3 Conditions for Approval of Transfer. If you (and your owners) are in full compliance
with this Agreement, then subject to the other provisions of this Section 15, we will approve a transfer that
meets all the applicable requirements of this Section. The proposed transferee and its direct and indirect
owners must be individuals of good character and otherwise meet our then applicable standards for 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisees. We charge you and you are required to pay $1,660500 per transfer we
evaluate to determine if the Transferee meets our requirements. It is due when you request the transfer
evaluation. A transfer of ownership, possession or control of the Gym may be made only in conjunction with
a transfer of this Agreement. If the transfer is of this Agreement or a controlling interest in you, or is one
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of transfers which in the aggregate constitute the transfer of this Agreement or a controlling interest in you,
all of the following conditions must be met prior to or concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

@ the transferee has sufficient business experience, aptitude and financial resources
to operate the Gym;

(b) you have paid all Royalties, System Fund Fees, contributions, amounts owed for
purchases from us and all other amounts owed to us or to third-party creditors and have submitted
all required reports and statements;

(c) the transferee (or its manager) and its managerial employee (if different from your
manager) have agreed to complete our then current Owner Training program or any other additional
training we require. You or the transferee must also pay for the travel and living expenses to attend
the training;

(d) the transferee has agreed to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement;

(e) you or the transferee pay us (X) a transfer fee in the amount of 50% of the sum of
our then current Franchise Fee, Initial Equipment Fee and Training Fee, plus (y) $1,500 for each
transferee evaluated by us, and (z) any franchise broker fees;

()] you (and your transferring owners) have executed a general release, in form
satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our shareholders, officers, directors,
employees and agents;

9) we have approved the material terms and conditions of such transfer and
determined that the price and terms of payment will not adversely affect the transferee’s operation
of the Gym;

(h) if you or your owners finance any part of the sale price of the transferred interest,

you and/or your owners have agreed that all of the transferee’s obligations pursuant to any
promissory notes, agreements or security interests that you or your owners have reserved in the
Gym are subordinate to the transferece’s obligation to pay Royalties, System Fund Fees,
contributions and other amounts due to us and otherwise to comply with this Agreement;

(i you and your transferring owners have executed a hon-competition covenant in
favor of us and the transferee agreeing to be bound, commencing on the effective date of the transfer,
by the restrictions contained in Section 17.4 of this Agreement; and

() you and your transferring owners have agreed that you and they will not directly or
indirectly at any time or in any manner (except with respect to other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms you
own and operate) identify yourself or themselves or any business as a current or former 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym, or as one of our licensees or franchisees, use any Mark, any colorable imitation
of a Mark, or other indicia of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in any manner or for any purpose or utilize
for any purpose any trade name, trade or service mark or other commercial symbol that suggests or
indicates a connection or association with us.

If the proposed transfer is among your owners, Section 15.3(e) will not apply, although the transferee is
required to reimburse us for any administrative costs we incur in connection with the transfer.
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15.4 Transfer to a Business Entity. Notwithstanding Section 15.3, if you are in full compliance
with this Agreement, you may transfer this Agreement to a Business Entity that conducts no business other
than the Gym and, if applicable, other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms so long as you own, control and have the
right to vote fifty-one percent (51%) or more of its issued and outstanding ownership interests (like stock or
partnership interests) and you guarantee its performance under this Agreement. All other owners are
subject to our approval. The organizational or governing documents of the Business Entity must recite that
the issuance and transfer of any ownership interests in the Business Entity are restricted by the terms of this
Agreement, are subject to our approval, and all certificates or other documents representing ownership
interests in the Business Entity must bear a legend referring to the restrictions of this Agreement. As a
condition of our approval of the issuance or transfer of ownership interests to any person other than you, we
may require (in addition to the other requirements we have the right to impose) that the proposed owner
execute an agreement, in a form provided or approved by us, agreeing to be bound jointly and severally by,
to comply with, and to guarantee the performance of, all of your obligations under this Agreement.

15,5 Transfer Upon Death or Disability. Upon your death or disability or, if you are a
Business Entity, the death or disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, your or such owner’s
executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal representative must transfer your interest in
this Agreement or such owner’s interest in you to a third party. Such disposition of this Agreement or the
interest in you (including, without limitation, transfer by bequest or inheritance) must be completed within
a reasonable time, not to exceed six (6) months from the date of death or disability, and will be subject
to all of the terms and conditions applicable to transfers contained in this Section. A failure to transfer
your interest in this Agreement or the ownership interest in you within this period of time constitutes a
breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “disability” means a mental or
physical disability, impairment or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent
you or an owner of a controlling interest in you from managing and operating the Gym.

15.6 QOperation Upon Death or Disability. If, upon your death or disability or the death or
disability of the owner of a controlling interest in you, the Gym is not being managed by a trained Manager,
your or such owner’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal representative must,
within a reasonable time not to exceed fifteen (15) days from the date of death or disability, appoint a
Manager to operate the Gym. Such Manager will be required to complete training at your expense. Pending
the appointment of a Manager as provided above or if, in our judgment, the Gym is not being managed
properly any time after your death or disability or after the death or disability of the owner of a controlling
interest in you, we have the right, but not the obligation, to appoint a Manager for the Gym. All funds from
the operation of the Gym during the management by our appointed Manager will be kept in a separate
account, and all expenses of the Gym, including compensation, other costs and travel and living expenses
of our Manager, will be charged to this account. We also have the right to charge a reasonable management
fee (in addition to the Royalty and System Fund Fees and contributions payable under this Agreement)
during the period that our appointed Manager manages the Gym. Operation of the Gym during any such
period will be on your behalf, provided that we only have a duty to utilize our best efforts and will not be
liable to you or your owners for any debts, losses or obligations incurred by the Gym or to any of your
creditors for any products, materials, supplies or services the Gym purchases during any period it is managed
by our appointed Manager.

15.7  Effect of Consent to Transfer. Our consent to a transfer of this Agreement and the Gym
or any interest in you does not constitute a representation as to the fairness of the terms of any contract
between you and the transferee, a guarantee of the prospects of success of the Gym or transferee or a waiver
of any claims we may have against you (or your owners) or of our right to demand the transferee’s exact
compliance with any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement.
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15.8 Qur Right of First Refusal. You must not Assign or otherwise dispose of any interest in
or any part of the Major Assets to any purchaser without first offering the same to us in a written offer that
contains the purchase price, payment terms, and all other material terms and conditions of the proposed
transaction (the “Franchisee’s Offer”). We will have 30 business days after receipt of the Franchisee’s
Offer to give the you written notice which will either waive our option to purchase (the “Waiver Notice”)
or will state that we intend to exercise our rights to purchase or acquire the Major Assets according to the
terms contained in the Franchisee’s Offer (the “Letter of Intent”). The “Major Assets” are all or
substantially all of the assets of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, including but not limited to the Operating Assets
and Gym Materials necessary to sustain operations or enable another to be able to, alone or in conjunction
with other assets, operate a competing business. We have the sole right to determine if any assets are Major
Assets. Therefore, if you (or any of your owners) at any time determine to sell, assign or transfer for
consideration an interest in this Agreement and/or the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or an ownership interest in
you, you (or such owner) agree to obtain a bona fide, executed written offer and earnest money deposit (in
the amount of five percent (5%) or more of the offering price) from a responsible and fully disclosed offeror
(including lists of the owners of record and all beneficial owners of any corporate or limited liability
company offeror and all general and limited partners of any partnership offeror) and immediately submit to
us a true and complete copy of such offer, in the form of the Franchisee’s Offer, which includes details of
the payment terms of the proposed sale and the sources and terms of any financing for the proposed purchase
price. To be a valid, bona fide offer, the proposed purchase price must be denominated in a dollar amount.
The offer must apply only to an interest in you or in this Agreement and the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and
may not include an offer to purchase any of your (or your owners’) other property or rights. However, if
the offeror proposes to buy any other property or rights from you (or your owners) under a separate,
contemporaneous offer, such separate, contemporaneous offer must be disclosed to us, and the price and
terms of purchase offered to you (or your owners) for the interest in you or in this Agreement and the 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym must reflect the bona fide price offered and not reflect any value for any other property
or rights.

We have the right, exercisable by our Letter of Intent within thirty (30) days from the date of the delivery
to us of both an exact copy of Franchisee’s Offer and all other information we request, to purchase such
interest for the price and on the terms and conditions contained in the Franchisee’s Offer, provided that:

@ we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in such offer (with a
discounted amount if an interest rate will be charged on any deferred payments);

(b) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed purchaser;

) we will have not less than sixty (60) days after the Notice Date of our election to
purchase to prepare for closing; and

(d) we are entitled to receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary
representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the capital stock of
an incorporated business, as applicable, including, without limitation, representations and
warranties as to:

Q) ownership and condition of and title to stock or other forms of ownership
interest and/or assets;

(i) liens and encumbrances relating to the stock or other ownership interest
and/or assets; and

(iii)  validity of contracts and the liabilities, contingent or otherwise, of the
corporation whose stock is being purchased.
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The date we provide you our Letter of Intent is the “Notice Date.” We will have the absolute and
unconditional right to terminate our decision to purchase and any obligations in the Letter of Intent and any
obligation to purchase the Major Assets from you for any reason and at any time during the due diligence
review period by giving you written notice. You will have the right to complete the transaction for the sale
of the Major Assets to a purchaser according to the terms and conditions contained in the Franchisee’s Offer
to us if: (a) we deliver the Waiver Notice to you, (b) we fail to deliver either the Waiver Notice or the Letter
of Intent to the Franchisee within 30 business days after receiving the Franchisee’s Offer, (c) we terminate
our Letter of Intent during the due diligence period pursuant to the provisions of this Section, or (d) you and
we fail to agree on the terms and conditions for the definitive agreement or agreements for the purchase of
the Major Assets by us from you (other than those objective terms and conditions contained in the
Franchisee’s Offer) on or before the 60th day after the Notice Date.

If we exercise our right of first refusal, you and your selling owner(s) agree that, for a period of two (2) years
commencing on the date of the closing, you and they will be bound by the non-competition covenant
contained in Section 17.4 of this Agreement. You and your selling owner(s) further agree that you and they
will, during this same time period, abide by the restrictions of Section 15.3(j) of this Agreement.

If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, you or your owners may complete the sale to such purchaser
pursuant to and on the exact terms of Franchisee’s Offer, subject to our approval of the transfer as provided
in Sections 15.3 and 15.4, provided that, if the sale to such purchaser is not completed within one hundred
twenty (120) days after delivery of Franchisee’s Offer to us, or if there is a material change in the terms of
the sale (which you agree promptly to communicate to us), we will have an additional right of first refusal
during the thirty (30) day period following either the expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day
period or notice to us of the material change(s) in the terms of the sale, either on the terms originally offered
or the modified terms, at our option. Our option to purchase in this Section will not apply to the Assignment
of any of the Major Assets (with the exception of this Agreement) by you to a bank, financial institution or
other lender in connection with the your financing of (a) the real estate or leasehold improvements for Gym,
b) the FF&E for the Gym, (c) inventory or supplies for the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, or (d) working capital
required by the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym.

16. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

16.1  Generally. We have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event of your material
default and as set forth below in Section 16.2. You are obligated to operate the Gym for the duration of the
Term and do not have the right to terminate this Agreement.

16.2 By Us. We have the right to terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of written
notice of termination to you, if:

@ you, in writing or verbally, threaten to breach, terminate or abandon the Franchise
Agreement and/or Gym, and do not recant such statement within 5 business days of making the
statement, or you indicate your intent to terminate operations of the Gym or that you will terminate
the Franchise Agreement prior to the expiration of the term and in breach of this Agreement;

(b) you (or any of your owners) have made any material misrepresentation or omission
in connection with your purchase of the Franchise;

() you or the required number of your personnel fail to successfully complete Owner
Training to our satisfaction or you have not fulfilled all of the conditions for management of the
Gym described in Section 23.4(e) and 11.11;
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(d) you fail to complete construction of and open the Gym within the earlier of nine (9)
months of our approval of the Site or within twelve (12) months of the Agreement Date (and no
extensions described in Section 5.1 are granted by us);

(e) you abandon or fail to actively operate the Gym for two (2) or more consecutive
business days, unless the Gym has been closed for a purpose we have approved or because of
casualty or government order;

()] you surrender or transfer control of the operation of the Gym without our prior
written consent;

(s)] you (or any of your owners) are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or plead
or have pleaded no contest, or guilty, to, a felony or other serious crime or offense that is likely to
adversely affect your reputation, our reputation or the reputation of any other 30 MINUTE HIT®
Gym;

(h) you (or any of your owners) engage in any dishonest or unethical conduct which
may adversely affect the reputation of the Gym or another 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or the goodwill
associated with the Marks;

Q) you (or any of your owners) make an unauthorized assignment of this Agreement
or of an ownership interest in you or the Gym;

() in the event of your death or disability or the death or disability of the owner of a
controlling interest in you, this Agreement or such owner’s interest in you is not assigned as required
under this Agreement;

(K) you lose the right to possession of the Site;

Q) you (or any of your owners) make any unauthorized use or disclosure of any
Confidential Information or use, duplicate or disclose any portion of the Manuals in violation of this
Agreement;

(m) you violate any health, safety or sanitation law, ordinance or regulation and do not
begin to cure the non-compliance or violation immediately, and correct such non-compliance or
violation within five (5) days, after written notice is delivered to you;

(n) you fail to make payments of any amounts due to us and do not correct such failure
within ten (10) days after written notice of such failure is delivered to you;

(0) you fail to make payments of any amounts due to approved suppliers of products
or services and do not correct such failure within ten (10) days after written notice of such failure
is delivered to you by such supplier;

(p) you fail to pay when due any federal or state income, service, sales or other taxes
due on the operations of the Gym, unless you are in good faith contesting your liability for such
taxes;

(o) you (or any of your owners) fail to comply with any other provision of this
Agreement or any System Standard and do not correct such failure within thirty (30) days after
written notice of such failure to comply is delivered to you;

n you (or any of your owners) fail on two (2) or more separate occasions within any
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17.

period of twelve (12) consecutive months or on three (3) occasions during the term of this
Agreement to submit when due reports or other data, information or supporting records, to pay when
due any amounts due to us or otherwise to comply with this Agreement, whether or not such failures
to comply were corrected after written notice of such failure was delivered to you; or

(s) you make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admit in writing your
insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due; you consent to the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or the substantial part of your property; the
Gym is attached, seized, subjected to a writ or distress warrant or levied upon, unless such
attachment, seizure, writ, warrant or levy is vacated within thirty (30) days; or any order appointing
a receiver, trustee or liquidator of you or the Gym is not vacated within thirty (30) days following
the entry of such order.

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION.

17.1 Payment of Amounts Owed To Us. You agree to pay us within fifteen (15) days after the

effective date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, or on such later date that we determine amounts
are due to us, all amounts due for Royalties, System Fund Fees, contributions, amounts owed for purchases
from us, interest due on any of the foregoing, and any and all other amounts owed to us which are then unpaid.

17.2  Marks. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement:

€)) to allow us sufficient time (up to sixty (60) days) to determine if we will exercise
a right to purchase and/or to confirm you are in compliance with all other post-termination
obligations, you will not, without our express written permission, sell, transfer, encumber, lease,
convey, gift, or make available to use to any other person or entity the furniture, fixtures, equipment,
lease, real property, inventory or personal property owned by or used by your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym;

(b) for a period of 60 days, you will not transfer, encumber, lease, pledge, convey or
gift any ownership interest in you, or your parent company, if any;

) without limiting any other rights in law or equity, you and your owners consent to
our obtaining injunctive relief to enforce (a) and (b) hereof;

(d) you will, immediately upon demand at our direction, and to our sole satisfaction,
cover, drape, remove or obscure all signage, trade dress and other identifiable aspects of the 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym;

(e) you may not directly or indirectly at any time or in any manner (except with respect
to other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms you own and operate) identify yourself or any business as a current
or former 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym, or as one of our licensees or franchisees, use any Mark, any
colorable imitation of a Mark or other indicia of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in any manner or for any
purpose or utilize for any purpose any trade name, trade or service mark or other commercial symbol
that indicates or suggests a connection or association with us;

(f you agree to take such action as may be required to cancel all fictitious or assumed
name or equivalent registrations relating to your use of any Mark;

(9) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Gym pursuant to
Section 17.5, you agree to deliver to us within thirty (30) days after, as applicable, the effective date
of expiration of this Agreement or the Notification Date (as defined in Section 17.5(a)) all signs,
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sign-faces, sign-cabinets, marketing materials, forms and other materials containing any Mark or
otherwise identifying or relating to a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and allow us, without liability to you or
third parties, to remove all such items from the Gym;

(h) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Gym pursuant to
Section 17.5, you agree that after the effective date of expiration of this Agreement or the
Notification Date (whichever is applicable), you will promptly and at your own expense make such
alterations we specify to distinguish the Gym clearly from its former appearance and from other 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms so as to prevent confusion by the public;

Q) if we do not have or do not exercise an option to purchase the Gym pursuant to
Section 17.5 you agree that after the effective date of expiration of this Agreement or the
Notification Date (whichever is applicable), you will notify the telephone company and all telephone
directory publishers of the termination or expiration of your right to use any telephone, telecopy or
other numbers and any regular, classified or other telephone directory listings associated with any
Mark, authorize the transfer of such numbers and directory listings to us or at our direction and/or
instruct the telephone company to forward all calls made to your telephone numbers to numbers we

specify;

() you agree to furnish us, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of expiration
of this Agreement or the Notification Date (whichever is applicable), with evidence satisfactory to
us of your compliance with the foregoing obligations;

(k) within 30 days after the date of the expiration or termination of this Agreement, you
will, at your expense, alter, modify and change both the exterior and interior appearance of the
building and the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym so that it will be clearly distinguished from the standard
appearance of a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and/or prevent public confusion; and

() we will have the absolute right to notify the telephone company and all listing
agencies of the termination or expiration of your right to use all telephone numbers and all classified
and other directory listings for the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and to authorize the telephone company
and all listing agencies to transfer to us or its assignee all telephone numbers and directory listings of
the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. You acknowledge and agree that we have the absolute right and interest
in and to all telephone numbers and directory listings associated with the Marks, and you hereby
authorize us to direct the telephone company and all listing agencies to transfer the Franchisee’s
telephone numbers and directory listings to us or to an assignee of ours, if this Agreement expires
or is terminated or if we acquire the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. The telephone company and all
listing agencies may accept the Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings
Agreement attached as an exhibit to our Franchise Disclosure Document as evidence of our
exclusive rights to such telephone numbers and directory listings. You will execute the
Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings Agreement and such other documents
as we may require to complete the transfer of the telephone numbers as contemplated herein.

17.3 Confidential Information. You agree that, upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement, you will immediately cease to use any of our Confidential Information in any business or
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otherwise and return to us all copies of the Manuals and any other confidential materials that we have loaned
to you.

17.4  Competitive Restrictions. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any
reason whatsoever (and you have not acquired a successor franchise), you and your owners agree that for a
period of two (2) years commencing on the effective date of termination or expiration neither you nor any
of your owners will have any direct or indirect interest (e.g. through a spouse or child) as a disclosed or
beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, member, Manager,
representative or agent or in any other capacity in any Competitive Business operating:

@ at the Site;
(b) within twenty-five (25) miles of the Site;

(© at the Site of any other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in operation or under construction
on the later of the effective date of the termination or expiration of this Agreement; or

(d) within twenty-five (25) miles of any other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or Designated
Area in operation or under construction on the later of the effective date of the termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

If any person restricted by this Section refuses voluntarily to comply with the foregoing obligations, the two
(2) year period will commence with the entry of an order of an arbitrator, or court if necessary, enforcing this
provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and abilities of ageneral nature
and have other opportunities for exploiting such skills. Consequently, enforcement of the covenants made
in this Section will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or ability to earn a living.

17.5 Qur Right to Purchase.

@) Exercise of Option. Upon our termination of this Agreement in accordance with
its terms and conditions or your termination of this Agreement without cause, we have the option,
exercisable by giving written notice to you within sixty (60) days from the date of such termination,
to purchase the Gym from you, including the leasehold rights to the Site. (The date on which we
notify you whether or not we are exercising our option is referred to in this Agreement as the
“Notification Date”). We have the unrestricted right to assign this option to purchase the Gym.
We will be entitled to all customary warranties and representations in connection with our asset
purchase, including, without limitation, representations and warranties as to ownership and
condition of and title to assets; liens and encumbrances on assets; validity of contracts and
agreements; and liabilities affecting the assets, contingent or otherwise.

(b) Leasehold Rights. You agree at our election:
Q) to assign your leasehold interest in the Site to us;

(i) to enter into a sublease for the remainder of the lease term on the same
terms (including renewal options) as the prime lease; or

(iii) to lease to us if you own the Site in accordance with the Agreement to
Lease and our Standard Lease Agreement.

(©) Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Gym will be its fair market value,
determined in a manner consistent with reasonable depreciation of the Gym’s equipment, signs,
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inventory, materials and supplies, provided that the Gym will be valued as an independent business
and its value will not include any value for:

(i) the Franchise or any rights granted by this Agreement;
(i) the Marks or copyrights; or
(iii) participation in the network of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms.

The Gym’s fair market value will include the goodwill you developed in the market of the
Gym that exists independent of the goodwill of the Marks and the System. The length of
the remaining term of the lease for the Site will also be considered in determining the
Gym’s fair market value.

We may exclude from the assets purchased cash or its equivalent and any equipment, signs,
inventory, materials and supplies that are not reasonably necessary (in function or quality)
to the Gym’s operation or that we have not approved as meeting standards for 30 MINUTE
HIT® Gyms, and the purchase price will reflect such exclusions.

(d) Appraisal. If we and you are unable to agree on the Gym’s fair market value, its
fair market value will be determined by three (3) independent appraisers who collectively will
conduct one (1) appraisal. We will appoint one (1) appraiser, you will appoint one (1) appraiser
and the two (2) party-appointed appraisers will appoint the third (3) appraiser. You and we agree
to select our respective appraisers within fifteen (15) days after we notify you that we are exercising
our option to purchase the Gym, and the two (2) appraisers so chosen are obligated to appoint the
third (3') appraiser within fifteen (15) days after the date on which the last of the two (2) party-
appointed appraisers was appointed. You and we will bear the cost of our own appraisers and share
equally the fees and expenses of the third (3') appraiser chosen by the two (2) party-appointed
appraisers. The appraisers are obligated to complete their appraisal within thirty (30) days after the
third (3') appraiser’s appointment.

The purchase price will be paid at the closing of the purchase, which will take place not
later than ninety (90) days after determination of the purchase price. We have the right to
set off against the purchase price, and thereby reduce the purchase price by, any and all
amounts you or your owners owe to us. At the closing, you agree to deliver instruments
transferring to us:

0) good and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all
liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests acceptable
to us), with all sales and other transfer taxes paid by you; and

(i) all licenses and permits of the Gym which may be assigned or transferred;
and

(iii) the leasehold interest and improvements in the Site.

(e Delivery of Title and Escrow. If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the
purchased assets, or if there are other unresolved issues, the closing of the sale will be accomplished
through an escrow. You and your owners further agree to execute general releases, in form
satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our shareholders, officers, directors,
employees, agents, successors and assigns.

17.6 Continuing Obligations.  All of our and your (and your owners’ and affiliates’)
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obligations which expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement will

continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until
they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire. Examples include indemnification, payment,
identification and dispute resolution provisions.

17.7 Additional Competitive Restrictions. Without limiting anything in this Section 17,
during the term of this Agreement and upon termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason
whatsoever (and you have not acquired a Successor Franchise), except if another Franchise Agreement with
us is in good standing, you and your owners agree that for a period of two (2) years commencing on the
effective date of termination or expiration neither you nor any of your owners will have any direct or indirect
interest (e.g. through a spouse or child) as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer,
employee, consultant, member, Manager, representative or agent or in any other capacity in any Competitive
Business operating in the areas indicated in Section 17.4.

If any person restricted by this Section refuses voluntarily to comply with the foregoing obligations,
the two (2) year period will commence with the entry of an order of an arbitrator, or court if necessary,
enforcing this provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and abilities
of a general nature and have other opportunities for exploiting such skills. Consequently, enforcement of
the covenants made in this Section will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or ability to earn a living.
You and we agree that if any court or arbitrator were to determine that this Section 17.7 is not enforceable,
the remaining in-term and post-termination provisions of this Agreement will stand along and will remain
enforceable.

17.8 Assumption of Gvm’s Management. We or our designee have the right (but not the

obligation), under the circumstances described in the paragraph below, to enter the Site and assume the
Gym’s management for any period of time that we deem appropriate. All funds from the Gym’s operation
during the period of our (or our designee’s) management will be kept in a separate account and all Gym
expenses will be charged to such account. In addition to all other fees and payments owed hereunder, we
may charge you a reasonable management fee that we specify, not to exceed 20% of the Gym’s Gross Sales.

We or our designee may assume the Gym’s management under the following circumstances: (a) if
you abandon or fail to actively operate the Gym for any period; (b) you breach any of our System Standards
(including without limitation any of our customer service standards) and we provide you with a notice, in
the form specified in Subsection 17, of your violation of this Agreement, within the applicable cure period
(if any). Our exercise of our rights under this Section will not affect our right to terminate this Agreement.

17.9 Memberships. Upon termination or expiration, you must notify all members of your 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym immediately that your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym will cease to operate under or using the
Marks, the Confidential Information and System. If this Agreement is being terminated or expiring without
renewal, we may contact members of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and offer such members continued rights
to use one or more 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate, which in no
event will include assumption of any then existing liability arising out of or relating to any Membership
Agreement or act or failure to act by you or your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. In the event that, upon expiration
or termination of this Agreement, members of your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym are legally entitled to full or
partial refund of any monies paid to you, you will refund such monies promptly and in full and will
cooperate with us to preserve customer goodwill with such members.

18. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.

18.1 Independent Contractors. You and we understand and agree that this Agreement does
not create a fiduciary relationship between you and us, that we and you are and will be independent
contractors and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or special
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agent, joint venturer, partner or employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to conspicuously identify
yourself in all dealings with customers, suppliers, public officials, Gym personnel and others as the owner
of the Gym under a Franchise we have granted and to place such notices of independent ownership on such
forms, business cards, stationery and advertising and other materials as we may require from time to time.
If you do not do so, we may place the notices and accomplish the foregoing as we see fit, and you must
reimburse us for doing so.

18.2 No Liability for Acts of Other Party. You agree not to employ any of the Marks in

signing any contract or applying for any license or permit, or in a manner that may result in our liability for
any of your indebtedness or obligations, and that you will not use the Marks in any way we have not
expressly authorized. Neither we nor you will make any express or implied agreements, warranties,
guarantees or representations or incur any debt in the name or on behalf of the other, represent that our
respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee or be obligated by or have any liability under
any agreements or representations made by the other that are not expressly authorized in writing. We will
not be obligated for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of the Gym’s
operation or the business you conduct pursuant to this Agreement.

18.3 Taxes. We will have no liability for any sales, use, service, occupation, excise, gross
receipts, income, payroll, property or other taxes, whether levied upon you or the Gym, in connection with
the business you conduct (except any taxes we are required by law to collect from you with respect to
purchases from us). Payment of all such taxes are your responsibility.

18.4  Indemnification. You agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless us, our affiliates and
our respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assignees (the
“Indemnified Party(ies)”) against and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for all
claims, obligations and damages described in this Section, any and all taxes described in Section 18.3 and
any and all claims and liabilities directly or indirectly arising out of the Gym’s operation (even if our
negligence is alleged, but not proven) or your breach of this Agreement. For purposes of this
indemnification, “claims” includes all obligations, damages (actual, consequential or otherwise) and costs
reasonably incurred in the defense of any claim against any of the Indemnified Parties, including, without
limitation, reasonable accountants’, arbitrators’, attorneys’, paralegals’ and expert witness fees, costs of
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other expenses of litigation, arbitration or alternative dispute
resolution and travel and living expenses. We have the right to defend any such claim against us. This
indemnity will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

Under no circumstances will we, or any other Indemnified Party, be required to seek recovery from any
insurer or other third party, or otherwise to mitigate our, their or your losses and expenses, in order to
maintain and recover fully a claim against you. You agree that a failure to pursue such recovery or mitigate
a loss will in no way reduce or alter the amounts we or another Indemnified Party may recover from you.

19. INSURANCE.

19.1 Tvpes Required. During the term of this Agreement, you must maintain in force, at your
expense and under policies of insurance issued by carriers approved by us, the following types of insurance
coverage:

@ comprehensive, public and product liability insurance against claims for bodily
and personal injury, death and property damage caused by or occurring in conjunction with the
operation of your Gym;

(b) general casualty and property insurance including fire, flood, hurricane, vandalism
and malicious mischief, and extended coverage insurance with a full replacement value of your
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inventory and contents of your Gym, covering such risks as are covered in the Standard Extended
Coverage Endorsement;

(©) comprehensive motor vehicle insurance (including personal injury protection,
uninsured motorist protection, and “umbrella” coverage) for any motor vehicles operated by your
Gym;

(d) workers’ compensation in the amounts required by applicable law for your Gym;

(e) “umbrella” liability insurance;

0] liability insurance against liability for personal services care and negligence;

(9) business interruption insurance;

(h) comprehensive crime and blanket employee dishonesty insurance; and

Q) cyber security insurance; and

() such other insurance as is required under the Equipment Lease Agreement and any
lease or other financing document (if any) for the Gym.

19.2 verage Requirements. You must maintain the insurance coverages in the minimum
amounts we prescribe from time to time in the Manuals. We may periodically increase or decease the
amounts of coverage required under these insurance policies and require different or additional kinds of
insurance at any time to reflect inflation, identification of new risks, changes in law or standards of liability,
higher damage awards or other relevant changes and circumstances.

19.3 Policy Terms. All insurance policies must:

@ contain no provision which in any way limits or reduces coverage for us in the
event of any claim by us or any of our affiliates, directors, officers or agents;

(b) extend to provide indemnity for all obligations assumed by you under this
Agreement and all items for which you are required to indemnify us under the provisions of this
Agreement or otherwise;

) name us and 30 Minute Hit LTD as an additional insured;
(d) contain a waiver of the insurance company’s right of subrogation against us;
(e) provide that the coverage afforded applies separately to each insured against whom

a claim is brought as though a separate policy had been issued to each insured;

()] provide that the insurance company will provide us with at least thirty (30) days’
prior written notice of termination, expiration, cancellation or material modification of any policy;
and

9) provide that you cannot reduce the policy limits, restrict coverage, cancel or

otherwise alter or amend the policies without our prior written consent.

19.4 Evidence of Coverage. Before the expiration of the term of each insurance policy, you
must furnish us with a copy of each new, renewal or replacement policy you have obtained to extend your
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coverage, along with evidence of the premium payment. If you do not maintain the required insurance
coverage, or do not furnish us with satisfactory evidence of insurance coverage and premium payments, we
may obtain, at our option and in addition to our other rights and remedies under this Agreement, any required
insurance coverage on your behalf. If we do so, you must fully cooperate with us in our effort to obtain the
insurance policies and must promptly sign all forms required to obtain or maintain the insurance. You must
also allow any inspections of your Gym required to obtain or maintain the insurance. Finally, you must pay
us, on demand, any costs and premiums we incur in obtaining insurance on your behalf. Neither your
obligation to maintain insurance coverage nor our maintenance of insurance on your behalf, will reduce or
absolve you of any obligations of indemnification described in this Agreement.

20. ENFORCEMENT.

20.1 Severability: Substitution of Valid Provisions. Except as otherwise stated in this
Agreement, each term of this Agreement, and any portion of any term, are severable. The remainder of this
Agreement will continue in full force and effect. To the extent that any provision restricting your
competitive activities is deemed unenforceable, you and we agree that such provision will be enforced to
the fullest extent permissible under governing law. This Agreement will be deemed automatically modified
to comply with such governing law if any applicable law requires: (a) a greater prior notice of the
termination of or refusal to renew this Agreement; or (b) the taking of some other action not described in
this Agreement; or (c) if any System Standard is invalid or unenforceable. We may modify such invalid or
unenforceable provision to the extent required to be valid and enforceable. In such event, you will be bound
by the modified provisions.

20.2  Waivers. We will not be deemed to have waived our right to demand exact compliance
with any of the terms of this Agreement, even if at any time: (a) we do not exercise a right or power
available to us under this Agreement; or (b) we do not insist on your strict compliance with the terms of
this Agreement; or (c) if there develops a custom or practice which is at variance with the terms of this
Agreement; or (d) if we accept payments which are otherwise due to us under this Agreement. Similarly,
our waiver of any particular breach or series of breaches under this Agreement or of any similar term in any
other agreement between you and us or between us and any other franchise owner, will not affect our rights
with respect to any later breach by you or anyone else.

20.3  Limitation of Liability. Neither of the parties will be liable for loss or damage or deemed
to be in breach of this Agreement if failure to perform obligations results from:

@ compliance with any law, ruling, order, regulation, requirement or instruction of
any federal, state or municipal government or any department or agency thereof;

(b) acts of God;
©) acts or omissions of a similar event or cause.
However, such delays or events do not excuse payments of amounts owed at any time.

20.4 Approval and Consents. Whenever this Agreement requires our advance approval,
agreement or consent, you agree to make a timely written request for it. Our approval or consent will not
be valid unless it is in writing. Except where expressly stated otherwise in this Agreement, we have the
absolute right to refuse any request by you or to withhold our approval of any action or omission by you.
If we provide to you any waiver, approval, consent, or suggestion, or if we neglect or delay our response or
deny any request for any of those, we will not be deemed to have made any warranties or guarantees which
you may rely on, and will not assume any liability or obligation to you.
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21.

DISPUTES SUBJECT TO MEDIATION/ARBITRATION.

21.1 Aareement to Mediate. You and we acknowledge that resolving disputes prior to
commencing arbitration hearings or court proceedings is in the best interests of both parties, all other
franchisees and the Business System. The parties have reached this Agreement in good faith and in
belief that it is advantageous to each of them. In recognition of the enormous strain on time,
unnecessary expense and wasted resources potentially associated with litigation and/or arbitration,
and in the spirit of cooperation, the parties pledge to try to resolve any dispute amicably, without
litigation or arbitration. Therefore, the parties agree that they will seek to settle any dispute between
them prior to mediation or arbitration. If not settled internally, other than an Excluded Action (as
defined in Section 21.7 of this Agreement), before beginning any legal action or arbitration, the
parties agree to mediate any dispute, controversy or claim between you and/or any of your owners,
affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, guarantors, employees, owners or members (each a
“Franchisee Related Party”), on the one hand, and us, and/or any of our affiliates, officers, directors,
shareholders, members, guarantors, employees, representatives, independent contractors or owners
(each a “Franchisor Related Party”), on the other hand, including, without limitation, in connection
with any dispute, controversy or claim arising under, out of, in connection with or in relation to: (a)
this Agreement; (b) any lease or sublease for your Franchised Business; (c) any loan or other finance
arrangement between us and our affiliates and you; (d) the parties’ relationship; (e) events occurring
prior to the entry into this Agreement; (f) the Business; and/or (g) any System standard, in accordance
with the procedures set forth in this Section 21.1, inclusive of all subparts. Good faith participation
in these procedures to the greatest extent reasonably possible, despite lack of cooperation by one or
more of the other parties, is a precondition to maintaining any arbitration or legal action, including
any action to interpret or enforce this Agreement. The Mediation shall be conducted in accordance
with the following provisions:

@) Initiation Procedure. The party seeking mediation (the “Initiating Party”) must
commence mediation by sending the other party/parties a written notice of its request for mediation
(the “Dispute Notice”). The Dispute Notice will specify, to the fullest extent possible, the nature of
the dispute, the Initiating Party’s version of the facts surrounding the dispute, the amount of damages,
and the nature of any injunctive or other relief such party claims, and must identify one or more
persons with authority to settle the dispute for the Initiating Party.

(b) Direct Negotiations. Upon receipt of a Dispute Notice, the parties will endeavor, in good
faith, to resolve the dispute outlined in the Dispute Notice. If the parties have been unable to resolve
any such dispute(s) outlined in a Dispute Notice within twenty (20) days after the issuance of the
Dispute Notice, either party may initiate a mediation procedure in accordance with the American
Arbitration Association (“AAA”), pursuant to its Commercial Mediation Procedures, and unless
otherwise agreed by the parties will take place in Dade County, Florida. We reserve the right to
require virtual mediation in lieu of holding an in-person mediation in Dade County, Florida.

(c) Selection of the Mediator. If the parties cannot mutually agree upon a mediator, the parties
shall submit to one another written lists of acceptable mediators who are not associated with either
of the parties. Each party must rank all the mediators in numerical order of preference and exchange
the rankings. If one or more names are on both lists, the highest ranking one of these will be
designated the mediator.

(d) Time and Place for Mediation. In consultation with the parties, the mediator shall
promptly designate a mutually acceptable time and place located in Dade County, Florida for the
mediation (or virtually, if we elect to require virtual mediation). Unless the circumstances make it
impossible, the time may not be later than thirty (30) days after the selection of the mediator.
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(e) Summary of Views. At least seven (7) days before the first scheduled mediation session,
each party must deliver to the mediator and to the other party a concise written summary of its views
on the matter in dispute and on any other matters that the mediator asks them to include. The mediator
may also request that each party submit a confidential paper on relevant legal issues, which may be
limited in length by the mediator, to him or her.

0] Representatives. In the mediation, each party must be represented by a person with
requisite authority to settle the dispute (each an “Authorized Person”) and may be represented by
counsel. In addition, each party may, with permission of the mediator, bring with him, her, or it any
additional persons who are needed to respond to questions, contribute information, and participate in
the negotiations.

() Conduct of Mediation. The mediator shall advise the parties in writing of the format for
the meeting or meetings. If the mediator believes it will be useful after reviewing the position papers,
the mediator shall give both himself or herself and the Authorized Persons an opportunity to hear an
oral presentation of each party’s views on the matter in dispute. The mediator shall assist the
Authorized Persons to negotiate a resolution of the matter in dispute, with or without the assistance
of counsel or others. To this end, the mediator is authorized both to conduct joint meetings and to
attend separate private caucuses with the parties. All mediation sessions will be strictly private. The
mediator must keep confidential all information learned unless specifically authorized by the party
from which the information was obtained to disclose the information to the other party. The parties
commit to participate in the proceedings in good faith with the intention of resolving the dispute if at
all possible.

(h) Termination of Procedure. The parties agree to participate in the mediation procedure to
its conclusion, as set forth in this section. The mediation may be concluded (1) by the signing of a
settlement agreement by the parties, (2) by the mediator’s declaration that the mediation is terminated,
or (3) by a written declaration of either party, no earlier than at the conclusion of a full day’s
mediation, that the mediation is terminated. Even if the mediation is terminated without resolving
the dispute, the parties agree not to terminate negotiations and not to begin any arbitration or legal
action or seek another remedy before the expiration of five (5) days following the mediation. A party
may begin arbitration within this period only if the arbitration might otherwise be barred by an
applicable statute of limitations or in order to request an injunction from a Court of competent
jurisdiction to prevent irreparable harm.

(i) Fees of Mediator; Disqualification. The fees and expenses of the mediator must be shared
equally by the parties. The mediator may not later serve as a witness, consultant, expert or counsel
for any party with respect to the dispute or any related or similar matter in which either of the parties
is involved.

(1) Confidentiality. The mediation procedure is a compromise negotiation or settlement
discussion for purposes of federal and state rules of evidence. The parties agree that no stenographic,
visual or audio record of the proceedings may be made. Any conduct, statement, promise, offer, view
or opinion, whether oral or written, made in the course of the mediation by the parties, their agents
or employees, or the mediator is confidential and shall be treated as privileged. No conduct,
statement, promise, offer, view or opinion made in the mediation procedure is discoverable or
admissible in evidence for any purpose, not even impeachment, in any proceeding involving either
of the parties. However, evidence that would otherwise be discoverable or admissible will not be
excluded from discovery or made inadmissible simply because of its use in the mediation.

52



21.2  Aagreement to Arbitrate. You and we acknowledge that resolving disputes prior to
commencing arbitration hearings or court proceedings is in the best interests of both parties, all other
franchisees and the Business System. Therefore, the parties agree that they will seek to settle any
dispute between them prior to arbitration. However, if the parties are unable to settle the dispute or
controversy internally or through the mediation procedures set forth in 21.1 above, then with the
exception of Excluded Claims, all disputes and controversies between you and we, including
allegations of fraud, misrepresentation and violation of any state or federal laws, rules or regulations,
arising under, as a result of, or in connection with this Agreement, the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym or the
Franchisee’s Gym are subject to and will be resolved exclusively by arbitration conducted according
to the then current commercial arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association.

21.3 Notice of Dispute. The party alleging the dispute must provide the other party
with written notice setting forth the alleged dispute in detail. The party who receives written notice
alleging the dispute will have 30 days after receipt of the written notice to correct, settle or
compromise the dispute specified in the written notice. If the written notice alleges that the
Franchisee is delinquent in the payment of any fees or other payments payable to us, the Franchisee
will have 10 days to make full payment (including interest and Administrative Fees as provided for
herein) to us.

21.4 Demand for Arbitration. If the dispute alleged by either party has not been
corrected, settled or compromised pursuant to Section 21.1 or within the time period provided for in
Section 21.12, then either party may demand arbitration in accordance with the Code of Procedure of
the National Arbitration Forum. Unless agreed otherwise by the parties, three Arbitrators will be
selected to hear the matter, one of which must be a retired judge. You and we will each fully perform
their obligations under this Agreement during the entire arbitration process.

215 Ven n risdiction. All arbitration hearings will take place exclusively in
North Miami Beach, Florida, and will be held no later than 90 days after the Arbitrators have been
selected. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we may require arbitration hearings to be held virtually,
effective on notice to you. Unless we require virtual arbitration, you and we and its officers,
directors, Owners and the Personal Guarantors do hereby agree and submit to personal jurisdiction
in the State of Florida in connection with any arbitration hearings hereunder and any suits brought to
enforce the decision of the Arbitrators, and do hereby waive any rights to contest venue and
jurisdiction in the State of Florida and any claims that venue and jurisdiction are invalid.

21.6 Powers of Arbitrators. The authority of the Arbitrators will be limited to making
a finding, judgment, decision and award relating to the interpretation of or adherence to the written
provisions of this Agreement. The Federal Rules of Evidence (the “Rules”) will apply to all
arbitration hearings and the introduction of all evidence, testimony, records, affidavits, documents
and memoranda in any arbitration hearing must comply in all respects with the Rules and legal
precedents interpreting the Rules. Both parties will have the absolute right to cross-examine any
person who testified against them or in favor of the other party. The Arbitrators will have no
authority to add to, delete or modify in any manner the terms and provisions of this Agreement. All
findings, judgments, decisions and awards of the Arbitrators will be limited to the dispute set forth
in the written demand for arbitration, and the Arbitrators will have no authority to decide any other
issues. We and you further agree that, in any arbitration proceeding, except for the Excluded Claims,
each party must submit or file any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined
by Rule 13 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding as the claim to which
it relates. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as required is forever barred. The arbitrator may
not consider any settlement discussions or offers that might have been made by either you or us and
will not have the right to declare any Mark generic or otherwise invalid. Except as provided in
Section 21.11, the Arbitrators will not have the right or authority to award punitive damages to either
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us or you, our or your officers, directors, Owners and the Personal Guarantors, and you and we and
their officers, directors, Owners and the Personal Guarantors expressly waive their rights to plead or
seek punitive damages. All findings, judgments, decisions and awards by the Arbitrators will be in
writing, will be made within 60 days after the arbitration hearing has been completed, and will be
final and binding on you and us. The written decision of the Arbitrators will be deemed to be an
order, judgment and decree and may be entered as such in any court of competent jurisdiction by
either party. If, during the course of arbitration, either party fails to appear at a meeting or hearing
duly scheduled in accordance with the Code of Procedure of the NAF, the Arbitrators will have the
absolute right to enter a default judgment and resulting order against the party failing to appear.

21.7 Disputes Not Subject to Mediation or Arbitration. Notwithstanding Section 21.1
or Section 21.2, or anything to the contrary in this Agreement, we shall be entitled, without bond,

to the entry of temporary, preliminary and permanent injunctions and orders of specific
performance enforcing the provisions of this Agreement in any court of competent jurisdiction
relating to: (a) your, and/or any of your owners, employees, officers, directors, and/or agent’s use
of the Marks; (b) the covenants not to compete and confidentiality covenants set forth in this
Agreement; (c) your obligations upon termination or expiration of the franchise; (d) and/or
transfer or assignment of you or the Gym. Further, the mediation and arbitration provisions set
forth in this Agreement shall not apply to any of the following (each an “Excluded Claim” and
collectively, the “Excluded Claims”): (i) any claim by us relating to your failure to pay any fee
due to us under this Agreement; (ii) any claim by us relating to your or your owners’, officers’,
directors’, employees’ or agents’ failure to comply with the confidentiality and/or non-competition
covenants set forth in this Agreement; (iii) any claim by us or any of our affiliates relating to your
or your owners’, employees’, officers’, directors’ or agents’ use of the System, Marks or Copyrights;
and/or (iv) your obligations upon termination or expiration of this Agreement.

21.8 No Collateral Estoppel or Class Actions. All arbitration findings, conclusions,

orders and awards made by the Arbitrators will be final and binding on you and we; however, such
arbitration findings, conclusions, orders and awards may not be used to collaterally estop either you
or we from raising any like or similar issue or defense in any subsequent arbitration, litigation, court
hearing or other proceeding involving third parties, including other franchisees. You and we agree
that no person or entity except you and we, and your and our respective officers, directors, owners
and/or personal guarantors will have the right to join in, become a party, litigate or participate in any
arbitration proceeding arising under this Agreement, and therefore, you and we specifically agree that
the NAF and the Arbitrators appointed under the NAF procedural rules will not be authorized to
permit class actions or to permit any other person or entity to be involved, participate, or be named as
a litigating party in any arbitration proceeding or matter brought under this Agreement by you or we
or your and our respective officers, directors, owners and/or personal guarantors.

21.9 Confidentiality.  All evidence, testimony, records, documents, findings,
decisions, judgments and awards pertaining to any arbitration hearing between you and us will be
secret and confidential in all respects. Except as provided for in Section 21.6 or as may be required
by law, You and we will not disclose the decision or award of the Arbitrators and will not disclose
any evidence, testimony, records, documents, findings, orders, or other matters from the arbitration
hearing to any person or entity except as required by law. Nothing herein will prevent either party
from disclosing or using any information presented in any arbitration proceeding in any subsequent
court hearing brought by either you or we pursuant to this Agreement.

21.10 Eederal Arbitration Act. Any issue regarding arbitration will be governed by the
Federal Arbitration Act and the federal common law of arbitration.

21.11  Waiver of Punitive Damages. EXCEPT FOR YOUR OBLIGATIONS TO
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INDEMNIFY US PURSUANT TO SECTION 18.4 OF THIS AGREEMENT AND CLAIMS
FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF OUR MARKS, COPYRIGHTS OR CONFIDENTIAL

INFORMATION OR YOU OR YOUR OWNERS’, OFFICERS’, DIRECTORS’,
EMPLOYEES’ OR AGENTS’ VIOLATION OF THE NONCOMPETITION COVENANTS,
YOU AND WE EACH WAIVE TO THE FULL EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY
RIGHT TO, OR CLAIM FOR, ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST
THE OTHER. YOU AND WE ALSO AGREE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE
BETWEEN YOU AND US THAT ARE SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATION OR EXEMPTION
OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES, THE PARTY MAKING A CLAIM WILL BE LIMITED TO
EQUITABLE RELIEF AND RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES IT SUSTAINS.

21.12  Limitations of Claims. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP AMONG YOU AND US MUST BE MADE BY
WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OTHER PARTY WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE
OCCURRENCE OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH CLAIM (REGARDLESS OF
WHEN IT BECOMES KNOWN); EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS ARISING FROM: (A) UNDER-
REPORTING OF GROSS REVENUES; (B) UNDER-PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO
US OR OUR AFFILIATES; (C)CLAIMS FOR INDEMNIFICATION; AND/OR
(D) UNAUTHORIZED USE OF THE MARKS OR COPYRIGHTS. HOWEVER, THIS
PROVISION DOES NOT LIMIT THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT IN
ANY WAY.

21.13 Governing Law. EXCEPT TO THE EXTENT THIS AGREEMENT OR
ANY PARTICULAR DISPUTE IS GOVERNED BY THE U.S. TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946
(LANHAM ACT, 15 U.S.C. 81051 AND THE SECTIONS FOLLOWING IT) OR OTHER
FEDERAL LAW, THIS AGREEMENT AND THE FRANCHISE ARE GOVERNED BY
FLORIDA LAW, EXCLUDING ANY LAW REGULATING THE SALE OF FRANCHISES
OR GOVERNING THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN A FRANCHISOR AND FRAN-
CHISEE, UNLESS THE JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS OF SUCH LAWS ARE MET
INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THIS SECTION. ALL MATTERS
RELATING TO ARBITRATION ARE GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION
ACT. References to any law or regulation also refer to any successor laws or regulations and any
impending regulations for any statute, as in effect at the relevant time. References to a governmental
agency also refer to any successor regulatory body that succeeds to the function of such agency.

21.14  Jurisdiction. YOU AND WE CONSENT AND IRREVOCABLY SUBMIT
TO THE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF ANY STATE COURT OF COMPETENT
JURISDICTION LOCATED IN DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA (FEDERAL COURT -
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA) AND WAIVE ANY OBJECTION TO THE
JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF SUCH COURTS. THE EXCLUSIVE CHOICE OF
JURISDICTION DOES NOT PRECLUDE ARBITRATION AS DESCRIBED IN THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE BRINGING OF ANY ACTION BY THE PARTIES OR THE
ENFORCEMENT BY THE PARTIES IN ANY JUDGMENT OBTAINED IN ANY SUCH
JURISDICTION, IN ANY OTHER APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION OR THE RIGHT OF
THE PARTIES TO CONFIRM OR ENFORCE ANY ARBITRATION AWARD IN ANY
APPROPRIATE JURISDICTION.

21.15 Waiver of Jury Trial. YOU AND WE EACH IRREVOCABLY WAIVE
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER
AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER YOU OR US.
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21.16 Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in this Agreement are
cumulative and neither you nor we will be prohibited from exercising any other right or remedy
provided under this Agreement or permitted by law or equity.

21.17 Costs and Attorneys’ Fees. If a claim for amounts owed by you to us or any of
our affiliates is asserted in any legal or arbitration proceeding or if either you or we are required to
enforce this Agreement in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, the party prevailing in such proceeding
will be entitled to reimbursement of its costs and expenses, including reasonable accounting and
attorneys’ fees. Attorneys’ fees will include, without limitation, reasonable legal fees charged by
attorneys, paralegal fees, and costs and disbursements, whether incurred prior to, or in preparation
for, or contemplation of, the filing of written demand or claim, action, hearing, or proceeding to
enforce the obligations of the parties under this Agreement.

21.18 Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding on and will inure to the benefit of our
successors and assigns. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement will also
be binding on your successors and assigns, and your heirs, executors and administrators.

21.19  Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the introduction, addenda and
exhibits to it, constitutes the entire agreement between you and us. There are no other oral or written
understandings or agreements between you and us concerning the subject matter of this Agreement.
Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, this Agreement may be modified only by
written agreement signed by both you and us; except that this Agreement may be modified at our
request regardless of your signature to such modifications if 60% of the then existing franchisees in
our system vote in favor of the change we request. In such each, each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym location
will have one vote and any 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym locations owned by us or our affiliates will have
one vote. If the vote is tied, we have cast the deciding vote. Upon the vote passing, the requested
change becomes immediately binding on all 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisees. However, nothing
in the agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made in the
Franchise Disclosure Document.

21.20 No Liability to Others: No Other Beneficiaries. We will not, because of this
Agreement or by virtue of any approvals, advice or services provided to you, be liable to any person

or legal entity who is not a party to this Agreement. Except as specifically described in this
Agreement, no other party has any rights because of this Agreement. The Franchisee acknowledges
that other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisees have or will be granted franchises at different times,
different locations, under different economic conditions and in different situations, and further
acknowledges that the economics and terms and conditions of such other franchises may vary
substantially in form and in substance from those contained in this Agreement.

21.21  Construction. The headings of the sections are for convenience only. If two or
more persons are at any time Franchise owners hereunder, whether or not as partners or joint
venturers, their obligations and liabilities to us are joint and several. This Agreement may be signed
in multiple copies, each of which will be an original. “A or B” means “A” or “B” or both.

21.22  Certain Definitions. The term “family member” refers to parents, spouses, off-
spring and siblings, and the parents and siblings of spouses. The term “affiliate” means any Business
Entity directly or indirectly owned or controlled by a person, under common control with a person or
controlled by a person. The terms “franchisee, franchise owner, you and your” are applicable to
one or more persons, a Business Entity, as the case may be. The singular use of any pronoun also
includes the plural and the masculine and neuter usages include the other and the feminine. The
term “person” includes individuals and Business Entities. You and we are sometimes referred to
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individually as a “party” and collectively as “parties.” The term “section” refers to a section or
subsection of this Agreement. The word “control” means the power to direct or cause the direction
of management and policies. The word “owner” means any person holding a direct or indirect, legal
or beneficial ownership interest or voting rights in another person (or a transferee of this Agreement
or an interest in you), including any person who has a direct or indirect interest in you or this
Agreement and any person who has any other legal or equitable interest, or the power to vest in
himself any legal or equitable interest, in the revenue, profits, rights or assets. Where a measure of
distance is indicated, the distance is measured as a straight-line shortest measure from such two
points.

21.23 Timing is of the Essence. It will be a material breach of this Agreement to fail to
perform any obligation within the time required or permitted by this Agreement. In computing time
periods from one date to a later date, the words “from” and “commencing on” (and the like) mean
“from and including”; and the words “to,” “until” and “ending on” (and the like) mean “to but
excluding.” Indications of time of day mean Michigan time.

21.24  Exercise of our Business Judgment. We have the right, in our sole judgment to
operate, develop and change the System in any manner that is not specifically prohibited by this
Agreement. Whenever we have reserved in this Agreement a right to take or withhold an action, or
to grant or decline to grant you a right to take or omit an action, we may, except as otherwise
specifically provided in this Agreement, make our decision or exercise our rights based on the
information readily available to us and our judgment of what is in our and/or our franchise network’s
best interests at the time our decision is made, regardless of whether we could have made other
reasonable or even arguably preferable alternative decisions or whether our decision or the action we
take promotes our financial or other individual interest.

21.25 Electronic Mail. You acknowledge and agree that exchanging information with
us by e-mail is efficient and desirable for day-to-day communications and that we and you may utilize
e-mail for such communications. You authorize the transmission of e-mail by us and our
employees, vendors, and Affiliates (“Official Senders™) to you during the Term. You further agree
that (a) Official Senders are authorized to send e-mails to those of your employees as you may
occasionally authorize for the purpose of communicating with us; (b) you will cause your officers,
directors, and employees to give their consent to Official Senders’ transmission of e-mails to them;
(c) you will require such persons not to opt out or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails from
Official Senders during the time that such person works for or is affiliated with you; and (d) you will
not opt out or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails from Official Senders during the Term. The
consent given in this Subsection will not apply to the provision of notices by either party under this
Agreement using e-mail unless the parties otherwise agree in a written document manually signed by
both parties.

22. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.

All written notices and reports permitted or required under this Agreement or by the Manuals will be
deemed delivered:

€)] two (2) business days after being placed in the hands of a commercial airborne
courier service for next business day delivery; or

(b) three (3) business days after placement in the United States mail by certified mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid.

All such notices must be addressed to the parties as follows:
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If to Us: 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
2221 North East 164" Street, Suite 252
North Miami Beach, Florida 33160
Attention: Jackson Loychuk
Franchise Department

If to You:

Attention:

Either you or we may change the address for delivery of all notices and reports and any such notice will be
effective within ten (10) business days of any change in address. Any required payment or report not
actually received by us during regular business hours on the date due (or postmarked by postal authorities
at least two (2) days prior to such date, or in which the receipt from the commercial courier service is not
dated prior to two (2) days prior to such date) will be deemed delinquent.

You have applied for a franchise to own and operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. We are willing to

grant you the right to operate a 30 Minute Hit® Gym under the terms of this Agreement.

23.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

23.1 Acknowledgments. You acknowledge and agree that:

@) you have read this Agreement and its exhibits, and our Franchise Disclosure
Document and its exhibits;

(b) you understand and accept the terms, conditions and covenants contained in this
Agreement as being reasonably necessary to maintain our high standards of quality and service and
the uniformity of those standards at each 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym and to protect and preserve the
System, Copyrights and goodwill of the Marks;

(c) you have conducted an independent investigation of the business venture
contemplated by this Agreement and recognize that, like any other business, the nature of the
business conducted by a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym may evolve and change over time;

(d) an investment in a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym involves business risks and that your
business abilities and efforts are vital to the success of the venture;

(e) any information you acquire from other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym franchisees relating
to their sales, profits or cash flows does not constitute information obtained from us, nor do we
make any representation as to the accuracy of any such information;

()] in all of their dealings with you, our officers, directors, employees and agents act
only in a representative, and not in an individual capacity. All business dealings between you and
such persons as a result of this Agreement are solely between you and us; and

(9) we have advised you to have this Agreement reviewed and explained to you by an
attorney.
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23.2 Representations. You represent to us, as an inducement to our entry into this Agreement,

(@) all statements you have made and all materials you have submitted to us in connection
with your purchase of the franchise are accurate and complete and that you have made no
misrepresentations or material omissions in obtaining the franchise;

(b) you will comply with and/or assist us to the fullest extent possible in our efforts to
comply with Executive Order 13224 issued by the President of the United States, the USA
PATRIOT Act, and all other present and future federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations,
policies, lists and any other requirements of any governmental authority addressing or in any way
relating to terrorist acts and acts of war (the “Anti-Terrorism Laws”);

(c) neither you nor any of your owners, employees, agents, property or interests are
subject to being “blocked” under any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws and that neither you nor they are
otherwise in violation of any of the Anti-Terrorism Laws; and

(d) you have read, in their entirety, this Agreement and its exhibits, and the Franchise
Disclosure Document and its exhibits.

We have approved your request to purchase a Franchise to operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in reliance on
all of your representations.

23.3 No Warranties. We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you
have not received or relied upon, any warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, sales,
profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement or the extent to which we will
continue to develop and expand the network of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You acknowledge and understand
the following:

@) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or profits of the
business venture are made solely in the Franchise Disclosure Document delivered to you prior to
signing this Agreement;

(b) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or profits of the
business venture or statistical information regarding any existing 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym owned by
us or our affiliates, or that is not contained in our Franchise Disclosure Document, is unauthorized,
unwarranted and unreliable and should be reported to us immediately; and

(© you have not received or relied on any representations about us or our franchising
program or policies made by us, or our officers, directors, employees or agents, that are contrary to
the statements made in our Franchise Disclosure Document or to the terms of this Agreement. If
there are any exceptions to any of the foregoing, you agree to: (i) immediately notify our President;
and (ii) note such exceptions by attaching a statement of exceptions to this Agreement prior to
signing it.

23.4 Business Organization. If you are, at any time, a business organization (like a
corporation, limited liability company or partnership) (“Business Entity”), you agree and represent that:

@) you have the authority to execute, deliver and perform your obligations under this
Agreement and are duly organized or formed and validly existing in good standing under the laws
of the state of your incorporation or formation;

(b) your organizational or governing documents will recite that the issuance and
transfer of any ownership interests in you are restricted by the terms of this Agreement, and all
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certificates and other documents representing ownership interests in you will bear a legend referring
to the restrictions of this Agreement;

(©) the Principal Owner’s Statement will completely and accurately describe all of
your owners and their interests in you (a copy of our current form of Principal Owner’s Statement
is attached as an exhibit to our Franchise Disclosure Document);

(d) you and your owners agree to revise the Principal Owner’s Statement, as may be
necessary, to reflect any ownership changes and to furnish such other information about your
organization or formation as we may request (no ownership changes that reduce your ownership
below fifty-one percent (51%) may be made without our approval);

(e) a Principal Owner of the Business Entity (defined as a person with ownership of
at least ten percent (10%) of its voting securities) must: (i) have a sufficient amount of experience
in managing and operating full service Gyms (in terms of duration, operational responsibilities,
previous training, etc.) as a Gym Manager or in a similar supervisory position to demonstrate to us
that he/she is capable of managing a Gym; (ii) have management responsibility and authority over
the “Gym” (defined as your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym) on a day-to-day basis; (iii) be actively
employed on a full-time basis to manage the Gym’s operations; (iv) be bound by our then-current
form of Confidentiality, Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition Agreement (See Exhibit “B”); and
(v) satisfactorily complete our Owner Training program and any other training programs we request
during the Term (defined in Section 2.3);

0] each of your Principal Owners, during the term of this Agreement, will sign and
deliver to us our standard form of Principal Owner’s Guaranty (“Owner’s Guaranty”) undertaking
to be bound jointly and severally by all provisions of this Agreement and any other agreements
between you and us. A copy of our current form of Principal Owner’s Guaranty is attached as an
exhibit to our Franchise Disclosure Document; and

(9) at our request, you will furnish true and correct copies of all documents and
contracts governing the rights, obligations and powers of your owners and agents, These documents

and contracts include, but are not limited to, Articles of Incorporation or organization and
partnership, operating or shareholder agreements and the like.

The next page is the signature page.
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Intending to be bound, you and we sign and deliver this Agreement in two (2) counterparts effective on the
Agreement Date, regardless of the actual date of signature.

C‘US’7: G‘YOU”:

30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC

By: By:
Name: Deanna Loychuk Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:

[Business Entity Name]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT “A”
TO THE
30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
DATED , 20
WITH

(Name of Franchise Owner)

Grand Opening Advertising Fees. You must spend at least $6,000 in Grand Opening Advertising Fees on
your grand opening advertising and promotional program.

Designated Area. The Designated Area for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym is as follows:

[ ] Tobe designated after selection of Site.

Site Selection Area. The Site Selection Area for your 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (as referenced in Section 2.1)
is as follows:

[] To be designated within 30 days of signing the Franchise Agreement.

Site. The address of your approved Site is:

[] To be designated within 12 months of signing the Franchise Agreement.
Rovalty. Currently, your Royalty is based on your Gross Sales “Tier” (not the percentage based formula in
Section 6.2 of the Franchise Agreement): Tier 1: under $100,000 = $500/month; Tier 2: $100,001 to

$200,000 = $600/month; Tier 3: $200,001 to $300,000 = $700/month; Tier 4: $300,001 to $400,000 =
$800/month; and Tier 5: $400,001+ = $900/month.

Current System Fund Fees. $0 per month.

Initial Equipment. [ ] List of Initial Equipment items to be attached)

FRANCHISE OWNER: 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




LIST OF INITIAL EQUIPMENT

- 900 square feet of interlock mats - sent directly from wholesaler
- 5 #7 kicking shields mounted onto boards

- 1 rectangular kicking shield mounted onto board
- 1 rectangular kicking shield

- 2 exercise mats 1.5"x 24" x48"

- 2 Fitness exercise balls 65cm

- 1l inflating pump 12"

- 1 leather medicine ball 6-8lbs

- 1 leather medicine ball 9-11lbs

- 1 leather medicine ball 15-18lbs

- 1 short heavy bag 60Ib

- 5 skipping ropes

- 1 BOB with base

- 1 roundhouse bag with base and foam collar

- Laminated level signs for the circuit

-5 Powder Coated Steel Stands and one pole for roundhouse



EXHIBIT “B” TO THE
30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DATED _, 20 WITH

(Name of Franchise Owner)

CONFIDENTIALITY, NON-SOLICITATION AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

THIS CONFIDENTIALITY,NON-SOLICITATION AND NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is effective as of , 20___, between , a
(we,” “us,” “our” or “Franchisee”) and contractor of ours, and (“you” or “your”), an
employee or independent

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

We have entered into a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) with 30 MINUTE HIT
USA, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company (the “Franchisor”) to operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
(the “Gym”) at (the “Site”). The Gym specializes in
offering a high intensity circuit training program known as the “30 Minute Hit” program, which includes high
intensity circuit training workouts comprised of boxing, kickboxing, and core strengthening exercises, in a
distinctive and innovative environment and is operated pursuant to formats, specifications, standards methods
and procedures prescribed or approved by the Franchisor (the “System”). We possess or have access to
certain confidential information, consisting of location selection criteria; the System; the operations manuals;
other proprietary materials; the sales and marketing techniques used, knowledge of and experience in
developing and operating a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym; customer information; marketing and advertising
programs; knowledge of specifications for and suppliers of certain goods, services, furniture, fixtures,
equipment, software, furnishings and signs, materials and supplies, certain of which the Franchisor licenses
to us or which are developed by us under the Franchise Agreement but are owned by the Franchisor (the
“Confidential Information”).

You understand that the System and Confidential Information are the Franchisor’s proprietary, trade
secrets and are confidential. You acknowledge that we and the Franchisor have provided you with
specialized and extensive training regarding the Gym and that we have developed extensive customer
goodwill. We have an obligation under our Franchise Agreement to maintain the Confidential Information
as secret and confidential. You represent to us and the Franchisor that you have other skills that you can
utilize if, for any reason, your relationship with us ends.

OPERATIVE TERMS:
Accordingly, you and we agree as follows:

1. Confidentiality. You will (a) not use the Confidential Information in any other Gym or
capacity; (b) maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Confidential Information during and after the term
of the Franchise Agreement and your employment by, or association with, us; (c) not make unauthorized
copies of any portion of the Confidential Information disclosed in written form; and (d) comply with all
procedures we prescribe from time to time to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential
Information.

2. Competitive Restrictions. During the time that you are associated with us, as an employee
or independent contractor and for 2 years afterwards, unless we and the Franchisor otherwise permit in
writing and except on our behalf, neither you nor any of your owners will:

@) have any direct or indirect interest (e.g., through a spouse or child) as a disclosed
or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, member, manager,
representative or agent or in any other capacity in any business or facility owning, operating,
managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others to do so, or in any business (other than a 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym operated under a franchise agreement with Franchisor) (a “Competitive
Business”) operating:



(i) at the Site;
(i) within 25 miles of the Site;

(iii)  at any other site for any other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in operation or under
construction on the later of the effective date of the termination or expiration of your
employment or the date on which you comply with such restrictions; or

(iv)  within 25 miles of any other 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym in operation or under
construction on the later of the effective date of the termination or expiration of your
employment or the date on which you comply with such restrictions (see Section 5 below).

(b) on behalf of yourself or any other person, or in any capacity associated with any
other person or entity, solicit, divert, take away, or interfere with any of the business, customers,
clients, vendors, suppliers, franchisees or contractors of ours or the Franchisor, our or its affiliates
or any of its franchisees as may exist during the term of this Agreement or thereafter.

3. Severability and Substitution. You acknowledge and agree that these competitive
restrictions will not unreasonably deprive you of your ability to earn a living or engage other business
activities. You and we agree that: (a) the time period, geographic area, and scope of the competitive
restrictions contained in this Agreement are reasonably necessary to protect our localized efforts and the
Franchisor’s efforts to develop 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms throughout the U.S.; and (b) to the extent that any
portion of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable by virtue of its scope, area, 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym
activity, or duration, but may be made enforceable by modifying any or all thereof; this Agreement will be
enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the laws or public policies of the jurisdiction in which
enforcement is sought, and such modified provision will be enforced to the fullest extent.

4, Extension of Time Period. The time period during which you are to refrain from any of
the activities listed in this Agreement will be automatically extended by any length of time during which
you or any of your affiliates, successors or assigns are in breach of any provision of this Agreement. This
Agreement will continue through the duration of the extended time periods.

5. Suspension of Compensation. We will not be required to pay any other compensation to
you during any period of time in which you are in breach of this Agreement. Upon such breach, you forfeit
payment of such amounts without limitation on any other remedies available to us for redress.

6. No Defense or Setoff. You must not assert, by way of defense or setoff, any alleged breach
or damage caused by you if we must enforce this Agreement against you.

7. Injunctive Relief. You and we agree that the breach of this Agreement will result in
irreparable harm to us or the Franchisor, and that no monetary award can fully compensate us or the
Franchisor if you violate it. Thus, if you breach this Agreement, you agree that we will be entitled to an
injunction restraining you from any further breach. Such injunctive relief may be obtained without bond,
but upon due notice, in addition to such other and further remedies or relief as may be available to us or the
Franchisor at equity or law.

8. Relationship. This Agreement governs only certain aspects of your relationship with us.
The terms and conditions of your employment or provision of services for us remain the same as they have
been prior to the date of this Agreement, or as established afterwards. By entering into this Agreement,
neither you nor we are committing to employ or engage the other, or to work for the other for any period
of time or under any new or different terms and conditions. If you are an employee, this Agreement does
not change your status as “at will.”

9. Miscellaneous.

@) Complete Agreement: This Agreement contains the complete agreement between
the parties concerning this subject matter. This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous



agreement, representation or understanding, oral or written, between them. The continued
relationship between the parties described in this Agreement constitutes full and sufficient
consideration for the binding commitment of the parties to this Agreement.

(b) Waiver and Amendment: A waiver or amendment of this Agreement, or any
provision of it, will be valid and effective only if it is in writing and signed by all parties or the party
waiving such provision. No waiver of any term of this Agreement will operate as a waiver of any
other term of this Agreement or of that same term at any other time.

(c) Rights Cumulative: No right or remedy available to any party is exclusive of any
other remedy. Each and every remedy will be cumulative to any other remedy given under this
Agreement, or otherwise legally existing upon the occurrence of a breach of this Agreement.

10. Certain Definitions: As used throughout this Agreement, the following terms have the
following meanings:

(@  Theterm “Competitive Business” as used in this Agreement “Competitive Business”
is any business or facility owning, operating or managing, or granting franchises or licenses to others
to do so, any physical fitness, self-defense, kickboxing, mixed martial arts, martial arts products or
services, or any similar products or services to those then offered by a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (other
than a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym operated under a Franchise Agreement with us).

(b) The term “person” means any corporation, professional corporation or
association, partnership (limited or general), joint venture, trust, association or other entity or
enterprise or any natural person.

) The term “affiliate” means, with respect to any person, any other person that
directly, indirectly, or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by or is under
common control with, such person, and includes any subsidiaries or other entities that are
beneficially owned by such person or its affiliates.

(d) The term “attorney’s fees” means any and all charges levied by an attorney for his
services, including time charges, expenses and other reasonable fees including paralegal fees and
legal assistant fees, and includes fees earned in settlement, at trial, on appeal or in bankruptcy
proceedings.

11. Attorneys’ Fees. In any action or dispute, at law or in equity, that may arise under or
otherwise relate to this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to full reimbursement of its litigation
or arbitration expenses from the other party. Litigation or arbitration expenses include attorneys’ fees, costs,
arbitration fees, expert witness fees and other related expenses including paralegal fees, travel and lodging
expenses and court and arbitration filing costs. Reimbursement is due within 30 days of written notice after
determination.

12. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the law of the state where the 30
MINUTE HIT® GYM is located.

13. Third Party Beneficiary. The parties understand and acknowledge that the Franchisor is a
third-party beneficiary of the terms of this Agreement and, at its option, may enforce the provisions
of this Agreement against you. Your obligations under this Agreement will continue for the benefit
of our and the Franchisor’s successors and assigns.

14. Survival. The provisions of this Agreement survive any termination of the Franchise
Agreement or the relationship between you and us.

15. Backaround Information. The background information is true and correct and is
incorporated into this Agreement. This Agreement will be interpreted with reference to the background
information,



Intending to be bound, the parties sign below:

THE “FRANCHISEE”: “YOU”:
By:

Name: Name:
Its: Date:

Date:




EXHIBIT “C” TO THE
30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
DATED ,20___WITH

(Name of Franchise Owner)



ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

19 &
Nrgrast
THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is made and entered into on , 20 , by and between
30 MINUTE HITUSA, LLC (“Franchisor”) located at
2221 NORTH EAST 164™ STREET, NORTH MIAMI BEACH, FL 33160 ,and
(“Franchisee”),
located at
Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on , 20 (such Agreement,

together with any amendments, the “Franchise Agreement”). Franchisee is applying for financing(s) from a lender in
which funding is provided with the assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”). SBA requires the

execution of this Addendum as a condition for obtaining SBA-assisted financing.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which the parties acknowledge the parties agree that notwithstanding any other terms in the Franchise Agreement or any

other document Franchisor requires Franchisee to sign:
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

. If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisee and Franchisor has an option to
purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that partial interest, Franchisor may exercise such option
or right only if the proposed transferee is not a current owner or family member of a current owner of
Franchisee. If the Franchisor’s consent is required for any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not
unreasonably withhold such consent. In the event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest or any
portion thereof, the transferor will not be liable for the actions of the transferee Franchisee.

FORCED SALE OF ASSETS

. If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or termination of the
Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the value of the assets, the value will be
determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the
franchisee location is operating, Franchisee will not be required to sell the real estate upon default or
termination, but Franchisee may be required to lease the real estate for the remainder of the franchise term
(excluding additional renewals) for fair market value.

L While relationships established under license, jobber, dealer and similar agreements are not generally described as “franchise” relationships, if
such relationships meet the Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC’s) definition of a franchise (see 16 CFR § 436), they are treated by SBA as franchise
relationships for franchise affiliation determinations per 13 CFR § 121.301(f)(5).



COVENANTS

. If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchisee location is operating, Franchisor has not and
will not during the term of the Franchise agreement record against the real estate any restrictions on the
use of the property, including any restrictive covenants, branding covenants or environmental use
restrictions. If any such restrictions are currently recorded against the Franchisee’s real estate, they must
be removed in order for the Franchisee to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

EMPLOYMENT

. Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee’s employees. For temporary
personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be employed by the Franchisee not the Franchisor.

As to the referenced Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no longer has any
interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee.

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect according to its terms.
Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the withholding of material

information from SBA, can result in criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and other provisions, including liability
for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. 8§ 3729 — 3733.

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISOR

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISEE

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Note to Parties: This Addendum only addresses “affiliation” between the Franchisor and Franchisee. Additionally, the
applicable Franchisee and the franchise system must meet all SBA requirements.
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CONDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT OF TELEPHONE NUMBERS AND LISTINGS

THIS CONDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT OF TELEPHONE NUMBERS AND LISTINGS (this
“Assignment”) is effective as of 20, between 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC, a Florida limited liability
company, with  its principal place of business (“we,”
“us” or “our”) and whose current place of business is

(“you” or “your”). You and we are sometimes referred to collectively as the “parties” or individually as a
“party”.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

We have simultaneously entered into the certain Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”)
dated as of with you, pursuant to which you plan to own and operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Gym”). 30
MINUTE HIT® Gyms use certain proprietary knowledge, procedures, formats, systems, forms, printed
materials, applications, methods, specifications, standards and techniques authorized or developed by us
(collectively the “System”). We identify 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms and various components of the System by
certain trademarks, trade names, service marks, trade dress and other commercial symbols (collectively the
“Marks”). In order to protect our interest in the System and the Marks, we will have the right to control the
telephone numbers and listings of the Gym if the Franchise Agreement is terminated.

OPERATIVE TERMS:
You and we agree as follows:

1. Backaround Information. The background information is true and correct. This Assignment
will be interpreted by reference to the background information. Terms not otherwise defined in this Assignment
will have the meanings as defined in the Franchise Agreement.

2. Conditional Assignment. You assign to us, all of your right, title and interest in and to those
certain telephone numbers and regular, classified or other telephone directory listings (collectively, the
“Numbers and Listings”) associated with the Marks and used from time to time in connection with the
operation of the Gym. We will have no liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or in
connection with this Assignment, unless we notify the telephone company and/or the listing agencies with
which you have placed telephone directory listings (collectively, the “Telephone Company”) to effectuate the
assignment of the Numbers and Listings to us. Upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement we
will have the right and authority to ownership of the Numbers and Listings. In such event, you will have no
further right, title or interest in the Numbers and Listings and will remain liable to the Telephone Company for
all past due fees owing to the Telephone Company on or before the date on which the assignment is effective.
As between us and you, upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, we will have the sole right
to and interest in the Numbers and Listings.

3. Power of Attorney. You irrevocably appoint us as your true and lawful attorney-in-fact to:
(a) direct the Telephone Company to effectuate the assignment of the Numbers and Listings to us; and (b) sign
on your behalf such documents and take such actions as may be necessary to effectuate the assignment.
Notwithstanding anything else in the Assignment, however, you will immediately notify and instruct the
Telephone Company to effectuate the assignment described in this Assignment to us when, and only when: (i)
the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires; and (ii) we instruct you to so notify the Telephone Company.
If you fail to promptly direct the Telephone Company to effectuate the assignment of the Numbers and Listings
to us, we will direct the Telephone Company to do so. The Telephone Company may accept our written
direction, the Franchise Agreement or this Assignment as conclusive proof of our exclusive rights in and to the
Numbers and Listings upon such termination or expiration. The assignment will become immediately and
automatically effective upon Telephone Company's receipt of such notice from you or us. If the Telephone
Company requires that you and/or we sign the Telephone Company's assignment forms or other documentation

C-



at the time of termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, our signature On such forms or
documentation on your behalf will effectuate your consent and agreement to the assignment. At any time, you
and we will perform such acts and sign and deliver such documents as may be necessary to assist in or
accomplish the assignment described herein upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement. The
power of attorney conferred upon us pursuant to the provisions set forth in this Assignment is a power coupled
with an interest and cannot be revoked, modified or altered without our consent.

4. Indemnification. You will indemnify and hold us and our affiliates, stockholders, directors,
officers and representatives (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any and all
losses, liabilities, claims, proceedings, demands, damages, judgments, injuries, attorneys' fees, costs and
expenses that any of the Indemnified Parties incur as a result of any claim brought against any of the
Indemnified Parties or any action which any of the Indemnified Parties are named as a party or which any of
the Indemnified Parties may suffer, sustain or incur by reason of, or arising out of, your breach of any of the
terms of any agreement or contract or the nonpayment of any debt you have with the Telephone Company.

5. Binding Effect. This Assignment is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and
their respective successors-in-interest, heirs, and successors and assigns.

6. Assignment to Control. This Assignment will govern and control over any conflicting
provision in any agreement or contract which you may have with the Telephone Company.

7. Attorney's Fees, Etc.. In any action or dispute, at law or in equity, that may arise under or
otherwise relate to this Assignment or the enforcement thereof, the prevailing party will be entitled to
reimbursement of its attorneys' fees, costs and expenses from the non-prevailing party. The term “attorneys'
fees” means any and all charges levied by an attorney for his or her services including time charges and other
reasonable fees including paralegal fees and legal assistant fees and includes fees earned in settlement, at trial,
appeal or in bankruptcy proceedings and/or in arbitration proceedings.

8. Severability. If any of the provisions of this Assignment or any section or subsection of this
Assignment is held invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Assignment or any such section or subsection
will not be affected, and will remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

9. Governing Law and Forum. This Assignment is governed by Florida law. The parties will
not institute any action against any of the other parties to this Assignment except in the state or federal courts
of general jurisdiction in Dade County, Florida, and they irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of such courts
and waive any objection they may have to either the jurisdiction or venue of such court.

ASSIGNOR: ASSIGNEE:
FRANCHISEE 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




THIS CONDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT OF TELEPHONE NUMBERS AND LISTINGS is accepted and
agreed to by:

(TELEPHONE COMPANY)
By: Name:
Its: Date:
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CONDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF L EASE

THIS CONDITIONAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASE (this “Assignment”) is
made, entered into and effective as of the effective date of the Lease (as defined hereinbelow), by, between
and among 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC, with its principal business address located at 2221 North East 164th
Street, Suite 252, North Miami Beach, Florida 33160 (the “Franchisor”), and
, Whose current principal place of business is
(the “Franchisee”).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Franchisor entered into that certain Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) dated
as of ., 20 with the Franchisee, pursuant to which the Franchisee plans to

own and operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Gym”) located at

(the “Site™). In addition, pursuant to that certain Lease Agreement (the “Lease”), the Franchisee has leased
or will lease certain space containing the Gym described therein from

(the “Lessor”).
The Franchise Agreement requires the Franchisee to deliver this Assignment to the Franchisor as a condition
to the grant of a franchise.

OPERATIVE TERMS

The Franchisor and the Franchisee agree as follows:

1. Backaground Information. The background information is true and correct. This
Assignment will be interpreted by reference to, and construed in accordance with, the background
information.

2. Incorporation of Terms. Terms not otherwise defined in this Assignment have the
meanings as defined in the Lease.

3. Indemnification of Franchisor. The Franchisee agrees to indemnify and hold the
Franchisor and its affiliates, stockholders, directors, officers and representatives harmless from and against
any and all losses, liabilities, claims, proceedings, demands, damages, judgments, injuries, attorneys' fees,
costs and expenses, that they incur resulting from any claim brought against any of them or any action which
any of them are named as a party or which any of them may suffer, sustain or incur by reason of, or arising
out of, the Franchisee's breach of any of the terms of the Lease, including the failure to pay rent or any other
terms and conditions of the Lease.

4. Assignment. The Franchisee grants to the Franchisor a security interest in and to the
Lease, all of the furniture, fixtures, inventory and supplies located in the Site and the franchise relating to
the Gym, and all of the Franchisee's rights, title and interest in and to the Lease as collateral for the payment
of any obligation, liability or other amount owed by the Franchisee or its affiliates to the Lessor arising
under the Lease and for any default or breach of any of the terms and provisions of the Lease, and for any
default or breach of any of the terms and provisions of the Franchise Agreement. In the event of a breach
or default by the Franchisee under the terms of the Lease, or, in the event the Franchisor makes any payment
to the Lessor as a result of the Franchisee's breach of the Lease, then such payment by the Franchisor, or
such breach or default by the Franchisee, shall at Franchisor's option be deemed to be an immediate default
under the Franchise Agreement, and the Franchisor shall be entitled to the possession of the Site and to all
of the rights, title and interest of the Franchisee in and to the Lease and to all other remedies described
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herein or in the Franchise Agreement or at law or in equity, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies
of the Franchisor under any other Agreements or under other applicable laws or equities. This Assignment
shall constitute a lien on the interest of the Franchisee in and to the Lease until satisfaction in full of all
amounts owed by the Franchisee to the Franchisor. In addition, the rights of the Franchisor to assume all
obligations under the Lease provided in this Assignment are totally optional on the part of the Franchisor,
to be exercised in its sole discretion. Franchisee agrees to execute any and all Uniform Commercial Code
financing statements and all other documents and instruments deemed necessary by Franchisor to perfect or
document the interests and assignments granted herein.

5. No Subordination. The Franchisee shall not permit the Lease to become subordinate to
any lien without first obtaining Franchisor's written consent, other than the lien created by this Assignment,
the Franchise Agreement, the Lessor's lien under the Lease, liens securing bank financing for the operations
of Franchisee on the Site and the agreements and other instruments referenced herein. The Franchisee will
not terminate, modify or amend any of the provisions or terms of the Lease without the prior written consent
of the Franchisor. Any attempt at termination, modification or amendment of any of the terms without such
written consent is null and void.

6. Exercise of Remedies. In any case of default by the Franchisee under the terms of the
Lease or under the Franchise Agreement, the Franchisor shall be entitled to exercise any one or more of the
following remedies in its sole discretion:

@ to take possession of the Site, or any part thereof, personally, or by its agents or
attorneys;
(b) to, in its discretion, without notice and with or without process of law, enter upon

and take and maintain possession of all or any part of the Site, together with all furniture, fixtures,
inventory, books, records, papers and accounts of the Franchisee;

(c) to exclude the Franchisee, its agents or employees from the Site;

(d) as attorney-in-fact for the Franchisee, or in its own name, and under the powers
herein granted, to hold, operate, manage and control the Gym and conduct the business, if any,
thereof, either personally or by its agents, with full power to use such measures, legally rectifiable,
as in its discretion may be deemed proper or necessary to cure such default, including actions of
forcible entry or detainer and actions in distress of rent, hereby granting full power and authority
to the Franchisor to exercise each and every of the rights, privileges and powers herein granted at
any and all times hereafter;

©) to cancel or terminate any unauthorized agreements or subleases entered into by
the Franchisee, for any cause or ground which would entitle the Franchisor to cancel the same;

()] to disaffirm any unauthorized agreement, sublease or subordinated lien, to make
all necessary or proper repairs, decorating, renewals, replacements, alterations, additions,
betterments and improvements to the Site or the Site that may seem judicious, in the sole discretion
of the Franchisor; and

(0) to insure and reinsure the same for all risks incidental to the Franchisor's
possession, operation and management thereof; and/or
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(h) notwithstanding any provision of the Franchise Agreement to the contrary, to
declare all of the Franchisee's rights but not obligations under the Franchise Agreement to be
immediately terminated as of the date of the Franchisee's default under the Lease.

7. Power of Attorney. The Franchisee does hereby appoint irrevocably the Franchisor as its
true and lawful attorney-in-fact in its name and stead and hereby authorizes it, upon any default under the
Lease or under the Franchise Agreement, with or without taking possession of the Site, to rent, lease, manage
and operate the Site to any person, firm or corporation upon such terms and conditions in its discre- tion as it
may determine, and with the same rights and powers and immunities, exoneration of liability and rights of
recourse and indemnity as the Franchisor would have upon taking possession of the Site pursuant to the
provisions set forth in the Lease. The power of attorney conferred upon the Franchisor pursuant to this
Assignment is a power coupled with an interest and cannot be revoked, modified or altered without the
written consent of the Franchisor.

8. Election of Remedies. It is understood and agreed that the provisions set forth in this
Assignment are deemed a special remedy given to the Franchisor and are not deemed to exclude any of the
remedies granted in the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement between the Franchisor and the
Franchisee, but are deemed an additional remedy and shall be cumulative with the remedies therein and
elsewhere granted to the Franchisor, all of which remedies are enforceable concurrently or successively. No
exercise by the Franchisor or any of the rights hereunder will cure, waiver or affect any default hereunder
or default under the Franchise Agreement. No inaction or partial exercise of rights by the Franchisor will
be construed as a waiver of any of its rights and remedies and no waiver by the Franchisor of any such rights
and remedies shall be construed as a waiver by the Franchisor of any future rights and remedies.

9. Binding Aareements. This Assignment and all provisions hereof shall be binding upon
the Franchisor and the Franchisee, their successors, assigns and legal representatives and all other persons
or entities claiming under them or through them, or either of them, and the words “Franchisor” and
“Franchisee” when used herein shall include all such persons and entities and any others liable for payment
of amounts under the Lease or the Franchise Agreement. All individuals executing on behalf of corporate
entities hereby represent and warrant that such execution has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
and shareholder authorizations and approvals.

10. Assignment to Control. This Assignment governs and controls over any conflicting
provisions in the Lease.

11. Attorney's Fees. Etc. In any action or dispute, at law or in equity, that may arise under or
otherwise relate to this Assignment, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover its attorneys' fees, costs
and expenses relating to any trial or appeal (including, without limitation, paralegal fees) or arbitration or
bankruptcy proceeding from the non-prevailing Party.

12. Severability. If any of the provisions of this Assignment or any section or subsection of
this Assignment shall be held invalid for any reason, the remainder of this Assignment or any such section
or subsection will not be affected thereby and will remain in full force and effect in accordance with its
terms.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Assignment to be executed as of the day
and year first above written.

THE “FRANCHISEE”: THE “FRANCHISOR”:

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
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AGREEMENT TO L EASE

THIS AGREEMENT TO LEASE (this “Agreement”) is made, entered into and effective on
.20 (the “Effective Date”) by: ,a

, Wwhose current business address is

(the “Franchisee”), for the benefit of 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company,
whose current business address is 2221 North East 164th Street, Suite 252, North Miami Beach, Florida
33160 (the “Franchisor”).

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Franchisee entered into that certain Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) dated
as of . 20 , with the Franchisor, pursuant to which the
Franchisee will own and operate a 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym (the “Gym”). The Gym is, or will be, located at

the (“Premises”). The Franchisee, or ,
its affiliate (the “Affiliate’), owns the Premises.

OPERATIVE TERMS:

The Franchisee and the Franchisor agree as follows:

1. Background Information. The background information is true and correct, and is
incorporated in this Agreement by reference.

2. Lease. If the Franchise Agreement is terminated, assigned, or transferred in any manner
whatsoever (or deemed to have been under the Franchise Agreement) (a “Triggering Event”), then, at the
Franchisor's option, the Franchisee or the Affiliate will enter into a written lease with the Franchisor (in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit “A” (the “Lease”). Any changes to the form of the Lease or any
addendum or modification to it will not be effective unless it has been previously approved by the
Franchisor.

3. Binding Agreements. This Agreement and all its provisions are binding upon the
Franchisor, the Affiliate and the Franchisee; and their successors, assigns and legal representatives. The
words “Affiliate,” “Franchisor” and “Franchisee” when used in this Agreement include all such persons and
entities and any others liable for payment of amounts under the Lease or the Franchise Agreement. All
individuals signing on behalf of corporate entities represent and warrant that such signatures are duly
authorized by all necessary corporate and shareholder authorizations and approvals.

4. verability. If any part(s) of this Agreement are held invalid for any reason, the
remainder of this Agreement will not be affected and will remain in full force and effect in accordance with
its terms.

5. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by Florida law.

6. Dispute Resolution. All parties agree that all unresolved disputes concerning this
Agreement must be submitted to mediation and/or arbitration as required by the Franchise Agreement. All
terms concerning the resolution of disputes contained in the Franchise Agreement are incorporated into this
Agreement (including reimbursement of attorneys' fees, jurisdiction and venue, etc.).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
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WITNESSES:

Print Name:

Print Name:

Print Name:

Print Name:

Print Name:

Print Name:

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Title:

AFFILIATE:

By:

Name:

Title:

FRANCHISOR:

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC,
a Florida limited liability company

By:

Name:

Title:
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT



30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEVELOPER

DATE
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC

This Area Development Agreement (the “Agreement’) is made and entered intoon _____

.20 (the “Effective Date”) by and between 30 Minute Hit USA,

LLC, a Florida limited liability company with an address at 2221 North East 164" Street, Suite
252, North Miami Beach, 33160 (“we”, “us”, “our”, “30 Minute Hit” or “Franchisor”) and

,a with an address at

(“you”, “your” or “Franchisee”) on the date this

Agreement is executed by us below (the “Effective Date”). Franchisor and Franchisee are

sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as the “parties”.

BACKGROUND

A. 30 Minute Hit, as the result of the expenditure of time, skill, effort and money, owns
and continues to develop a franchise system (the “System”) involving the establishment and
operation of franchised Gyms (each, a “Gym” or “Franchised Business”), which offer the high
intensity circuit training program known as “30 Minute Hit” program, which includes high
intensity circuit training comprised on boxing, kickboxing, and core strengthening exercises under
the mark 30 Minute Hit® and such other marks as designated by Franchisor (the “Marks”).

B. The characteristics of the System may include, without limitation, sales and
operating methods; interior and exterior Gym design; décor; layout; fixtures and furnishings;
equipment; class structure and instruction; customer service and development techniques; uniform
standards and procedures for efficient business operations; training and assistance; Brand Funds;
pricing specifications; all of which may, at times, be changed, improved and further developed
from time to time by 30 Minute Hit.

C. 30 Minute Hit identifies the System by means of certain trade names, service marks,
trademarks, logos, emblems and indicia of origin, including, but not limited to, the mark 30 Minute
Hit® and the 30 Minute Hit® logo, and/or such other different and/or additional trade names,
trademarks, and service marks as are now designated and may hereafter be designated by 30
Minute Hit in writing for use in connection with the System (the "Proprietary Marks” or “Marks”).

D. 30 Minute Hit has the right to establish System "Standards and Specifications" for
various aspects of the System, including, without limitation, standards and specifications related
to location selection, the Gym's physical characteristics, operating procedures, products and
services offered, supplier qualifications, training, marketing and other aspects that affect and/or
relate to the experience of System customers. You are required to comply with 30 Minute Hit
Standards and Specifications, which 30 Minute Hit has the right to (and expects to) change and
modify over time.

E. You have had a full and adequate opportunity to be thoroughly advised of the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and have had sufficient time and opportunity to evaluate and
investigate the business concept and the procedure and financial requirement associated with the
business as well as the competitive market in which it operates.
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F. You have expressed an interest in obtaining the right to open multiple Gyms within
a specific geographic area, and we are willing to grant such right upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the above recitals, the covenants, agreements and conditions set forth
below and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. APPOINTMENT, DEVELOPMENT TERRITORY AND MINIMUM
DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION

1.1 Development Area

Subject to your strict compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, we grant
to you, and you accept, the right during the term of this Agreement to open and operate the number
of Gyms designated in Exhibit A within the “Development Area” described in Exhibit A. All of
your Gyms must be located within the Development Area. Except as otherwise set forth in this
Agreement, including, without limitation, as set forth in Section 1.4 below, for so long as you are
in compliance with your obligations under this Agreement, we will not open or operate, and will
not license any other person or entity the right to open or operate, one or more Gyms within the
Development Area.

This grant is upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement. You
acknowledge and agree that our initial service under this Agreement is solely to identify the
Development Area, and that we have no ongoing obligations such as training or operational
assistance to you under this Agreement. All ongoing and further obligations to you in opening the
Gyms shall be provided pursuant to the applicable Franchise Agreement between you and us for
each Gym you are required to open under this Agreement.

1.2 Minimum Development Obligations

1.2.1  You shall comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and you
shall comply with the following “Minimum Development Obligations™: (i) secure a site and enter
into a lease agreement for each Gym you are required to develop under this Agreement on or before
the lease execution deadline set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Lease Execution
Deadlines”), (ii) develop and open each Gym you are required to develop under this Agreement
on or before the opening deadline set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Opening Deadlines”),
and (iii) have open and in operation within the Development Area, not less than the cumulative
number of Gyms identified in Exhibit A to this Agreement; (collectively, “the Minimum
Development Obligation”). YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT TIME IS OF THE
ESSENCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT ARE SUBJECT TO TERMINATION IF YOU DO NOT STRICTLY
COMPLY WITH THE MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS.

1.2.2  For each Gym you are required to develop under this Agreement, you shall
enter into our then-current form of Franchise Agreement and pay to us our then-current initial
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franchise fee, within the time periods set forth in this Agreement. You may form newly established,
separate affiliate entities that share the identical ownership structure as Developer, to enter into the
lease agreements and franchise agreements for each Gym you are required to open under this
Agreement (each a “Developer Affiliate”). You, each of your owners, and each owner of each
Developer Affiliate, as applicable, shall enter into a personal guaranty agreement in the form
attached to the applicable Franchise Agreement, which form may be materially different from the
form attached to the FDD you received prior to entering into this Agreement. You also
acknowledge and agree that the estimated initial investment figures presented in the FDD you
received prior to entering into this Agreement are estimates only and are subject to modification,
including increases related to modifications to specifications and requirements to develop Gyms.
You shall designate one (1) individual who shall be designated in Exhibit A attached hereto, who
has the authority to, and does in fact, actively direct your business affairs related to your obligations
under this Agreement and has the authority to sign on your behalf all contracts and commercial
documents (your “Responsible Owner”). Your Responsible Owner shall exert his or her best
efforts to the development of the Gyms pursuant to this Agreement and, absent our prior approval,
may not engage in any other business or activity that requires substantial management
responsibility or time commitments.

1.2.3  You have no right to sublicense or subfranchise your rights under this
Agreement.

1.3 Force Majeure

If you are unable to meet the Minimum Development Obligation requirement solely as the
result of force majeure, including, but not limited to, war, riot, strikes, material shortages, floods,
earthquakes, and other acts of God, or by governmental action or force of law, which results in the
inability of you to construct or operate Gyms in the Development Area, and which you could not,
by the exercise of due diligence, have avoided, the Development Periods will be extended by the
amount of time the force majeure exists, provided that if any force majeure continues for a period
in excess of six months, we may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to you.

1.4  Reservation of Rights

You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to open and operate, and to grant others
the right to open and operate Gyms anywhere outside of the Development Area as we deem
appropriate in our sole and absolute discretion. This Agreement is not a franchise agreement and
you do not have any right to use the Marks in any manner by virtue of this Agreement. You have
no right under this Agreement to subfranchise or sublicense others to operate a Gym or use the
System or the Marks. Without limiting the foregoing, we reserve all rights to do anything within
the Development Area, including, without limitation, the following: (i) offer and sell, and authorize
others to offer and sell, any goods and services in, at or from any location outside of the
Development Area; (i) manufacture, distribute, offer and sell, and authorize others to
manufacture, distribute, offer and sell, any goods and/or services in, at or from any location,
including any location within the Development Area either: (a) through alternative channels of
distribution, including sales on the Internet, through kiosk locations, through print and online
catalogs, and in retail locations; or (b) under any names or trademarks other than the Marks. For
the purposes of this provision, alternative channels of distribution include any channels not
explicitly authorized for use by Developer under any franchise agreement executed pursuant to
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this Agreement; (iii) merge with, acquire, or be acquired by, including through purchase or sale of
substantially all assets, any other person or entity, including any competitor of Franchisor or
Developer (each an “M&A Transaction”), and continue to conduct in any location any business
engaged in by the merging, acquiring, or acquired person or entity, including any business directly
competitive with Gyms developed by Developer under this Agreement regardless of where the
business is located and to permit the business to operate under the Marks or any other name; (iv)
use the Marks and System in connection with services and products, promotional and marketing
efforts or related items, or in alternative channels of distribution, including the sale of products
through retail stores and via the internet, without regard to location; (v) develop, or become
associated with, other concepts (either directly or through affiliate entities) and grant franchises
under such concepts for locations anywhere, including in the Development Area; and (vi) use and
license to engage in any other activities not expressly prohibited in this Agreement. In the event
of an M&A Transaction, Franchisor has the right to require you to convert the Gyms developed
pursuant to this Agreement to a different name and Developer hereby agrees to: (a) participate, at
Developer’s expense in any such conversion; and (b) waive any and all claims, demands or
damages arising from or related to the loss of the Mark, the System or any association or affiliation
with the Marks or the System.

1.5  Non-Public Access Venues. We also have the right to develop, open and operate,
and to license others the right to develop, open and operate, Gyms located in Non-Public Access
Venues, including within the Development Area. For purposes of this Agreement, the term Non-
Public Access Venues shall mean private businesses, military bases, government institutions,
private clubs, and other Gyms that are not accessible to the general public.

2. DEVELOPMENT FEE.

2.1 Development Fee. You shall pay to us a “Development Fee” in the amount
designated in Exhibit A immediately upon execution of this Agreement. The Development Fee is
paid to us in consideration of the rights we grant you pursuant to this Agreement. Accordingly, the
Development Fee is deemed fully earned by us upon execution of this Agreement and is non-
refundable, even if you fail to develop one or more of the Gyms.

3. GYM SITE SELECTION; FRANCHISE AGREEMENT EXECUTION PROCEDURES.

3.1 Gym Site Selection. You must, on your own initiative and at your sole cost and
expense, locate and secure an acceptable site for each Gym you are required to develop under this
Agreement, and enter into a valid, binding lease agreement on or before the applicable Lease
Execution Deadline. You must advise us in writing of your proposed site for each Gym and you
must submit to us a complete site report and application (containing demographic, commercial and
other information that we or our designee may require). We are relying on your knowledge of the
real estate market in your Development Area. Our prior approval is required in writing for each
Gym location. Each site must meet our confidential site evaluation criteria. In accepting or
rejecting a proposed site, we will consider such matters as we deem material, including
demographic characteristics, traffic patterns, parking, the predominant character of the
neighborhood, competition from other businesses providing similar services within the area, the
proximity to other businesses (including other System Gyms), the nature of other businesses in
proximity to the site and other commercial characteristics and the size of the premises, appearance,
and other physical characteristics of the premises. We will approve or disapprove your proposed
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site within thirty (30) days after we receive all of the materials you are required to provide to us.
Our approval of a site will be by delivery of written notice to you. If you do not receive a written
notice of approval within thirty (30) days after receipt of the requisite materials to approve or
disapprove a proposed site, your proposed site is considered disapproved. We will not
unreasonably withhold approval of any proposed site if it meets our then-current site criteria. You
acknowledge and agree that our approval of a proposed site does not constitute a representation
or warranty of any kind, express or implied, of the suitability of the site for a Gym or any other
purpose. Our approval of a site indicates that we believe that the site meets our then acceptable
criteria. Without limiting the foregoing, you acknowledge and agree that we are not responsible
of the site fails to meet your or our expectations or if the Gym you develop at the site fails. We
have the right to require you to use our designated suppliers for site selection and real estate
development services. We will notify you in writing of any such requirement, and, you shall,
immediately upon your receipt of such written notification, comply with any and all such
requirements at your sole cost and expense.

3.2 Lease Approval/Execution Procedures.

3.2.1 You must present to us for our approval the lease for each premises from
which you will operate each Gym you are required to develop under this Agreement before you
sign the lease for such Gym. You must cause your landlord to include the provisions we require
in your lease agreement for each Gym. For each Gym you are required to develop under this
Agreement, both you, and the landlord for the applicable leased premises, must enter into our then-
current form of Collateral Assignment of Lease. The Collateral Assignment of the Lease includes
important provisions that protect our interests. If your landlord refuses to sign the Collateral
Assignment of the Lease in the form we require, we have the right to reject your proposed site for
the applicable Gym.

3.2.2 Each lease for each Gym must provide that we (or our designee) may, at our
sole option, upon the termination, expiration or proposed transfer of the Franchise Agreement for
such location, take an assignment of your interest in the lease, without the payment of additional
consideration (other than a reasonable assignment fee), and without liability for obligations you
accrued as of the date of the assignment of the lease. Our review of any lease prior to its execution
will not be for the purpose of approving the legal aspects, economics, or rental terms of such lease.
Accordingly, we will have no responsibility to you with regard to the economics, legality or
enforceability of any lease. At all times during the term of this Agreement, you will promptly pay
all rents and charges required by the lease for the Gym and shall not be in default under the terms
of the lease. You are required to provide us with a copy of your fully executed lease for each Gym
immediately upon your receipt of a fully executed copy thereof, and any amendments or renewals
to the lease, to ensure that at all times we have a complete copy of the then-current lease for each
Gym.

33 Franchise Agreement Execution Requirements.

For each Gym you are required to develop under this Agreement, you (or a Developer
Affiliate approved by us) shall sign our then-current form of franchise agreement, which
agreement may contain materially different terms and conditions as compared to the form of
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franchise agreement attached to the FDD provided to you prior to your execution of this
Agreement, no later than the earlier to occur of (a) the date you execute the lease agreement for
the Gym; or (b) five (5) calendar days after you receive our written approval of the proposed site
for the Gym. Upon the execution of each Franchise Agreement, the terms and conditions of such
Franchise Agreement shall control the establishment and operation of the Gym that is the subject
of such Franchise Agreement.

4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES
4.1 Relationship of Parties

4.1.1 You will function as an independent party and not as our agent or
representative, but rather as a franchisee under our Franchise Agreements. You and we are not
and will never be considered joint ventures, partners, employees, employer or agents one for the
other. Neither will have the power to bind or obligate the other except as otherwise outlined in
this Agreement and/or the Franchise Agreements. No representation will be made by either party
to anyone that would create any apparent agency, employment or partnership except as otherwise
outlined in this Agreement.

4.1.2 In all public and private records, documents, relationships, and dealings,
you will indicate that you are an independent contractor operating pursuant to this Agreement.

4.1.3 You will maintain your records and accounts to clearly indicate that you
and your employees are not our employees. You will be solely responsible to hire your own
employees, including determinations about a prospective person’s background, experience,
character and immigration status. You shall provide written notification to each person you intent
to hire as an employee advising such person that the Franchisor is not their employer.

4.1.4 Youwill pay all of your development, travel, tax, operating, sales, and other
costs and expenses directly or indirectly incurred in fulfilling your obligations under this
Agreement. You will hold us harmless for all such costs and expenses.

5. TERM AND TERMINATION
5.1 Term

Unless sooner terminated, the term of this Agreement (“the Term”) will begin on the
Effective Date and will end on the earlier to occur of: (a) the date the final Gym you are required
to develop under this Agreement has opened; or (b) the Opening Deadline for the last Gym you
are required to open under this Agreement. You do not have any right to renew this Agreement.

5.2 Termination

We have the right to terminate this Agreement, effective immediately upon delivery of
written notice to you, if you commit a Material Default under this Agreement.

Each of the following events shall be deemed a “Material Default” under this Agreement:

(a) Your failure to meet any of your Minimum Development Obligations.
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(b) Any conduct on your part that impairs the goodwill associated with the marks or
otherwise causes harm to us or the reputation of the brand or System.

(c) The termination of any Franchise Agreement entered into by and between
Franchisor, its successors or assigns, and you and/or any Developer Affiliate.

(d) If you or any Developer Affiliate commits a default under any Franchise Agreement
or other agreement between us and you or any Developer Affiliate, which default
remains uncured beyond all applicable notice and cure periods.

(e) If you violate any of your confidentiality or non-competition obligations under this
Agreement.

63 If you default under any other obligation under this Agreement and such default is
not cured before the expiration of fifteen (15) calendar days following your receipt
of a written notice of default from us.

A termination of this Agreement is not deemed to be a termination of any Franchise
Agreement entered into by and between you and us, or any Developer Affiliate and us. You shall
not be entitled to any refund of any of the Development Fee if we terminate this Agreement in
accordance with the terms hereof.

5.3 Effects of Termination

Upon the expiration of the term, or upon termination of this Agreement, regardless of the
cause for termination, you will have no further right to open or operate additional Gyms which are
not, at the time of such termination or expiration, the subject of a then existing Franchise
Agreement between you and us which is in full force and effect. You acknowledge that during and
after the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, we may open and operate, and license
others the right to open and operate one or more Gyms anywhere in the Development Area, subject
to any territorial rights granted to you or any Developer Affiliate, as applicable, under any
Franchise Agreement then in effect.

6. TRANSFER AND SUCCESSION
6.1 Assignment by Us

We may assign this Agreement, or any of our rights and privileges to any other person,
firm or corporation without your prior consent; provided that, in respect to any assignment
resulting in the subsequent performance by the assignee of our functions, the assignee will
expressly assume and agree to perform our obligations.

6.2  Assignment by You

Your rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal to you and are not
assignable at all. Without our prior written permission, you will not voluntarily or involuntarily
sell, transfer, assign, encumber, give or otherwise alienate the whole or any part of this Agreement,
your assets, or the ownership of any of your rights under this Agreement. We have entered this
Agreement in reliance upon and in consideration of the singular personal skill, qualifications and
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trust and confidence we repose in you or your principal officers or partners who will actively and
substantially participate in the development and operation of the Gyms you are required to develop
under this Agreement.

7. COVENANTS: NON COMPETITION/CONFIDENTIALITY/COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS

7.1 Non-Compete

7.1.1  You and each of your owners, officers and agents will not, during the Term
of this Agreement, directly, indirectly or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person
or legal entity:

(a) participate as an owner, director, partner, officer, franchisee, employee,
consultant, advisor, salesperson, distributor, or agent or serve in any other capacity in any
Competitive Business (as defined below); or

(b) divert, or attempt to divert any present or prospective business or customer of
any Gym to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform,
directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the
Marks and the System.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Competitive Business” shall mean any (i) business
offering or providing physical fitness, self-defense, kickboxing, mixed martial arts, martial arts products or
services, (i1) any other business offering products and services offered or authorized for sale by
System franchisees, or (iii) any business offering or granting licenses or franchises for the right to
operate a business of the type identified in (i) or (ii) of this paragraph; provided, however, that this
Section does not apply to Franchisee’s operation of any other 30 Minute Hit Gym pursuant to a
license or franchise agreement with Franchisor.

7.1.2 During the two (2) year period after expiration or termination of this
Agreement, you and your owners, officers and agents will not directly or indirectly participate as
an owner, director, partner, officer, franchisee, employee, consultant, advisor, salesperson,
distributor, or agent or serve in any other capacity in any Competitive Business that is located: (a)
anywhere in the Development Area; (b) within a twenty-five (25) mile radius of the Development
Area; or (c) within a 25 mile radius of any Gym in operation, under lease, or under construction
as of the date of termination or expiration, as applicable. During the two (2) year period after
expiration or termination of this Agreement, you and your owners, officers and agents will not
directly or indirectly participate as an owner, director, partner, officer, franchisee, employee,
consultant, advisor, salesperson, distributor, or agent or serve in any other capacity in any franchise
system that is offering or selling the right to develop, open or operate Competitive Businesses
anywhere in the United States. The covenants not to compete are in addition to and not in lieu of
your express agreements set forth above to not use any trade secrets, confidential information or
personal contacts except as authorized by us.

7.1.3  You acknowledge and agree that the restricted periods set forth in Section
7.1 (inclusive of all subparts) shall be tolled during any time in which you are in violation of your
obligations. We may require you to obtain written agreements from your owners, officers,
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directors, employees and agents to not compete against us and to not disclose our trade secrets and
confidential information. These agreements will be in a form we approve.

7.1.4 If for any reason, any provision of any of the covenants not to compete set
forth in Section 7.1 (inclusive of all subparts) is determined to exceed any lawful scope and limit
as to duration, geographic coverage, or otherwise, it is agreed that provision will nevertheless be
binding to the full scope or limit allowed by applicable laws or by a court of law. The duration,
geographic coverage and scope allowable by law or court of law shall apply to this Agreement.

7.1.5 You agree that damages alone cannot adequately compensate us if there is
a violation of any of your non-competition covenants and that injunctive relief is essential for our
protection. You therefore agree that in any case of any alleged breach or violation of this section,
we may seek injunctive relief without posting any bond or security, in addition to all other remedies
that may be available to us at equity or law.

7.2 Communication of Information

During the Term of this Agreement and thereafter, you will not communicate or divulge to
any person or entity the contents of the System Manuals, or any other non-public information
related to the System or the operation of the Gyms. Under no circumstances will you or your agents
communicate or divulge to any person or entity any trade secrets, confidential information or
personal contacts relating to the System or Gyms operating under the System during the Term of
this Agreement or thereafter.

7.3  You to Cease Using Names and Marks

Except to the extent permitted under then current Franchise Agreements, upon expiration
or termination of this Agreement, whatever the cause for termination, you will immediately cease
using the Marks and our names, logos, service marks, trademarks and other marks, symbols or
materials suggesting that you were related to us or the System in any way. You acknowledge that
all of these are our exclusive property and that you are allowed to use them only in connection
with your work as our sales and service agent or franchisee. You may use them only pursuant to
the provisions of any relevant franchise agreements between the parties.

7.4 Compliance with Applicable Laws.

You shall, at your sole cost and expense, comply with all federal, state, city, municipality
and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to your obligations under this
Agreement. You must, at your expense, be absolutely and exclusively responsible for determining
all licenses and permits required by law for your Gyms, for qualifying for and obtaining all such
licenses and permits, and maintaining all such licenses and permits in full force and effect.

8. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
8.1 Mediation.

8.1.1 The parties have reached this Agreement in good faith and with the belief
that it is advantageous to each of them. In recognition of the strain on time, unnecessary expense
and wasted resources potentially associated with litigation and/or arbitration, and in the spirit of
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cooperation, the parties pledge to try to resolve any dispute amicably, without litigation or
arbitration. Other than an action brought by us under Section 8. 3 of this Agreement, and with the
exception of injunctive relief or specific performance actions, before the filing of any arbitration,
you and we agree to mediate any dispute, controversy or claim between us and/or any of our
affiliates, officers, directors, managers, shareholders, members, owners, guarantors, employees or
agents (each a “Franchisor Related Party”), on the one hand, and you and/or any of your affiliates,
officers, directors, managers, shareholders, members, owners, guarantors, employees or agents
(each a “Developer Related Party™), including without limitation, in connection with any dispute,
controversy or claim arising under, out of, in connection with or in relation to: (a) this Agreement;
(b) the parties’ relationship; or (¢) the events occurring prior to the entry into this Agreement. Good
faith participation in these procedures to the greatest extent reasonably possible, despite lack of
cooperation by one or more of the other parties, is a precondition to maintaining any arbitration or
legal action, including any action to interpret or enforce this Agreement.

8.1.2 Mediation will be conducted Dade County, Florida (or, if Franchisor’s
corporate headquarters is no longer in Dade County, Florida, the county where Franchisor’s
corporate headquarters is then-located). Persons authorized to settle the dispute must attend each
mediation session in person. The party seeking mediation (the “Initiating Party’’) must commence
mediation by sending the other party/parties a written notice of its request for mediation (the
“Mediation Notice”). The Mediation Notice must specify, to the fullest extent possible, the nature
of the dispute, the Initiating Party’s version of the facts surrounding the dispute, the amount of
damages and the nature of any injunctive or other such relief such party claims, and must identify
one or more persons with authority to settle the dispute for the Initiating Party. Upon receipt of the
Mediation Notice, the parties will endeavor, in good faith, to resolve the dispute outlined in the
Dispute Notice. If the parties have been unable to resolve any such dispute within twenty (20) days
after the date the Mediation Notice is provided by the Initiating Party to the other party, either
party may initiate a mediation procedure in accordance with this provision. The parties agree to
participate in the mediation proceedings in good faith with the intention of resolving the dispute if
at all possible within thirty (30) days of the notice from the party seeking to initiate the mediation
procedures. The parties agree to participate in the mediation procedure to its conclusion, as set
forth in this section.

The mediator shall advise the parties in writing of the format for the meeting or meetings.
If the mediator believes it will be useful after reviewing the position papers, the mediator shall
give both himself or herself and the authorized person designated by each party an opportunity to
hear an oral presentation of each party’s views on the matter in dispute. The mediator shall assist
the authorized persons to negotiate a resolution of the matter in dispute, with or without the
assistance of counsel or others. To this end, the mediator is authorized both to conduct joint
meetings and to attend separate private caucuses with the parties. All mediation sessions will be
strictly private. The mediator must keep confidential all information learned unless specifically
authorized by the party from which the information was obtained to disclose the information to
the other party.

The parties commit to participate in the proceedings in good faith with the intention of
resolving the dispute if at all possible. The mediation may be concluded: (a) by the signing of a
settlement agreement by the parties; (b) by the mediator’s declaration that the mediation is
terminated; or (c) by a written declaration of either party, no earlier than at the conclusion of a full
day’s mediation, that the mediation is terminated. Even if the mediation is terminated without
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resolving the dispute, the parties agree not to terminate negotiations and not to begin any arbitration
or legal action or seek another remedy before the expiration of five (5) days following the
mediation. A party may begin arbitration within this period only if the arbitration might otherwise
be barred by an applicable statute of limitations or in order to request an injunction from a Court
of competent jurisdiction to prevent irreparable harm.

8.1.3 The fees and expenses of the mediator shall be shared equally by the parties.
The mediator may not later serve as a witness, consultant, expert or counsel for any party with
respect to the dispute or any related or similar matter in which either of the parties is involved. The
mediation procedure is a compromise negotiation or settlement discussion for purposes of federal
and state rules of evidence. The parties agree that no stenographic, visual or audio record of the
proceedings may be made. Any conduct, statement, promise, offer, view or opinion, whether oral
or written, made in the course of the mediation by the parties, their agents or employees, or the
mediator is confidential and shall be treated as privileged. No conduct, statement, promise, offer,
view or opinion made in the mediation procedure is discoverable or admissible in evidence for any
purpose, not even impeachment, in any proceeding involving either of the parties. However,
evidence that would otherwise be discoverable or admissible shall not be excluded from discovery
or made inadmissible simply because of its use in the mediation.

8.2 Arbitration

8.2.1 Except as qualified below and in Section 8.3, and if not resolved by the
negotiation and mediation procedures set forth in Section 8.1, any dispute, controversy or claim
between Developer and/or a Developer Related Party, on the one hand, and Franchisor and/or any
Franchisor Related Party, on the other hand, including, without limitation, any dispute, controversy
or claim arising under, out of, in connection with or in relation to: (a) this Agreement, (b) the
parties’ relationship, (c¢) the events leading up to the entry into this Agreement, (d) the
Development Area, (e) the scope or validity of the arbitration obligation under this Agreement, (f)
any System standard; (g) any claim based in tort or any theory of negligence; and/or (h) any lease
or sublease for any Gym, shall be submitted to binding arbitration under the authority of the
Federal Arbitration Act and must be determined by arbitration administered by the American
Arbitration Association pursuant to its then-current commercial arbitration rules and procedures.

8.2.2 Any arbitration must be on an individual basis and the parties and the
arbitrator will have no authority or power to proceed with any claim as a class action, associational
claim, or otherwise to join or consolidate any claim with any other claim or any other proceeding
involving third parties. In the event a court determines that this limitation on joinder of or class
action certification of claims is unenforceable, then this entire commitment to arbitrate shall
become null and void and the parties shall submit all claims to the jurisdiction of the courts. The
arbitration must take place in Dade County, Florida (or, if our corporate headquarters is no longer
in Dade County, Florida, the county where our corporate headquarters is then-located). The
arbitration will be heard before one arbitrator. The arbitrator must follow the law and not disregard
the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator must have at least five (5) years of significant
experience in franchise law. Any issue as to whether a matter is subject to arbitration will be
determined by the arbitrator. A judgment may be entered upon the arbitration award by any state
or federal court in Dade County, Florida.
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8.2.3 In connection with any arbitration proceeding, each party will submit or file
any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by the then-current Rule
13 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding as the claim to which it
relates. Any such claim which is not submitted or filed in such proceeding will be forever barred.
The decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding on all parties to the dispute; however, the
arbitrator may not under any circumstances: (1) stay the effectiveness of any pending termination
of this Agreement; (2) assess punitive or exemplary damages; (3) certify a class or a consolidated
action; or (3) make any award which extends, modifies or suspends any lawful term of this
Agreement or any reasonable standard of business performance that we set. The arbitrator shall
have the right to make a determination as to any procedural matters that court of competent
jurisdiction would be permitted to make in the state in which our main office is located. Further,
the arbitrator shall decide all factual, procedural, or legal questions relating in any way to the
dispute between the parties, including, without limitation, questions relating to whether Section
8.2 is applicable and enforceable as against the parties; the subject matter, timeliness, and scope
of the dispute; any available remedies; and the existence of unconscionability and/or fraud in the
inducement.

8.2.4 The arbitrator can issue summary orders disposing of all or part of a claim
and provide for temporary restraining orders, preliminary injunctions, injunctions, attachments,
claim and delivery proceedings, temporary protective orders, receiverships, and other equitable
and/or interim/final relief. Each party consents to the enforcement of such orders, injunctions,
etc., by any court having jurisdiction.

8.2.5 The arbitrator shall have subpoena powers limited only by the laws of the
State of Florida. The parties ask that the arbitrator limit discovery to the greatest extent possible
consistent with basic fairness in order to minimize the time and expense of arbitration. The parties
to the dispute shall otherwise have the same discovery rights as are available in civil actions under
the laws of the State of Florida. All other procedural matters shall be determined by applying the
statutory, common laws, and rules of procedure that control a court of competent jurisdiction in
the State of Florida.

8.2.6 Other than as may be required by law, the entire arbitration proceedings
(including, without limitation, any rulings, decisions or orders of the arbitrator), shall remain
confidential and shall not be disclosed to anyone other than the parties to this Agreement.

8.2.7 The judgment of the arbitrator on any preliminary or final arbitration award
shall be final and binding and may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

8.2.8 We reserve the right, but have no obligation, to advance your share of the
costs of any arbitration proceeding in order for such arbitration proceeding to take place and by
doing so shall not be deemed to have waived or relinquished our right to seek recovery of those
costs against you.

8.3 Exceptions to Arbitration

Notwithstanding Section 8.1 or Section 8.2, the parties agree that the following claims will
not be subject to mediation or arbitration:
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(a) any action for declaratory or equitable relief, including, without limitation,
seeking preliminary or permanent injunctive relief, specific performance, other relief in the
nature of equity to enjoin any harm or threat of harm to such party’s tangible or intangible
property, brought at any time, including, without limitation, prior to or during the pendency
of any arbitration proceedings initiated hereunder;

(b) any action in ejectment or for possession of any interest in real or personal
property; or

(©) any claim by us: (a) relating to your failure to pay any fee due to us under
this Agreement; (b) relating to your failure to comply with the confidentiality and non-
competition covenants set forth in this Agreement; and/or (c) and/or our affiliates relating
to your use of the Marks and/or the System, including, without limitation, claims for
violations of the Lanham Act.

9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9.1 Choice of Law and Venue; Limitation of Claims; Jury Trial Waiver; Class
Action Waiver; Waiver of Damages

9.1.1 You acknowledge that we have appointed and intend to appoint many
franchisees on terms and conditions similar to those set forth in this Agreement and the Franchise
Agreement. It mutually benefits those franchisees, you and us if the terms and conditions of these
license agreements are uniformly interpreted. This Agreement shall take effect upon its acceptance
and execution by Franchisor. All matters relating to mediation or arbitration will be governed by
the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. §§ 1, et. seq.). Except to the extent governed by the Federal
Arbitration Act or other federal law, this Agreement, the franchise and all claims arising from or
in any way related to the relationship between Franchisor, and/or any of its affiliates, on the one
hand, and Developer, and any of Developer’s owners, guarantors and/or affiliates, on the other
hand, shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the state of Florida, which laws shall
prevail in the event of any conflict of law, except that any law regulating the sale of franchises or
governing the relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this paragraph.

9.1.2 In the event the arbitration clause set forth in Section 8.2 is inapplicable or
unenforceable, and subject to Franchisor's right to obtain injunctive relief in any court of competent
jurisdiction, the following provision shall govern: The parties hereby expressly agree that the
United States District Court for Southern District of Florida (or, if our corporate headquarters is
no longer in Dade County, Florida, the applicable District Court where our corporate headquarters
is then-located), or if such court lacks subject matter jurisdiction, the State Superior Court in Dade
County, Florida (or, if our corporate headquarters is no longer in Dade County, Florida, the county
where our corporate headquarters is then-located), shall be the exclusive venue and exclusive
proper forum in which to adjudicate any case or controversy arising out of or related to, either
directly or indirectly, this Agreement, ancillary agreements, or the business relationship between
the parties. The parties further agree that, in the event of such litigation, they will not contest or
challenge the jurisdiction or venue of these courts. Developer acknowledges and agrees that this
Agreement has been entered into in the State of Florida and that Developer is to receive valuable
and continuing services emanating from Franchisor's headquarters. Without limiting the generality
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of the foregoing, the parties waive all questions of jurisdiction or venue for the purposes of carrying
out this provision. Developer acknowledges and agrees that this location for venue is reasonable
and the most beneficial to the needs of and best meets the interest of all of the members of the
System.

9.1.3 Except for claims arising from your non-payment or underpayment of
amounts you owe to us, or claims related to your unauthorized use of the Marks, any and all claims
arising out of or related to this Agreement or the relationship of the parties will be barred unless a
judicial or arbitration proceeding, as required under this Agreement, is commenced within one (1)
year from the date on which the party asserting such claim knew or should have known of the facts
giving rise to such claims, and that any action not so brought shall be barred, whether as a claim,
counterclaim, defense or setoff. You hereby acknowledge and agree that you may not maintain
any action against us or any of our principals, officers, directors, agents, employees, parents,
subsidiaries, affiliates, successors or assigns (each a “30 Minute Hit Related Party”) unless (a) you
deliver written notice of any claim to the other party within one hundred eighty (180) days after
the event complained of becomes known to you, (b) you strictly adhere to the negotiation and
mediation procedures set forth in this Agreement, and (c) you file an arbitration within one (1)
year after the notice is delivered.

9.1.4 Waiver of Rights. THE PARTIES HERETO AND EACH OF THEM
KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

9.1.5 Jury Trial. The parties hereto and each of them EXPRESSLY
WAIVE(S) THE RIGHT ANY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
ARBITRATION, ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT
LAW OR IN EQUITY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, FOR ANY CLAIMS
RELATING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE
NEGOTIATION OF THIS AGREEMENT, THE EVENTS LEADING UP TO THE
SIGNING OF THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP RELATING
TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE FRANCHISE, WHETHER BROUGHT IN STATE OR
FEDERAL COURT, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT THEORY, NEGLIGENCE OR
TORT, AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR NOT THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES
IN SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING. This waiver is effective even if a court of competent
jurisdiction decides that the arbitration provision in this Agreement is unenforceable. Each
party acknowledges that it has had full opportunity to consult with counsel concerning this
waiver, and that this waiver is informed, voluntary, intentional, and not the result of unequal
bargaining power.

9.1.6 Damage Waiver. The parties hereto and each of them EXPRESSLY
WAIVE(S) ANY CLAIM FOR PUNITIVE, MULTIPLE AND/OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES;
except that this waiver and limitation shall not apply with respect to (a) your obligation to
indemnify us pursuant to any provision of this Agreement, or (b) any claims we bring against you
and/or your guarantors and/or your owners for unauthorized use of the Marks, unauthorized use or
disclosure of any Confidential Information, unfair competition, breach of your confidentiality or
non-competition covenants under this Agreement, and/or any cause of action under the Lanham
Act, and we shall be entitled to receive an award of multiple damages, attorneys’ fees and all
damages as provided by law.
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9.1.7 The parties hereto and each of them EXPRESSLY AGREE(S) THAT IN
THE EVENT OF ANY FINAL DETERMINATION, ADJUDICATION OR APPLICABLE
ENACTMENT OF LAW THAT PUNITIVE, MULTIPLE AND/OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES
MAY NOT BE WAIVED, ANY RECOVERY BY ANY PARTY IN ANY ARBITRATION OR
OTHER FORUM SHALL NEVER EXCEED TWO (2) TIMES ACTUAL DAMAGES, except
that we may recover more than two (2) times its actual damages if you commit acts of willful
trademark infringement or otherwise violate the Lanham Act, as provided by law.

9.1.9 No Class or Collective Actions. You agree that any arbitration, or, if
applicable, litigation, between you (or any of your owners or guarantors), on the one hand, and us
or any 30 Minute Hit Related Party, on the other hand, will be on such party’s individual claim
and that the claim or claims subject to arbitration and/or litigation shall not be arbitrated or litigated
on a class-wide, associational or collective basis.

9.2 Enforcement

9.2.1 Either party may seek to obtain in any court of competent jurisdiction
specific performance and injunctive relief to restrain a violation by the other party of any term or
covenant of this Agreement. No right or remedy conferred upon us is exclusive of any other right
or remedy in this Agreement or provided by law or equity. Each will be cumulative of every other
right or remedy.

9.2.2  We shall be entitled to recover from you all of our costs and expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, accounting fees, expert witness fees, and any other reasonably incurred
fees, if we are the prevailing party in any action, including arbitration, litigation, any motion to
compel arbitration, and/or any action on appeal, with you and/or any of your owners or Guarantors,
including, without limitation, any action: (a) to enforce the terms of this Agreement; (b) for
violation of this Agreement; or (c¢) for violation of the Lanham Act or other state or federal statutes.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if we incur costs and expenses due to your failure
to pay when due amounts owed to us our affiliates, to submit when due any reports, information,
or supporting records, or otherwise comply with this Agreement, you agree, whether or not we
initiate a formal arbitration or legal proceeding, to reimburse us for all of the costs and expenses
that we incur including, without limitation, reasonable accounting, attorneys’ and related fees and
costs.

9.3 Relationship of You to Us

The parties intend by this Agreement to establish the relationship of franchisor and
developer and/or independent contractors. You have no authority to create or assume in our name
or on our behalf, any obligation, express or implied, or to act or purport to act as agent or
representative on behalf of us for any purpose whatsoever. Neither party is the employer,
employee, agent, partner or co-venturer of or with the other, each being independent. You agree
that you will not hold yourself out as our agent, employee, partner or co-venturer. All employees
hired by or working for you will be your employees and will not, for any purpose, be deemed our
employees or subject to our control. You must provide written notification to each of your
employees that each such employee is employed by you, and not us. You shall file your own tax,
regulatory and payroll reports with respect to your employees and operations.
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9.4 Your Indemnification

9.4.1 You agree to protect, defend and indemnify us, and all of our past, present
and future shareholders, direct and indirect parent companies, subsidiaries, affiliates, officers,
directors, employees, attorneys and designees (the “Indemnified Parties™) and hold each of the
Indemnified Parties harmless from and against any and all damages, costs and expenses, including
attorneys’ fees, court costs, losses, liabilities, damages, claims and demands of every kind or nature
on account of any actual or alleged loss, injury or damage to any person, firm or corporation or to
any property arising out of or related to your rights or obligations under this Agreement.

9.4.2 Yourepresent and warrant that you have full and legal capacity to enter into
this Agreement and into the Franchise Agreements and that they will not violate any provision or
restriction in any contractual relationship you or your owners have with any third party.

9.5  Waiver and Delay

9.5.1 The following will not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this
Agreement with respect to any subsequent breach or a waiver by us of our right at any time to
require exact and strict compliance with the provisions of this Agreement or of the franchise
agreements:

(a) Waiver by us of any breach or series of breaches or defaults in your performance,

(b) Our failure, refusal or neglect to exercise any right, power or option given to us under
this Agreement or under any franchise agreement between us and you, or

(¢) Our failure, refusal or neglect to insist upon strict compliance with or performance of
your obligations under this Agreement or any other franchise agreement between you and
us.

This applies to this Agreement and to any franchise agreement between the parties whether
entered into before, after or contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement and whether
or not related to the Gyms.

9.6 Survival of Covenants

The covenants contained in this Agreement which, by their terms, require performance by
the parties after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, will be enforceable
notwithstanding said expiration or other termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

9.7  Successors and Assigns

This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of our successors and assigns
and will be binding upon and inure to your benefit and your heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns, subject to the prohibitions against assignment contained above.

9.8  Joint and Several Liability
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If you consists of more than one person or entity, or a combination thereof, the obligations
and liabilities of each such person or entity to us are joint and several.

9.9  Agreements with Other Developers. You acknowledge that other 30 Minute
Hit® franchisees and/or developers have or may be granted franchises or development rights at
different times and in different situations, and further acknowledge that the provisions of such
agreements may vary substantially from those contained in this Agreement.

9.10 Entire Agreement

Except for the Franchise Agreements that may be executed between the parties, this
Agreement expresses the sole and complete understanding between the parties concerning the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, is the entire
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No other prior agreements
concerning the subject matter hereof, written or oral, will be deemed to exist or to bind the parties,
and all prior agreements, understandings and representations, are merged into this Agreement and
superseded by it. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim the representations we made
in the FDD provided to you prior to your execution of this Agreement. You represent that there
are no contemporaneous agreements or understandings between the parties relating to the subject
matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this Agreement. No officer, employee, or agent
of ours has any authority to make any representation or promise not contained in this Agreement
or in the FDD. You agree that you have executed this Agreement without reliance upon any such
representation or promise. This Agreement cannot be modified or changed except by written
instrument signed by all of the parties. Time is of the essence for this Agreement.

9.11 Titles for Convenience

Section and paragraph titles used in this Agreement are for convenience only and will not
affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this
Agreement.

9.12 Gender

All terms used in any number or gender will extend to mean and include any other number
and gender as the facts, context, or sense of this Agreement or any section or paragraph may
require.

9.13 Severability

Nothing contained in this Agreement will require the commission of any act contrary to
law. Whenever there is any conflict between any provisions of this Agreement and any present or
future statute, law, ordinance or regulation contrary to which the parties have no legal right to
contract, the latter will prevail. In such event the provisions of this Agreement thus affected will
be curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring it within the requirements of the law.
If any part, section, paragraph, sentence or clause of this Agreement is held to be indefinite, invalid
or otherwise unenforceable, the indefinite, invalid or unenforceable provision will be deemed
deleted, and the remaining part of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect.
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9.14 Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts; each of which will be
deemed an original and all of which together will be deemed the same instrument.

9.15 Notices

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice, demand or communication provided

for herein must be in writing and signed by the party serving the same and either delivered
personally, by email, or by a reputable overnight service or deposited in the United States mail,
service or postage prepaid, and addressed as follows:

Notices to Franchisor: 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
2221 North East 164™ Street, Suite 252
North Miami Beach, Florida 33160

With a copy to:
Attention:
Facsimile:
Notices to Developer:
Attention:
Facsimile:

Any notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time of personal delivery or, in the
case of email, upon transmission, or, in the case of expedited delivery service or registered or
certified mail, three (3) business days after the date and time of mailing.

9.16 Submission of Agreement

The submission of this Agreement does not constitute an offer and this Agreement will
become effective only upon the execution by you and us. THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE
BINDING ON FRANCHISOR UNLESS AND UNTIL IT WILL HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED
AND SIGNED BY FRANCHISOR.

9.17 Acknowledgments & Representations

9.17.1 You, and your shareholders, members and partners, as applicable, jointly
and severally acknowledge that they have carefully read this Agreement and all other related
documents to be executed concurrently or in conjunction with the execution of this Agreement.
You and they have obtained the advice of counsel concerning entering this Agreement. You and
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they understand the nature of this Agreement and intend to comply with and to be bound by it.
You acknowledge that you have conducted an independent investigation of the System, the
Franchisor and the Gyms, and recognize that, like any other business, the business venture
contemplated by this Agreement involves business risks. Your success in this business is not
guaranteed, is speculative and depends, to an important extent, upon your ability as an independent
businessperson. We do not represent or warrant that any Gym will achieve any certain level of
sales or be profitable. We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you have
not received, any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the potential volume, profits, or
success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement. By signing this Agreement, you
acknowledge that you have entered into it after making an independent investigation of the System.

9.17.2 You represent to us, as an inducement to our entry into this Agreement, that
all statements you have made and all materials you have submitted to us in connection with your
purchase of this franchise are accurate and complete and that you have made no misrepresentations
or material omissions in obtaining the franchise. We have approved of your entering into this
Agreement and granting you the rights under this Agreement in reliance upon all of your
representations.

9.17.3 You understand that neither we, nor any of our representatives or agents
with whom you have met have made, and are not making, any guarantees, express or implied, as
to whether or not the Gyms you develop under this Agreement will break even, be successful or
profitable. You acknowledge that the franchise opportunity is a newly offered opportunity with a
limited track record and a limited operating history. You accept all risks, including the risk of loss
of your entire investment. You acknowledge that neither we nor any of our representatives and/or
agents with whom you have met or corresponded with, have, in any way, represented or promised
any specific amounts of earnings or profits in association with any of any Gym, including the
Gyms you are obligated to develop under this Agreement.

9.17.4 You will exert your best efforts and full time to carrying out the terms,
covenants and conditions of this Agreement in good faith.

9.17.5 You acknowledge that you received our FDD at least 14 calendar days prior
to the date on which this Agreement was executed and that you have read the FDD. You
acknowledge that the FDD is a disclosure document, not a contract, and that this Agreement
embodies the entire contractual agreement between the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Agreement has been executed on the day and date first
set forth above.

DEVELOPER: FRANCHISOR:

If an entity:| 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
By:

By: Name:

Name: Title:

Title:

Date:
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[1f an individual or individuals:|

Signature:

Name:

Date:

Signature:

Name:

Date:

Signature:

Name:

Date:
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EXHIBIT A TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

1. DEVELOPMENT AREA

The Development Area is defined as the entire territory encompassed by

___in the State of . If the Development Area is identified by city or other political
subdivisions, political boundaries will be considered fixed as of the Agreement Date, notwithstanding any
political reorganization or change to the boundaries. The Development Area is depicted on the map
attached to this Exhibit A. However, if there is an inconsistency between the language in this Exhibit A
and the attached map, the language in this Exhibit A shall control. All street boundaries will be deemed
to end at the street center-line unless otherwise specified.

2. MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS

Developer agrees to open (_ ) Gyms within the Development Area
according to the following Schedule:

Column A Column B Column C Column D

Gym # Lease Execution Opening Deadline Cumulative Number of
Deadline Gyms To Be Opened
and Operating By
Opening Deadline
Designated in Column
C
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DEVELOPMENT FEE. The Development Fee is $

RESPONSIBLE OWNER:

Responsible Owner Name:

Responsible Owner Address:

Telephone Number & Email Address:

Percentage Ownership Interest:

DEVELOPER INFORMATION:
Individual Legal Entity

Name of Individual(s) or Legal Entity (as applicable):

If Legal Entity:
State of formation/incorporation:

Date of formation:

Ownership Information:

Owner Name Owner Address Percentage Ownership
Interest
DEVELOPER: FRANCHISOR:
[1f an entity:] 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Date:

[1f an individual or individuals:]

Signature:

Name:

Date:
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Signature:
Name:

Date:
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EXHIBIT G-1 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF RELEASE

RENEWAL



RELEASE -- RENEWAL

THIS RELEASE is given by and all of its
predecessors, parent company, affiliates, owners, officers, employees, legal representatives and agents,
directors, successors and assigns, and their employees, owners, officers, directors, heirs, beneficiaries,
executors and administrators (individually and collectively, “Franchisee”) to 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC,
and their owners, officers, directors, members, predecessors, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, legal
representatives, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, beneficiaries, executors and administrators and each’s
owners, officers, directors, members, agents, affiliates, successors and assigns (individually and
collectively, "Released Parties").

Franchisee is a party to that certain Agreement dated effective
(the "Prior Agreement™). Franchisee seeks to enter into a successor
Agreement (the "Successor Agreement') pursuant to the terms for closing under the Prior Agreement. The
Prior Agreement requires Franchisee to provide this release to Released Parties as a condition to entering
into the Successor Agreement. For good and valuable consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, Franchisee hereby agrees as follows:

1. Effective on the date of this Release, and subject to the exceptions set forth in Paragraph 5
below, Franchisee forever releases and discharges Released Parties from any and all claims, causes of action,
suits, debts, agreements, promises, damages, losses, demands, liabilities, contractual rights and/or
obligations, of whatever nature or kind, in law or in equity, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, past
or present, which Franchisee now has or ever had against Released Parties, including without limitation,
anything arising out of that certain relationship under which Franchisee was sold training, products or
services to enable Franchisee to operate or begin a business of operating a
[insert either Franchise] business, the business relationship between Released Parties
and Franchisee and any other relationships between Franchisee and Released Parties; except Released
Parties’ obligations under the Successor Agreement dated effective

to which this release is an Exhibit. Subject to the foregoing, this Release is intended by
the parties to be ungualifiedly general in scope and effect and effective for: (a) any and all claims and
obligations, including those of which Franchisee is not now aware; and (b) all claims Franchisee has from
anything which has happened up to now.

2. Franchisee is bound by this Release. Franchisee freely and voluntarily gives this Release
to Released Parties for good and valuable consideration and Franchisee and Released parties acknowledge
its receipt and sufficiency. The parties are executing this Release after independent investigation and
without fraud, duress, or undue influence.

3. For the purpose of implementing a full and complete release and discharge of all known
and unknown claims, Franchisee expressly acknowledges that this Release is intended to include and does
include in its effect, without limitations, any and all rights which Franchisee does not know or suspect to
exist in Franchisee’s favor, as of the date of execution of this Release and that this Release expressly
provides for the extinguishment of all such claims, including but not limited to, any and all rights or claims
under any applicable federal, state or local statute, regulation or common law.

4. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that if Franchisee is located in California or is a
resident of California, it has been fully advised by its attorney of the contents of Section 1542 of the Civil
Code of California, and that that section and the benefits thereof are hereby expressly waived. Section 1542
reads as follows:
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Section 1542. (General Release--Claims Extinguished.) A general release does not extend to claims
which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1542, and for the purpose of implementing a full and
complete release and discharge of Claims, the Parties expressly acknowledge that this Agreement is intended
to include in its effect, without limitations, all Claims which the Parties do not know or suspect to exist in
their favor at the time of execution hereof, and that the settlement agreed upon contemplates the
extinguishment of any and all such Claims.

5. Franchisee represents and warrants to Released Parties that Franchisee has not assigned or
transferred to any other person any claim or right Franchisee had or now has relating to or against the
Released Parties.

6. In this Release, each pronoun includes the singular and plural as the context may require.
7. This Release is governed by Florida law or [ ] law (if box checked).
8. For Washington Franchisees: This release doe not apply with respect to claims arising

under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted
thereunder.

This Release is effective 20 notwithstanding the actual date
of signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned FRANCHISEE executes this Release:

By: Name:
Title: Date:
STATE OF )
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ,
20 , by , on behalf of
who is personally known to me or has produced as identification.

Signature of Notary

Printed Name of Notary
Notary Public, State of Serial
Number of Notary




EXHIBIT G-2 TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FORM OF
RELEASE-ASSIGNMENT




RELEASE -- ASSIGNMENT

THIS RELEASE is given by and all of its
predecessors, parent company, affiliates, owners, officers, employees, legal representatives and agents,
directors, successors and assigns, and their employees, owners, officers, directors, heirs, beneficiaries,
executors and administrators (individually and collectively, “Franchisee”) to 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC,
and their owners, officers, directors, members, predecessors, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, legal
representatives, agents, successors, assigns, heirs, beneficiaries, executors and administrators and each’s
owners, officers, directors, members, agents, affiliates, successors and assigns (individually and collectively,
"Released Parties").

Franchisee is a party to that certain Agreement dated effective
(the "Prior Agreement™). Franchisee seeks to, pursuant to the terms of the Prior Agreement, transfer its
rights under the Prior Agreement to (“Transferee”). As a

result of such transaction (the “Transfer”), Franchisee and Transferee will engage in a transaction that
constitutes a “transfer” under the terms of the Prior Agreement. The Prior Agreement requires Franchisee
to provide this release to Released Parties as a condition to entering into the Transfer. For good and valuable
consideration, receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Franchisee hereby agrees as
follows:

1. Effective on the date of this Release, and subject to the exceptions set forth in Paragraph 5
below, Franchisee forever releases and discharges Released Parties from any and all claims, causes of action,
suits, debts, agreements, promises, damages, losses, demands, liabilities, contractual rights and/or
obligations, of whatever nature or kind, in law or in equity, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, past
or present, which Franchisee now has or ever had against Released Parties, including without limitation,
anything arising out of that certain Prior Agreement, the relationship under which Franchisee was sold
training, products or services to enable it to operate or begin a business of operating a

[insert either Franchise] business, the business relationship between Released Parties and
FRANCHISEE and any other relationships between FRANCHISEE and Released Parties; except Released
Parties’ obligations under the to which this release is an Exhibit. This Release is intended by the parties’
agreements effectuating the Transfer. Subject to the foregoing, this release is intended by the parties to be
unqualifiedly general in scope and effect and effective for: (a) any and all claims and obligations, including
those of which Franchisee is not now aware; and (b) all claims Franchisee has from anything which has
happened up to now.

2. Franchisee is bound by this Release. Franchisee freely and voluntarily gives this Release
to Released Parties for good and valuable consideration and Franchisee and Released parties acknowledge
its receipt and sufficiency. The parties are executing this License after independent investigation and
without fraud, duress, or undue influence

3. For the purpose of implementing a full and complete release and discharge of all such
known and unknown claims, Franchisee expressly acknowledges that this Release is intended to include
and does include in its effect, without limitations, any and all rights and claims except Released Parties’,
which Franchisee does not know or suspect to exist in Franchisee’s favor, as of the date of execution of this
Release and that this Release expressly provides for the extinguishment of all such claims, including but not
limited to, any and all rights or claims under any applicable federal, state or local statute, regulation or
common law.

4. Franchisee expressly acknowledges that if Franchisee is located in California or is a
resident of California, it has been fully advised by its attorney of the contents of Section 1542 of the Civil
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Code of California, and that that section and the benefits thereof are hereby expressly waived. Section 1542
reads as follows:

Section 1542. (General Release--Claims Extinguished.) A general release does not extend to claims
which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release,
which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1542, and for the purpose of implementing a full and
complete release and discharge of Claims, the Parties expressly acknowledge that this Agreement is intended
to include in its effect, without limitations, all Claims which the Parties do not know or suspect to exist in
their favor at the time of execution hereof, and that the settlement agreed upon contemplates the
extinguishment of any and all such Claims.

5. Franchisee represents and warrants to Released Parties that Franchisee has not assigned or
transferred to any other person any claim or right Franchisee had or now has relating to or against the
Released Parties.

6. In this Release, each pronoun includes the singular and plural as the context may require.
7. This Release is governed by Florida law or [ ] law (if box checked).
8. For Washington Franchisees: This release doe not apply with respect to claims arising

under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted
thereunder.

This Release is effective 20 notwithstanding the actual date
of signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned FRANCHISEE executes this Release:

By: Name:
Title:
STATE OF )
COUNTY OF )
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of .,
20 , by , on behalf of
who is personally known to me or has produced as identification.

Signature of Notary
Printed Name of Notary
Notary Public, State of
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FORM OF

PRINCIPAL OWNERS STATEMENT



PRINCIPAL OWNERS STATEMENT

This form must be completed by the Franchisee and/or Developer (“I,” “me,” or “my”) if | have
multiple owners or if I, or my franchised business, is owned by a business organization (like a corporation,
partnership or limited liability company). Franchisor is relying on the truth and accuracy of this form in
awarding the Franchise Agreement to me.

1. Name of Owner.
2. Form of Owner. | am a (check one):
@ General Partnership ]
(b) Corporation ]
(c) Limited Partnership L]
(d) Limited Liability Company ]
(e Other L]
Specify:
I was formed under the laws of
(state)
3. Business Entity. | was incorporated or formed on , ,
under the laws of the State of . I have not conducted business under any name other than
my corporate, limited liability company or partnership name and . The

following is a list of all persons who have management rights and powers (e.g., officers, managers, partners,
etc.) and their positions are listed below:

Name of Person Position(s) Held
4. Owners. The following list includes the full name and mailing address of each person who

is one my owners and fully describes the nature of each owner's interest. Attach additional sheets if
necessary.

Owner's Name and Address Description of Interest
5. Governing Documents. Attached are copies of the documents and contracts governing

the ownership, management and other significant aspects of the business organization (e.g., articles of
incorporation or organization, partnership or shareholder agreements, etc.).
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This Statement of Principal Owners is current and complete as of ,

20

OWNER

INDIVIDUALS:

[Signature]

[Print Name]

[Signature]

[Print Name]

CORPORATION, LIMITED  LIABILITY
COMPANY OR PARTNERSHIP:

[Name]

By:

Title:




EXHIBIT I TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

PRINCIPAL OWNER'S GUARANTY




PRINCIPAL OWNER'S GUARANTY

This Guaranty must be signed by the principal owners (referred to as “you” for purposes of this
Guaranty only) of (the “Business Entity”) under the
Agreement dated (the
“Agreement”) with 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC (“us,” or “our” or “we”).

1. Scope of Guaranty. In consideration of and as an inducement to our signing and
delivering the Agreement, each of you signing this Guaranty personally and unconditionally: (a) guarantee
to us and our successors and assigns that the Business Entity will punctually pay and perform each and every
undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement; and (b) agree to be personally bound by, and
personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the Agreement.

2. Waivers. Each of you waive: (a) acceptance and notice of acceptance by us of your
obligations under this Guaranty; (b) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance
of any obligations guaranteed by you; (c) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the
indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations guaranteed by you; (d) any right you may have to require
that an action be brought against the Business Entity or any other person as a condition of your liability; (e)
all rights to payments and claims for reimbursement or subrogation which you may have against the Business
Entity arising as a result of your execution of and performance under this Guaranty; and (f) all other notices
and legal or equitable defenses to which you may be entitled in your capacity as guarantors.

3. Consents and Agreements. Each of you consent and agree that: (a) your direct and
immediate liability under this Guaranty are joint and several; (b) you must render any payment or
performance required under the Agreement upon demand if the Business Entity fails or refuses punctually
to do so; (c) your liability will not be contingent or conditioned upon our pursuit of any remedies against
the Business Entity or any other person; (d) your liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise
affected by any extension of time, credit or other indulgence which we may from time to time grant to
Business Entity or to any other person, including, without limitation, the acceptance of any partial payment
or performance or the compromise or release of any claims and no such indulgence will in any way modify
or amend this Guaranty; and (e) this Guaranty will continue and is irrevocable during the term of the
Agreement and, if required by the Agreement, after its termination or expiration.

4, Enforcement Costs. If we are required to enforce this Guaranty in any judicial or
arbitration proceeding or any appeals, you must reimburse us for our enforcement costs. Enforcement costs
include reasonable accountants', attorneys', attorney's assistants', arbitrators' and expert witness fees, costs
of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, arbitration filing fees, other litigation expenses and travel
and living expenses, whether incurred prior to, in preparation for, or in contemplation of the filing of any
written demand, claim, action, hearing or proceeding to enforce this Guaranty.

5. Effectiveness. Your obligations under this Guaranty are effective on the Agreement Date,
regardless of the actual date of signature. Terms not otherwise defined in this Guaranty have the meanings
as defined in the Agreement. This Guaranty is governed by Florida law and we may enforce our rights
regarding it in the courts of Dade County, Florida. Each of you irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction and
venue of such courts.

The next page is the signature page



Each of you now sign and deliver this Guaranty effective as of the date of the Agreement regardless
of the actual date of signature.

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP GUARANTORS
INTEREST IN BUSINESS ENTITY

Name:
Date:

Name:
Date:

Name:
Date:

Name:
Date:

Name:
Date:




EXHIBIT JTO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF FRANCHISE OWNERS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,
20232024



l. 30 MINUTE HIT® GYM FRANCHISES IN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

As of December 31, 20232024:

STATE ENTITY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER
Arizona Martin Fitt Group LLC 250 South Arizona Ave, #6, 480-869-2123
Opened 2022 Chandler, Arizona 85225
California Crown 30MH, Inc. 3958 Cerritos Avenue 562-296-8141
Los Alamitos, CA 90720
PKC Studios, Inc. 13691 Carroll Way, Tustin, CA 714-227-3951
BAY AREA FITNESS, LLC | 151 4™ Street, Oakland, CA 94607 510-350-7836
Zoltavia Health and Wellness, 27792 Aliso Creek, Ste B190, Aliso 949-215-3414
Inc. Viejo, CA 92656
EN.D Studios LLC 1202 Tully Road, Modesto, CA 95350 209-408-8084
Colorado River Fox Enterprises, LLC | 18871 Plaza Drive, Unit 102, Parker, 720-508-4630
CO
Florida Kaylane Investments, Inc. 2107 Gunn Highway, Odessa, FL 813-926-8800
33556
MaKi Corps, LLC 825 US HWY, Suite 102, Minneola 352-404-6626
FL, 34715
Georgia Hit Kick Fitness, LLC 3105 Peachtree Pkwy, Suite 104, 678-771-5224
Suwanee, GA 30024
Indiana 8.2 Fitness LLC 8810 Southeastern Avenue, 317-759-7117
Indianapolis, IN 46239
Crocker Group, LLC 12560 N Meridian Street, Carmel, IN 317-810-1056
46032
Michigan Radiant Glow Fitness Co., 6914 Eastman Avenue, Suite #1, 989-486-1356
LLC Midland, M1 48642
Missouri Resilient Fitness Solutions 1933 Schuetz Rd, St. Louis, MO, 314-736-1111
LLC 63146
New Jersey Ednina Fitness, LLC 3885 Route 27, Suite 140, Princeton, 732-419-3042
NJ 08540
New York Cineas Flow, LLC 1290 Fulton St., 2" Floor 347-365-7117
Brooklyn, NY 11216
Sierra Juliet Kilo Group, LLC| 3 Hampstead PI., Suite 104A, Saratoga 518-450-1154
Springs, NY 12866
Ohio Elena’s Gym, LLC 4201 W. 224 Street, Fairview, Ohio|  915-503-4862
44126
OR, 97701
Tennessee Chattanooga Fitness, LLC 4531 Hwy 58, #107, Chattanooga, TN 423-654-9492
37416
Texas Candia Fitness, Inc. 2301 N. Zaragoza Rd. #210 915-259-8009

El Paso, Texas 79938

FVM Fitness, LLC

6305 661 Street, Lubbock, TX 79424

806-698-6989

Prado-Seto-lne:

49932

915- 867-5417

ZING BUILDERS LLC

3016 Guadalupe Street, Suite B200,
Austin, TX 78705

512-599-4067




S&S Gym, LLC

2311 Cross Timbers Road, Unit 303,
Flower Mound, TX 75028

469-464-3139

EMS Biz Inc.

1061 Coleman St., #110, Prosper, TX
75078

469-481-6100

Seattle, WA 98107

Virginia McFunky Fitness, LLC 4001 North 9th Street, #105, Arlington, 517-312-8288
VA 22203

MeFunky-Fithess,LLC 5+41-480-8386

Washington River Rising Ventures, Inc. | 6410 32" Ave NW, 206-432-9230

Seattle Urban Fitness, Inc.

2026 E. Madison
Steet, Seattle, WA

206-880-1135

Lyman Fitness Ltd.

104-1255 Barkley Blvd.
Bellingham, WA 98226

360-656-5367

1. Franchise Agreements signed, but not yet open:

As of December 31, 20232024

STATE E PHONE

Indiana FISHERS ADA
Fitaess
SolutionsLLC

New Jersey MONTCLAIR
ADA

NevadaOhio VENNL VEDI | 12418 Piazzo-Street —(702)
AMAL- Las-Vegas, NV~ 465-
WELLNESSJA| 89442709 N. Cable 6306419

Washington River Rising | 1317 59" St SE 253-
Ventures, Inc | Auburn, WA 951-
River Rising | 1317 59" st., SE 253-
Ventures, Inc_ | Auburn, WA 951-
Lyman Fitness | Bellevue, WA 801-
Bellevue LLC 661-

1961




Il. A list of Franchisees in the United States of America that opened in
20242025 prior to the date of this Disclosure Document:

STATE ENTITY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER
48542
New-JerseyOhio EdninalAR Fitness_ 3885-Reute 27709 N. 732-419-3042 303-3353
Studios, LLC Cable Road, Suite 146,
Princeton-NJ-085408
Lima, OH 45805

V. A list of our company owned 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms in the United States of
America as of December 31, 20232024: NONE

V. 30 MINUTE HIT® FRANCHISES IN CANADA as of the Issuance Date:
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9354-7214 Quebec Inc.

7811 Boulevard Roi-René
Anjou, QC H1K-3G9

514-355-1804

anjou@30minutehit.com

9372-6651 Quebec Inc.

120-2655 King Ouest
Sherbrooke, QC J1L.2G4

819-791-1846

sherbrooke@30minutehit.com

9374-9257 Quebec Inc.

306-1895 Boulevard Rene-Laennec Laval,

QC H7M 5E2

450-993-0900

vimont@30minutehit.com
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30 Minute Hit Ltd.

2404 King George Highway,
Surrey, BCV4P 1H5

604-595-1547

surrey@30minutehit.com

9502-1630 Quebec Inc.

This location is not yet open.

mirabel@30minutehit.com

1001085577 Ontario Inc.

This location is not yet open.




EXHIBIT KTO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM



The following is a list of franchisees whose franchise agreements have either been terminated,
canceled, not renewed or who otherwise have left the system during the 12-month period
ending December 31, 20232024 or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the
date of this Disclosure Document in the United States of America:

HPX-Fitress-Corp-Fjolskylda, Inc.

8650-N-Sam-HeustenPkwy-E1474 NW
Wall Street, Suite 160B-Humble X

346-374-7780541-668-
69809

McFunky?2 Fitness, LLC

444 West Broad Street, Falls Church, VA

571-489-8386

22046

Prado Soto Inc.

6351 S Desert Blvd, #216, El Paso, TX

915- 867-5417

79932

The following is a list of franchisees and area developers whose franchise agreements have
either been terminated, canceled, not renewed or who otherwise have left the system during
the 12-month period ending as of December 31, 26232024 or who have not communicated with
us within 10 weeks of the date of this Disclosure Document in Canada:

None.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when

you leave the Franchise System.




EXHIBIT L TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS

FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Our registered agent in the State of Florida is:

Registered
Agents, Inc.
Attn: David Roberts
7901 4™ Street N, Suite
300
St. Petersburg, FL
33702



STATE AND
EFFECTIVE DATE

AGENCY

PROCESS, IF DIFFERENT

California

Department of Financial Protection and
Innovation

Los Angeles

320 West 4™ Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

Sacramento
2101 Arena Blvd.
Sacramento, CA 95834

San Diego
1455 Frazee Road, Suite 315
San Diego, CA 92108

San Francisco
One Sansome Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94104

Incorp Services, Inc. (C2294569)
5716 Corsa Avenue, Suite 110
Westlake Village, CA 91362-
7354

Hawaii

Securities Examiner
1010 Richards Street
Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Franchise Division

Office of Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Indiana

Franchise Section

Indiana Securities Division
Secretary of State, Room E-111
302 W. Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Administrative Office of the
Secretary of State

201 State House
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Maryland

Office of Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202-2021

Maryland Securities
Commissioner

200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore Maryland

2021

21202-

Michigan

Consumer Protection Division
Franchise Section

Michigan Department of
General

670 G. Mennen Williams Building
525 West. Ottawa

Lansing, Michigan 48933

Attorney

Minnesota

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 280
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

(651) 296-4026

Commissioner of Commerce




STATE AND
EFFECTIVE DATE

AGENCY

PROCESS, IF DIFFERENT

New York

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor
New York, New York 10005

New York Department of State
One Commercial Plaza
99 Washington Avenue, 6 Floor

Albany, New York 12231

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fifth FL, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

Oregon Department of Insurance and Finance
Corporate Securities Section
Labor and Industries Building
Salem, Oregon 97310

Rhode Island Division of Securities

1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Complex-Building 69-1

Cranston, Rl 02920
(401) 462-9585

South Dakota

Department of Labor and Regulation
Division of Securities

445 E. Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-4823

Virginia Ronald W. Thomas, Administrator Clerk
State Corporation Commission State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and 1300 East Main Street
Retail Franchising Richmond, VA 23219
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor
Richmond, VA 23219
Washington Mailing: Department of Financial
Department of Financial Institutions Institutions
P.O. Box 41200 150 Israel Road SW
Olympia, WA 98504- Tumwater, WA
1200 98501-6456
(360) 902-8760
Overnight:
Department of
Financial Institutions
150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, WA
98501-6456
Wisconsin Securities and Franchise Registration

Division of Securities, 4" Floor
345 W. Washington Avenue
Madison, Wisconsin 53703










EXHIBIT M TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

PRE-CLOSING QUESTIONNAIRE




FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEGMENT/COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

DO NOT SIGN THIS STATEMENT IF YOU RESIDE IN, OR INTEND TO OPERATE THE
FRANCHISED BUSINESS IN, ANY OF THE FOLLOWING STATES:

CA, HI, IL, IN, MD, MI, MN, NY, ND, RI, SD, VA, WA, WI

As you know, you and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement for the operation of a 30
Minute Hit® franchise. The purpose of this Compliance Certification is to determine whether
any statements or promises were made to you that we have not authorized or that may be untrue,
inaccurate or misleading, and to be certain that you understand the limitations on claims that may
be made by you by reason of the offer and sale of the franchise and operation of your business.
Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to each
question.

Acknowledgments and Representations®.

1. Did you receive a copy of our Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before
signing the Franchise Agreement? Check one: o Yes. o No.

2. Have you studied and reviewed carefully our Disclosure Document, Franchise
Agreement and, if you are entering into an Area Development Agreement (“ADA”), the ADA?
Check one: 0 Yes. o No.

3. Is the name, address and phone number of any broker and each of our employees or
representatives who was involved in offering you this franchise listed on the Disclosure
Document receipt you signed (or on any updated receipt we provided to you)?

Check one: o Yes. o No.

4. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains the entire agreement between
you and us concerning the franchise, meaning that any prior oral or written statements not
included in the Franchise Agreement or our Disclosure Document will not be binding?

Check one: o0 Yes. o No.

5. Do you understand that the success or failure of your business will depend in large part
on your skills and experience, your business acumen, your location, the local market for
products, interest rates, the economy, inflation, the number of employees you hire and their
compensation, competition and other economic and business factors? Check one: 0 Yes. o No.

6. Do you understand that you are bound by the non-compete covenants (both in-term and
post-term) listed in the Franchise Agreement and that an injunction is an appropriate remedy to
protect the interests of the 30 MINUTE HIT® system if you violate the covenant(s)? Further,
do you understand that the term “you” for purposes of the non-compete covenants is defined
broadly, such that any actions in violation of the covenants by those holding any interest in the
franchisee entity may result in an injunction, default and termination of the Franchise
Agreement? Check one: o Yes. 0 No.

If you answered “No” to Questions 1-6, please explain (attached additional sheets if
necessary):




7. Was any oral, written or visual claim or representation made to you which contradicted
the disclosures in the Disclosure Document? Check one: o Yes. o No.

8. Except as stated in Item 19 of our Disclosure Document, was any oral, written or visual
claim or representation made to you which stated, suggested, predicated or projected your sales,
income or profit levels? Check one: o0 Yes. o No.

9. Except as stated in Item 19 of our Disclosure Document, was any oral, written or visual
claim or representation made to you which stated, suggested, predicated or projected the sales,
income or profit levels for any 30 MINUTE HIT® business? Check one: o Yes. o No.

10. Except as stated in Item 19 of our Disclosure Document, did any employee or other
person speaking on our behalf make any statement or promise regarding the costs involved in
operating a franchise that is not contained in the Disclosure Document or that is contrary to or
different from the information in the Disclosure Document? Check one: o Yes. o0 No.

If you answered ““Yes” to questions 7-10, please explain in details the claim, representation or
statement (attached additional sheets if necessary):

11. Do you understand that this franchise business may be impacted by other risks, including
those outside your or our control such as economic, political or social disruption, including
COVID-19. In addition, | understand that the COVID-19 outbreak and any preventative or
protective actions that federal, state, and local governments may take in response to this
pandemic may result in a period of business disruption, reduced customer demand, and reduced
operations for 30 MINUTE HIT® businesses. The extent to which the coronavirus impacts the
30 MINUTE HIT ® system will depend on future developments which are highly uncertain and
which we cannot predict. Check one: o Yes. o No.

If you answered “No” to question 11, please explain (attached additional sheets if necessary):




YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND WE WILL RELY ON THEM. BY
SIGNING THIS CERTIFICATION, YOU ARE REPRESENTING THAT YOU HAVE
CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED TRUTHFULLY TO
THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.

NOTE: IF THE FRANCHISEE IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY OR OTHER ENTITY, AN OFFICER AND EACH OF ITS
PRINCIPAL OWNERS MUST EXECUTE THIS ACKNOWLEDGMENT.

Signed Signed
Print Name: Print Name:
Date: Date:

* Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of
any liability incurred under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law or under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act.



EXHIBIT N TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA AND DISCLOSURE




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
CALIFORNIA DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial
Protection & Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the
Commissioner.

The following paragraphs are added to the Disclosure Document:

OUR WEBSITE, www.30minutehit.com, HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR
APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL
PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE
CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION at
www.dfpi.ca.gov.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT AT LEAST 14 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION OF THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND ANY RELATED AGREEMENT(S).

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section
1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability
of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil
Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting
venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17 of the Disclosure Document pursuant to
regulations promulgated under the California Franchise Investment Law:

Termination Upon Bankruptcy. The Franchise Agreement provides for termination
upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11
U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et. seq.).

Post-Termination Non-competition Covenants. The Franchise Agreement contains a
covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the respective agreement.
These provisions may not be enforceable under California law.V

Applicable Law. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the
State of Florida with certain exceptions. These provisions may not be enforceable under
California law.

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a disclosure

document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or order require,
before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.

You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations


http://www.30minutehit.com/

Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law.

(California Corporations Code 8831000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code
820010 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and
Professions Code 8820000 through 20043).

California Business and Professions Code 8820000 through 20043 provide rights to the
franchisee concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement
contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

None of the franchisor, any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the FDD is subject to any
currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined
in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et. seq., suspending or expelling such persons
from membership in such association or exchange.

Fee Deferral. Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended to reflect that the franchisor
will defer all initial franchise fees until the opening date of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Your estimated
initial investment is not changed because the initial investment period for Item 7 extends beyond your opening
date.

Section 21.11 of the Franchise Agreement requires the franchisee to consent to a waiver of
exemplary and punitive damages and Section 21.12 shortens the statute of limitations. These Sections are
hereby amended with the following language:

Provisions requiring the franchisee to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages are in
violation of California Corporations Code section 31521.

Pursuant to California Corp. Code Section 31512.1: Any provision of a franchise agreement,
franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire, or other writing, including any exhibit
thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed contrary to public policy and shall be
void and unenforceable:

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective
franchisee.

(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its
personnel or agents.

(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any
exhibit thereto.

(d) Violations of any provision of this division.

The Franchisor will not require you to execute the Franchise Acknowledgement/Compliance
Certification that is attached to the Franchise Agreement. If you do execute the Franchisee
Acknowledgment/Compliance Questionnaire, we will disregard it and not rely on it.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including
fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller,
or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.”



ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT
USA, LLC

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND FRANCHIOE AGREEMENT

Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement(s)

Payment of Initial Franchise Fees will be deferred until Franchisor has met its initial obligations to
franchisee, and franchisee has commenced doing business. This financial assurance requirement
was imposed by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General due to Franchisor’s financial condition.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates a jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void.
However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

There is no Advertising Fund (System Development Fund) with this franchise system. Therefore,
you do not have to pay any of the amounts/percentages (disclosed in Items 6 and 11) to the
Franchisor for advertising that benefits the entire franchise system.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.”

FRANCHISEE 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date:

Date:




ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT
USA, LLC

AREA DEVIL.OPMENT AGREEMENT

Illinois law governs the Area Development Agreement.

Payment of development fees will be deferred until Franchisor has met its initial obligations to
franchisee, and franchisee has commenced doing business. This financial assurance requirement
was imposed by the Office of the Illinois Attorney General due to Franchisor’s financial condition.

In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement or development agreement that designates a jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of
the State of Illinois is void. However, a franchise agreement or development agreement may provide
for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act.

In conformance with section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

There is no Advertising Fund (System Development Fund) with this franchise system. Therefore,
you do not have to pay any of the amounts/percentages (disclosed in Items 6 and 11) to the
Franchisor for advertising that benefits the entire franchise system.

The Area Development Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire,
or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of
the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.”

FRANCHISEE 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

Date:

Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
MARYLAND DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, FRANCHISE AGREEMENT., AND
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The provision in the franchise agreement which provides for termination upon bankruptcy of the franchisee
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et. seq.).

Pursuant to COMAR j02.02.08.16L, the General release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or
assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within
3 years after the grant of the franchise.

Section 23 of the Franchise Agreement, “Acknowledgements,” is hereby deleted.

Section 9.17 of the Development Agreement, “Acknowledgements & Representations,” and its subparts, are
hereby deleted.

Permit a franchisee to bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

Item 5 is amended by adding the following language:

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner has
required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred
until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement. In addition, all
development fees and initial payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise under
the development addendum opens.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law,
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term
of any document executed in connection with the franchise.”

30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC YOU
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
MINNESOTA DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Minnesota Statute 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchiser from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee
to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights
as provided for in Minnesota Statute 80Cor (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchiser will comply with Minnesota Statute
80C.14 Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases)

o that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days
notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and
o that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota
Statute 80C.12 Subd. 1(G). The franchiser will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service
marks, trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs,
or expenses arising out of any claim, suit, or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general
release

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. See Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statute 80C.17 Subd. 5.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise.

[Signature Page Follows]



APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY: 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC

Print Name:

Date:

FRANCHISEE:

(Individual, Partnership or Corporation Name)

By:

Title:

Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
MINNESOTA FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Minnesota Statute 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchiser from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee
to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the
Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights
as provided for in Minnesota Statute 80Cor (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchiser will comply with Minnesota Statute
80C.14 Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases)

o that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days
notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and
o that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota
Statute 80C.12 Subd. 1(G). The franchiser will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service
marks, trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs,
or expenses arising out of any claim, suit, or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general
release

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may seek
injunctive relief. See Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statute 80C.17 Subd. 5.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including
fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller,
or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.”



ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
TH DAKOTADISCL RED MENT AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Fee Deferral. Item 7 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and any conflicting terms of the
Franchise Agreement are amended to reflect that the franchisor will defer all initial franchise fees until the
opening date of the 30 MINUTE HIT® Gym. Your estimated initial investment is not changed because the
initial investment period for Item 7 extends beyond your opening date.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: ‘“No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including
fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller,
or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.”

30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC YOU
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

Date: Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
VIRGINIA DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Item 21 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and the Franchise Agreement for 30
MINUTE HIT USA, LLC for use in the Commonwealth of Virginia shall be amended to state as
follows:

The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities
and Retail Franchising requires us to defer payment of the initial
franchise fee and other initial payments owed by franchisees to the
franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening
obligations under the franchise agreement.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise
relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including
fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller,
or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document
executed in connection with the franchise.”

FRANCHISEE 30 Minute Hit USA, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




ADDENDUM TO THE 30 MINUTE HIT USA,
LLC

Washington Addenda to
the Franchise Agreement
and related Agreements
and the Franchise
Disclosure Document

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court
decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site will be
either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as
determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation
is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out
of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment
Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed
pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented
by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of
limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury
trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated
or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere
that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or
hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

In lieu of an impound of franchise fees, the Franchisor will not require or accept the payment
of any initial franchise fees until the franchisee (a) has received all initial training that it is entitled to
under the franchise agreement or offering circular, and (b) is open for business.

Use of Franchise Brokers. The franchisor may use the services of franchise brokers to assist it
in selling franchises. A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a fee for referring



prospects to the franchisor and/or selling the franchise. Do no rely only on the information provided by
a franchise broker about a franchise. Do your own investigation by contacting the franchisor’s current
and former franchisees to ask them about their experience with the franchisor.

The System Standards Violation Fee as described in Item 6 of the Franchise Disclosure
Document does not apply to Washington franchisees.

Section 21.19 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

A vote of other franchisees will not modify the Franchise Agreement as it pertains to
any Washington franchisee.

Section 17.7 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended to remove the following statement:

Consequently, enforcement of the covenants made in this Section will not deprive you
of your personal goodwill or ability to earn a living.

Section 18.4 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby amended to provide:

The franchisee’s indemnification obligation does not extend to liabilities caused by
franchisor’s acts or omissions amounting to gross negligence, willful misconduct, strict liability, or
fraud.

Section 9.17 of the Area Development Agreement does not apply in the State of Washington.
Section 23.3 of the Franchise Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

No Warranties. We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that
you have not received, any warranty or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, sales,
profits or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement or the extent to which
we will continue to develop and expand the network of 30 MINUTE HIT® Gyms. You
acknowledge and understand the following:

@) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or
profits of the business venture are made solely in the Franchise Disclosure Document
delivered to you prior to signing this Agreement;

(b) any statement regarding the potential or probable revenues, sales or
profits of the business venture or statistical information regarding any existing 30
MINUTE HIT® Gym owned by us or our affiliates, or that is not contained in our Franchise
Disclosure Document, is unauthorized, unwarranted and unreliable and should be
reported to us immediately; and

(c) you have not received any representations about us or our franchising
program or policies made by us, or our officers, directors, employees or agents, that are
contrary to the statements made in our Franchise Disclosure Document or to the terms
of this Agreement. If there are any exceptions to any of the foregoing, you agree to: (i)
immediately notify our President; and (ii) note such exceptions by attaching a statement
of exceptions to this Agreement prior to signing it.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise



law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.”

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum. Dated

this day of :
FRANCHISOR: PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Title: Title;




Washinaton Addenda to the Development Aareement and related Aareements and the Franchise
Disclosure Document

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which
may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of
termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washin%;;[on, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of
the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or
mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring
an action or Eroceedin arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
cla%ims uglder the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Section 9.17 of the Area Development Agreement does not apply in the State of Washington.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent
contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that
conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hirin? any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or ﬁiqi) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington

The franchisor will defer collection of the Development Fee on a pro-rated basis, such that the
franchisee will pay the franchisor the Fee proportionally upon the opening of each unit franchise.

The following sentence in Section 9.10 of the Area Development Agreement is hereby deleted:

You agree to have executed this Agreement without reliance upon any such representation or
promise.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to state the following: “No statement, questionnaire, or
acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (a) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise
law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.”




[Signatures on Following Page]

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum. Dated

this day of :
FRANCHISOR: PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:
By: By:
Name: Name:

Title: Title:
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES:

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode

Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated

below:
STATE EFFECTIVE DATE
California Pending
Hawaii Not Registered
Illinois Not Registered
Indiana Pending
Maryland Pending
Michigan Pending
Minnesota Pending
New York Pending

North Dakota

Not Registered

Rhode Island

Not Registered

South Dakota

Not Registered

Virginia Pending
Washington Pending
Wisconsin Not Registered

Other states may require registration, filing or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure
document and all agreements carefully.

If 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you fourteen days before you sign a
binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Under Illinois, Maine, Nebraska, New York, Oklahoma, Rhode Island or South Dakota law, if applicable, 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
must provide this disclosure document to you at your first personal meeting to discuss the franchise. New York Law requires the
Franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the
execution of the franchise agreement or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and in the state agency listed on Exhibit "L". 30 Minute Hit authorizes the respective state agencies identified on
Exhibit L to receive service of process for it in the particular state.

The issuance date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 48202428, 2025. The individuals below act

as our franchise sellers on this franchise sale:

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC Stacey Firth

2221 North East 164th Street, 12395 231B street
Suite 252 Maple Ridge, BC
North Miami Beach, Florida 33160 | V2X 978

(778) 340-2000 778-572-9002
Jackson Loychuk, Deanna Loychuk

I have received a Disclosure Document dated April 48,-28, 20252024, that included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A Financial Statements Exhibit | Form of Principal Owner's Guaranty
Exhibit B Form of Franchise Agreement and Related Exhibit J List of Franchisees, Sponsored Franchise
Materials Associations and Non-Sponsored Franchise
Exhibit C Form of Conditional Assignment of Associations
Telephone Numbers and Listings Exhibit K List of Franchisees Who Have Left the System
Exhibit D Form of Conditional Assignment and Exhibit L List of State Agencies/Agents for Service of
Assumption of Lease Process
Exhibit E Form of Agreement to Lease Exhibit M Pre-Closing Questionnaire
Exhibit F —Form of Area Development Exhibit N State Specific Addenda and Disclosure
Agreement Exhibit G General Release — Exhibit O Table of Contents to Operation Manual
Renewal & Assignment Exhibit P Receipts
Exhibit H Form of Principal Owner's Statement

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE

If a Business Entity: If an Individual

30 Miinute Hit USA. 1LLC (Ui
\ALLC(




NAME OF ENTITY

By: Print:
Its: Date:
Date:

Signature:

30 Minute Hit USA. 1LLC (Uit 2025 FDD
\ALLC (U

Date FDD Received:
(Date sign and return to franchisor)
[Our Copy]
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RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure
document and all agreements carefully.

If 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you fourteen days before you sign a
binding agreement or make a payment with the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Under Illinois, Maine, Nebraska, New York, Oklahoma, Rhode Island or South Dakota law, if applicable, 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC
must provide this disclosure document to you at your first personal meeting to discuss the franchise. New York Law requires the
Franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the
execution of the franchise agreement or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If 30 MINUTE HIT USA, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20580 and in the state agency listed on Exhibit "L". 30 Minute Hit authorizes the respective state agencies identified on
Exhibit L to receive service of process for it in the particular state.

The issuance date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 828, 20252024. The individuals below act

as our franchise sellers on this franchise sale:

30 Minute Hit USA, LLC Stacey Firth

2221 North East 164th Street, 12395 231B street
Suite 252 Maple Ridge, BC
North Miami Beach, Florida 33160 | V2X 978

(778) 340-2000 778-572-9002
Jackson Loychuk, Deanna Loychuk

I have received a Disclosure Document dated April 18-28, 20252024, that included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A Financial Statements Exhibit | Form of Principal Owner's Guaranty
Exhibit B Form of Franchise Agreement and Related Exhibit J List of Franchisees, Sponsored Franchise
Materials Associations and Non-Sponsored Franchise
Exhibit C Form of Conditional Assignment of Associations
Telephone Numbers and Listings Exhibit K List of Franchisees Who Have Left the System
Exhibit D Form of Conditional Assignment and Exhibit L List of State Agencies/Agents for Service of
Assumption of Lease Process
Exhibit E Form of Agreement to Lease Exhibit M Pre-Closing Questionnaire
Exhibit F —Form of Area Development Exhibit N State Specific Addenda and Disclosure
Agreement Exhibit G General Release — Exhibit O Table of Contents to Operation Manual
Renewal & Assignment Exhibit P Receipts
Exhibit H Form of Principal Owner's Statement

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE

If a Business Entity: If an Individual

30 Miinute Hit USA. 1LLC (Ui
\ALLC(




NAME OF ENTITY

By: Print:
Its: Date:
Date:

Signature:

Date FDD Received:

KEEP THIS COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS. This Disclosure Document is also available in pdf format on our
website www.30minutehit.com
[Your Copy]

£
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